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president’s review

Did you know Charlie Fischer provides a gquarterly update on
our opearations and financial rasults? Keep up to date by visiting
www.nexenine. com/reports/Al.asp

2007 2006 2005

Cash Flow from Operations {§ millions} 3.458 2,669 2,403
Cash Flow per :":‘,hare ($/share) ) 6.56 . 5.09 4.62
. Net Income (—$ r:nillionsil 7 . ) 1.086 ) 601 1,140 ‘
. Net income p-a-er‘Share {$/share) o ) 2.06 - 1.15 . 2,19 _
.Capital Expen_di_tures ($ millions) - ) 3,401 - 3,330 2,638

It was a year of solid accomplishments at Nexen. Operationally, we brought
Buzzard on stream and increased production after royatties by 33%. Financially, we
achieved net income of $1.1 billion or $2.06 per share and record cash flow of $3.5
billion or $6.56 per share as we benefited from the full impact of high oil prices.
We also received a number of accolades for the way we do business inctuding for

our transparent disclosures and comprehensive sustainability reporting.

Our greatest achievement was the successful ramp up of Buzzard in the
North Sea, which began producing early in 2007, Buzzard is one of the few mega
projects worldwide in the last several years to be completed virtually on time and
on budget. In its first year of operations, Buzzard achieved first quartile uptime
performance for a new offshore facility in UK North Sea and was the single largest
contributor to our 30% cash flow growth. Over its life, this world-class asset is
expected to produce well aver 800 million barrels of oil {260 million barrels net to

us) and generate significant value for Nexen.

Despite success at Buzzard, we missed our 2007 production targets. In addition
to modest timing delays at Buzzard, the start up at Long Lake was deferred almost
six months, and at Aspen in the Gulf of Mexico, we had disappeinting results from
development drilling. Going forward, we've already made a number of changes
to improve project performance. At Buzzard, we're focusing on continuously
improving uptime so the platform consistently operates at full rates. At Long Lake,
we are integrating the lessons from Phase 1 and other projects into our plans
for subsequent phases. To support our strategic initiatives in the US, we have
restructured our operations to focus on improving our capabilities in the deep-
water Gulf of Mexico. With these changes undenway, we are well positioned for

a successful 2008.

This year we are excited to bring Phase 1 of Long Lake on stream. We are
currently steaming the reservoir through all well pads and upgrader construction is
more than 97% complete. Our oil sands strategy integrates steam-assisted-gravity-
drainage (SAGD) and upgrading technology to produce the highest quality synthetic

crude in the region. The patented process minimizes the need for purchased natural



2007 2006 2005

Production before Royalties imboe/d) 254 _ 212 242
Production after Royalties Imboe/d} 207 156 173
Proved Reserves' {mmboe) 1,058 1,049 786
Proved + Probable Reserves * {mmboe) 1,964 1,651 1,621

1 Represents our working intarast before royaities using year-and pricing and includes our Syncrude reserves.

gas and provides us with an expected $10/bbl operating cost advantage over existing technologies. Phase 1 only develops
about 10% of our oil sands leases. Once we gather enough operating history and receive clarity on proposed regulatory
changes associated with climate change and royalty rates, we expect to sanction Phase 2. Future phases should follow an
approximate 3-year cycle. Over the next decade, we plan to grow our oit sands production to approximately 120,000 bbls/d.
With our significant land position and cost advantage, it is easy to see that oil sands will

generate value growth for many years.

Yet there's more to develop and bring on stream in our global portfolio. In the North
Sea, our Ettrick development is progressing well towards first oil mid 2008, We expect
production to ramp up o approximately 30,000 boe/d (24,000 boe/d net to us) by year end.
We have also identified a number of exploration cpportunities in the immediate area that
could be tied back to Ettrick and plan 1o evaluate at least two of these in 2008. Throughout
the North Sea, we have hundreds of thousands of undeveloped acres, including nine

licenses offshore Norway where we hope to drill our first well in 2009,

Offshore Nigeria, development of the world-class Usan discovery continues to move
torward, and we expeci 1o award major deep-water facilities contracts soon. As we develop

Usan, we also pian to continue exploring the highly prospective acreage in the area.

We also have a vast inventory of diverse opportunities in North America. In the Gulf of
Mexico, we have significant deep-water acreage and have contracted two new deep-water
rigs scheduled to arrive in mid 2009 and 2010. In addition to our active exploration pregram
here, we also plan to appraise our exciting discoveries at Knotty Head and Vicksburg to define their potential. In Canada,
we are the first company developing coalbed methane (CBM) in Alberta’s Mannville coals where we have extensive land
holdings. And in nertheast British Columbia, we have a material land position in an emerging shale gas play and are currently

testing this opportunity in what has the potential to be one of the most significant shale gas plays in Canada.

Looking at the company, | believe we have the talent and discipline 1o turn these opportunities into value-generating
projects. |'m excited to see a new generation of employees at Nexen. They are young, energetic people who value integrity,
diversity, innovative thinking and our rich porifolio of worldwide assets. Once again our employees named us one of the 50
Best Employers to work for in Canada. This is a great measure of our success in a world where human potential is truly the
world's richest resource. | thank all employees, our participative Board of Directors and committed shareholders who all see

value in what's next.

Charlie Fischer

President and CEQ




Marvin Romanow

We asked Marvin: In 2007, Nexen's net production grew by 33%, but y
don't expect growth of this magnitude for a few years until projects like Us
Knotty Head and Phase 2 of Long Lake come on stream. Do you belie
growth should be the company’s strategic focus?

)*;/»u-'ﬂ ’

Roger Thomas

We asked Roger: Since the Long Lake pilot performed below initial expec

tations and there's proprietary upgrading technology involved, what give:
you confidence this project will b 2




www.nexeninc.com/reports/AZ2. asp

We asked Larry. Buzzard was one of few global mega projects in the last several years
to be completed virtually on time and on budget, yet it missed its 2007 production goal.

What happened? Larry Murphy
-



why invest in Nexen

Whether you are a shareholder or an employee, you
invest in Nexen because we're creating value. Over
the past five years, our share price increased 275%,
outperforming many of our peers and several major
indices. How do we do it? We look beyond today and
capture early positicns in oil sands, CBM and shale
gas lands. We rise to the challenge and turn mega
projects, like Yemen and Buzzard, into legacies. And
wae do the right things for the right reasons and never
compromise safety, ethics, or the environment.
See the value and join us in an exciting future as
we bring on what’s next.

Did you know we've been profitable ever year, except one, in our
37-year ustory? Learn more about Nexen as @ great long-term
investment at www.nexeninc.com/reports/A3.asp
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Studies show that applying new technology

could increase worldwide supply just as much as

successful exploration. Quantum results occur . N
when that technology is applied to a critical mass. ' '

Take Long Lake. Years ago we identified hurdles

in developing cil sands, accumulated significant i B . -

inventory and formed a strategy that disrupts

conventional wisdom. The patented process O
substantially reduces the need to purchase B

natural gas, resulting in an expected $10/bbl

cost advantage. Apply this to additional phases,

and the rewards are massive. With significant ' ‘
CBM, shale gas and deep-water inventory, L
we're planning strategies for what's next. C -

Did you know Long Lake is narmed after a nearby lake, which
is more round than long? Learn maore about the project at
www.nexeninc.com/reports/A4.asp Leyla Rojas, Engineer
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Phase 1 of Long [ ake will aniy develop
about 10% of Our total oif sangs leases,
We wip continue to develop this asset in

pPhases, Ieveraging our unique technology
1o generate tremendous value.
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we explore a world
of opportunities

Qur opportunity inventory is simply unbeatable
in both quality and size. Built with foresight, itis
global and diverse, making us more sustainable in
changing market conditions. Here in Canada, we
have billions of barrels of ail sands inventory plus
significant land positions with CBM and shale
gas potential. Internationally, we have thousands
of unexplored acres in the North Sea and the
Gulf of Mexico. Now our job is to turn these
opportunities into value-generating projects.

In 2008, we'll bring on Long Lake and Ettrick,
and drill up to 11 exploration wells worldwide,
Any one of these wells could be what’s next.

Did you know wa empioy abouti 3,500 people worldwida and
cpaned an office in Norway? Learn mora about our giobal
operations at www.nexeninc.com/reports/AS.asp Canadian Rockies




Gulf of Mexico

Lo

We are constantly investing in our future.
in 2007, we acquired deep-water acreage in
the Gulf of Mexico and now hoid about 200
blocks. With several driil-ready prospects,
we're excited to discover what's next.




we develop
world-class assets

Globally speaking, we are a small company with big
company assets. And in this industry, size matters.
Oil and gas is largely a fixed cost business—so
larger fields and volumes yield lower unit capital and
operating costs. Worldwide, there are just over 100
fields producing maore than 100,000 boe/d. Buzzard
in the North Sea and Masila in Yemen are part of this
elite group. Next is Usan, offshore Nigeria, expected
to produce around 180,000 boe/d (36,000 boe/d
net to us). Long Lake in Canada and Knotty Head

in the Gulf of Mexico could scon belong here too.
With such exciting mega projects, we can't wait

to develop what's next.

Did you know our marketing group selfs our Buzzard and Masila
crude, and power [op? Learn more about our dynamic marketing
business at www.nexeninc.com/reports/A6.asp

Matt Staines, Project Enginaer
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We transform POssibilitias into exciting

Projects. Buzzarg Came on stream in 2007
generating significant

value for shareholders




we build
sustainable businesses

We are committed to exemplary corporate
governance, environmental and socia! responsibility,
and the health and safety of our workforce. We believe,
over the long term, companies that steward to such
business practices will be more sustainable and will
outperform those with narrower priorities. But don't
just take our word—see for yourself, We are recognized
as a leader in corporate governance and sustainability
reporting, winning awards far both. For the first time
ever, our Scott/Telford offshore UK operations went
two years without a lost-time injury. And we've been
included in the Dow Jones Sustainability Index for
the past seven years. Living our values brings value
today and 1o what's next.

Did you know Soderglen Wind Farm produces enough green energy
to power about 25,000 homes? Learn more about sustainabifity at
Nexen by visiting www.nexeninc.com/reports/A7.asp

Soderglen Wind Farm







annual publications

The following reports are available on our website
at www.nexeninc.com/investors and hard copies
may be ordered online or by calling 403.699.5931.
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Special Note to Canadian Investors—see page 76

Unless we indicate otherwise, all dollar amounts {$) are in Canadian dollars, and oil and gas volumes, reserves and related
performance measures are presented on a working interest before-royalties basis. Where appropriate, information on an after-
royalties basis is provided in tabular format. Volumes and reserves include Syncrude operations unless otherwise stated.

Below is a list of terms specific to the oil and gas industry. They are used throughout the Form 10-K.

/d = per day mhboe = thousand barrets of oil equivalent

‘IE R EET T o T mmboe - million barrels of cil equivalent o
_@s - thousand barrels mcf T thousand cubic feet

mmbbls = ﬁlsn barrels mmcf = million cubic feet

mmbtu = million British thermal units bef = billion cubic feet

kﬂ = _Eil_o_nleti_ - WTI = West Texas Intermediate ]
MW - megawatt NGL = natural gas liquid S

In this 10-K, we refer 1¢ oil and gas in common units called barrel of oil equivalent {boe). A boe is derived by converting six thousand
cubic feet of gas to one barrel of il Bmcf/1bbl). This conversion may be misleading, particularly if used in isolation, as the 6mcf/1bbl
ratio is based on an energy equivalency at the burner tip and does not represent the value equivalency at the well head.

The noon-day Canadian to US dollar exchange rates for Cdn $1.00, as reported by the Bank of Canada, were:

{US$) December 31 Average High Low
2003 . __ 0.7738 07135 0.7738 0.6350
004 08308 07683 08493 07159 |
2005 ) o 08577 0.8263 0.8590 o072
2006 0.8581 08818  0.9099 " Togs28
2007 i T T 0120 ©.9304 1.0905 0.8437

On January 31, 2008, the noon-day exchange rate was US $0.9978 for Cdn $1.00.

Electronic copies of our filings with the Securities Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Ontario Securities Commission (OSC)
{from Novernber 8, 2002 onward) are available, free of charge, on our website {(www.nexeninc.com). Filings prior to November
8, 2002 are available free of charge, on request, by contacting our investor relations department at 403.699.5931. As soon as
reasonably practicable, our filings are made available on our websiie once they are electronically filed with the SEC andfor the
0OSC. Alternatively, the SEC and the OSC each maintain a wehsite (www.sec.gov and www.sedar.com) that contains our reports,
proxy and information statements and other published information that have been filed or furnished with the SEC and the OSC.
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ABOUT US

Nexen Inc. (Nexen, we or our} is an independent, Canadian-
based, global energy company. We were formed in Canada
in 1971 when Occidental Petroleum Corperation (Qccidental)
cambined their Canadian crude oil, natural gas, sulphur and
chemical operations into one company. We've grown from
praducing 10,700 boe/d before royalties with revenues of $26
million in 1971, to producing 253,600 boe/d before royalties
{including Syncrude production) and revenues of $5.6 billion
in 2007. We achieved this growth through exploration success
and strategic acquisitions. Operating for more than 35 years,
we have been profitable every year, except one, and have
been paying quarierly dividends consecutively since 1975.

In the 1970s, we expanded our western Canadian assets and
entered the US Gulf of Mexico. We finished this decade with
production of approximately 11,000 boe/d before royalties and
revenues of $126 million.

Buzzard produced first oil early in the year
and we made significant construction and
commissioning progress at Long Lake.

In the 1980s, we continued to expand in western Canada and
the Guif of Mexico through acquisitions. Acquiring Canada-
Cities Services in 1983 doubled our size and included an
interest in the Syncrude Joint Venture, our entry into the
Athabasca oil sands. We finished this decade with production
of approximately 68,600 boe/d before royalties and revenues
of $5691 million.

In the 1990s, we had two defining events: discovering oil on
the Masila block in Yermen and acquiring Wascana Energy Inc.
The first of 17 fields at Masila was discovered in 1991. Since
start up in 1993, Masila has produced almost a billion barrels
of crude cil. Cur 1997 purchase of Wascana Energy Inc. almost
tripled our Canadian production. In 1998, we entered Australia
with an interest in the offshore Buffalo field and Nigeria as the
operator of the Ejulebe field. Also in 1998, we discovered Ukot
on Block OPL-222, offshore Nigeria. We finished this decade
with production of approximately 239,200 boe/d before royal-
ties and revenues of $1.7 billion.

So far in the 21st century, we have made a number of discov-
eries, two strategic acquisitions and completed non-core asset
divestiture programs. In 2000, we discovered Gunnison in
the deep-water Gulf of Mexico and Guando in Colombia. We
joined with Ontario Teachers’ Pensicn Plan Board (Teachers)
10 acquire Occidental’s remaining 29% interest in us. Teachers
purchased 20.2 million common shares. We repurchased
the remaining 20 millien common shares for $605 million,

which would have had a value of almost $2.6 billion at the
end of 2007. We also exchanged our oil and gas operations in
Ecuador for Occidental’s 15% interest in cur chemical opera-
tions and we changed our name from Canadian Occidental
Petroleumn Ltd. to Nexen Inc. In 2001, we discovered Aspen
in the deep-water Gulf of Mexico and signed a joint venture
agreemeant with OPTI Canada In¢. to develop, produce and
upgrade bitumen at Long Lake in the Athabasca oil sands. In
2002, we discovered Usan, the second discovery on OPL-222,
offshore Nigeria. In late 2003, we discovered two fields on
Block 51 in Yemen.

in 2004, we acquired properties in the UK North Sea,
providing us with operatorship of the Buzzard discovery, the
producing Scott and Telord fields and 700,000 exploration
acres. In 2005, we completed non-core asset divestiture
programs by selling Canadian conventional cil and gas prop-
erties producing approximately 18,300 boe/d before royalties
and by monetizing 39% of our chemical business through
the initial public offering of the Canexus lncome Fund. We
also made a potentially significans discovery in the Gulf of
Mexico at Knotty Head and commenced commercial develop-
ment of our first coalbed methane (CBM} project in the Fert
Assiniboine area in western Canada. in 2006, we completed
major development projects at Buzzard in the North Sea and
the Syncrude Stage 3 expansion in the Athabasca oil sands.
In 2007, Buzzard produced first oil early in the year and we
made significant construction and commissioning progress at
our Long Lake Project. At Long Lake, SAGD steam injection
began in the second half of 2007 and the upgrader is sched-
uled to start up in mid 2008. We also significantly added to our
inventory of exploration prospects during the year by securing
new Gulf of Mexico deepwater leases, obtaining exploration
licences offshore Norway and acquiring additional shale gas
opportunities in Canada. Our portfolic of assets, combined
with talented people and an active exploration program, are
expected to provide future growth for cur company.

For financial reporting purposes, we report on four main
segments:

= il and gas;

= Syncrude;

= energy marketing; and

= chemicals.

Qur oil and gas operations are broken down geographically
into the UK North Sea, US Gulf of Mexico, Canada, Yemen
and Other International {currently Colombia, offshare West
Africa and Norway). Results from our Long Lake Project
are included in Canada. Syncrude is our 7.23% interest in
the Syncrude Joint Venture. Energy marketing includes our
growing crude oil, natural gas, natural gas liquids, ethanol and
power marketing business in North Armerica, Europe and Asia.

noday (BNUULY L0OZ U] USXaN
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Chemicals includes operations in North America and Brazil that
manufacture, market and distribute sodium chlorate, caustic
soda and chlorine through the Canexus Limited Partnership.

Production, revenues, net income, capital expenditures and
identifiable assets for these segments appear in Note 20 10
the Consolidated Financial Statements and in Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resuits of
QOperations IMD&A} in this report.

STRATEGY

QOur goal is to grow long-term value for our shareholders respon-
sibly. Key drivers to growing value include increasing reserves,
production, cash flow and net income on a cost-effective basis
over the long term. We believe in developing a competitive
advantage where possible, to assist in generating opportunities
for leng-term success in our ever-evolving industry, As conven-
tional basins in North America mature, we have developed
specific capabilities in oil sands, CBM, deep-water technology
and international experience. These skills enable us to focus
on specific types of projects, as we transition toward major
projects in established basins, exploration in less mature basins
and exploitation of uncenventional resources.

Today, we are building new sustainabte businesses in western
Canada, the North Sea, Gulf of Mexico, and offshore West
Africa, capitalizing on the following corperate strengths:

» We have access to resource in our key areas that creates
future opportunities. Qur Long Lake Project is developing
only 10% of our oil sands leases in the Athabasca cil
sands and we hold unexplored acreage in the Gulf of
Mexico, the North Sea, western Canada and elsewhere;

= We are successful explorers with significant discoveries
at Knotty Head and Vicksburg in the Gulf of Mexice,
Golden Eagle in the UK North Sea and at Usan,
cffshore Nigeria;

= We are skilled project managers with major development
projects, proven by bringing Buzzard on stream in early 2007;

= We are innovative in our application of technology. Long
Lake is expected to be the first oil sands project to
use gasification technology to significantly reduce the
cost of producing bitumen and we are advancing new
techniques for unconventional production of CBM and
enhanced heavy oil recovery in western Canada;

= We are an international operator with a proven track
record of successful business ventures in Yemen, the
United Kingdomn, Nigeria, Colombia and Australia; and

= From time to time, we supplement our growth with acquisi
tions, such as our strategic entry into the UK North Sea in 2004.

The location and scale of our operations often resultin: 1) an
extended pericd of time from the capture of opportunities
to first production and 2) non-linear, year-over-year growth in

reserves and production. Significant up-front capital invest-
ment is often required prior to realizing production and free
cash flows. We fund this investment by maximizing cash flow
from our producing assets, issuing long-term debt andfor
equity and selling non-care assets inte attractive markets.

Our long-ierm strategy is to build capacity by ensuring we have a
sufficient inventory of opportunities for future growth. We have a
number of opportunities expected to provide production growth
and ¢reate shareholder value well into the next decade. They
include undeveloped discoveries at Xnotty Head ard Vicksburg
in the Gulf of Mexico, Usan and Ukot offshore Nigeria, various
discoveries in the UK North Sea, together with development of
CBM, shale gas and additional oil sands leases in Canada.

Our goal is to grow long-term value
responsibly for our shareholders by
building sustainable businesses in
western Canada, the North Sea, Gulf
of Mexico, and offshore West Africa.

In creating sustainable businesses, we are commitied to good
corporate governance practices and social responsibility. We
believe that over the long term, companies that follow sustainable
business practices cutperform those with narrower priorities.
We foster dialogue with stakehotders about our operational
opportunities and challenges, from exploration to production to
reclamation. Our goal is to help stakeholders become engaged
participants in a continuing consultation process, while balancing
multipte, and sometimes conflicting goals.

UNDERSTANDING THE OIL AND GAS BUSINESS
The oil and gas industry is highly competitive. With strong
global demand for energy, there is intense compatition to
find and develop new sources of supply. Yet, barrels from
different reservoirs around the world do not have equal value.
Their value depends on the costs to find, develop and preduce
the oil or gas, the fiscal terms of the hast regime and the
price products command in the market based on quality and
marketing efforts. OQur goal is to extract the maximum value
from each barrel of oil equivalent, so every dollar of capital
we invest generates an attractive return.

Numerous factors can affect this. Changes in crude oil and
natural gas prices can significantly atfect our net income and
cash generated from operating activities, Consequently, these
prices may also affect the carrying value of our oil and gas
properties and how much we invest in oil and gas exploration
and development, We attempt to reduce these impacts by
investing in projects we believe will generate positive retuns
at relatively low commodity prices.



The prices we receive for our ¢il and gas products are
mainly determined by volatile global crude oil and natural
gas markets. With many alternative customers, the loss of
any one customer is not expected to have a significantly
adverse effect on the price of cur products or revenues. Qil
and gas producing operaticns are generally not seasonal.
However, demand for some of our products can fluctuate
season 1o season, which impacts price. In particular, heavy
oil is generally in higher demand in the summer for its use
in road construction, and natural gas is generally in higher
demand in the winter for heating. We manage our opera-
tiens on a country-by-country basis, reflecting differences in
the regulatory and competitive environments and risk factors
associated with each country.

OIL AND GAS OPERATIONS

We have oil and gas operations in the UK North Sea, US
Gulf of Mexico, western Canada, Yemen, Colombia, offshore
West Africa and Norway. We also have operations in Canada’s
Athabasca oll sands which produce synthetic crude oil. We
operate most of our production and continue to develop new
growth opportunities in each area by actively exploring and
applying technology.

In this Form 10-K, we provide estimates of remaining guanti-
ties of proved oil and gas reserves for our various properties.
Such estimates are internally prepared. We had 98% of
our oil and gas reserves before royalties (98% after royal-
ties) and 100% of our Syncrude reserves before royalties
{100% after royalties) assessed (either evaluated or audited
as described on page 21) by independent reserves consul-
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tants. Their assessments are performed at varying levels of
property aggregation, and we work with them to reconcile
the differences on the portfolio of properties to within 10%
in the aggregate. Estimates pertaining to individual proper-
ties within the portfolic may differ by more than 10%, either
positively or negatively; however, we believe such differences
are not material relative to our total proved reserves. Refer
to the section on Critical Accounting Estimates—0Qil and
Gas Accounting—Reserves Determination on page 68 for a
description of our reserves process, and to the section on
Reserves, Production and Related Information on page 16
for a description of the nature and scope of the independent
assessments performed and the results thereof.

Morth Sea—United Kingdom (UK)

The UK North Sea is a key producing area. In 2004, we
acquired a 43.2% operated interest in the Buzzard develop-
ment, a 41% operated interest in the Scott field, a 54.3%
operated interest in the Telford field, the Scott production plat-
form, interests in several satellite discoveries and more than
700,000 net undeveloped exploraticn acres for US$2.1 billion.
This acguisition established us as a significant regicnal player
with concentrated assets, infrastructure and exploration and
development potential for future growth. It added high-margin
reserves and production, diversified our worldwide portfolio
by adding strong assets in a stable jurisdiction, and comple-
mented our other longer cycle-time projecis.

Our UK strategy is to grow and sustain our existing North Sea
production and capture new production hubs with explora-
tion and exploitation opportunities near existing infrastructure.
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We have a number of exploitation opportunities in our existing
fields and smaller undeveloped discoveries near infrastructure.
Most of cur unexplored acreage is near Scott/Telford, Buzzard
or Ettrick. As a result, new discoveries can be tied-in quickly.

During the year, we produced 84,000 boe/d befcre royalties
{B4,000 after royalties) in the UK, which was approximately
one-third of our total production. At year end, our UK
proved cil and gas reserves of 207 mmboe before royalties
{207 after royalties} represented abcout 20% of our total
proved oil and gas and Syncrude reserves.

Buzzard

Buzzard is the largest discovery in the UK North Sea in the
past ten years. It was discovered in 2001 and began producing
January 7, 2007, Development of this discovery was on time
and on budget.

The Buzzard field is located about 60 miles northeast of
Aberdeen in the Outer Meray Firth, central North Sea, in
317 feet of water. The facllities can process at least 200,000
bbls/d of oil and 60 mmcf/d of gas. Development drilling has
resulted in more well-to-well variability in the concentration
of hydrogen sulphide than originally expected. To address
this, we plan to construct a fourth platfarm with production
sweetening facilities 1o handle higher levels of hydrogen
sulphide. We believe existing equipment and processes
can manage current hydrogen sulphide levels and maintain
current production deliverability until the additional equipment
is commissioned in 2010,

During the year, we produced 84,000 boe/d
in the UK, which was approximately one-third
of our total production.

Qil from Buzzard is experted via the Forties pipeline to the
Grangemouth refinery in Scotland. Gas is exported via the Frigg
system to the St. Fergus Gas Terminal in northeast Scotfand.

We expect to produce Buzzard through 27 production wells
and maintain reservoir pressure through an active water-flood
program. In 2008, we plan tc invest $255 million 1o drill five
production wells, two sidetracks, one water injector and prog-
ress work ¢n the fourth platform.

Scott/Telford

Scott and Telford are producing fields with additional exploita-
ticn opportunities and both tie back to the Scott platform. Scott
was discovered in 1987 and began producing in September
1993, while Telford was discovered in 1981 and came on
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stream in 1996. In 2007, we increased our interesis in these
fields and at the end of the year, we have a 41.9% working
interest in the Scott platform and field, and g 71.75% working
interest in Telford, In 2007, cur share of praduction from these
fields was approximately 16,500 boe/d. The producticn is
royalty-free, around 90% oil and produced through numerous
subsea wells. Cil is delivered to the Grangemouth refinery
in Scotland via the Forties pipeline, while gas is exported via
the SAGE pipeline to the St. Fergus Gas Terminal in northeast
Scotland. In recent years, the Scott platform underwent a
significant maintenance turnaround and facilities upgrade to
improve reliability and extend facility life.

Ettrick

We are progressing development of the Ettrick field and
we expect it on stream mid 2008. We expect to ramp up to
production of approximately 30,000 boe/d gross by the end
of the year. Development includes three subsea production
wells and one water injector tied back to a leased floating
production, storage and off-oading vessel {FPSQ). The FPSO
is designed to handle 30,000 bbls/d of oil, 35 mmcf/d of gas
and to re-inject 55,000 bbls/d of water. Our share of full-cycle
development costs is estimated at $460 miliion, VWe operate
Ettrick with an 80% working interest.

Other

Our 2004 UK acguisition included a non-operated interest in
Farragon, a small satellite discovery, which was brought on
stream in late 2005. In 2007, the non-operated Duart field
was brought on stream and began producing cil from a single
well tied back to the Tartan platform. Qur share of production
from these non-cperated properties was 3,300 boa/d before
royalties {3,300 after royalties) in 2007.



Exploration and Undeveloped Assets

In 2007, we discovered hydrocarbons at Golden Eagle and then drilled a successful sidetrack to appraise the accumulation.
We are currently evaluating development options and expect to sanction development in 2008. In 2007, we also drilled a
successful exploration well at Kildare, and plan to follow up the discovery with an appraisal well. We also completed appraisal
of the Selkirk prospect with favourable results. We have a number of discoveries on operated blocks near Scott, Buzzard and

third-party facilities as follows:

Field Interest (%) Operator Status Comments

Black Horse 60 operated discovery near Scott; evaluating development alternatives
Bugleﬁ 74177 n operated discovery near Scott; appraisal w-eiimderway

Dolphin 42 operated discovery near Scott; evaluating development alternatives
Golden Eagle 34 - - operated o discovery near Ettrick; evaluating development alternatives
Kildare 50 operated discovery near Scott; appraisal well planned for 2008

Perth : 42 operated discovery E Scott; evaluating de-w.;lopment alternatives
Polecat 40- N 6perated discovery near Buzzard; evaluating appraisal opt;{s

Selkirk 38 operated discovery n;a; Euzzard; evaluating development alternatives
Yeoman 50 operated discovery neaTScon; evaluating development alternatives

In 2007, we drilled unsuccessful exploration wells at Guinea,
Dee and Stag. The three wells encountered nen-cormmercial
quantities of hydrocarbons and were abandened. In 2008, we
expect to drill six exploration and two appraisal wells. We have
secured drilling rigs for all of our 2008 North Sea exploration
and development program.

We have also begun assessing emerging CBM opportunities
in the UK. In 2006, we acquired an 80% working interest
in one opportunity and have drilled two successful explora-
tion wells so far. Both encountered coal seams as expected
and are being monitored through ongoing preduction testing.
tn another CBM opportunity, we drilled two unsuccessful
exploration wells in 2007. We plan to continue assessing
CBM potential in the UK with additional exploratory wells
in 2008.

Fiscal Terms

UK fiscal terms are favourable. New discoveries pay no royal-
ties and result in cash netbacks that are higher than our
company average. Scott is subject to Petroleum Revenue Tax
(PRT}, althcugh no PRT is payable until available oil allowances
have been fully utilized, which isn"t expected before 2010. Once
payable, PRT is levied at 50% of cash flow after capital expen-
ditures, operating costs and an ol allowance. PRT is applicable
to fields receiving development consent prior to March 1993,
Buzzard, Ettrick, Farragon, Duart and Telford are not subject
to PRT. PRT is deductible for corporate income tax purposes.
The UK corporate income tax rate on oil and gas activities is
30% of taxable income and is also subject to a 20% supple-
mental charge. The amount and timing of income taxes payable
depends on many factors including price, production, capital
investment levels and available tax losses.

Gulf of Mexico—United States {US}

The Gulf of Mexico is an integral part of our growth strategy.
Large discoveries, relatively high success rates, expanding
production infrastructure and attractive fiscal terms make the
deep-water Gulf of Mexico one of the world’s most prospective
sources for oil and gas. While costs of deep-water exploration
are high relative to other basins, deep-water prospects gener-
ally have multiple sands and high production rates—factors
which reduce risk and improve economics. Technology to
find, drill, and develop discoveries is rapidly progressing and
becoming more cost effective. The deep-water Gulf is near
infrastruciure and continental US markets, so discoveries can
he brought on stream in reasonable time.

We are evaluating development options
for Vicksburg, South Marsh Island 257 and
Mississippi Canyon 72 and look forward
to developing Longhorn in 2008.

Our strategy in the Gulf is to explore for new reserves,

exploit our existing asset base and acquire assets with upside

potential. We focus our exploration program on three strategic

play types:

s deep-water prospects near existing infrastructure;

» deep-water, Miocene and Lower Tertiary sub-salt plays
with the poiential to become new core areas; and

= deep-water, Norphlet targets in the eastern Guif of Mexico.

These plays are relatively underexplored, hold potential for
large discoveries and have attractive fiscal terms. The rela-
tively shorter cycle-times for deep-water prospects near
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infrastructure complement the longer cycle-times for desp-
water sub-salt and Norphlet plays. Although competition in
the Gulf is strong, we have built a large inventory of deep-
water acreage and are now the eighth largest leaseholder in Louisiana MI'SS.;SISfppf
the deep-water.

Shelt
In 2007, we invested $793 million on exploration, developrment

and acguisitions in the Gulf. This resulted in three discoveries at
Desoto Canyon Block 353 (Vicksburg), South Marsh {sland 257

. MC 72 Vicksby,
- Longho| G
.- RO PN

and Mississippi Canyon 72 as well as a successful appraisal well Ewmn" e T \wrigley

at Longhorn. Additionally, we acquired three producing deep- ol 5‘%"’51- . '.?'-S.pe@osrb'tiv Hmhwg
water fields and enhanced our deep-water acreage position. i m":m'w.’ N i", £ g

However, some of our development drilling in 2007 did not meet Kilimanjaro. -, 4 Catalina
expectations. In 2008, we plan to invest approximately $390 Tobago® GULF OF MEXICO

million in the Gulf to further our growth strategies. This includes L 1Mkm ot p e -
development of our Longhorn discovery, drilling of proved unde- O Discovery/Appraising  © Deep-water Production

veloped reserves, exploration drilling and land acquisition. O Prospect W Exploranion Block

Exploration and Undeveloped Assets

Given our drilling success in 2007, we are evaluating development options for our discoveries at Vicksburg, South Marsh Island
257 and Mississippi Canyon 72 and look forward to developing the Longhorn discovery in 2008. Qur undeveloped deep-water
discoveries include:

Well Interest (%) Operator Status Comments

Lenghorn 25 non-operated sanctioned; production expected 2003

Tobago 10 non-operated sanctioned; production expected 2009 -
Knotty Head 25 operated discovery; further appraisal required

Vicksburg 25 non-operated discovery; furlher_appraisal required

South Marsh Island 257 35 non-operated discovery; production expected 2008

_l\._dississippi Canyon 72 33 non-operated discovery; production expected 2008

During the year, we drilled ten exploratory dry holes on the shelf. We also converted our interests in Anduin and Great
White West to overriding royalty interests to accelerate monetization of the reserves with no further capital investment. We
acquired deep-water acreage during the year and hold approximately 200 blocks and expect this acreage and future explora-
tion opportunities to position us well for continued growth. In 2008, we plan to drill seven exploration and appraisal wells and
have secured drilling rigs for more than half of the wells. Access to deep-water rigs remains limited. To explore our inventory
and evaluate existing discoveries, we have secured two new-build dynamically-positioned fifth-generation semi-submersible
drilling rigs. We will have access to each rig for at least two years. We expect the first rig to be availablte mid 2008, followed
by the second rig in 2010.

US Production 2007 2006 2005
Before After Before After " Before Atter
{mboeg/d) Royalties Royalties Rovyalties Royalties Royalties Rovyalties
Deep-water 19.4 7.4 19.6 17.5 24.0 21.5
Shelf 13.8 11.5 15.9 13.2 17.6 14.6
Total 33.2 28.9 355 30.7 41.6 36.1

At year end, proved reserves of 62 mmboe before royalties (53 after royalties) in the Gulf of Mexico represented about 6% of
our total proved oil and gas and Syncrude reserves. Our Gulf production and reserves are primarily concentrated in four deep-
water and five shallow-water (shelf) areas. We operate most of this production.




Deep-water

Most of our deep-water production comes from our
100%-operated Aspen field and our 30% non-operated
Gunnison field. The remaining comes from our 50% non-
operated Wrigley field and three 100%-operated properties
purchased in 2007.

Aspen is on Green Canyon Block 243 in 3,150 feet of water.
The project was developed using subsea wells tied back to
the Shell-operated Bullwinkle platform 16 miles away and
began producing in December 2002. Qur share of 2007
production before royalties was approximately 10,400 boe/d
{9,500 after royalties).

Gunnison is in 3,100 feet of waier and includes Garden
Banks Blocks 667, 668 and 669. Gunnison began preduction
in December 2003 through our truss SPAR platform that
can handle 40,000 bbls/d of il and 200 mmcf/d of gas. Our
Gunnison SPAR facility has excess capacity, leaving room
for growth from regicnal exploration and processing of third-
party volumes. We achieved payout on Gunnison in December
2006, just two years after first production. In 2007, our share
of production before royalties was approximately 7,000 boe/fd
{6,200 after royalties).

Wrigley is on Mississippi Canyen Block 506 in 3,300 feet
of water. The project consists of a single subsea well tied
back to the Shell-operated Cognac platform 17 miles away.
Wrigley began gas production in July 2007 and our share
before royalties in 2007 was approximately 1,100 boe/d (1,000
after royalties).

The three new deep-water fields acquired in 2007 are on
Garden Banks Black 205, Green Canyon 137 and Grean Canyon
6/50—all in water depths between 700 and 1,100 feet. In 2008,
we plan to drill a development well at Green Canyon 6/50.

Shelf

Our shelf producing assets are offshore Louisiana, primarily
in five 100%-owned field areas: Eugene Island 18, Eugene
Island 255/257/258/259, Eugene Island 295, Vermilion
302/321/339/340, and Vermilion 76 {consisting of Blocks 65,
66 and 67). We continue to exploit these assets and look for
other shelf opportunities, Most of our 2007 shelf activities
focused on development drilling at Eugene Island 258/259,
Eugene Island 295 and Vermillion 340.

Fiscal Terms

In 2007, royalty rates on our US production averaged 16.5%
for shelf volumas and 10.6% for deep-water volumes. The US
government has increased royalty rates from 12.5% 10 16.7%
for new deep-water leases awarded after July 2007. We qualify

for royalty relief at our deep-water Aspen and Gunniscn fields
on the first 87.5 mmboe of production. However, we may be
subject to royalties at Gunnisen if annual commedity prices are
higher than threshold prices set by the US Department of the
Interior's Minerals Management Service (MMS). The oil and
gas industry is currently litigating the enforceability of these
price thresholds. In Cctober 2007, a US District Court ruled that
the price thresholds were unenforceable. The MMS has since
appealed this ruling and a decision is expected by the end of
2008. In 2007, commaodity prices exceeded these thresholds
and we were assessed a royalty at Gunnison of 12.5% by the
MMS. if the litigation is not successful, royalties that we have
accrued on our Gunnison production will be payable. Our Aspen
field is nat subject to the minimum price threshold. Although
several bills were recently proposed burdening leases awarded
in 1998 and 1999 with royalties or severance taxes, no such
legislation was passed by US Congress.

US taxable income is subject to federal income tax of 35%
and state taxes ranging from 0% to 12%.

Canada

Our strategy in Canada is two fold: 1) develop unconventional
resource opportunities {cil sands, CBM and shale gas} and
2) maximize value from our establishad operations through
continued conventional development and enhanced recovery
methods. In 2007, we produced 36,800 boe/d before royalties
(29,700 after royalties) in Canada, which was approximately
14% of our total preduction including Syncrude. At year
end 2007, Canadian proved reserves {including bitumen and
excluding Syncrude) of 386 mmboe before royalties (334 after
royalties) were approximately 36% of our total proved oil and
gas and Syncrude reserves.

Qur Canadian conventional assets include heavy oil production
in easi-central Alberta and west-central Saskatchewan,
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and natural gas near Calgary and in southern Alberta and

Saskatchewan. We operate most of our producing properties

and hold almost one miltion net acres of undeveloped land

across western Canada. These assets provide predictable

production volumes and earnings while we advance the

following initiatives for future growih:

= Athabasca oil sands—to produce and upgrade bitumen
into synthetic crude;

= enhanced oil recovery (EOQR)—to increase recovery in our
heavy oil fields;

= cpalbed methane (CBM)—to extract natural gas primarily
from Upper Mannville and Morseshoe Canyon coals; and

= shale gas—to evaluate natural gas from organic shales.

In 2007, we invested $1.505 million in Canada; $1,380 million
into these growth initiatives. With the expected completion of
Long Lake Phase 1 in the Athabasca oil sands, we plan to reduce
our capital investment in 2008 to approximately $770 million.
Qur 2008 capital programs will focus on completing Phase 1 and
work towards sanctioning Phase 2 at Long Lake, advance our
CBM strategies and evaluate the potential of shale gas.

Athabasca Qil Sands

The Athabasca cil sands in northeast Alberta is a key growth
area for Nexen. Our strategy is 10 economically develop our
bitumen resource in phases to provide low-risk, stable, future
growth. Our Long Lake Project involves integrating steam-
assisted-gravity-drainage {SAGD) bitumen production with
field upgrading technology to produce a premium synthetic
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crude and synthetic gas, which significantly reduces our need
to purchase natural gas for operations. We atso have 3 7.23%
investment in the Syncrude oil sands mining operation,

Long Lake Project

In 2001, we formed a 50/50 joint venture with OPT] Canada
Inc. {OPT)) to develop the Long Lake lease using SAGD for
bitumen production and proprietary OrCrude™ technology
for our first stage of upgrading. OPTI has the exclusive
Canadian license for the OrCrude™ technology. We acquired
the exclusive right to use this technology with OPT) within
approximatiely 100 miles of Long Lake, and the right to use
the technology independently elsewhere in the world.

We operate the Leng Lake bitumen extraction process and
are responsible for constructing, developing and operating the
SAGD project. OPTI is responsible for designing, constructing
and operating the upgrader. We share equally in all project
reserves, production, operating and capital costs.

SAGD and Upgrader Integration

SAGD involves drilling two parallel horizontal wells, gener-
ally between 2,300 and 3,300 feet long, with about 16 feet
of vertical separation, Steam is injected into the shallower
well, where it heats the bitumen that then flows by gravity to
the deeper producing well. The OrCrude™ technelogy, using
conventional distillation, solvent de-asphalting and thermal
cracking, separates the produced bitumen into partially
upgraded sour crude il and liquid asphaltenes. By coupling
the OrCrude™ process with commercially available hydroc-
racking and gasification technologies, sour crude is upgraded
to light {39° API) premium synthetic sweet crude oil, and the
asphaltenes are cenverted to g low-energy, synthetic fuei gas.
This gas is available as a low-cost fuel for generating steam
and as a source of hydrogen for the hydrocracking process.
The gas will also be burned in a cogeneration plant to produce
electricity to be used on-site and sold to the provincial elec-
tricity grid. The energy conversion efficiency for our Long
Lake upgrader is about 90% compared to 75% for a typical
bitumen-fed coker, which we expect will provide us with an
approximate $10/bb! operating cost advantage.

Our Strategic Advantage

QOurintegrated SAGD and upgrading process addresses three
main economic hurdles of SAGD bitumen production: 1) the
high cost of natural gas; 2) the cost and availability of diluent;
and 3) the realized price of bitumen. With synthetic gas from
the asphaltenes as fuel, we need to purchase very little
additional natural gas. With the upgrading facilities on site,
expensive diluent is not required to transport the bitumen to
market. And, by upgrading the bitumen into a highly desir-
able refinery feedstock or diluent supply, the end product
commands light-sweet crude oil premium pricing.
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Project Milestones and Costs

The Long Lake Project received regulatory approval in 2003
and Nexen board approval in 2004, Field construction of the
SAGD and upgrader facilittes began in 2004. In 2006, we
substantially completed module and site construction of the
SAGD facilities. In 2007, we began injecting steam in all 10 well
pads. The first six menths of steam injection largely involves
heating the reservoir, followed up by a ramp-up of bitumen
production to peak rates over 12 to 24 months. At the start of
production, steam-to-oif ratios will be high but will decling as
bitumen preduction ramps up to our target rates. Depending
on start up issues and any related facility down time, we
expect bitumen production before royalties to reach between
35,000 and 45,000 bbls/d (between 17,500 and 22,500 bbls/d
net to our share) by the end of 2008, with a stearm-to-cil ratic
of between 3.5 and 4.0. We expect the steam-to-oil ratic to
average approximately 3.0 over the long-term.

Upgrader module fabrication is complete and all modules are
on site. Construction of the upgrader was approximately 97 %
complete at year end and start up is scheduled for mid 2008.
Peak output of premium synthetic crude oil is expected within
12 to 18 months of upgrader start up and we expect to exit
2008 with synthetic production rates between 30,000 and
40,000 bbls/d (between 15,000 and 20,000 bbls/d net to our
share}. Production capacity for the first phase of Long Lake is
approximately 60,000 bbls/d {30,000 bbls/d net to our share)
of premium synthetic crude, which we expect to reach in
2009. We expect to maintain preduction over the project’s
life, estimated at 40 years, by pericdically drilling additional
SAGD well pairs.

In 2008, we will bring on Long Lake
and expect bitumen production to
reach between 35,000 and 45,000 bbls/d
(17,500 and 22,500 bbls/d net to us}.

In 2007, we invested $1,025 million at Long Lake Phase 1.
Long Lake's total capital costs have increased since project
sanctioning due to design enhancements and industry
cost pressures. When our board sanctioned the project in
February 2004, capital costs were estimated at $3.4 billion
{$1.7 billion net}. In December 2004, we accelerated the
drilling of an additional well pad consisting of 13 well-pairs
to ensure reliability of bitumen production at the commence-
ment of upgrader operations at a cost of $98 million ($49
million net). In early 2006, we further modified the project
design by adding steam generation capacity and soot handling
equipment at a cost of $360 million {$180 million net). These
scope changes increased the estimated project cost to
$3.8 billien ($1.9 billion net). Since then, high activity in the
oil sands has placed ongoing cost pressures on labour and
services. As wel!, lower than anticipated labour productivity
has required a larger workforce to maintain progress. As
a result, the projected costs of Long Lake have increased
from $3.8 billien to between $5.8 billion and $6.1 billion
(between $2.9 billion and $3.05 billion net to us). Despite
capital cost increases, we still expect to achieve good economic
returns which benefit from a significant operating cost advan-
tage. Combined SAGD, cogeneration and upgrading operating
costs are expected to average about $17/bbl, substantially
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lower than coking or other upgrading processes. We expect
ongoing capital to average between $3/bbl and $4/bbl. The full-
cycle capital costs of producing and upgrading bitumen using
this technology are comparable to those for surface mining
and coking upgrading on a barrel-of-daily production basis.

Future Phases

We have approximately 248,000 net acres of bitumen-prone
lands in the Athabasca region, with plans to acquire more, We
plan to continue developing our bitumen lands in phases using
our integrated upgrading strategy. In 2005, we announced
our pfan to duplicate Long Laeke by developing Phase 2. In
2007, we invested $114 million on land acquisition, additional
drilling, seismic and enginaering to develop our leases and
advance regulatory applications for these phases.

During 2007, the Alberta government proposed increases to oil
sands royalty rates and implemented climate change legisla-
tion. The federal government also announced climate change
proposals; however, legislation has not been drafted. Due to
this regulatory uncertainty, we are delaying certain ptanned
expenditures on Phase 2. Phase 2 will be followed by additional
phases every three or four years, Each phase will leverage the
knowledge and experience gained from successfully developing
Long Lake and subsequent projects will be similar in size and
design. By keeping the core team in place and repeating and
improving on existing designs and implementation plans, we
expect to gain efficiencies in engineering, modular fabrication
and on-site construction. We also anticipate enhanced operating
efficiencies as we can train and move people easily between
the various plants.

Reserves Recognition
Under SEC rules and regulations, we are required to recognize
bitumen reserves rather than the upgraded premium synthetic

. crude oil that we expect to produce and sell. The economic

recoverability of bitumen reserves is sensitive 1o natural gas
prices, diluent costs and lightheavy differentiais, risks that our
integrated project has been designed to virtually eliminate. At
December 31, 2007, we recognized proved bitumen reserves
of 268 mmboe before royalties (234 after royalties) for our
Long Lake Project, representing about 25% of our total proved
oil and gas and Syncrude reserves before royalties,

Heavy Qil

Approximately 45% of our Canadian conventional production is
heavy cil. Heavy cil is characterized by high specific gravity or
weight and high viscosity or resistance 1o flow. Therefore, heavy
oil is more difficult and expensive to extract, transport and refine
than cther types of oil. Heavy oil also receives a lower price than
light oil, as more expensive and complex refineries are required
to refine heavy crude into higher-value petroleum products.

To maximize heavy oil returns, it is impoertant to manage
capital and operating costs. Our large production base and
existing infrastructure are advantageous in managing these
costs. In 2008, we plan to continue exploiting our existing
tields through drilling and optimizing operations.

Heavy oil reservoirs typically have lower recovery factors
than conventional oil reservoirs, leaving substantial amounts
of ail in the ground. This creates an opportunity 10 increase
recovery factors by applying new technology. We are
continuing to research various technologies to increase our
heavy cil recoveries with several ongoing pilot projects in
west-central Saskatchewan.

Natural Gas

Approximately 40% of our Canadian praduction is natural gas
extracted primarily from shallow sweet reserveirs in southern
Alberia and Saskatchewan and from sour gas reservoirs near
Calgary. In general, shallower gas targets are cheaper to drill
and develop, but have relatively smaller reserves and lower
productivity per well. Sour gas is natural gas that contains
hydrogen sulfide. Our Balzac field, northeast of Calgary, has
been producing sour natural gas since 1961. This sour gas is
precessed through our operated Balzac plant.

At the end of 2007, we held more than 725 net
sections of land in Alberta with CBM potential.

Coalbed Methane {CBM)

Approximately 15% of our Canadian production is from
our commercial CBM developments at Corbett, Doris and
Thunder in the Fort Assiniboine area of central Alberta. We
began commercial development in the Upper Mannville coals
in 2005 by applying horizontal well technology to increase gas
production rates and reduce de-watering time from water-
saturated coal. Upper Mannville coals are generally deeper
than the Horseshoe Canyon "dry coal” play, which is also
being commercially developed in Alberta.

We have a long-term view of this business and plan to increase
our CBM production by progressively developing cppertunities
on our extensive land base. At the end of 2007, we held more
than 725 net sections of land in Alberta with CBM potential,
some of which overlay existing conventional producing lands.
In 2007, we invested approximately $170 million in exploration
and development activities. For 2008, we have slowed our
pace of program spending until we gain clarity on the impact
of Alberta royalty changes. In 2008, we plan to tie-in Upper
Mannville development wells drilled in 2007 for production and
commence development of our Horseshoe Canyon lands.



Shale Gas

As part of our growth strategy in uncenventional Canadian
resource plays, we acquired approximately 190 net sections
of land in an emerging Devonian shale gas play in north
eastern British Columbia. Sha'e gas is natural gas produced
from reservoirs compaosed of organic shale. The gas is stored
in pore spaces, fractures or absorbed into organic matter.
Currently, the United States is the largest producer of shale
gas. In 2008, we plan to continue our evaluation program to
demonstrate the feasibility of this resource.

Fiscal Terms

In Canada, we pay two types of royaities to federal and
provincial governments on production from lands where
they own the petroleum and natural gas rights. The first type
is a gross rovalty {Gross Royaltyl system whereby we pay
royalties ranging from 5% to 40% depending upon drilling
date, production rate and product sales price. The second
type of royalty (NP} applies to our oil sands projects, which
includes a 1% royalty on gross revenue prior to the recovery
of capital costs. After achieving payout on these cosis, the
royalty converts to the greater of 1% of gross revenues or
25% of net profits.

During 2007, the Alberta government anncunced a new royalty
framework effective January 1, 2009 that includes proposed
increases to Alberta's royalty rates, although it has yet to be
passed into legislation. Under the new framewark, the upper
limit of the Gross Rovalty system is expected to increase to
50%, depending on production rate and product sales price.
The new framewaork will also increase the royalty rates for
the NPl royalty system that applies to oil sands projects. The
new royalty rates for oil sands projects will range from 1%
to 9% of gross revenue for projects that are pre-payout of
capital costs, and from 25% to 40% of net profit for projects
that are post-payout. These royalty rates wilt vary depending
on WTI {US$55/bbl to US$120/bhbl).

In addition to royalties, scme provinces impose taxes on preduc-
tion from lands where they do not own the mineral rights. The
Saskatchewan government assesses a resource surcharge on
gross Saskatchewan resource sales that are subject to crown
royalties, ranging from 1.75% 10 3.3%. In 2008, the rates will
reduce slightly to 1.7% and 3.0%. In Alberta, we are subject
to a freehold mineral tax of approximately 4%.

Profits earned in Canada from rescurce properties are subject
to federal and provincial income taxes. In laie 2007, the federal
government reduced the federal corporate income tax rate
from 22% in 2007 to 156% by 2012. Provincial income tax rates
vary from approximately 10% to 16%.

Saudi Arabia

Yemen

Ash Shihr Terminal

GULF OF ADEN

B Nexen Acreage

Middle East—Yemen

Yemen has been a significant international region since we
first began production at Masila in 1993. We operate the
country's largest oil project and have developed excellent

relationships with the government and local communities.

QOur strategy in Yemen is to maximize the value from our
existing blocks, while we continue to search for new reser-
voirs in deeper horizons. We have two producing blocks;
Masila {(Block 14) and East Al Hajr (Block 51). In 2007, we
produced 71,600 bbls/d of oil before royalties {39,800 after
royalties), representing approximately 28% of Nexen's totai
production. Proved reserves of 41 mmboe before rovalties {23
after royalties) comprise approximately 4% of Nexen's total
proved oil and gas and Syncrude reserves before royalties
(3% after royalties).

Masila Block (Block 14)

We operate the Masila Project with a 52% working interest.
Our share of 2007 production was 57,000 bbls/d before
royaliies (29,900 after royalties). After more than 10 years of
growth, our Masila fields have matured, but significant value
still rermains, As a result of the Preduction Sharing Agreement
(PSA) terms that govern Masila production, we still expect to
generate approximately 22% of total project free cash flow
from the remaining proved reserves recoverable before the
PSA expires in 2011.

The first successful Masila exploratory well wags drilled at Sunah
in 1990, with additional discoveries quickly following at Heijah
and Camaal. Initial production began in July 1993, with the first
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lifting of oil in August 1993. Masila Blend oil averages 32° AP
at very low gas-oil ratios. Most of the oil is produced from the
Upper Qishn formation, but we also produce from desper forma-
tions including the Lower Qishn, Upper Saar, Saar, Madbi, Basal
Sand and Basement formations. Production is collected at our
Central Processing Facility (CPF} where water is separated for
reinjection and oil is pumped to the Ash Shihr export terminal on
the Indian Ocean and shipped to customers, primarily in Asia,

We are managing the pace of our drilling program to ensure
we recover the remaining reserves in the most efficient, cost-
effective manner. In 2008, we plan to drill ten development
wells and sidetracks.

The Masita PSA was signed in 1987 between the Government
of Yemen and the Masila joint venture partners {(Masila
Partners), including Nexen, Under the PSA, we have the
right to produce oil from Masila into 2011 and to negotiate a
five-year extension. Production is divided into cost recovery
oil and profit oil. Cost recovery oil provides for the recovery
of all exploration, development, and operating costs that are
funded by the Masila Partners. Costs are recavered from a
maximum of 40% of production each year, as follows:

Costs Recovery

QOperating 100% in year incurred

Exploration 25% per year for 4 years

Development 16.7% per year for 6 years

The remaining production is profit oil that is shared between the
Masila Partners and the Government and is calculated on a sliding
scale based on production. The Masila Partners’ share of profit
ail ranges from 20% to 33%. The structure of the agreement

moderates the impact on the Masila Partners’ cash flows during
periods of low prices, as we recover our costs first and then share
any remaining profit ail with the Government, The Government's
share of profit oil includes a component for Yemen income taxes
payable by the Masila Partners at a rate of 35%. In 2007, the
Masila Partners’ share of production, including recovery of past
costs, was approximately 39%.

East Al Hajr Block (Block 51} .
We operate Black 51, which is also governed by a PSA between
the Government of Yemen and the East Al Hajr partners (EAH
Partnersk: The Yemen Cormpany (TYCO}{12.5% carried working
interest) and Nexen (87.5% working interest). Under the PSA,
TYCO has no obligation to fund capital or operating expen-
ditures. Our effective interest is 100% and for purposes of
accounting and reserves recognition, we treat TYCCO's 12.5%
participating interest as a royalty interest. We recognize both
the Government's share and TYCO's share of profit oil under
the PSA as royalties and taxes consistent with our treatment of
our Masila operations. The PSA expires in 2023, and we have
the right to negotiate a five-year extension. Under the PSA,
the EAH Partners pay a royalty ranging from 3% to 10% to the
Government depending on production volumes. The remaining
production is divided into cost recovery oil and profit oil. Cost
recovery ol provides for the recovery of all of the project’s
exploraticn, development and operating costs, funded solely
by Nexen. Costs are recovered from a maximum of 50% of
production each year after rovyalties, as follows:

Costs Recovery

Operating 100% in year incurred

Exploration 75% per year, declining balance

Development 75% per year, declining balance

Masila {Block 14) PSA

[ 0Oil Revenue

rs Y

Cost Oil Profit Qil
max 40% per year balance of revenue

s Y

Partner Profit Government
Qil Share Profit Qil Share
20% ~ 33% B7% - B0%
v r A

East Al Hajr (Block 51) PSA

3% =-10%

Qil Revenue }--» Rovyalty

» Y

Cost Qil Profit Qil
max 50% per year batance of revenue
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Partner Profit Government
Qil Share Profit Qil Share
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The remaining production is profit oil that is shared between ]
the EAH Partners and the Government on a sliding scale Nigeria
based on production rates. The EAH Partners’ share of profit
cil ranges from 20% to 30%. The Government's share of profit

ail includes a component for Yemen income taxes payable by Cameroon
the EAH Pariners at a rate of 35%. In 2007, the EAH Partners'
share of Block 51 production, including recovery of past costs, g QPL-222
was approximately 54%.
Usan
The first successful exploratory well was drilled at BAK-A in West
2003, with BAK-B discovered shortly after, Block 51 develop- Ukat
ment began in 2004 and includes a CPF, gathering system ¥ 4 L4 /
and a 22-km tieback to our Masila export pipeline. Production J ‘

) ) X O Exploration Blocks
began in November 2004. During 2007, preduction averaged

14,600 bhls/d before royalties {9,900 after royalties).

B Discoveries

B Prospects
10 km

@ Wels Driled

Offshore West Africa

Ofishore West Africa is a core area where we already have
discoveries. It offers prolific reservoirs and multiple opportunities
toinvest in this oil-rich region. Our strategy here is to explore and
develop our portfolio for medium- to long-term growth.

Nigeria

In 1998, we acquired a 20% non-operated interest in Block OPL-222 which covers 448,000 acres approximately 50 miles
offshore in water depths ranging from 600 1o 3,500 feet. Based on the drilling results outlined befow, significant hydrocarbons
exist on these blocks.

Year Well Location Results

1958 Ukot-1 Ukot field discovery well encountered three oil-bearing intervals and flowed at restricted
rate of 13,900 bbls/d from two intervals

2002 Usan-1 Usan field discovery well encountered several oil-bearing intervals and flowed at restricted
rate of 5,000 bhis/d from one interval

2003 Usan-2 3 km west o-f discovery appraised up-dip portion of the fault blt:'rck
—26—03 Usan-3 2km north\:eét of discovery appraised sepafate fault blociiiiagfrlowred at restricted rate of T
5,600 bbls/d from one interval
2003 Ukot-2 3.5km SC;L;I-h of discovery encountered thres oil-bearing intervals L
72063 777Us;n-4 o 775 k;n;dth gf d@ery - f!owea ;t restrict;d rate of 4,400 bbls/d from first interval-and
6,300_b_blsld front\ §eﬂ_d inlfzrvi_ ]
2004 Usan-5 6 km west of discovery sampled oil in several intervals
2004 Usan-6 4 km south of Usan-5 flowed at restricted rate of 5,800 bbls/d from one interval L
EOS o Usa_n;_- - 9 kI'I'I_S_DIJthWESt of disc;c;very B _;nfirmed;e-a;siern exten_s_ion of th-e.: field
2005 Usan-8 3 km southwest of discovery confirmed an eastern extension of the field

Appraisal of the Usan field is complete and the field development continues to move forward, We expect the project to advance
10 the execution phase shortly and this will facilitate the award of the major deep-water facilities contracts. The project will
have the ability to process an average of 180,000 bbls/d of oil during the initiat production plateau period through a new FPSO
with a two million barrel storage capacity. We have a 20% interest in exploration and development on this block. In 2008,
we plan to invest approximately $165 million to progress development and award the major deep-water facilities contracts.
At year-end 2007, proved reserves of 30 mmboe before rovalties (25 after royalties) comprise approximately 3% of our total
proved oil and gas and Syncrude reserves. ’
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Other International

Colombia

Boqueron Block—Guando

In 2000, we made our first discovery at Guando on our 20% non-
operated Bogueron Block. Boqueren is in the Upper Magdalena
Basin of central Colombia, approximately 45 km southwest of
Bogota. Qur working interest in Guando will decrease to 10%
once the field has produced 60 million barre's of oil, which is
expected to occur in early 2009. Our share of 2007 production
averaged 6,200 bbls/d before royalties (5,700 after royalties),
about 2% of Nexen’s total production including Syncrude.

Production from Guando is subject to a royalty between 5%
and 25% depending on daily production, and in 2007 averaged
8%. Colombian taxable income is subject to federal income
tax of 34% in 2007 and 33% in 2008 and future years.

Exploration
We have interests in three exploration blocks in the Upper
Magdalena Basin: El Queso acquired in 2003, Villarrica Norte

Block in 2005 and El Guadual in 2007. In 2007, we drilled two
unsuccessful wells; Guaini-1 and Atalea-1. We hold five tech-
nical evaluaticn agreements that each provide approximately
one year to evaluate potential prospects. We are also identi-
fying other growth opportunities in Colombia.

Norway

As part of gur growth strategy in the North Sea, we participated
in the 2006 bid round for exploration rights offshore Norway
and were awarded interests in six licences covering nine blocks
in early 2007, In 2008, we expect to invest approximately $40
million in additional seismic and geologic studies. In garly 2008,
we were awarded interests in thiee additional licences.

Norwegian oil and gas activities are subject to a general corpo-
rate income tax rate of 28% plus an additiona! 50% special

-petroleum tax. A tax refund of 78% is received on tax losses

arising from qualifying exploration expenses in Norway.

RESERVES, PRODUCTION AND RELATED INFORMATION

In additicn to the tables below, we refer you to the Supplementary Data in [tem 8 of this Form 10-X for infarmation on our oil
and gas producing activities. Nexen has not filed with nor included in reports to any other United States federal authority or
agency, any estimates of total praved crude oil or natural gas reserves since the beginning of the last fiscal year.

Net Sales by Product from Continuing Qil and Gas Operations {including Syncrude)

(Cdn$ millions) 2007 2006 2005
Conventional Crude Oit and Natural Gas Liquids (NGLs} 4,077 2,479 2,438
gy;l_lhetic Cru}je O;‘I T B 545 446 397
VNatural Gas T - - o ’ 499 553 671_
Total 5,121 3478 3,506

Crude oil {including synthetic crude oil) and natural gas liquids represent approximately 80% of our il and gas net sales, while
natural gas represents the remaining 10%.




Sales Prices and Production Costs {excluding Syncrude}

Average Sales Price’ Average Production Cost’
2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005
Crude Qil and NGLs (Cdn$/bbl}
Yemen 76.29 71.57 62.07 ) 12.00 B.11 L 6.75_
Canada?® o T 44,07 T 42.79 th ‘ 18.67 T 1526 51.01
United States 69.83 65.80 57.6.:3 . 9.69 9.45 7.33
United Kingdom o 76.30 T 7_;.71751‘“7 i EaS ‘ 6.94 ’ 11?8- - 14.9?
Other Countries T 71.29 __ 66.09___ —E_.QB 3.76 } - SE o E.DET
Natural Gas {Cdn$/mcf)
" Canada® o 632 649 151 228 185 085
7 Tl;h;d State:s - o o 7.80 B T.éﬁ 10.56 1.61 T _‘ITS_S - 152—
Unite_d_ kingdom - 4.71 7.:;3—_ ) 7.86 i 1.16 1.88 2:8ﬁ
Notes:
1 Sales prices and unit production costs are calculated using our working interest production after royalties.
2 Includes results of discontinued operations for 2005 {See Note 14 to our Consalidated Financial Staternents).
Oil and Gas Acreage
Devetoped Undeveloped’ Total
(thousands of acres) Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net
Yemen? 50 29 756 628 806 657
Canada 97 610 1871 980 2,668 1,590
United States 206 122 1123 sz 1,329 684
LUnited Kingdom 202 83 1,290 846 . 1,492 929
Colombia* - 1 - 607 312 608 372
Nigeria #? 7 o o 44;8- o —96 448 90
NOFWEI; - . . 7280 o 71734 280 134
Total 1,256 Ba4 6,375 3,612 7.631 4,456°

Notes:

I Undeveloped acreage is considered 1o be ihose acres on which wells have not been drilled or complated to a point that would permit production of commercial
quantities of crude off and natural gas regardiess of whether or not such acreage contains proved raserves.

2 The acreage is covered by production sharing conlracts.

3 The acreage is covered by & joint ventura agreement.

4

5

The acreage is covered Dy 8n association contract,
Approximately 20% of our net oil and gas ecraage is schadulad 10 expire within three yeers if production is not established or we take no other action to
extend the terms. We plan to continue the terms of many of thesa licences.

Producing Qil and Gas Wells

Oil Gas Total
(number of wells) Gross ' Net ? Gross * Net 2 Gross ' Net ?
Yemen 463 274 - - 463 274
Canada 2,231 1,550 2,884 ) 2,522 . 5,115 4,072
United States 192 9 | 202 a1 395 235
United Kingdom 45 21 - - 48 21
7Co|ombia o 7 - - 7121 77-—72?' I . 1 25
Total 3,056 1,964 3,086 2,663 6,142 4,627

Notes:
1 Gross wells are the total number of wells in which we own an interest.
2 Nert wells are the sum of fractional interests owned in gross wells.
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Drilling Activity

2007
Net Exploratory Net Development Total
{number of nat wells} Productive Dry Holes Total Productive Dry Holes Total
Yemen 1.0 1.0 20 28.0 - 28.0 30.0
Canada 23.2 0.6 238 295.6 3.2 298.8 322.6
United States 0.8 29 37 8.6 1.0 9.6 133
United Kingdom 20 3.2 5.2 4.2 - 4.2 9.4
Colombia o - 0.9 0.9 7.0 - 7.0 7.9
Total 27.0 8.6 35.6 343.4 4.2 347.6 383.2
2006
Net Exploratory Net Development Total
{number of net wells) Productive Dry Holes Tota) Productive Dry Holes Total
Yemen 3.0 5.5 8.5 36.0 1.0 37.0 45.5
Canada 35.4 2.2 376 214.3 0.7 215.0 252.6
United States 1.6 21 3.7 8.3 2.0 10.3 14.0
United Kingdom 08 1.7 2.5 5.5 - 5.5 8.0
Colombia - - - 2.0 - 20 20
Nigeria - 0.2 0.2 - - - 0.2
Total 408 1.7 52.5 266.1 3.7 269.8 322.3
2005
MNet Exploratory Net Developmant Total
{number of net wells) Productive Dry Holes Total Productive Dry Holes Total
Yemen 05 4.6 5.1 33.0 1.6 34.6 39.7
kCanada 322 7 8.0 40.2 1989 0.5 199.4 239.6
United States - 0.6 0.6 7.2 1.0 8.2 8.8
United Kingdom 0.5 2.1 2.6 1.5 - i 15 4.1
Colombia - - - 1.8 - 1.8 1.8
Nigeria 0.4 0.2 0.6 - - - 0.6
Equatorial Guinea - 0.5 0.5 - - - 0.5
Total 33.6 18.0 49.6 242.4 31 245.5 295.1

Wells in Progress

At December 31, 2007, we were drilling 3 wells in Yernen (2 net), 2 wells in Canada (2 net), 4 welis ih the United States (1.9 net),
3 wells in the United Kingdom (1.4 net), and 1 well in Colombia (0.2 net).




Proved Reserves including Proved Undeveloped Reserves

At December 31, 2007, we had 734 mmboe of proved oil and gas reserves before royalties (650 after royalties). Thisisa 1%
increase over the prior year (2% after royalties). Including Syncrude, our total proved oil and gas and Syncrude reserves increased

1% to 1,058 mmboe (1% to 917 after royalties).

The foilowing table provides a summary of the changes in our proved oil and gas reserves {before royalties) excluding our
Syncrude reserves during 2007, Refer to page 120 for proved reserves information on an after-royalties basis.

United United Other
{mmboe} Canada Kingdom States Yemen Countries Total
December 31, 2006 364 182 73 66 40 725
Extension and Discoveries 7 10 4 2 - 23
Revisions o _2"3— i __I ) {;-2)- - _1 - 61
Acquisitions - 1 o {1 o —7 - 12
Divestments - - (2)7 - - (2}
Production {13) (30} {12) (28) 12) (B5}
December 31, 2007 3s6 207 62 41 3s 734

Extensions and discoveries contributed 23 mmboe. The
majority of the increase results from updip drilling at Buzzard
in the North Sea, appraisal drilling at Longhorn in the Gulf of
Mexico, and ongoing development of coalbed methane in
Canada. Other increases relate to ongeing expleitation activities
in the North Sea, Yemen, the Gulf of Mexico and Canada.

More than half of the 61 mmboe of positive revisions occurred
at Buzzard where drilling resuits and production performance
supported higher reserve estimates. About a third of the revi-
sions are from cur Long Lake Project where performance
of analogous commercial SAGD projects support increased
expected recoveries. The remaining positive revisions are
primarily from price revisicns in Canadian heavy oil proper-
ties and the Ettrick field, recovery factor improvements on our
Canadian CBM lands and other areas. In the United States,
the negative revision mainly relates 1o our deep-water Gulf
of Mexico Aspen property where unsuccessful development
drilling and production declines resulted in a reassessment

of the property. In addition, four Gulf of Mexico shelf proper-
ties recognized negative reserve revisions from unsuccessful
recompletions, production declines and increasing operating
costs on older platforms reduced their economic life.

Acquisitions and divestiments accounted for a net 10 mmboe
addition {8 after royalties), primarily in the Guli of Mexico
where we acquired Shelf properties, pooled cur deep-water
Ringo well within the Longhorn development, and swapped
our interest in Great White West for an overriding royalty
interest in the entire Great VWhite reservoir, 'n addition, we
acquired additional interests in our operated Scott and Telford
properties in the North Sea.
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The following provides a summary of the changes in our
proved oil and gas reserves (before royalties) excluding
Syncrude, during the past three years. Refer to page 120 for
proved reserves information on an after royalty basis for the
past three years.

United United Other

{immboe) Canada Kingdom States Yemen Countries Total
December 31, 2004 164 130 103 133 12 542
Extension and Discoveries 30 a1 24 17 31 143

| Revisions 283 79 (a3 a) o 326
Acquisitions 2 1 1 - - 14

" Divestments 149) - @ - - (51}
Production 44y way @ (105) (6 (240}
December 31, 2007 386 207 62 a1 38 734
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Since the end of 2004, we added 483 mmboe, sold 51 mmboe and produced 240 mmboe. Extensicens and discoveries of 143
mmboe occurred primarily at our Usan, Ettrick and Buzzard fields, Canadian CBM and heavy oil, and the deep-water Gulf of
Mexico, Our net positive revisions of 326 mmboe include economic revisions of 261 million boe, related to changes in year-end
prices and costs. This includes 246 mmboe from reinstatement of Long Lake bitumen reserves that we had removed due to low
bitumen prices at the end of 2004. The net technical revisions of 65 mmboe includes 77 mmbee of positive revisions in the UK

primarily attributed to production performance at our Buzzard property and increased expected recoveries for our Long Lake Project.
Negative technical revisions occurred pnmarily from lower-than-expected production performance at our Aspen field and some
Shelf praperties in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico. Qur divestments are primarily from the 2005 szle of various Canadian properties.

Proved Undeveloped Reserves

The following table provides a summary of the proved undeveloped reserves (PUDs) for our oil and gas activities at the end

of the last two years:

2007
Before Rovalties After Royalties
{mmboe) PUDs Total Proved ' % of Total PUDs Total Proved ’ % of Total
Canada 236 386 61% 200 334 60%
United Kingdom 54 207 26% . 54 207 26%
United States 20 62 32% 17 53 32%
Yemen 2 41 5% 1 23 4%
Other Countries 30 38 79% 25 33 76%
December 31, 2007 342 734 47% 297 650 48%
2006
Before Royalties After Royalties
tmmboe) PUDs Total Proved ' % of Total PUDs Total Proved’ % of Total
Canada 216 364 §59% 188 313 5%%
United Kingdam 50 182 27% 50 182 27%
United States 9 73 12% 7 63 1%
Yemen 9 66 14% 8 38 13%
Other Countries 31 40 78% 25 35 71%
Decamber 31, 2006 215 725 43% 275 637 43%
Note:

1 Exciudes proved reserves for our Syncrude operations of 324 mmboe (267 after royalties) in 2007 end 324 mmboa (274 after royalties) in 2006.

In 2007, our PUDs increased by 27 mmboe (22 after royal-
ties). We added 22 mmboe {14 after rovyalties) at Long Lake
primarily relating to increased recovery factors ¢on proved
reserves outside of the initial 81 well-pair SAGD development
area. We also added PUDs from ongoing activities at Buzzard,
Ettrick, Longhorn and CBM. We converted 18 mmboe (14 after
royalties) of PUDs to developed, with the majority relating
to Buzzard, Masila, Block 51 and CBM development activi-
ties. Other small additions and conversions occurred from
ongoing development activities in Canada, United States,
United Xingdom and Colombia.

In Canada, our PUDs increased from 216 mmboe (188 after
royalties) to 236 mmboe (200 after royalties). Substantially
all of the increase relates 1o Long Lake. Long Lake PUDs of
228 mmboe (194 after royaliies) are expected to be converted
to developed over the next 20 years as we driil additional
wells to provide feedstock to run the upgrader at capacity.

The remaining PUDs relate to infill drilling, recompletions or
facilities enhancements cn our various heavy oil and natural
gas fields. The majority of these PUDs are expected to be
converted to producing reserves in 2008 and 2009. Also, a
small portion of the PUDs relate to our CBM properties, which
are expected to be converted to producing by infill driling and
iield development planned for 2008 and 2009.

In the United Kingdom, our PUDs increased from 50 mmboe
(50 after royalties) to 54 mmboe (54 after royalties). About
60% of the PUDs relate to Buzzard while the remainder relate
to Ettrick. At Buzzard, we converted 6 mmboe of PUDs to
producing and added 6 mmboe for increased recovery factors
on remaining undrilled locations. The Buzzard PUDs are
expected to be converted to proved over the next few years
as we drill additional wells to keep the platform operating at
capacity. We expect to convert the majority of Ettrick PUDs
to producing when preduction is initiated in 2008.



In the United States, our PUDS increased from 9 mmboe
(7 after royalties} to 20 mmboe (17 after royalties) largely
as a result of the Green Canyon 6 acquisiticn, and activi-
ties at |.onghorn and Great White, which are expected to be
producing in the next twe years. Almost all of the remaining
PUDs are located in the deep water of the Gulf of Mexico.

In other countrigs, PUDs related primarily to our Usan devel-
opment, offshore West Africa.

Excluding Long Lake and Usan, we expect to convert over 80%
of our PUDs to producing in the next three years. Usan will be
converted by 2012 when it is expected to come on stream.
Long Lake PUDs will be converted over the next 20 years as
new wells are drilled to offset declines from the initial SAGD
wells. At the same time, we expect our ongoing exploration
and development activities to continue to add new PUDs.

During the past three years, our total PUDs before royalties
increased from 190 mmboe tc 342 mmboe (165 to 297 after
royalties). As aresult, our PUDs before royalties as a percent
of total proved reserves excluding Syncrude increased from
35% to 47% {37% to 46% after royalties). During this time,
we converted 164 mmboe before royalties (148 after royalties}
to developed. These conversions relate to completion of devel-
opment of our Buzzard, Farragon and Duart fields in the United
Kingdom and Block 51 in Yernen, and ongoing development of
work elsewhere. We also added 316 mmboe before royalties
(280 after royalties), primarily refated to our active development
projects at Long Lake, Usan, Ettrick and Longhorn.

Basis of Reserves Estimates

Reserve estimates in this report are internally prepared.
Refer to the section on Critical Accounting Estimates—0Oil
and Gas Accounting—Reserves Determination on page 68 for
a description of our reserves process. As described therein,
we have at least B0% of our oil and gas reserve estimates
either evaluated or audited annually by independent qualified
reserves consultants. The nature and scope of the indepen-
dent evaluations and audits is determined by agreement
between us and the engineering firm. Independent assess-
ments for other companies may, therefore, be different.

The following provides an overview of the nature and scope
of the independent evaluations and audits that we have
performed. An independent evaluation is a process whereby
we request a third-party engineering firm to prepare an
estimate of our reserves by assessing and interpreting
all available data on a reservoir. An independent audit is a
process whereby we request a third party engineering firm
to prepare an estimate of our reserves by reviewing our esti-
mates, supporting working papers and other data as they feel
is necessary. The primary difference is that an auditor reviews

our work and estimate in preparing their estimate whereas an
evaluator uses the reservoir data to prepare their estimate.

In each case, we request their estimate be prepared using
standard geological and engineering methods generally
accepted by the petrcleum industry. Generally accepted
methods for estimating reserves include volumetric calcula-
tions, material balance technigues, production and pressure
decline curve analysis, analogy with similar reservoirs, and
reservoir simulation. The methad or combination of methods
used is based on their professional judgement and experi-
ence. In preparing their estimates, they obtain infoermation
fram us with respect to property interests, production from
such properties, current costs of operations, expected future
development and abandonment costs, current prices for
production, agreements relating to current and future opera-
tions and sale of production, and various other information and
data. They may rely on the information without independent
verification. Howevaer, if in the course of their evaluation they
question the validity or sufficiency of any information, we
request that they not rely on such information until they satis-
factorily resolve their questions or independently verify such
information. We do not place any limitations on the work 1o be
performed, Upon completion of their work, the independent
evaluator or auditor issues an opinion as to whether our esti-
mate of the proved reserves for that portfolio of properties is,
in aggregate, reasonable relative to the criteria set forth in SEC
Rule 4-10(a}{2) of Regulaiion 5-X. These rules define proved
reserves as the estimated quantities of oil and gas which
geological and engineering data demonstrate with reasonable
certainty to be recoverable in future years from known reser-
vairs under existing economic and operating conditions,

Our estimaie may differ from the independent evaluators
and auditors as they apply their professional judgement and
experience, which may result in applying different estimating
methods or interpreting data differently than us. We believe
our estimate for a portfolio of properties is reasonable when
it is, in aggregate, within 10% of the estimate of the inde-
pendent evaluator or auditor.

We engaged DeGolyer and MacNaughton (D&M) to evaluate
100% of our reserves before royalties {100% after royalties)
for the United Kingdom, Yeman Masila, Yemen Block &1 and
Nigeria. A separate opinion was provided on each of these
four areas. D&M provided an opinion on each of the areas
that the proved reserves estimate prepared by us is, in aggre-
gate, reasonable when compared to their estimate which was
prepared in accordance with SEC Rules.

We engaged McDaniel & Associates Consultants Ltd,
(McDaniel) to evaluate 99% of our Canadian conventional,
CBM and bitumen reserves before rovalties (99% after
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royalties) and to audit 100% of our Syncrude mining reserves
before royalties (100% after royalties). The properties were
selected by management and reviewed with the Reserves
Review Committee of the Board. All material properties were
selected. McDaniel provided an opinion that the proved reserves
estimate prepared by us is, in aggregate, within 10% of their
estimate which was prepared in accordance with SEC Rules.

We engaged Ryder Scott Company {Ryder Scott) to evaluate
79% of our US Gulf of Mexico shelf reserves before royalties
(79% after royalties). The properties were selected by manage-
ment and reviewed with the Reserves Review Committee of
the Board. All material properties were selected. Ryder Scott
provided an opinion that the difference between their esti-
mate and ours is within the range of reascnable differences
and that the estimates have been prepared in accordance
with SEC Rules.

We engaged William M. Cobb & Associates, Inc. {Cobb) 10
evaluate 98% of our US Gulf of Mexico desp-water reserves
before royalties (98% after royalties). The properties were
selected by management and reviewed with the Reserves
Review Committee of the Board. All material properties
were selected. Cobb provided an opinion that the differ-
ence between their estimate and ours is within the range
of reasonable differences and that the estimates have been
prepared in accordance with SEC Rules.

SYNCRUDE MINING OPERATIONS
We hold a 7.23% participating interest in Syncrude Canada
Ltd. {Syncrude). This joint venture was established in 1975
to mine shallow ¢il sands deposits using open-pit mining
methods, extract the bitumen and upgrade it 1o a high-quality,
light {32° API), sweet, synthetic crude oil.

Syncrude exploits a portion of the Athabasca oil sands that
contains bitumen in the unconsolidated sands of the McMurray
formation. Ore bodies are buried beneath 50 to 150 feet of
over-burden, have bitumen grades ranging from 4 to 14 percent
by weight and ore bearing sand thickness of 100 to 160 feet.
Syncrude’s operations are on eight leases {10, 12, 17, 22, 29,
30, 31, and 34) covering 248,300 hectares, 40 km north of Fort
McMurray in northeast Alberta. Syncrude mines oil sands at
three mines: Base, North, and Aurora North. These locations are
readily accessible by public road. Trucks and shovels are used
to collect the oil sands in the open pit mines. The oil sands are
transferred for processing using a hydre-transport system.

The extractien facilities, which separate hitumen from ol
sands, are capable of processing more than 270 million tons
of oil sands per year and from 150 to 160 mmbbls of bitumen
per year depending on the average bitumen ore grade.

Athabasca Alberta
e River
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cMurra 4
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To extract bitumen, the oil sands are mixed with water to form
a slurry. Air and chemicals are added to separate bitumen
from the sand grains. The process at the Base Mine uses
hot water, steam and caustic soda to creaie a slurry, while at
the North and Aurora North Mines, the oil sands are mixed
with warm water to produce a slurry. Most of the water
used in operations is recycled from the upgrader and mine
sites. Incremental water is drawn from the Athabasca River
in accordance with existing licenses. In laie 2007, the Base
Mine was shut down after Syncrude recovered all of the avail-
able oil sands in the final pit.

Our Syncrude production increased to
22,100 bbls/d in 2007, following completion
of the Stage 3 expansion in 2006.

The extracted bitumen is fed into a vacuum distillation tower
and three cokers for primary upgrading. The resulting prod-
ucts are then separated into naphtha, light gas oil, and heavy
gas-oil streams, These streams are hydrotreated to remove
sulphur and nitrogen impurities to form light, sweet, synthetic
crude oil. Sulphur and coke, which are by-products of the
process, are stockpiled for possible future sale.

The high quality of Syncrude’s synthetic crude oil allows it
1o be sold at prices approximating WTI. In 2007, about 35%
of the synthetic crude oil was sold to Edmonton area refin-
eries, and the remaining 65% was sold to refineries in eastern
Canada and the mid-western United States. Electricity is
provided to Syncrude from two generating plants on site: a
270 MW plant and an 80 MW plant.



Since operations started in 1978, Syncrude has shipped more
than 1.8 billion barrels of synthetic crude oil to Edmonton, Alberta,
by Alberta Oil Sands Pipeline Ltd. The pipeline was expanded in
2004 to accommodate increased Syncrude production.

At December 31, 2007, our total investment in the property,
plant and equipment, including surface mining facilities,
transportation equipment, and upgrading facilities, was
approximately $1.3 billion. Based on development plans, our
share of future expansion and equipment replacement costs
over the next 35 years is expected to be about $2.8 hillion.

In 1999, the Atberta Energy and Utilities Board (AEUB) extended
Syncrude's operating license for the eight oil sands leases
through to 2035. The license permits Syncrude to mine oil
sands and produce synthetic crude cil from approved develop-
ment areas on the oil sands leases. The leases are automatically
renewsable as long as oil sands operations are ongoing or the
leases are part of an approved development plan. All eight
leases are included in a development plan approved by the
AEUB. There were no known commercial operations on these
leases prior to the start up of operations in 1978,

In 1999, the AEUB approved an increase in Syncrude's produc-
tion capacity to 465,700 bbls/d. At the end of 2001, Syncrude
had increased its synthetic crude oil capacity to 246,500
bbls/d with the development of the Aurora North Mine, which
involved extending mining operations 10 a new location about
25 mites north of the main Syncrude site. The next expansion
of Syncrude came on stream in 2006, increasing capacity to
360,000 bbls/d with the completion of the Stage 3 project.

Syncrude pays a royaity to the Alberta govefnment. As of
January 2002, this rovalty was equal to the greater of 1%
of gross revenue or 25% of net profit after deducting new
capital expenditures. In connection with the government's
review of Alberta royalty rates in 2007, the Syncrude owners
entered into negctiations at the end of 2007 at the request
of the government that may result in revised royalty terms.
These negotiations may result in higher royalties paid to the
Alberta government in the future.

In 2007, Syncrude’s production of marketable synthetic crude
oil was 305,000 bbls/d. Nexen’s share was 22,100 bbls/d
before royalties (18,800 after royalties).

The following table provides some operating statistics for Syncrude operations:

2007 2006 2005

Total Mined Volume '

Millions of Tons 470 428 353

Mined Volume to Qil Sands Ratio’ 21 2.2 2.1
0il Sands Processed

Millions of Tons 220 192 169

Average Bitumen Grade (weight %) 116 11.3 1.1
Biturmen in Mined Qil Sands

Millions of Tons 26 22 19

Average Extraction Recovery (%) 92 90 B89
Bitumen Production ?

Millions of Barrels 133 112 94

Average Upgrading Yield (%) 84 85 85
Gross Synthetic Crude Oil Shipped *

Millions of Barrels 11.3 94.3 781
Nexen’s Share of Marketable Crude Oil

Milfions of Barrels Before Rovyalties 8.1 6.8 5.7

Millions of Barrels After Royalties 6.9 6.2 5.6

Notes:
1 inclutles pre-stripping of mine preas.

2 Bituman production in barrels is agqual to bitumen in mined oil sands muitipliad by the average extraction recovery and the appropriate conversion factor.
3 Approximately 1.0% of the produced synthetic crude oif is used internally, primanily for diesel that fuels the trucks and shovels at Syncrude, The remaining

synthetic crude oil is sold extarnally.
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ENERGY MARKETING

Our marketing group sells proprietary and third-party natural gas,
crude oil, natural gas liquids, ethanol and power in certain regional
global markets. We have built a solid strategic presence within
various North American regional markets and have extended
our presence inte certain global markets. We focus on securing
access to transportaticn, storage and facilities, as well as the
commedities we produce or acquire. We optimize the margin
on our base business by physically and financially trading around
our access to these physical assets. We also trade financially
for profit where we see opportunities in the market. We use
financial and derivative contracts, including futures, forwards,
swaps and options for hedging and trading purposes.

QOur marketing strategy is to:

= obtain competitive pricing on the sale of cur oil
and gas production;

= provide market intelligence in support of our oil
and gas operations;

= provide superior customer service to producers
and consumers;

= capitalize on market opportunities through
physical and financial trading; and

= optimize physica! assets or contracts to which
we have access.

This strategy aligns with our corporate focus on realizing the
full value from our assets and provides us with the market
intelligence needed to deliver current and future oi! and gas
production to market at competitive pricing.

Nexen Inc. 2007 Annual Report
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North American Gas Marketing
The marketing and trading of North American natural gas is
our marketing group's largest revenue source. We focus on
key regional markets where we have a sirategic presence—
solid customer relationships, in-depth understanding of the
market or established physical assets. We capture regional
opportunities by managing supply, transportaticn and storage
assets for producers and end users. In addition to the {ee-for-
service income we realize from managing these assets, we
generate further revenue by:
= capitalizing on location spreads (differences in prices
between locations} using our transportaiion assets;
= capitalizing on time spreads {differencas in prices
between summer and winter) using our sterage
assets; and
= financial trading of location and time spreads.

We have offices in key regions inctuding Calgary, Detroit and
Houston. Qur Calgary office provides a variety of services,
including supply, storage, and transportaticn management
as well as netback pool arrangements and other customer
services. Qur customers include producers and consumers in
western Canada as well as consumers {including utilities) in
eastern Canada, the north-eastern United States and the US

mid-continent. Our Detroit office works closely with Calgary
1o provide services to our customers and our presence in
Houston has established us in the Gulf Coast region. We use
our access to transportation and storage facilities to optimize
returns for ourselves as well as our customers.
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In 2003 and 2004, we grew our asset base by acquiring physical
gas purchase and sales coniracts, as well as natural gas trans-
portation capacity, on favourable terms. This gave us access
to new third party gas supply until the end of 2008, pipeline
capacity to 2016 and new relationships that have enabled us to
negotiate new gas purchase and sales contracts. We continue
to pursue opportunities to grow our storage and transportation
positions by reviewing acquisitions and participating in the
normal bidding processes. Our position as a physical marketer
at multiple delivery points in key markets gives us flexibility to
capitalize on time and location spreads. With pipeline capacity,
we can move gas from producing regions to take advantage
of price differences. At the end of 2007, we held 2 bef/d of
pipeline capacity, primarily between western Canada and the
eastern US, and we continue to expand our presence into
other markets within North America. We also use storage
capacity to store normally cheaper summer gas in the ground
until the winter heating season arrives. We had access to 39
bef of natural gas storage facilities at the end of the year.

At year end, we had access to 39 bef
of natural gas storage facilities.

In addition to transportation and storage assets, we enter into
financial contracts that enable us to capture profits arcund
time and location spreads. The risks we assume on these
coniracts are based on fundamental analysis and knowledge
of regional markets. The risk is managed prc-actively by our
product group teams and monitered by cur risk group, with
regular reporting to management and the board of directors.

North American Crude Qil Marketing

Our crude oil business focuses an marketing physical crude
oil to end-use refiners. The crude oil group markets Nexen's
production and more than 650,000 bbls/d of third-party
production. In addition to physical marketing, we take advan-
tage of quality, time and location spreads.

Qur North American operations focus on key regions
supported by our offices in Calgary, Houston and Denver. In
western Canada, our producer services group concentrates
on purchasing from a diversified supply base, while our trading
team seeks 1 optimize the mix for sale te refiners. Traditionally,
the Chicago and Denver areas have been key markets for our
western Canadian crude, however, we continue to expand
our presence into the US Gulf Coast. Our deep-water Gulf of
Mexico crude oil production has expanded our presence in that
market through our Houston office. At the end of 2007, we had
access 10 2.7 mmbbls of siorage and over the course of the
year, marketed approximately 6565 mbbls per day.

Cur operations also include North American natural gas
liquid (NGL) and ethanol businesses that focus on buying
and selling NGLs, as well as ethancl and natural gasoline.
These businesses acguire and move product within North
America. They also provide natural gasoline as a denaturant
for ethanol praduction and market the finished ethanol in the
US. At the end of 2007, we had access io 550 mbbls of NGL
storage and over the course of the year, moved approximately
26 mbbls per day of product.

Qur crude oil marketing group also enters into financial contracis
intended to capture trading profits around time, guality and
location spreads. Like gas marketing, the risks assumed are
based on fundamental analysis and proprietary knowledge of
regional markets, and are monitored by our risk group.

North American Power Marketing

Qur power marketing group is responsible for optimizing
our 50% interest in a 120 MW gas-fired, combined-cycle
power generation facility at Balzac, Alberta, as well as our
50% interest in the 70 MW Soderglen wind power opera-
tion in southern Alberta. We also market power to larger
commercial, industrial and municipal clients in Alberta. We
are currently the largest supplier of power to commercial
and industrial sectors in the province. Our Balzac facility
began operations in 2001 and Soderglen in Octeber 2006.
We expect to increase our power generation capacity with a
170 MW cogeneration facility at Long Lake in 2008. We have
a 50% interest in this project.

Europe

In 2006, we acquired Foundation Energy, a UK-based European
gas and power marketing business. QOur trading strategies
incfude capitalizing on time and location spreads involving the
UK and German gas and power markets, using primarily financial
contracts. We are increasing our presence in both the UK and
continental Europe physical gas markets. During the year, we
secured access 1o transportation and storage capacity in the UK
and Europe. We recruited an experienced crude oil marketing
team and established an office in London, UK in 2006 to maxi-
mize the value of our North Sea production. The team began
successfully marketing Buzzard crude oil production in 2007.

Asia

QOurinternational team in Asia continues 1o focus on the phys-
ical marketing of Masila crude oil. In order to meet customer
needs, we may occasionally market other regional crude
types. In addition to our own crude, we market production for
our partners and third parties in the Yemen region, By locating
our internaticnal crude oil marketing office in Singapore, we
are well positioned to serve both the producing region and
the Asian refining market.
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CHEMICALS

In 2005, we monetized part of our chemicals business through
an initial public offering of the Canexus Income Fund. We have
retained a 61.4% interest in our chemicals business, and we
continue to fully consolidate chemicals in our Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Our chemicals business manuiactures sodium chlorate and
chlor-alkali products (chlorine, caustic soda and muriatic acid)
in Canada and Brazil. This production is sold in North and
South America, with some sedium chlorate distributed in
Asia. Qur manufacturing facilities are modern, reliable and
strategically located to capitalize on competitive power costs
or transportation infrastructure to minimize production and
delivery costs. This enables us to have reliable supplies and
low costs—kay {actors for marketing bleaching chemicals.

Electricity is the most significant operating cost in producing
sodium chlorate and chlor-alkali products, making up over half
our cash costs. Therefore, our current facilities are strategi-
cally located to take advantage of economic power sources,
Our second highest cost is transportation. The proximity of
our manufacturing plants to major customers and competitive
freight rates minimize our transportation costs. Labour is also
a significant manufacturing cost. Approximately 50% of our
waorkforce is unionized with collective agreements in place
at all of our unionized plants.

To grow value in our chemicals business, we focus on
reducing our costs while maintaining market share, building
a sustainable North American customer base and capturing
new offshore opportunities.

North America

The North American pulp and paper industry consumes
approximately 95% of the continent’s sodium chlorate produc-
tion. We market our sodium chlorate production to numerous
pulp and paper mills under multi-year contracts that contain
price and volume adjustment provisions. Approximately 32%
of this production is sold in Canada, 61% in the US, and the
rest is marketed offshore.

Average Annual Production Capacity

.
Vancouver

BNkm @ Sodium Chlorate @ Chior-alkali

We are the third-largesi manuiacturer of sodium chlorate in
North America with four Canadian facilities: Nanaimo, British
Columbia; Bruderheim, Alberta; Brandon, Manitoba; and
Beauharnois, Quebec.

In October 2004, we completed an expansion of our Brandon
plant, increasing capacity to 260,000 tonnes per year. Brandon
is the world’s largest sodium chlorate facility and has one of the
lowest cost structures in the industry, significantly enhancing
our competitive position in North America. In late 2006, we
began another expansion at Brandon which is expected to
increase capacity by 33,000 tonnes per vear, by mid 2008.

Our chlor-alkali facility at North Vancouver, British Colurnbia, manu-
factures caustic soda, chlorine and muriatic acid. Almost all of our
caustic soda i1s consumed by local pulp and paper mills, while
our chlorine is sold to various customers in the polyvinyl chloride,
water purification and petrochemicals industries, primarily in the
United States. In garly 2008, a technology conversion project
for the North Vancouver facility was sanctioned. The conversion
project will replace existing diaphragm technology and assets
with newer, proven membrane technology that is expected to be
more cost effective and will expand productive capacity by 35%.
The project is expected to be completed early 2010,

(short tons) 2007 2006 2005
Sodium Chilorate
North America 450,055 446,208 446,208
Brazil 68,563 68,563 68,563
Total 518,618 514,771 514,771
Chlor-alkali

Nerth America 364,500 356,002 356.002

- Brazil T 108,430 109,430 108,430
Total 473,930 465,432 465,432




Brazil

We entered Brazil in 1992 by acquiring a sodium chlorate plant
and a chlor-alkali plant from Aracruz Cellulose S.A. {Aracruz,
the leading manufacturer of pulp in Brazil. The majority of
the sodium chlorate production is sold to Aracruz under a
long-term sales agreement that expires in 2024. Most of the
chlorine and about 15% of the sodium chlorate production is
sold in the merchant market under shorter-term centracts. In
2002, we completed an expansion at both facilities to meet
Aracruz's growing needs. The majority of our electricity needs
are supplied by a long-term supply centract in Brazil.

GOVERNMENT REGULATIONS

Qur operations are subject to various levels of government
corvirols and regulations in the countries where we operate.
These laws and regulations include matters relating to land
tenure, drilling, production practices, environmental protection,
marketing and pricing pelicies, royalties, various taxes and levies
including income tax, and foreign trade and investment, that
are subject to change from time to time, Current legislation is
generally a matter of public record, and we are unabie to predict
what additional legislation or amendments may be proposed
that wili affact our operations or when any such proposals,
if enacted, might become effective. We participate in many
industry and professional associations and monitor the prog-
ress of proposed legislation and regulatory amendments.

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIONS

QOur oil and gas, Syncrude and chemical operations are subject
to government laws and regulations designed to protect and
regulate the discharge of materials into the environment in
countries where we operate. We believe our operations comply
in all material respects with applicable environmental laws. To
reduce our exposure, we apply industry standards, codes and
best practices to meet or exceed these laws and regulations.
Occasionally, we may conduct activities in countries where
environmental regulatory framewaorks are in various stages of
evolution. Where regulations are lacking, we observe Canadian
standards where applicabie, as well as internationally accepted
industry environmental management practices.

We have an active safety, environment and social respon-
sibility group that ensures our worldwide operations are
conducted in a safe, ethical and socially respensible manner.
We have developed policies for continuing compliance with
environmental laws and regulations in the countries in which
we operate,

Environmental Provisions and Expenditures

The ultimate financial impact of environmenial laws and requla-
tions is not clearly known and cannot be reasonably estimated
as new standards continue to evelve in the countries in which

we operate, We estimate our future environmental costs based
on past experience and current regulations. At December 31,
2007, $832 million ($2,165 millien, undiscounted, adjusted
for inflation} has been provided in our Consolidated Financial
Statements for asset retirement obligations. In 2007, we
increased our retirement obligations for future dismantlement
and site restoration by $105 million primarily from ongoing
development of the Long Lake Project in the Athabasca oll
sands and from industry cost pressures in the North Sea.

In 2007, our capital expenditures for environmental-related
maiters, including environment control facilities, were
approximately $23 million. Qur operating expenditures for
environmental-related matters were approximately $4 million.
In 2008, we estimate these expenditures to be approximately
$27 million.

EMPLOYEES

We had 4,058 employees on December 31, 2007, of which
326 were employed under ¢ollective bargaining schemes.
Information on our executive officers is presented in ltem
10 of this report.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

RISK FACTORS

Our operations are exposed to various risks, some of which
are common to others in our industry and some of which are
unigue to cur operations.

A substantial or extended decline in oil and natural gas
prices could have a material adverse effect on us.

Crude cil and natural gas are commoadities which are sensitive
to nurmerous worldwide factors, many of which are beyond
our control, and are generally sold at contract or posted prices.
Changes in world crude oil and natural gas prices rmay signifi-
cantly affect our resulis of operations and cash generated
from operating activities. Conseguently, such prices also may
affect the value of our oil and gas properties and our level of
spending for oil and gas exploration and development.

Qur crude oil prices are based on various reference prices,
primarily Brent and West Texas Intermediate {WTI) crude oil
reference prices and other prices which generally track the
movement of Brent and WTI. Adjustments are made to the
reference price to reflect quality differentials and transporta-
tion. Brent, WTI and cther international refgrence prices are
affected by numerous and complex worldwide factors such
as supply and demand fundamentats, economic outlooks,
production quotas set by the Organization of Petroleum
Exporting Countries and political events. Quality differentials
are affected by local supply and demand faciors.
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Competitive forces may limit our access to natural

resources, and create labour and equipment shortages.

The oil and gas industry is highly competitive, particularly in

the following areas:

® gaining access te areas or countries known to have
available resources;

» searching for and developing new sources of crude oil
and natural gas reserves;

= constructing and operating crude oil and natural gas
pipelines and facilities; and

= transporting and marketing crude cil, natural gas and
other petroleurn products.

Our competitors include national oil companies, major inte-
grated oil and gas companies and various other independent oil
and gas companies. The petroleum industry also competes with
other industries in supplying energy, fuel and related products to
customers. The pulp and paper chermicals market is also highly
competitive. Key success factors in each of these markets are
price, product quality, and logistics and reliability of supply.

Competitive forces may result in shortages of prospects 1o
drill, shortages of labour and equipment to carry out explora-
tion, development or operating activities, and shortages of
infrastructure to produce and transport production. It may
also result in an oversupply of crude oil and natural gas. Each
of these factors could negatively impact our costs and prices
and, therefore, our financial resulis.

Exploration, development and production risks and

natural disasters could result in liability exposure or

loss of production or reserves.

Acquiring, developing and exploring for oil and natural gas

involves many risks. These include:

= encouniering unexpected formations or pressures;

= premature declines of reservoirs;

= blow-outs, well bore collapse, equipment failures and
other accidents;

= craterings and sour gas releases;

= uncontreliable flows of oil, natural gas or well fluids; and

= environmental risks.

We operate two facilities that are located in close proximity
to populated areas, and each processes materials of potential
harm to the local populations. At Balzac, just north of Calgary,
we operate a gas plant that has been producing sour gas for
over 45 years. Through our ownership in Canexus Limited
Partnership, we operate a chlor-alkali plant in North Vancouver
that has been producing chlorine for almaost 50 years,

We may not be fully insured against all of these risks. Losses
resulting from the occurrence of these risks may materially
impact our financial results.

Our offshore operations are subject to unique
operating risks.

Offshore operations are subject to a variety of operating risks
peculiar to the marine environment, such as damage or loss
from hurricanes or other adverse weather conditions. These
conditions can cause subsiantial damage to facilities and
interrupt production.

QOur aperations in the Gulf of Mexico have been suspended,
from time to time, due to hurricanes or tropical storms. In the
last five years, we have had a few instances where production
was suspended for an extended period of time and damage to
facilities was incurred. In late August 2005, we shut-in all of our
production in the Gulf of Mexico, consisting of approximately
50,000 boe/d before royalties, and ceased drilling operations
in anticipation of Hursicane Katrina. Production was restored
in early September for most of our fields. in late September
2005, we again shut-in all of our production and ceased drilling
cperations in anticipation of Hurricane Rita. While we incured
minimal damage to most of our facilities, extensive damage
was incurred to the third party infrastructure necessary to
accommodate our production. As a result, our 2005 annual-
ized production was reduced by approximately 6,000 boe/d.
These siorms also resulted in damage to rigs under contract
with us, which increased our costs and delayed our drilling
schedule. In each of these instances, there was no signifi-
cant financial impact after business interruption and property
insurance claims.

Qur exploration and development capital programs in our
offshore operations are exposed to risk of delay or additional
costs by limited access to drilling rigs. Recent industry pres-
sure in the Gulf of Mexico has reduced the availability of
drilling rigs. Our profitability and success at finding reserves
or bringing new production on stream may be reduced by
extended delays and/or higher costs of obtaining drilling rigs.

Without reserve additions, our reserves and production
will decline over time and we require capital to produce
remaining reserves.

Cur future crude oil and natural gas reserves and production,
and therefore our operating cash flows and results of opera-
tiens, are highly dependent upon our success in exploiting our
current reserve base and acquiring or discovering additional
reserves. Without reserve additions through explaration,




development or acquisitions, our reserves and production will
decline over time as reserves are produced. The business of
exploring for, developing or acquiring reserves is capital inten-
sive. To the extent cash flows from operations are insufficient
and external sources of capital become limited or unavail-
able, our ahility to make the necessary capital investments
to maintain and expand our oil and natural gas reserves and
production will be impaired.

Discovered il and natural gas reserves are geneially only
produced when they are economically recoverable. As such,
oil and gas prices and capital and operating costs have an
impact on whether reserves will ultimately be produced.
As required by SEC rules, our proved reserves represent
the quantities that we expect to economically recover using
prices and costs at the end of the year. Accordingly, proved
reserves can increase or decrease under different price and
cost scenarios. Qur bitumen reserves are particularly sensi-
tive to year end prices and costs. Under SEC rules, we are
required to recognize our oil sands as bitumen reserves
rather than the upgraded premium synthetic crude oil that
we expect to produce from the Long Lake Project. As a
result, we expect price-related revisions, both positive and
negative, to occur in the future as the economic producibitity
of our bitumen reserves are sensitive 1o year-end prices,
In particular, since we recognize our oil sands as bitumen
reserves and they are related to one project, all or nong of
the reserves will likely be considered economic depending
on the year-end prices for bitumen, diluent and natural gas,
even though the Long Lake Project has minimal exposure
to these factors.

Qur proved reserves include undeveloped properties

that require additional capital to bring them on-stream.
Under SEC rules, the definition of proved undeveloped
reserves includes reserves that are expected to be recov-
ered from new wells on undrilled acreage or from existing
wells where a relatively major expenditure is still required
before such wells may begin production, Such reserves may
be recognized when plans are in place to make the required
investmenis to convert these undeveloped reserves 1o
producing. Circumstances such as a sustained decline in
commodity prices or poorer than expected results from

initial activities could cause a change in the investment or
development plans which could result in a material change in
our reserves estimates. At December 31, 2007, 47% of our
praved reserves before royalties (46% after royalties) were
undeveloped. Refer to page 20 for information on PUDs.

Our heavy oil production is more expensive and yields
lower prices than light oil and gas.
Heavy oil is characterized by high specific gravity or weight and
high viscosity or resistance to flow. Because of these features,
heavy oil is more difficult and expensive to extract, transport and
refine than other types of ail. Heavy oil also yields a lower price
relative to light oil and gas, as a smaller percentage of high-value
petroleum products can be refined from heavy oil. As a result,
our heavy oil operaticns are exposed to the following risks:
» additional costs may be incurred to purchase diluent to
transport heavy oil;
= there could be a shortfall in the supply of diluent which
may cause its price to increase; and
= the market for heavy oil is more limited than for light
oil making it more susceptible to supply and demand
fundamentals which may cause the price to decline.

Any one or a combination of these factors could cause some
of our heavy oil properties to become uneconomic to produce
and/or result in negative reserve revisions.

The Long Lake Project faces additional risks compared
to conventional oil and gas production.

The Long Lake Project is planned as a fully integrated produc-
tion, upgrading and cogeneration facility. We intend to use
steam assisted gravity drainage (SAGD) iechnology to recover
bitumen frem ocil sands. As designed, the bitumen will be
partially upgraded using the proprietary OrCrude™ process,
followed by conventional hydrocracking to produce a sweet,
premium synthetic crude oil. The OrCrude™ process also
yields liquid asphaltines that will be gasified into syngas. This
syngas will be used as fuel for the SAGD process, a source of
hydrogen in the upgrading process, and to generate electricity
through a cogeneration facility.

We have a 50% working interest in this preject, and our share
of the capital costs is estimated to be between $2.9 billion and
$3.05 billion ($5.8 billion and $6.1 billion gross). This includes
a contingency reserve of $150 million {$300 million gross) for
cost and productivity pressures over and above current trends,
Given ihe initial investment and operating costs (o produce
and upgrade bitumen, the payout period for the project is
longer and the economic return is lower than a conventional
light oil project with an equal volume of reserves.

In addition to the risks associated with heavy oil production
stated above, risks associated with our Long Lake Project
include the following:

ueday enuuy LOOZ S| uaxap

29



Nexen Inc. 2007 Annual Report

30

" Uncertain Time Line and Cost of the Project

The Long Lake Project is currently in the construction and

commissioning stage. There is a risk that actual costs to

construct and develop may be higher than expected or that

the project may nct be completed on time or at all due to

many factors, including:

= construction performance falling below expected levels
of output or efficiency;

» labour disputes, disruptions or declines in productivity;

* increases in materials or labour costs;

= inability to attract sufficient numbers of qualified workers;

» design errors;

» contractor or operator errors;

= non-performance by third-party contractors;

= changes in project scope;

= delays in obtaining, or conditions imposed by,
regulatory approvals;

= breakdown or failure of equipment or processes;

= violation of permit reguirements;

= catastrophic events such as fires, earthquakes, storms
or explosions; and

= disruption in the supply of energy.

The capital cost estimate at the time our board sanctioned the
project in February 2004 was $3.4 billion {gross). In December
2004, we accelerated the drilling of an additional well pad
consisting of 13 well-pairs to increase ceriainty and reliability
of bitumen production at the commencement of upgrader
operations at a cost of $98 million (gross). In early 2006, we
further modified the project design by adding steam genera-
tion capacity and soot handling equipment at a cost of $360
million [gross). These scope changes increased the estimated
project cost to $3.8 billion. High activity in the cil sands region
is placing ongoing pressure on the costs of labour and services.
In addition, labour productivity has been lower than anticipated,
requinng a larger workforce to maintain progress. In October
2007, we announced that the projected cost estimate for Phase
1 ranges from $5.8 to $6.1 billicn ($2.9 to $3.05 billion net te
Nexen}. We are on track to complete the construction and
commence commissioning of all units in sufficient time for
first production of synthetic crude oil in mid 2008,

Application of Relatively New SAGD Bitumen

Recovery Process

SAGD has been used in western Canada to increase recov-
eries from conventional heavy oil reservoirs for over a decade.
However, application of SAGD to the in-situ recovery of
bitumen from oil sands is relatively new. Some of the SAGD oil
sands applications tc date have been pilot projects, however
several commercial SAGD projects have been in steady state
operation for over five years.

Cur estimates for performance and recoverable volumes
for the Long Lake Project are based primarily on our three
well-pair SAGD pilot and industry performance from SAGD
operations in like reservoirs in the McMurray formation in
the Athabasca ail sands. Using this data, our assumptions
included average well-pair productivity of 900 bbls/d of
bitumen and a long-term steam-to-oil ratio of 3.0. There can
be no certainty that our SAGD operation will produce bitumen
at the expected levels or steam-to-cil ratio. If the assumed
production rates or steam-to-oil ratio are not achieved, we
might have to drilt additional wells to maintain optimal produc-
tion levels, construct additional steam generating capacity,
purchase natural gas for additional steam generation, and/
or make short-term bitumen purchases. These could have
a significant adverse impact on the future activities and
economic return of the Long Lake Project.

Application of New Bitumen Upgrading Process

The proprietary OrCrude™ process we are using to upgrade

raw bitumen to synthetic crude will be the first commercial

application of the process although we have operated it in

a 500 bbl/d demonstration plant. There can be no certainty

that the commercial upgrader being constructed at Long Lake

will achieve the same or similar results as the demonstration

plant or the resulis which are forecast. If we are unable to

upgrade the bitumen for any reason we may decide to sell it

as bitumen without upgrading it, which would expose us to

the following risks:

= the market for bitumen is limited;

= additicnal costs would be incurred to purchase diluent for
blending and transporting bitumen;

= there could be a shortfall in the supply of diluent which
may cause its price to increase;

» the market price for bitumen is relatively low reflecting
its quality differential;

= the market price for bitumen fluciuates over the course
of the year; and

= additional costs would be incurred to purchase natural
gas for use in generating steam for the SAGD process
since we would not be producing syngas from the
upgrading process.

These {actors could have a significant adverse impact
on the future activities and ecenomic returns of the Long
Lake Project.

If any of these factors arise, our operating costs would
increase and our revenues would decrease from those we
have assumed. This would materially decrease expected earn-
ings from the project and the project may not be profitable
under these conditions.



Dependence on OPTI Canada Inc.

We are undertaking the Long Lake Project jointly with OPTI
Canada Inc. {OPTI} pursuant to a joint venture agregment
governing the construction, ownership and joint operation
of the project. The agreement provides for a management
committee that is responsible for the supervision and direc-
ticn of the management and operation of the project, the
supervision and control of the operators and all other matters
relating to the development of the project. If our interest in
any element of the project falls below 25%, OPT| may be able
10 make decisions respecting that element without cur input,
which may adversely affect our operations.

Dependence upon Proprietary Technology

The success of the project and our investment depends highly
an the proprietary technology of OPTI and proprietary tech-
nology of third parties that has been, or is required to be,
licensed by GPTI. OPT| currently relies on intellectual property
rights and other contractual or proprietary rights, including
{without limitation} copyright, trademark laws, trade secrets,
confidentiality procedures, contractual provisions, licenses and
patents, to secure the righis to utilize its proprietary tech-
nology and the proprietary technolegy of third parties. OPTI
may have to engage in litigation to protect the validity of its
patents or other intellectual property nights, or to determine
the validity or scope of patents or proprietary rights of third
parties. This kind of litigation can be time-consuming and
expensive, whether OPT| is successful or not. The process of
seeking patent protection can itself be long and expensive, and
there can be no assurance that any currently pending or future
patent applications of OPTI or such third parties will actually
result in issued patents, or that, if patents are issued, they
will be of sufficien{ scope or strength to provide meaningful
protection or any commercial advantage to OPTI. Furthermore,
others may develop technologies that are similar or superior
to: 1) the technology of CPTI or third partigs cor 2} the design
around the patents owned by OPTI andfor third parties. There
is also a risk that OPTI may not be able to enter into licensing
arrangements with third parties for additional technologies
required to possibly further expand the Long Lake upgrader.

Operational Hazards

The operation of the project will be subject to the customary
hazards of recovering, transporting and processing hydrocar
bons, such as fires, explosions, gaseous leaks, migration of
harmful substances, blowouts and oil spills. A casualty oceur-
rence might result in the loss of equipment or life, as well as
injury or property damage. We may not carry insurance with
respect to all potential casualty occurrences and disruptions,
and our insurance may not sufficiently cover casualty ccour-

rences or disruptions that occur. The project could be interrupted

by natural disasters or other events beyond our control. Losses
and liabilities arising from uninsured or underinsured events
could have a material adverse effect on the project and on our
hustness, financial condition and results of operations.

Recovering bitumen from oil sands and upgrading the recov-
ered bitumen into synthetic crude oil and other products
involve particular risks and uncertainties. The project is suscep-
tible to loss of production, slowdowns or restrictions on its
ability to produce higher-value products due to the interdepen-
dence of its component systems. Severe climatic conditions
can cause reduced preduction and in some situations result
in higher costs. SAGD bitumen recovery facilities and devel-
opment and expansion of production can entail significant
capital outlays. The costs associated with synthetic crude oil
production are largely fixed and, as a result, operating cosis
per unit depend largely on production levels.

The Long Lake Project will process large volumes of hydro-
carbons at high pressure and temperatures and will handle
large volumes of high-pressure steam. Equipmeni failures
could result in damage to the project’s facilities and liability to
third parties against which we may not be able to fully insure
or may elect not o insure because of high premium costs or
for other reasons.

Certain components of the Long Lake Project will produce sour
gas, which is gas containing hydrogen sulphide. Sour gas is a
colourless, corrosive gas that is toxic at relatively low levels to
plants and animals, including humans. The project will include
integrated facilities for handling and treating the sour gas,
including the use of gas sweetening units, sulphur recovery
systems and emergency flaring systems. Failures or leaks from
these systems or other exposure 10 sour gas produced as
part of the project could result in damage 10 other equipment,
liability to third parties, adverse effect to humans, animals and
the environment, or the shut down of operations. ’

The Long Lake Project will produce carbon dioxide emissions,
Risk factors relating to environmental regulation are provided
separately in this document.

Aboriginal Claims

Aboriginal peoples have claimed aboriginal title and rights to
a substantial portion of western Canada. Certain aboriginal
peoples have filed a claim against the Government of Canada,
the Province of Alberta, certain governmental entities and
the regional municipality of Wood Buffalo (which includes
the city of Fort McMurray, Alberta) claiming, among other
things, aboriginal title to large areas of lands surrounding Fort
McMurray, including the lands on which the project and most
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of the other oil sands operations in Alberta are located. Such
claims, if successful, could have a significant adverse effect
on the Long Lake Project and on us.

Competition

The Canadian and international petroleum industry is highly
competitive in all aspects, including exploring for, and devel-
oping, new sources of supply, acquiring petroleum interests
and distributing and marketing of petroleum products. The
Long Lake Project competes with other producers of synthetic
crude oil blends and other producers of conventional crude
oil. Some conventional producers have lower operating costs
than the project is anticipated to have, The petroleum industry
also competes with other industries in supplying energy, fuel
and related products to consumers.

A number of companies, other than OPTI and us, have
announced plans to: 1) enter the oil sands business and
begin producing synthetic crude cil, or 2} expand existing
operations. Either plan could materially increase the supply
of synthetic crude oil and cther competing crude oil products
in the marketptace. Depending on future demand, increased
supplies could have a negative impact on prices.

Some of our production is concentrated in a few

producing assets.

A significant portion of our production is generated from highly

productive individual wells or central production facilities.

Examples include:

» Scott and Buzzard production platforms in the North Sea;

» central processing facilities, cil pipelines, and export
terminal at our two Yemen operations;

» Gunnison SPAR production platform in the Gulf of Mexico;

» Aspen wells tied-in to a third-party processing facility in
the Gulf of Mexico; and

» upgrading facilities at Syncrude in the Athabasca oil sands.

As significant production is generated from each asset, any
single event that interrupts cne of these operations could
result in the loss of production.

Our operations could be subject to changes in
regulations related to air emissions.

The Kyoto Protocol came into force on February 16, 2005
and Canada ratified the Kyoto Protocol in December 2002.
In 1987, Canada committed to an emission reduction of 6%
below 1990 levels during the First Commitment period (2008
to 2012). Alberta became the first jurisdiction in Canada to
enact and implement binding emissicn reductions (a 12%
reduction in carbon intensity) on facilities emitting more than
100 kilo-tonnes of CO, equivalent. Facilities unable to make

internal reductions have unlimited access to a technology
fund at the rate of $15 per tonne of CO, equivalent. In 2007,
the Federal government introduced a Regulatory Framework
for Air Emissions which indicates that the government intends
to regulate both greenhouse gases and air pollutants begin-
ning as early as 2010, with progressively more stringent
reductions applied out to 2050. Greenhouse gases (GHGs)
will be regulated based cn intensity until 2020 - 2025, when
a cap and trade system may be imposed. The intent appears
to offer companies the option of making internal reductions,
purchasing offsets or making payments into a technology fund
(with escalating fixed costs). During the period 2010 to 2020
there will be increasing exposure to a Canadian carbon market
which could be short of supply leading to very high carbon
prices. [t remains to be seen if the two levels of government
will harmonize their compliance regimes and how the revenue
in the technotogy funds will be allocated. The federal govern-
ment has also indicated their intent to regulate air pollutants
concurrent with greenhouse gases but their schedule and
leng-term cbjectives are less clear. Based on what is known
today, there could be technical chaflenges in meeting some
of the criteria for certain pollutants.

Any required reductions in the GHGs emitted frem our
operations could result in increases in our capital or oper-
ating expense, or reduced operating rates, especially at
the Long Lake Project, which could have an adverse effect
on our results of operations and financial condition. As a
“new facility” starting operations in 2008, Long Lake will
have three years to establish an emissions baseline before
having a reduction obligation assigned. In 2007 our Canadian
operations, including Syncrude, accounted for 23% of our
production before royalties,

Cur two installations in the UK sector of the North Sea have
allecations from the regulator and are part of the Eurcpean
Union Emission Trading System. The allocations cover emis-
sions from combustion eguipment and flaring from 2008 until
2012. The installaticns are both expected to have emissions
in excess of allowances which will be covered by eligible
offsets from the Clean Development Mechanism and over-
the-counter trades.

Our energy marketing operations expose us to the risk
of trading losses and liquidity constraints.

Our trading operations expose us to the nisk of financial losses
from various sources. The markets in which we trade are
susceptible to significant changes, which ceould expose us to
the risk of material financial losses. Significant changes in the
commodities and financial markets could require us o provide
additional liquidity to support our energy marketing operations.




Adverse credit relasted events such as a downgrade of our
credit rating to non-investment grade could require additional
collateral tc be placed with counterparties. Any significant loss
of liquidity could adversely affect our financial condition.

Use of marine transportation may expose us to the risk
of financial loss and damaged reputation.

From time 1o time, we may choose to charter marine vessels
for the transportation of crude oil. This may expose us to the
risk of financial \0ss and damaged reputation in the event
of oil spills.

Fluctuations in exchange rates give rise to foreign
currency exposure.

Many of our activities are transacted in or referenced to US
dollars. Revenues, expenses, capital expenditures and related
net assets of our oil and gas and chemicals operations outside
Canada are primarily US-dollar denominated, Prices received
in Canada for sales of our crude oil, natural gas and some
chermicals products are referenced 1o US-dollar denominated
prices. Also, we have the ability to berrow on a short-term and
long-term basis in US dollars. Fluctuations in exchange rates
between the US and the Canadian dollar, and between US
or Canadien dollar and other foreign currencies, including but
not limmited 1o the British pound and the Euro, could adversely
affect our financial condition.

Increases in interest rates could give rise to increased
debt servicing obligations.

We use both fixed and floating rate debt 1o finance our opera-
tiens. Our floating rate debt obligations expose us to changes
in interest payments due te fluctuating interest rates. This
could adversely affect our financial condition.

The inability of counterparties to fulfill their obligations
to us could adversely impact our results of operations.
Credit risk affects both our trading and non-trading activities
and there is the risk of loss if counterparties do not {ulfill their
contractual obligations. Most of our receivables are with coun-
{erparties in the energy industry and are subject 1o normal
industry credit risk. The inability of any one or more of these
counterparties to fulfill their cbligations to us may adversely
impact our results of operations.

We may not achieve commercial production rates in
our coalbed methane or shale gas operations.

Part of Nexen's growth strategy is unconventional Canadian gas
resource plays, including coalbed methane (CBM) and shale
gas. Both gas resource plays have significant potential; however,
exploitation technigques and practices for these resources in
Canada generally rerain in the early stages of development and

it is very difficult to determine whether or not these resource
plays will prove commercial, or to what degree.

CBM is commonly referrad to as an unconventional form of
natural gas because it is primarily stored through adserption by
the coal itself rather than in the pore space of the rock like mest
conventional gas. The gas is released in response 10 a drop
in pressure in the coal. Some of the uncertainties associated
with development of CBM resources are as follows:

= i the coalbed is water saturated, such as the Mannville
coals in the Fort Assiniboine region of Alberta, water gener-
ally needs to be exiracted to reduce the pressure and allow
gas production tc oceur. A significant period of time may
be required to dewater these wet coals and determine
if commercial production is feasible. We may also have
to invest significant capital in these assets before they
achieve commercial rates of production, if ever;

» Some coalbeds may not have sufficient natural perme-
ahility in the coalbed to recover the gas in place and
can therefore require more extensive, and expensive,
completion technologies which can increase the cost
of drilling and produgtion;

= The public may react negatively to certain water
disposal practices related to water saturated CBM
projects, even though these water disposal practices
are regulated to ensure public safety and water conser-
vation. Nevertheless, negative public perception around
water saiurated CBM production could impede our
access to the resource;

» CBM wells typicalty have lower protucing rates and reserves
per well than conventional gas wells, although this varies by
area; and

» Regulatory approval is required to drill more than one
well per section. As a rasult, the timing of drilling
programs and land development can be uncertain.

Shale gas is an unconventicnal gas produced from reservoirs
composed of organic rich shales. The gas is siored in pore
spaces, fragtures or adsorbed into organic matter. Some of
the uncertainties associated with development of shale gas
resources are as follows:

» Shale gas wells typically have higher production decline
rates, lower producing rates and reserves per well than
conventional gas wells, although this varies by area;

» Regulatory approval is required to drill more than cne
well per section. As a result, the timing of drilling
programs and land development can be uncertain; and

= Shales are typically less permeable than conventional
gas reservoirs, and can therefore require more exten-
sive, and expensive, completion technologies which can
increase the cost of drilling and production.
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We have significant up-front commitments related to
our current development projects.

We have significant commitments in connection with various
development activities currently underway. At Long Lake, we
essentially completed module and site construction of the
SAGD facilities in 2006 and steam injection hegan in 2007.
Module fabrication of the Long Lake Upgrader is complete and
all modutes are on site. Construction of the upgrader is approxi-
mately 97% complete and start up is scheduled for mid 2008.
At Long Lake, we are exposed to the pessibility of cost overruns
and/or delays in the commencement of commercial production,
which may be significant. Specific risk factors relating to our
Long Lake oil sands projeci are provided separately. See "The
Long Lake Project faces additional risks compared to conven-
tional oil and gas production”.

We operate in countries with political and economic risk.
We operate in numerous countrigs, some of which may be
considered politically and economically unstable. Qur opera-
tions and related assets are subject to the risks of actions
by governmental authorities, insurgent groups or terrorists
which may have maierial adverse financial consequences.
For instance, on September 15, 2006 our oil export terminal
in Yermen was assaulted by two explosive laden vehicles. One
worker was killed and two others received minor injuries.
The ability of the terminal to receive and export ail was not
affected and operations continued as normal. There can be no
assurance that we will be successiul in protecting ourselves
against these risks and the related financial consequences,

We may be affected by changes in government rules
and regulations.

Cur operations are subject to various levels of government
controls and regulations in the countries whera we operate.
These laws and regulations include matters relating to land
tenure, drilling, production practices, environmental protec-
tion, marketing and pricing policies, royalties, various taxes
and levies including income tax, and foreign trade and invest-
ment, that are subject to change from time to time. For
example, the US government has proposed increases to the
royalty rates for new deep-water Gulf of Mexico leases and
has propased amendmenis to deep-water leases issued in
1998 and 1999. In 2007, the Alberta government proposed
changes to rovalty rates effective 2009. Current lagislation
is generally a matter of public record, and we cannot predict
what additional tegislation or amendments may be proposed
that will affect our operations or when any such proposals,
if enacted, might become effective. Changes in government
regulations could adversely affect our results of operaticns
and financial condition.

Our operations are exposed to environmental liabilities.
Environmental liabilities inherent in the oil and gas and chemi-
cals industries are becoming increasingly sensitive as related
laws and regulations become more stringent worldwide. Many
of these laws and regulations require us ta remove or remedy
the etfect of our activities on the enviranmant at prasent and
former aperating sites, including dismantling production facili-
ties and remediating damage caused by disposing or refeasing
specified substances. This could have an adverse financial
CONsequence on us.

Certain operations require the use of fresh and saline water.
We currently use sub-surface sources of water for these
operations. Additional costs may be incurred if allocation
limits are placed on our saline water usage, if our sub-surface
fresh water needs exceed allocated amounts or if existing
sub-surface fresh water allocations are reduced.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
There are no unresolved staff comments with the SEC.
Item 3. Legal Proceedings

There are a number of lawsuits and claims pending against
Nexen, the ultimate results of which cannot be ascertained
at this time. Management is of the opinion that any amounts
assessed against us would not have a material adverse effect
on our consclidated financial position or results of operations.
We believe we have made adequate provisions for such
lawsuits and claims.

Certain of our US oil and gas operations have received, over
the years, notices and demands from the US Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA), state environmental agencies, and
certain third parties for certain sites seeking to require inves-
tigation and remediation under federal or state environmenial
statutes. In addition, notices, demands, and lawsuits have
been received for certain sites related te historical operations
and activities in the US for which, although no assurances
can be made, we believe that certain assumption and indem-
nification agreements protect our US operations from any
present or future material liabilities that may arise from these
particular sites.

item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote
of Security Holders

Ng matters were submitted 10 a vote of Nexen's security
halders during the fourth guarter of 2007,



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

(Cdn$ millicns) 2007 2006 2005
Net Income 1,086 601 1,140
Earnings per Commaon Share, Basic {$/share) 2.06 1.15 2.19
Cash Flow from Operating Activities 2,830 2,374 2,143
Production before Royalties (mboe/d) * 254 212 242
Production after Royalties (mboe/d) 207 156 173
Capital Investment, including Acqguisitions 3,401 3,408 2,638
MNet Debt? 4,404 4,730 3.639
Average Foreign Exchange Rate (Canadian to US dollar) 0.93 0.88 0.83
Proved Qil and Gas Reserves before Rovalties (mmboe)? 734 725 468
Proved Qil and Gas Reserves after Royalties (mmboe)? 650 637 393
Proved Syncrude Reserves before Royalties {mmboe)? 324 324 318
Proved Syncrude Reserves after Royalties immboe)? 267 274 264

Notes:

1 Production before rovalties reflects our working interest before royalties and includes production of synthetic crude oif from Syncrude. YWe have presented aur
waorking interest before royalties as we measure our performance on this basis consistent with other Canadian oil and gas companies.

2 Long-term debt and short-term borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.
3 Includes developed and undeveloped proved reserves as at December 31.

Our strategy is to grow long-term value for shareholders respon-
sibly. We started to monetize this value by bringing Buzzard on
stream early in 2007 and expect more to follow as Ettrick and
the first phase of Long Lake come on stream in 2008, We also
added value by increasing our reserves and capturing additional
acreage in atiractive growth areas like the US Gulf of Mexico,
Norway, and shale gas and oil sands in western Canada.
Higher net income and cash flow from operating activities in
2007 were due to a 33% increase in production after royatties
(20% increase before royalties) and strong commodity prices.
Although WTI rose 9% from 20086, a stronger Canadian dollar
limited the increase in our realized crude oif prices. This was
offset by changes in our production mix as we are trensitioning
to higher-value crude oil from Buzzard. Qur average realized oil
and gas price increased 9% over last year to $68.46/boe.

Qur share of production from Buzzard averaged more than 64,000
boe/d in 2007. While commissioning of all systems took longer
than expected, the facilities have produced as high as 220,000
boe/d (85,000 boe/d net to us) during the year, higher than arigi-
nally expecied. Looking forward, with a full year of Buzzard on
stream and new production expected from Ettrick and Long Lake,
we expect 2008 net production to average between 220,000 and
240,000 boe/d (260,000 and 280,000 before royalties).

Net income in 2007 includes impairment expense of $366
million {before tax) related to four properties in the Gulf of
Mexico as required by successful efforts accounting for ol
and gas. The majority of the expense relates to the Aspen
deep-water field where recent unsuccessful development
drilling and sieep production declings resulted in negative
reserve revisions. Unsuccessful recompletiens, preduc-
tion declines and disappointing development results on the
shelf reduced reserves and generated the remainder of the
impairment expense,

We invested almost half of our 2007 capital on major devel-
opment prejects at Long Lake and Ettrick. In the Athabasca
oil sands, we invested $1.1 billion in Long Lake Phase 1 and
future phases. We are currently injecting steam into the reser-
voir through alt well pads and the SAGD facilities are operating
as expected. Upgrader construction is 97% complete and
commissicning is progressing well. The upgrader is expected
to come ¢n stream mid 2008. In the North Sea, we brought
additional development wells on stream at Buzzard and made
significant progress on Ettrick. We also invested $130 million
in building our prespect inventory in the US Gulf of Mexico
deepwater and Canadian shale gas.

Cash Flow from Operating Activities
{Cdng millans)

2007 I 2,530
2006 ] 2.374
2005 L] 2,143

Net Income
(Cdn$ millions)
2007 | 1,086
2006 ] 501

2005 I 1,140
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Our 2007 exploration program was focused primarily in the
Gulf of Mexico and the North Sea. We were successful with
discoveries in the Gulf at Vicksburg and on the shelf, and at
Selkirk and Kildare in the North Sea. We also successfully
appraised prior discoveries at Longhorn in the Gulf of Mexico
and Golden Eagle in the North Sea. Unfortunately, we did not
advance our Knotty Head discovery in the Gulf as a suitable
drilling rig was not availahle,

With the weaker US dollar, our net debt decreased over $300
million from last year. Qur US-dollar denominated debt was
lower by $800 million when translated to Canadian dollars.
This was partially offset by capital investment that exceeded
our cash flow from operations.

Throughout 2007, the US doilar continued to weaken relative
to the Canadian dollar. Qur sales revenue is denominated in,
or referenced to, US doilars and, as a result, our reported
Canadian dollar revenues are lower as the US dollar weakens.
On the other hand, our US-dollar capital spending and oper-
ating cosis are also lower when translated to Canadian dollars,
as well as our US denominated debt. Overall, the weaker US
dollar reduced our 2007 cash flow from operating activities
by $255 million and net income by $122 million.

During 2007, our proved oil and gas and Syncrude reserves
additions replaced 109% of our oil and gas and Syncrude
production {108% after royalties) as shown below:

Before After
{mmboe) Rovyalties Rovyalties
Production
Oil and Gas a5 68
Syncrude 8 7
Total a3 75
Reserve Changes excluding Production
Oil and Gas 94 81
Syncrude 8 -
Total 102 81

Two-thirds of our additions relate to our key projects at Buzzard in the North Sea and Long Lake in the Athabasca oil sands.

Other additions came from successful exploration and development activities in virtually all areas of our cperations, somewhat
offset by lower production perfermance and unsuccessful activities at Aspen and the shelf in the Gulf of Mexico. We also added
10 mmboe (8 after royalties), net of dispositions, from acquisitions and swaps primarily in the Gulf of Mexico.

CAPITAL INVESTMENT

{Cdn$ millions) Estimated 2008 2007 2006
Major Development 700 1.479 1.849
Early Stage Developrﬁent 400 ‘ 162 ) 123 7‘
New Grth E;(plora-tion ) o 600 ) 573 ‘ 491 )

VCore Asset Developnﬁ‘nent 600 - 1,069 - 748

Total Oil & Gas and Syncrude 2,300 3,283 3211
Marketing, Corporate-, Chemicals and Other 100 - 118 - 197 '

Total Capital 2,400 3,401 3,408




Cur strategy and capital programs are focused on growing

long-term value for our shareholders responsibly. To maximize

value, we invest in:

= core assets for short-term production and free cash flow
to fund capital programs and repay debt;

= development projects that convert our discoveries into
new preduciion and cash flow in the medium term; and

= exploration projects for longer-term growth.

As conventional basins in North America mature, we have been
transitioning toward less mature basins and unconventional
resources. Key focus areas include the North Sea, Athabasca
oil sands, Canadian CBM and shale gas, Gulf of Mexico deep

waters, offshore West Africa and the Middle East—areas
we believe have aturactive fiscal terms, significant remaining
opportunity, and where we have a competitive advantage.

In 2007, we invested $£3.4 billion in capital expenditures, mostly
in major development projects and long cycle-time exploration.
In 2008, we plan to invest $2.4 billion, which is $1 biflion lower
than 2007 as we incurred most of the capital costs for the first
phase of Long Lake. About half of the 2008 capital investment
will be focused on major and early stage development proj-
ects, 29% on core assets to sustain production and provide
cash flow, and the remainder to drill high-impact exploration
wells and coniinue building our acreage.

2007 Capital Major Early Stage  New Growth Core Asset
{Cdn% milliens) Development  Development Exploration  Development Total
il and Gas
Synthetic imainly Long Lake) 1,026 108 ] - 1,139
United States 28 2 275 488 793
United Kingdom 323 - 119 274 716
Canada 103 21 117 125 366
Yemen - - 12 124 136 §
Other Countries - N 44 22 97 :3—,
Syncrude - - - 36 36 &
1,479 162 573 1,089 3,283 ]
Marketing, Corporate and Other - - - 118 118 §
Total Capital 1,479 162 573 1,187 3,401 E;
o)
As a % of Total Capital 43% 5% 17% 35% 100% g
2008 Estimated Capital Major Early Stage  New Growth Core Asset
{Cdn% millions) Development  Development Exploration Davelopment Total
Qil and Gas
Synthetic (mainly Long Lake) 400 150 - - 6560
United States 80 - 225 85 390
United Kingdom 200 20 210 325 755
Canada 20 50 70 B8O 220 ‘
Yemen - ) - - 65 65
Other Countries - 180 g5 - 275
Syncrude - - - 45 a5
700 400 600 800 2,300
Marketing, Corporate and QOther - - - 160 100
Total Capital 700 400 600 700 2,400
As a % of Total Capital 29% 17% 25% 29% 100%
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Synthetic

In 2007, we invested a total of $1.1 hillicn to develop our insitu
oil sands resource. This included approximately $1 billion on
the first phase of Long Lake, $591 million of which related
to the upgrader.

Long Lake continues to progress well towards first production
of premium synthetic crude in mid 2008. We are currently
injecting steam into the reservoir through all well pads. We
have started cornwerting welts to SAGD operation and we have
also recently started up our first cogeneration unit which allows
us 1o produce electricity and build our steaming capacity. The
second cogeneration unit is expected 1o start up towards
the end of the first quarter. We expect bitumen production
to ramp up in the spring and we are on track to have suffi-
cient bitumen production for the start up of the upgrader. The
bitumen producticn capacity of the SAGD facilities is approxi-
mately 72,000 bbls/d (36,600 bhls/d net t¢ us),

In 2007, we invested a total of $1.1 hillion
to develop our insitu oil sands resource.

At the end of 2007, construction of the upgrader was 97%
complete and commissioning is progressing well. We have
turned over the hydrocracker, the OrCrude™ unit and all main
plant utilities to operations. The gasifier and air separation unit
were essentially mechanically complete at year end 2007,
and we are completing final electrical and insulation work.
Construction of the sulphur recovery unit is expected to be
completed by the end of the first quarter, in sufficient time for
first production of synthetic crude oil in mid 2008. Production
of premium synthetic crude will ramp up to full rates over a
12 to 18 monih period following initial upgrader start up. The
upgrader is designed to produce approximately 60,000 bbls/d
({30,000 bbls/d net to us) of premium synthetic crude.

The total cost estimate for the Project remains unchanged
at between $5.8 hillion and $6.1 billion (between $2.9 billion
and $3.05 billion net). We are planning to increase synthetic
crude oil production as we sequentially develop our lands with
additional 60,000 bbls/d (30,000 bbls/d net) phases using the
same technology and design as Long Lake.

United States

At Longhorn, where we have a 25% waorking interest, we
completed drilling an appraisal well which exceeded our
expectations and encountered hydrocarbons in multiple
sands. The Lenghorn project has been sanctioned and devel-
opment will consist of subsea tie-backs to a host facility with
first production expected in 2009,

In late 2007, we invested $104 million to acquire three
producing deep-water properties at Garden Banks Block 205
and Green Canyon Blocks 137 and 6/50. These propertias are
currently producing approximately 3,000 boe/d. Drilling of a
development well at Green Canyon 6/50 is underway and we
expect production from this well to add up to 5,000 boe/d to
our 2008 annual volumes.

At Knotty Head, we continue to pursue rig availability in the
short term to allow us to spud an appraisal well. To date, we
have evaluated two rigs but determined that these rigs did
not have the drilling capability required. We have contracted
two new deep-water drilling rigs that are scheduled to arrive
in mid 2009 and 2010, respectively,

Our 2007 exploration program resulted in discoveries at
Vicksburg, Mississippi Canyon 72 and South Marsh Island 257,
The Vicksburg discovery well, located on De Soto Canyon Block
353 in the Eastern Gulf of Mexico, was drilled to a depth of
approximately 25,400 feet and encountered hydrocarbons.
Core was recovered from the well and studies are underway to
assess the potential productivity. Additional drilling in the area is
planned in 2008. We have a 25% non-operated working interest
in this discovery. Shell is the operator with a 57.5% warking
interest and Plains Exploration & Production Company holds the
remaining 17.5% interest. In the same area, we participated in a
discovery wellin 2003 at Shiloh located on DeSoto Canyon Block
269, that was drilled by Shell. This well was drilled to a total depth
of approximately 24,000 feet, encountered hydrocarbons and
was temporarily abandoned pending further evaluation of the
area. We have a 20% non-operated working interest in Shiloh.

In the Eastern Gulf of Mexico, where the discoveries at Shiloh
and Vicksburg are located, we have identified a number of
additional explaration cpportunities in the region. We also
have the right to extend our acreage position through the



acquisition of working interests in various blocks recently
awarded to Shell as a result of their participation in Lease
Sale 205 late last year.

QOur other discoveries at Mississippi Canyon 72 and South Marsh
Island 257 are currently being evaluated. Both discoveries are
expected to come on production in 2008. We have working
interesis of 33% and 34.5% respectively in these discoveries.

United Kingdom

In the UK, we invested over $700 milflion in 2007. This included
$160 million at Buzzard where we drilled six development wells.
Our Ettrick development in the North Sea is progressing well
towards first oil mid 2008. In 2007, we invested approximately
$260 million. This development will utitize a leased ffoating produc-
tion, storage and oif-loading vessel (FPSQ) designed to handle
30,000 bbls/d of il and 35 mmeifd of gas, We expect to ramp up
to production of approximately 30,000 boe/d gross by the end of
the year. We operate Ettrick with an 80% waorking interest. We
have also identified a number of exploraticn opportunities in the
immediate area that could be future tie-backs to Ettrick. We have
plans to drill at least two of these opportunities this year.

Elsewhere, we are assessing development alternatives for
our Golden Eagle discovery where we have a 34% operated
working interest. At Kildare, we are planning to drill an appraisal
well this year. The discovery well was drilled to a depth of
approximately 14,100 feet. We also completed an appraisal
well at Selkirk which cenfirmed commercial quantities of hydro-
carbons and we are currently reviewing development options.
We have a 38% operated working interest here.

“At Bugle, we are currently drilling an appraisal well. Well
results are still being analyzed but initial test results are
encouraging. We have a 41% working interest here.

Canada

In Canada, we are developing the first commercial coalbed
methane (CBM) project in the Mannville coals. In 2007, we
invested $173 million in exploration and development activi-
ties on our CBM lands.

In northeast British Columbia we have a material land position
of approximately 190 net sections in an emerging Devonian
shale gas play which has the potential to be one of the most
significant shale gas plays in Canada. We are currently evalu-
ating this opportunity with a program of drilling, completing
and production testing.

Yemen

Yemen remains a significant asset for us and is expected
to generate approximately 15% of our projected cash flow
in 2008. In 2007, we invested $136 million and in 2008, we
expect to produce between 50,000 and 55,000 boe/d before
royalties here.

Other Countries

The Usan field development, located in Nigeria on offshore
Block OPL -222, continues 1o move forward. We expect the
project to advance to the execution phase shortly and this
will facilitate the award of the major deep-water facilities
contracts. The project will have the ability to process an average
of 180,000 bbls/d of oil during the initial preduction plateau
period through a new FPSO with a two million barrel storage
capacity. We have a 20% interest in exploraiion and develop-
ment on this block.

Syncrude

At Syncrude, we invested $36 million in 2007. In 2008, we have
turnarounds scheduled in the second and third quarters and expect
annual production of between 20,000 and 25,000 bhls/d.

2007 Capital

@ Synthetic' 23% 0 Yemen 3%

@ United States 17% O Other Countries 11%
@ United Kingdormn 32% 8 Syncrude 2%

@ Canada B% Qther? 4%

2008 Estimated Capital

@ Synthetic' 34% O Yemen 4%

B United States 23% O Other Countries 3%
@ United Kingdom 21% B8 Syncrude 1%

@ Canada 11% Q Other? 3%

1 Mainly Long Lake.
2 Markeung, Corporata and Other.

1 Mainly Long Lake
2 Marketing, Corporate and Other.
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FINANCIAL RESULTS

Year-to-Year Change in Net Income

{Cdn$ millions) 2007 vs 2006 2006 vs 2005
Net Income for 2006 and 2005 ' 601 1.140

Favourable {unfavourable} variances: ?

Production Volumes, After Royalties

Crude Qil 1,354 (245)

N.';tural-Gas o - 7 ‘ 17} ) 7 {55) -

éhanga in Crude Qil Inventory ) 22 . {74) |
Total Volume Variance 1,359 (374)

Realized Commodity Prices in Canadian Dollars

Crude Qil 308 325
Natural Gas (24} (133)
Total Price Variance 284 192

Operating Expense

Caonventional Qil & Gas (178) 13
Syncrude (21) {35}
Total Operating Expense Variance {199} [22)

Depreciaticn, Depletion, Amertization and Impairment

Qil & Gas and Syncrude (636) (48}
Other (7} 4
Total Depreciation, Depletion, Amortization and Impairment Variance (643) {44)
Exploration Expense 36 (ARRY!
Energy Marketing Contribution {373) 336
Chemicals Contribution 27 (12}
General and Administrative Expense 181 254
Interest Expense {115) 44
Current Income Taxes {66) 129}
Future Income Taxes 43) (549}
Other
Block 51 Settlernent 151 (151)
Business Interruption Insurance Proceeds (154) 152
Gains from Divestiture Programs - {418)
Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Crude Ol Put Options {32) 185
Other 72 8
Net Income for 2007 and 2008 . 1,086 601

Notes:
1 2005 includes results of discontinued operations (see Note 14 to our Consolidated Financial Statements).
2 Altamounts are presented before provision for incorne taxes.

Significant variances in net income are explained in the sections that follow.



OIL 8 GAS AND SYNCRUDE

Production
2007 2006 2005
Before After Before After Before After
Royalties® Rovyalties Royalties' Royalties Royalties’ Royalties
Qil and Liquids (mbb!s/d)
United Kingdom 81.2 81.2 169 16.9 12.6 12.6
Yemen 718 39.8 92.9 51.8 112.7 60.6
Canada? 1 134 200 15.8 29.2 22.6
United States 16.4 14.5 17.0 15.0 22.2 19.6
Other Countries 6.2 5.7 6.3 5.7 5.6 5.1
Syncrude (mbbis/d) 3 221 18.8 18.7 16.9 15.5 15.3
246 173.4 171.8 1221 197.8 135.8
Natural Gas {rrmcf/d}
United Kingdom 16 16 20 20 23 23
Canada? 118 98 108 91 124 101
United States 101 86 111 94 116 99
235 200 239 205 263 223
Total (mboe/d) 254 207 212 156 242 173
Notes:
1 Woe have presented production volumes before royalties as we measure our performance on this basis consistent with other Canadian oil and gas companies.
2 Includes the following production from discontinued cperations. See Nate 14 to our Consolidated Financial Statements. =
2007 2006 2005 g
Befare Aoyalties ;
Ol end Liguids (mbbis/a) - - 8.7 :
Natural Gas (mmci/d) - - 24 8
~
After Royalties g
Ol and Liguids {mbbis/d) - - 53 2
@
Natural Gas (mmel/d) - - 7 @
=
3 Considered a mining operation for US reporting purposes. _9,

2007 vs 2006—Higher production increased net income by $1,358 million
Production before royalties increased 20% from 2008, 33% after royalties. This increase reflects the start up of Buzzard in
early 2007, offset by declines in our maturing Yemen fields.

The fellowing table summarizes our production changes year over year:

{mboe/da} Before Rovyalties After Royalties
2006 Production 212 156
Production Changes
United Kingdom 64 64
Yemen {21 {12)
Syncrude 3 2
Other {4 (3)
2007 Production 254 207

In 2008, we expect additional production growth over 2007 and expect production to range from 220,000 to 240,000 boe/d
(260,000 and 280,000 boe/d before royalties). Increases are expected from a full year of Buzzard, and from the mid-year start
up of Long Lake Phase 1 and the North Sea Ettrick development.

Production volumes discussed in this section represent our working interest before royalties.
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United Kingdom

The addition of high-margin, royalty-free Buzzard volumes
increased North Sea preduction by 64,000 boe/d (net to us),
up 300% from last year. Buzzard came on stream January
7, 2007 and ramped up to peak production during the vear.
While the ramp-up was slower due 10 pipeline restrictions and
the reliability of the acid gas removat system, we reqularly
exceeded initial expectations. Buzzard has safely produced
as high as 220,000 boe/d (95,000 net to us}, higher than
originally expected. We are proceeding with work to add addi-
tional sweetening facilities to handle higher levels of hydrogen
sulphide, and are reviewing debottlenecking cpportunities to
increase the processing capacity of the platform. We had ten
wells on stream at Buzzard at the end of 2007.

Buzzard came on stream in January 2007 and
has safely produced as high as 220,000 boe/d
(95,000 net to us), 10% above expectations.

Scott/Telford preduced 16,500 boe/d, comparable with 2006
rates. During the second quarter of 2007, we increased our
interests in the Scott and Telford fields by 0.9% and 17.4%,
respectively. The additional production we purchased was
offset by natural declines and downtime caused by increased
maintenance activity. Farragon produced 2,600 boe/d during
the year, 30% lower than 2006 as a result of natural declines.
In the fourth quarter, production from our non-operated Duart
field came on stream.

In 2008, we plan to drill additional development wells at
Buzzard and Scott/Telford and we anticipate bringing produc-
tion on stream at Eitnick mid year. We expect production from
the North Sea to average between 95,000 and 115,000 boe/d
in 2008. Qur expected production for 2008 reflects some
provision for planned and unplanned downtime.

Yemen
Yemen production declined 23% from 2006. Masila production
decreased 19%, consistent with expactations. In 2007, we

drilled 18 development wells and 12 sideirack wells. Strong
initial rates from new wells, comhined with well optimizations
and reservoir management, helped to minimize expected
production declines. Base declines at Masila are expected
to continue as most ¢f the development opportunities were
previously drilled to maximize reserve and capital recoveries
under the production sharing agreement. We continue to
concentrate capital on maximizing recoveries, and therefore
economic returns, from our existing wells before our contract
expires in 2011. In 2008, we plan to drill 10 development wells
and continue to optimize well performance.

On Block 51 in Yemen, production from the East Al Hajr field
declined 35% as a result of natural declines and fewer devel-
cpment wells. We drilled 13 development wells in 2007 as
compared to 24 the year before. Five development wells are
planned for 2008.

Substantial value still remains in our Yemen assets as we
expect to generate approximately 22% of the total project
free cash flow from Masita over the remaining life of the
contract. We expect our share of Yemen production to average
between 50,000 and 55,000 boe/d in 2008.

Canada

Production in Canada decreased 3% from the previous year.
CBM production rates continue to increase as our wells in the
Fort Assiniboine area de-water and we bring additional devel
oprnent wells and facilities on stream. We are optimizing the
operation of the CBM development wells to maximize up-time
and efficiency. Declines in our natural gas properties in the
Medicine Hat region have heen more than offset by infill drilling,
and future opportunities remain in the region for additional infill
drilling. Our capital invesiment in heavy oil properties continues
to partially offset natural declines. At our Balzac gas facility,
north of Calgary, we completed a turnaround mid year, which
required production to be shut-in for approximately 48 days.

In 2008, we expect production from Canada to average between
45,000 and 50,000 boe/d, with new premium synthetic crude
oil at Long Lake expected mid year and higher CBM volumes.

2007 Production hefore Royalties

O Yemen 28% B United Kingdom 33%
& Canada 15% QO Other Countries 2%
B United States 13% 8 Syncrude 9%

2006 Production before Royalties

0 Yemen 44% B United Kingdom 9%
B Canada 18% O Other Countrias 3%
@ United States 17% @ Syncrude 9%




United States

Gulf of Mexico preduction decreased 6%, or about 2,300
boe/d from 2006. At Aspen, production increased 1,500
boe/d from the previous year. Natural declines in the field,
and maintenance and weather-related shut-ins of the non-
operated processing facilities partially offset production from
new development wells. In late 2006, we brought the Aspen
5 development well on stream; however, decline rates in this
well were higher than expected. We previously identified
other opportunities at Aspen and completed a sidetrack mid
year to exploit deeper sands. While we were encouraged
by well log data indicating thick pay zones in the sidetrack,
well deliverability rates could not be sustained. This likely
indicates barriers within this section of the reservoir that are
not present elsewhere. The other Aspen wells continue to
produce in line with expectations; however, we expect field
production to continue declining as a result of increasing
water cuts and reservoir depletion.

Gunnison production was approximately 3,800 boe/d or 36%
lower than last year due to natural declines and mechanical
issues in one high volume well. Gunnison accounted for 20%
of cur production from the Gulf of Mexico during the year and
we expect to bring another development well on stream in
2008. The Wrigley development came on stream early July
but gas production was restricted by limited heat exchanger
capability on the non-operated processing facility resulting in
an annualized average production rate of 7 mmcf/d in 2007,
We are currently working with the facility operator and expect
production to increase to peak rates of 24 mmct/d (net to us)
in 2008. Late in the third quarter, we acquired three deep-
water properties producing approximately 3,000 boe/d. We
expect to drill an additional development well at one of these
properties in early 2008.

On the shelf, our mature assets continue to be impacted
by natural declines, and fimited workover and recompletion
activity. Declines at Vermilion 76, Eugene Island 18 and West
Cameron 170 were only partially offset by Vermillion 340
production that was restored in early 2007. Vermillion 340
was shut-in since 2005 due to damage to the sub-surface
pipeline system caused by hurricanes in 2005, Qur shelf
production declined 13% from 20086.

In 2008, we expect total production from the Gulf of Mexicc
to average between 25,000 and 30,000 boe/d.

Other Countries

Production from Guando in Colombia was consistent with 2008.
We sustained production rates by maintaining reservoir pressure
through an active waterflood proegram and by drifling additional
infill wells. We expect to maintain current production rates in
2008; however, our interest in the field will decrease 10 10%
once the field has produced 60 million barrels, tikely in 2009.

Syncrude

At Syncrude, production averaged 22,060 boe/d, up 18%
from 2006 as the Stage 3 expansion contributed a full year of
production. Despite this increase, production was lower than
expected as Coker 8-3 had a utilization rate of less than 70%
over the year bacause of a variety of operating issues with
the new equipment. After an extended turnaround on the LC
Finer and Coker 8-3 in the second guarter of 2007, the Coker
processed bitumen at expected capacity until early October
when it was temperarily shut in due to coke build up. In
December, production was partially reduced for four days due
to a fire in Coker 8-3's environmental precipitators. In early
2008, production at Syncrude was temporarily suspended for
six days due to an upset in the amine and fuel gas system that
was brought on by extremely cold weather conditions.

Strong realized prices for our production have enabled us to
fully recover capital costs at Syncrude including costs associ-
ated with the Stage 3 expansion. Consequently, our Syncrude
royalties increased from a 1% gross revenue royalty to a 25%
net revenue royalty, beginning in 2006. This translates into
lower after royalty production relative to our working interest
production volumes. The Alberta government is currently
negotiating with the Syncrude owners to amend the existing
royalty agreement, which is in place until 2018. This could
result in Syncrude moving to the proposed royalty framework,
which features higher royalty rates, before January 2016 in
exchange far other concessions.

In 2008, we expect our share of Syncrude production to
average between 20,000 and 25,000 bbls/d.

2006 vs 2005—Lower production decreased

net income by $374 million

Production before rovalties decreased 12% from 2005, 10%
after royalties. Our 2006 production excluded volumes from
our Canadian oil and gas properties that were sold in the third
quarter of 2005. Removing the impaci of these property dispo-
sitions, production before and after royalties decreased 8% and
5%, respectively. Decreases were caused by natural declines at
mature fields in Yernen and at Aspen in the Gulf of Mexico.
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Commodity Prices

2007 2006 2005
Crude Oil
West Texas tntermediate (WTI} (US$/bbl) 72.31 66.22 56.58
Be-nchmark Differentials ' {LUS$/bbl) ) ‘ .
Heavy Qil 23.44 2179 20.82
Mars 567 7.34 6.59 |
Masila 0.50 o 3.00 5.71 .
Dated Brent 021 1.08 220 |
Producing Assets (Cdn$/bbl) S _
Yemen 76,29 71.57 62.07
Canada 44.07 . 42.79 40.51 .
United States 69.83 65.80 57.63
United Kingdom 76.30 ) 71.19 60.55 .
Other Countries 729 66.09 59.96
Syncrude 79.786 7 72.32 71.00
Corporate Average {Cdn$/obl) T73.43 67.50 58.98
Natural Gas
New York Mercantile Exchange {US$/mmbiu} 7.12 6.99 8.99
AECO (Cdn$/mcf) 626 662 8.04
Producing Assets (Cdn$/mct) -
Canada 6.32 6.49 7.51
United States ) 7.80 l 7.86 - 10.56
United Kingdom 4.7 7.43 7.86
Corporate Average (Cdn$/mcf) 6.81 7.18 g.89
Nexen's Average Realized Qil and Gas Price (Cdn$/bose} 68.46 62.92 57.97
Average Foreign Exchange Rate—Canadian to US Dollar 0.8304 0.8318 0.8253

Noze:
1 These differentials are a discountfipremium) to WTI.

2007 vs 2006—Higher realized prices increased net
income $284 million

Average WT| and Dated Brent in US dollars were 9% and 11%
higher, respectively, from the prior year, and our average realized
crude oil price increased 9% to $73.43/bbl. Qur higher average
realized price reflects the change in production mix with the addi-
tion of new high quality Buzzard production. This change helped
to offset the impact of the weaker US dollar an our Canadian
dollar realized prices. Our realized natural gas price el % from
2006 as a resuh of the stronger Canadian dollar, despite NYMEX
increasing 2% in the same period. The weaker US dollar reduced
net sales by approximately $225 million, and reduced our real-
ized crude oil and natural gas prices by approximately $3.20/tbl
and $0.30/mcft, respectively, as compared to 2006,

Crude Oil Reference Prices
Crude oil prices remained strong in 2007. Crude oil prices
climbed steadily throughout the year, with WTI ranging from

a low of US$49.90/bbl early in the year to US$95.98/bbl in
December. In early 2008, WTI broke through US$100/bbl
in intra-day trading but has since slipped to about US$90/
bbhl on fears of a US recession. The main drivers of the high
prices last year were conceins over supply resulting from
geopalitical tensions around the world, strong global demand,
declining inventory levels and a weakening US dollar.

Geopolitical sk continued to be an underlying theme
throughout 2007, In the Middle East, on-going tensions
between the US and Iran over its uranium enrichment
program led to fears that it would escalate to potential US
action against Iran and a reduction in oil exports. Conflict also
escalated between Turkey and Kurdish rebels in Northern Iraq,
where a substantial portion ¢f the country’s oil preduction
is located. Supply outages in Nigeria caused by coniinued
violence, and nationglization of Venezuela's energy industry
also contributed to higher prices and market volatility.




Global demand growth for crude oil continues to be robust.
Demand from China, the world's second largest oil consumer,
India, Russia and the Middle East grew from last year whereas
global supply increased marginally. There are concerns over
supply from politically unstable locations such as Nigeria,
Iran and lrag, some of the world's major oil producers and
exporters. A susiained decline in inventories also contributed
to strong oil prices. Crude oil inventories at the end of 2007
were at their lowest levels in the last five years.

A steadily weakening US dollar helped fuel the rise of crude
oil prices to an all-time nominal high since global ¢crude oil
is denominated in US dollars. Weak equity markets also
re-directed investment into the financial commaodity markets,
increasing volatility,

Crude Qil Differentials

In Canada, heavy crude oil differentials averaged US$23.44/bbl
(32% of WTI) for the year, compared to US$21.79/bbl (33% of
WTI) in 2006. Differentials were narrower than usual at the
beginning of the year as OPEC cuts from late 2006 tended
to be heavy oil, thereby increasing prices for heavier crude.
As we headed into the summer asphalt season, we expected
a seasconal narrowing. However, a major fire at BP's Whiting
refinery in March curiailed its ability {o process heavy oil for
the remainder of the year reducing the demand for Canadian
heavy crude by 100,000 barrels a day. Late in the vyear, the
differentials widened substantially due 10 pipeline constraints
until a shutdown at the Albian upgrader in the Athabasca oil
sands freed up pipeline space. In December, the heavy oil
differential improved from $45/bb! to $25/bbl as a result of
weaker WTI prices and the Albian upgrader incident. Meavy oil
prices are expected to weaken again in January and February
once the Albian upgrader is back on stream.

The Brent/WTI differential strengthened during 2007 with
Brent trading at a premium of US$0.21/bbl compared to &
discount of US%$1.08/bbl in 2006. The Brent index is relevant
for us as approximately 80% of our current crude production
is priced based on Brent. WTI traded at a discount to Brent for

almost half of the year. Regional issues, such as an overabun-
dance of crude in local storage around the Cushing, Oklahoma
area where WTI is priced and the limited ability to move that
crude to world markets caused WTI to trade at lower prices
than other international grades of crude cil. By comparison,
Brent prices were strong as multiple transportation options
allow it to remain a global crude oil. However, WTI regained
its strength and traded at a premium t¢ Brent during the latter
part of the year.

The US Guif Coast Mars differential narrowed, averaging
US$5.67/bbl in 2007 compared to US$7.34/bbl in 2008. Since
Mars can be moved globally, it competes with international
crudes and was not readily affected by the pipeline constraints
at Cushing earlier in the year which depressed WTI.

The Yemen Masila differential narrowed substantially rela-
tive to WTI during 2007, averaging US$0.50/bbl compared to
US$3.00/bbl last year. Yermen Masila traded at a premium to
WTI in the summer, reflecting the impaci of stronger Brent
pricing since Masila crude is priced off Brent. As WTI regained
its strength relative to Brent in the fall, the Yemen Masila
differential traded at a discount to WTI for the remainder of
the year.

Natural Gas Reference Prices

NYMEX natural gas prices averaged US$7.12/mmbty, compared
to US$6.99/mmbtu in 2006. In January 2007, gas prices were
unusually soft at the peak of the withdrawal season as January
experienced the highest global temperature on record for this
time of year. However, natural gas prices rebounded in the
following months as a result of strong crude oil prices, tech-
nical trading in financial markets and cold weather in several
key North American natural gas consuming regions, Natural
gas prices weakened during the summer and autumn seasons
reflecting higher storage levels that were approaching the top
of the North American five-ysar average. The high storage
levels were caused by LNG cargoes being diveried to North
America from weak Eurcpean markets, mild summer weather
and a quiet hurricane season in the Gulf of Mexico.
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2006 vs 2005—Higher realized prices increased net
income by $192 million

Crude oil prices remained strong for most of 2006, with WTI
finishing the year at US$61.05/bbl, roughly where it began.
The steady decline in crude prices from August to the end of
the year was largely driven by warm weather, above average
crude oit inventeries, concerns over the US economy, the
perceived reduction of geopaiitical tensions in the Middle East
and institution-led sell offs in the crude oil markets.

Natural gas prices averaged US$6.99/mmbtu, 22% below 2005
levels. NYMEX reached record price and volatility levels in late
2005, driven mainly by the impact of hurricanes Katrina and Rita
and speculation around the 2005/2006 North American winter
season. In 2006, mild January temperatures experienced in

several key North American natural gas consuming regions
resulted in a weaker NYMEX. This created a significant gas
storage overhang. Prices remained soft throughout the year
reftecting high storage levels, an ungventful hurricane season
and a mild 2006/2007 winter prediction due 1o the warming
effect of El Nino.

The full impact of the increase in WTI was not reflected in our
higher realized crude oil price as the Canadian dallar strength-
ened relative to the US dollar. The impact of the weaker US
dollar was offset by narrower crude oil diiferentials. The
weaker US dollar reduced net sales by approximately $250
million, and reduced our realized crude oil and natural gas
prices by approximately $4.85/bbl and $0.50/mcf, respectively
as compared tc 2005.

Operating Expenses 2007 2006 2005
Befare After Befare After Before After
(Cdn$/boe} Royalties® Royalties Royalties’ Royalties Rovyalties’ Royalties
Conventional Oil and Gas
Yemen B.58 12.00 4,45 8.1 3.83 B.75
Canada 12.91 15.93 10.31 12.73 8.21 10.34
United States 8.43 9.69 8.17 9.45 6.35 7.33
United Kingdom 6.94 6.94 11.28 11.28 14,90 14.90
Other Countries 345 3.76 2.87 313 5.55 6.08
Average Conventional 7.89 8.75 6.95 9.69 6.03 8.70
Synthetic Crude Oil
Syncrude 25.80 30.32 27.53 30.43 26.95 2122
Average Gil and Gas 9.45 11.63 8.77 11.96 7.36 10.34
Note:

I Operating expenses per boe are our tolal oil and gas operating costs divided by our working interest production before royalties. We use production before
royalties 1o monitor our performance consistent with other Canadian oif and gas companies.

2007 vs 2006—Higher operating expenses decreased
net income by $199 million

Our oil and gas cperating costs increased $199 millicn from
2006 primarily as a resuit of Buzzard coming on-stream in
early 2007 and higher Syncrude production. Qur production
mix also changed from last year as a result of this production,
altering our average unit cost. Operating costs at Buzzard
are lower than our corporate average, reducing our corpo-
rate average by $1.58/bos. However, the higher<ost Syncrude
barrels increased our corporate average by $0.74/boe.

At Masila in Yemen, operating costs increased with higher
service rig activity and maintenance programs. These costs
are necessary to minimize production declines and maximize
the recovery of the remaining reserves, given the maturity of
the field. The higher costs and lower production increased our
corporate average by $0.57/oboe. Similarly at Block 51, our oper-
ating expenditures were higher as additicnal service rig activity
and Migher water handling, fuel and equipment costs increased
operating expenditures. The higher costs increased our corpo-
rate average $0.37/boe. We expect the average per-unit cost to
continue {o increase in Yemen as production declines.



Canadian production increased our corporate average $0.50/
boe during the year as a result of industry cost pressures,
the extended Balzac turnaround and lower production. Qur
heavy oil properties have higher unit aperating costs as many
of the costs are fixed in nature and heavy oil production is
declining, Operating costs have also increased with addi-
tional CBM wells coming on-stream at Fort Assiniboine. Unit
operating costs are initially higher as we de-water the wells
to stimulate gas production. We expect cur CBM cperating
costs to decrease over time as the wells de-water, reliability
improves and gas production increases.

In the Gulf of Mexico, while tctal operating costs remained
consistent year over year, lower production increased our
corporate average by $0.18/oe. During 2007, industry pres-
sures increased costs and we performed additional downhole
and surface maintenance activity to maintain production.
However, these costs had minimal impact on our cerpo-
rate average when compared to last year as our 2006 costs
included extended maintenance and turnaround activity at
Eugene Island on the shelf. :

Operating costs at Buzzard are low, reducing
our corporate average by $1.58/boe.

In the UK North Sea, our Scott/Telford costs increased our
corporate average by $0.33/boe. During the year, our total oper-
ating expenditures increased as we performed maintenance
and work overs on the platform and producing wells, including
repairing turbines and improving water injection facilities.

Lower Syncrude operating costs reduced cur corporaie average
by $0.16/boe, and were 6% lower than 2006 as the impact of
the higher production from the expansion completed in 2006
was only partially offset by increased maintenance costs. In
2007, maintenance and turnarounds on the Coker 8-3and the LC
Finer interrupted producticn and increased operating costs.

US-dollar denominated operating costs were lower when
translated into Canadian doliars, reducing our corporate
average $0.26/boe.

2006 vs 2005—Higher operating expenses decreased
net income by $22 million

In Yemen, cperating costs on a per-unit basis increased as
fixed costs from our central processing facilities and increased
water handling costs were spread over lower production
volumes. Masila increased our corporate average by $0.20/
boe, reflecting lower production, increased service rig activity
10 minimize production declines, and costs to replace a single
point mooring system to load oil tankers. Block 51 oper-
ating costs increased our corporate average by $0.22/boe,
reflecting higher manpower costs, increased water handling
costs at the new facilities, maintenance costs associated with
equipment repairs and power outages, and increased fuel
consumption and fuel prices.

Following the sale of Canadian conventional oil and gas
properties in 2005, we had proportionately more heavy oil
praduction, which had higher operating costs than the lighter
oil production we sold. Canadian operating costs in 2006
increased our corporate average by $0.18/boe. Operating
costs in the Gulf of Mexico increased from 2005 due to
industry cost pressures caused by strong commodity prices
and the 2005 hurricane seascn. Lower production volumes
and workovers on our shelf properties early in 2006 increased
our ¢orporate average by $0.39/boe.

With the sale of Canadian production in 2005, barrels from
the North Sea contributed a higher percentage of our total
production. As the North Sea had higher operating costs
than our average cost per barrel, the change in production
mix increased our corporate average by $0.32/boe. This was
offset by lower operating costs relative to 2005, as operating
expenses in 2005 included repair costs related to turbine fail-
ures. This reduced our corporate average by $0.26/boe.

Syncrude increased our corporate average operating costs by
$0.72/boe from 2005 as a result of maintenance activities and
the coker turnaround during the first quarter of 2006, combined
with costs related to start-up of the Stage 3 expansion.

The stronger Canadian dollar decreased our US-dollar denom-
inated operating costs, reducing our corporate average as
compared to 2005 by $0.38/boe.
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Depreciation, Depletion, Amortization and Impairment (DD&A)

2007 2006 2005
Before After Before After Before After

(CdnS$/boe} Royalties' Royalties Rovyalties' Royalties Royalties’ Royalties
Conventional Qil and Gas

Yemen ) B.15 14.92 9.67 17.61 8.56 15.93

Canada 12.46 15.37 1122 13.84 | 9.26 167

United States? . 22.64 26.03 16.28 18.84 15.39 1777 .

United Kingdom o 19.59 19.59 30.22 30.22 33.25 33.25

Other Countries i 3.68 4.06 4,30 4.69 6.20 6.79

Average Conventiona_l 14.94 18.47 13.12 18.30 . 11.78 17.00 .
Synthetic Cruda Oil

Syncrude 6.59 7.74 4.81 5.32 3.08 312
Average Oil and Gas 14.21 17.49 12.38 16.88 11.23 15.77

Notes:

1 DD&A per boe is our DD&A for oil and gas operations divided by our working interest production before royaltias. We use production before rovalties 1o

meonitor our performance consistent with other Canadian o and gas companies.

2 DD&A per boe excludes the impairment charges described in Note & of our Consolidated Financial Statements.

2007 vs 2006—Higher oil and gas and Syncrude DD&A
decreased net income by $636 million

In 2007, our DD&A expense includes $366 million ($3.96/
boe} of impairment expense primarily related 1o cur Aspen,
Vermillion 320/340 and West Cameron 170 properties in the
Gulf of Mexico as we had poor results from capital invest-
ments and lower reserve estimates. At Aspen, disappointing
results from our recent investment in development drilling
resulted in negative reserve revisions. While we were
encouraged by well log data indicating thick pay zones, well
deliverability rates could not be sustainad. This likely indicates
barriers within this section of the reserveir, At Vermillion
320/340 and West Camercn 170, negative reserve revisions
primarily relate to gas properties, where unsatisfactory invest-
ment results, production performance, revised mapping and
higher projecied operating costs resulted in a8 downward
revision to reserves estimates. The carrying values of these
properties were reduced to their estimated fair value.

Production from Buzzard increased our corporate average
unit OD&A rate by $1.44/boe. Buzzard costs are higher
than our corporate average as they include acquisition and
project completion costs, We expect Buzzard unit depletion
to decrease over time as we expect io book more proved
reserves from production experience and further develop-
ment drilling. We recognized additional proved reserves at

the end of 2006 for our other UK assets, which lowered the
corporate average $0.59/boe in 2007.

A reduced capital pregram and slower recovery of capital
costs paid on the Yemen government's behalf decreased our
corporaie average DD&A rate by $0.15/boe.

Depletion of our Canadian assets increased our corporate
average by $0.24/boe reflecting the timing of reserve book-
ings from our CBM projecis in central Alberta, and land
acquisitions in 2006. As our hew CBM wells progress through
the de-watering stage and production increases, we expect
ta recognize additional proved reserves which will reduce our
unit depletion rate.

In the Gulf of Mexico, unsuccesstul development drilling at
Aspen and on the shelf increased our capital base, increasing
our corporate average rate by $1.29/hoe,

Syncrude DD&A includes costs o develop the Stage 3 expan-
sion that came on stream in mid 2006, which increased our
corporate average by $0.21/o0e.

The strong Canadian dollar relative to the US dollar decreased
our corporate average DD&A rate by $0.53/boe as our US and
international depletion is denominated in US doliars.



2006 vs 2005—Higher oil and gas DD&A decreased

net income by $48 million

Our 2006 DD&A expense included $93 million {$1.21/boe)
of impairment expense primarily related to two natural gas
producing properties in the Gulf of Mexico. The impairment
Was caused Dy disappointing develepment programs and
negative year-end reserve revisions. The carrying values of
the impaired properties were reduced to their estimated
fair value. In addition, our 2006 DD&A expense included
$15 million {2005—%58 miillion) relating to a partial write
down of our purchase price allocation to unproved proper-
ties purchased in the North Sea, as a result of unsuccessful
exploration activities. Our 2006 average depletion rate
excluding impairment charges was $12.38/boe, up 10%
from 2005.

In Yemen, we began depleting the permanent production facil-
ities on Block 51 in 2006 following their commissioning earlier
in the year, Strong crude oil prices allowed us 1o continue 1o
maximize recovery of costs we paid on the government's
behalf. This increased our corporate average by $0.64/boe.

Exploration Expense’

Qur increased Canadian depletion rate reflected depletion of
costs for cur CBM projects in central Alberta, which increased
aur corporate average by $0.35/boe. Depletion rates for our deep-
water assets in the Guif of Mexico increased our average by
$0.28/Mbee primarily as a result of reserve revisions late in 2005.

QOur depletion rate for our North Sea assets was higher than our
average, primarily from the purchase price allocation assigned
to them when acquired in 2004. Qur corporate average is
increasing as the North Sea becomes a larger proportion of our
total production and Canada becomes a smal! portion, following
the sale of Canadian conventional cil and gas assets in 2005.
This change increased our corporate average by $0.42/boe.

The Stage 3 expansion at Syncrude began producing during
the year and we started depleting these assets in 2006. This
increased our corporate average by $0.23/boe.

The strong Canadian dollar reduced our corporate DD&A by
$0.72/hoe from 2005 as the depletion of our international and
US assets is denominated in US dollars.

{Cdn$ millions) 2007 2006 2005
Seismic 123 128 53
Unsuccessful Drilling 126 169 143
Other 77 65 55
Total Exploration Expense 326 362 251
New Growth Exploration 573 491 456
Geological and Geophysical Costs 123 128 53
Total Exploration Expenditures 896 619 509
Exploration Expense as a % of Exploration Expenditures 47% 58% 49%

Nota:

1 2005 includes exploration expense from discontinued operations. See Note 14 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.

2007 vs 2006—Lower exploration expense increased net income by $3€ million

We invested almost $700 million in expleration orignted activities during the year, primarily related to drilling in the Gulf of Mexico,
UK North Sea and CBM in Canada, and acquiring seismic data in the Gulf of Mexico and Norway. In addition, we acquired material
land positions in the Gulf of Mexico, and in northeast British Columbia related to an emerging Devonian shale gas play.

Exploration expense decreased $43 million or 25% from last year as a result of fewer unsuccessful exploration wells. In the
Gulf of Mexico, we incurred dry hole costs of $69 million as compared to $135 million in 2008; however, this decrease was
partially oifset by higher unsuccessful well costs in the UK North Sea, Colombia and Canada.
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In the deep-water Gulf of Mexico, we drilled a successful
appraisal well at Longhorn and evaluated resource estimates.
The Longhorn development has been sanctioned and produc-
tion is expected in 2009. Also in the deep water, our Vicksburg
prospect was drilled to a depth of 25,400 feet and encoun-
tered hydrocarbons. Core was recovered from the well and
studies are underway to assess the potential productivity.
Additional drilling in the area is planned in 2008. Our unsuc-
cesstul drilling results in the Gulf of Mexico were primarily
on the shelf where we expensed $35 million for dry holes.
In the deep water, we drilled a sidetrack at Aspen targeting
two zones in deeper sands; however, results from the lowest
zone were unsuccessful and we expensed $20 million for a
portion of the drilling costs of the well.

In the deep-water Gulf of Mexico, we drilled
a successful appraisal well at Longhorn.
Development has been sanctioned and
production is expected in 2009.

In the UK North Sea, we had several exploration successes.
We followed up on our successful Geolden Eagle well by
drilling a sidetirack to appraise the accumulation. We are
currently evaluating development opticns for this discovery.
At Selkirk, we successfully completed an appraisal well and
sidetrack and are currently assessing development alterna-
tives. At Kildare, we plan to drill an appraisal well in third
quarter of 2008. Qur 2007 dry hole costs in the UK North
Sea were $38 million compared to $21 million in 2006. The
$15 million Guinea well was completed in the first guarter;
however, the target reservoir was water bearing and the well
was abandoned. Further exploration wells at Stag and Dee
were plugged and abandoned, resulting in $12 million and $8
million, respectively, in expensed costs.

in Colombia, we expensed $11 million related to the unsuc-
cessful Guaini-1 and Atalea-1 exploratory wells. In Canada, we
expensed costs associated with unsuccessful CBM activities
at Provost, Kakwa and Sullivan Lake. Seismic data costs of
$123 million were comparable with 20086. The Gulf of Mexico

and Norway accounted for 74% of the seismic expenditures,
as we consider these areas to have significant exploration
potantial. Data has been acquired during the last two years
0 support our acreage accumulation efforts.

We plan to invest approximately $600 million in cur 2008
exploration and appraisal program and anticipate drilling up to
11 exploration and four appraisal wells in the Gulf of Mexico,
North Sea and Yemen.

2006 vs 2005—Higher exploration expense reduced

net income by $111 million

Our 2006 exploration activities were focused on drilling 20
walls, mostly in the Gulf of Mexico and the North Sea, and on
acquiring seismic data. We were successful at Great White
West and Longhorn (farmerly Ringo) in the Gulf of Mexico. In
early 2007, we completed drilling at cur Golden Eagle pros-
pect in the UK North Sea. The discovery well was drilied to
approximately 7,500 feet and encountered hydrocarbons.

Qur unsuccessful drilling results were primarily in the Gulf of
Mexico, where we expensed $135 million in dry hole costs.
Early in 2008, we expensed $49 miltion for the Pathfinder
well, which found non-commercial quantities of hydrocarbons,
after reaching a total depth of 31,196 feet. Unsuccessful wells
on the shelf in the Gulf of Mexico include West Cameron
135 and 109 {$23 million and $14 millicn respectively) and
Vermilion 65 ($15 million}. During 20086, we also expensed
$29 miltion of capitalized costs related to Big Bend as it was
determined that develocpment was uneconcmic and the block
was relinguished. In the North Sea, dry hole costs included
unsuccessful exploratory wells at Zanzibar ($19 million} and
Black Cat {$7 million), Exploration expense also includes costs
relating to Ukot South, offshore Nigeria, which encountered
wet sands and was plugged and abandoned, and costs
relating to three unsuccessful wells on Block 51 in Yemen.

Our geological and geophysical costs include $128 million
of seismic data acquired during 2008, half related to the
Gulf of Mexico. The balance was spent on acquiring data in
Canada, Norway, the North Sea, Nigeria and other interna-
tional targets.



OIL & GAS AND SYNCRUDE NETBACKS
Netbacks are the cash margins, before general and administrative expenses, we receive for every equivalent barrel sold. The

following table lists the sales prices, per-unit costs and netbacks for our producing assets, calculated using our working interest
production before and after royalties. A combination of strong realized prices and new high-margin production from Buzzard
increased our cash netback by 32% fram 2006 (17% after royalties).
Before Rovalties
2007
{$/boe) Yemen Canada us UK Other  Syncrude Total
Sales 76.29 40.79 68.16 74.79 71.29 79.76 68.46
Rovyalties and Other {34.69) {7.81) (7.45) - {5.90) (12.02} {13.10)
Operating Expenses (6.56) (12.91) (8.43) (6.94) {3.45}) {25.80) {9.45)
In-country Taxes’ {9.52) - - - - - {2.69)
Cash Netback 25.52 20.07 q42.28 67.85 61.94 41.94 43.22
2006
($/boe} Yemen Canada us UK Other  Syncrude Total
Sales 71.57 40,98 56.12 66.81 66.09 72.32 62.92
Royalties and Other (32.32) {7.80) {7.53) - 5.51} (6.93) {17.68)
Operating Expenses {4.45) {10.31) {8.17) (11.28) (2.87} (27.53) (B.77}
In-country Taxes' {8.45} - - - - - {3.72}
Cash Netback 26.35 22.87 40.42 556.63 57.71 37.86 32.75
2005
{$/boe) Yemen Canada us UK Other Syncrude Total
Bales 62.07 42,42 60.26 57.83 59.96 71.00 57.97
Royalties and Other (28.71} (8.75) {8.08} - (5.23) {0.71) {16.70)
Operating Expenses {3.63} (8.21) {6.35} {14.90} (5.55) (26.95) (7.36)
In-country Taxes ' {7.17} - - - - - (3.34}
Cash Netback 22.56 25.46 45.85 42.93 49.18 43.34 30.57
After Royalties
2007
($boe) Yemen Canada us UK Other  Syncrude Total
Sales 76.29 40.79 58.16 74.79 71.29 79.76 68.46
Operating Expenses {12.00) {15.93) {9.69} {6.94} (3.76) (30.32) {11.63}
In-country Taxes' {17.42) - - - - - 3.31}
Cash Netbhack 46.87 24.86 48.47 67.85 67.53 49.44 53.52
2006
{$/boe} Yemen Canada us UK Other  Syncrude Total
Sales 71.57 40.98 56.12 66.81 66.09 72.32 62.92
QOperating Expenses 8.11) (12.73) {9.45) {11.28} (3.13) (30.43) {11.96}
In-country Taxes' {15.40) - - - - - (5.07)
Cash Netback 48.06 28.25 46.67 55.53 62.96 41.89 45.89
2005
{$/boe) Yemen Canada s UK Other  Syncrude Total
Sales 62.07 a42.42 60.26 57.83 59.96 71.00 57.97
Operating Expenses {6.75} [10.34) {7.33) {14.90) {6.08} [27.22) {10.34)
In-country Taxes’ {13.35} - - - - - {4.69)
Cash Netback 41.97 32.08 52.93 42.93 53.88 43.78 42.94

Note:
1 Comprises income taxes payable in Yemen that sre included in the Government's share of profit oil.
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ENERGY MARKETING

{Cdn$ millions} 2007 2006 2005
Physical Sales’ 47,826 40,920 37,873
Physical Purchases’ (46,897} {39,925) {36,988)
MNet Financial Transactions’ (49) 314 (38)
Increase in Fair Market Value of Inventory 79 - -

Net Revenue 859 1.309 B47
Transportation Expense (806) {789} {641}
Other 14 20 (2}

Net Marketing Revenue 167 540 204

Contribution to Net Marketing Revenue by Region:

North America 151 526 186
Asia M 13 18
Europe 5 1 -

Net Markeating Revanue 167 540 204
Depreciation, Depletion, Amaortization and Impairment (13) {12) {11)
General and Adminisirative (87 (112) {89)

Marketing Contribution to Income from Continuing
Operations before Income Taxes 67 a16 104

North America

Natural Gas
Physical Sales Volumes? (bcf/d) 5.8 5.4 4.9
Transportation Capacity {bciid) 2.0 ) 33 a0
Storage Capacity tbcf). 39 . 50 30
Financial Velumes \'bc-f/d)‘ 21.9 l 19.8 12.1
Crude Oil - 7
Physical Sales Volumes ? {mbbls/d) 655 553 318
Storage Capacity (mbl;lsl 2,734 1,749 580
Financial Volumes (mi)blé;'d) 2,134 . 1,976 819
Power )
Physical Sales Volumes ? {(MW/d} 4,516 4,388 2,548
Generatioﬁ Capacity (MW/hr} 87 87 53

Asia
Physical Sales Volumes ? {mbbls/d) 183 152 192
Financial Volumes {mbbis/c) %6 207 163

Europe
Financial Volumes (mbbls/d) 529 52 -

Value-at-Risk
Year End 26 26 24
High ’ 38 33 28

) Low 24 17 1
Average 30 23 2
Notes:

1 Marketing’s physical sales, physical purchases and net financial transactions are reported net on the Consolidated Staterent of Income as marketing and other.

2 Excludes intra-segment transactions.




2007 vs 2006—Reduced energy marketing contribution
decreased net income by $373 million

Results from our energy marketing group were below the
record year we experienced in 2006 as there were fewer
market events to capitalize on, and fundamental changes in
commodity markets were difficult to predici with confidence.

As part of our gas marketing strategy, we hold physical trans-
portation and storage capacity contracts that allow us 10 take
advantage of pricing differences between locations (i.e. west
vs. east) and time periods (i.e. summer vs, winter). These strat-
egies, particularly time spreads, contributed less o net revenue
in 2007 as there were fewer significant weatherrelated market
events (hurricanes or cold winter weather) to capitalize on.
These events typically cause time spreads to widen and loca-
tion spreads to dislocate, presenting trading opportunities for
us. In addition, gas prices were supported throughout the year
hy high oil prices despite record gas storage levels. We were
successfui at generating revenue through the day-to-day opti-
mization of our transportation and storage capacity, as well as
our fee-for-service asset management activities.

The centribution of our North American crude cil marketing
tearn was lower than 2006 as their portfolio, both physical and
financial, was positioned to take advantage of contango (rising
forward month prices) in the crude oil forward curve. Late
summey, near-term crude oil prices moved up sharply, moving
the forward curve from contango to backwardation (falling
forward month prices}. As a result, we suffered tosses in our
financial time spread positions. VWe continued to capture profits
from location and quality spreads by diverting crude oil to more
attractive markets or blending to enhance crude quality.

Our power marketing group remains the largest supplier of
power to the commercial and industrial sector in Alberta and
continued to deliver sclid returns.

Qur 2007 results include fair value gains of $79 million on
our natural gas and crude oil in storage and pipelings in the
fourth quarter. New inventory standards under Canadian
GAAP require us {o carry our trading commodity inventories
at fair value, rather than at cost as was previously the case.
Woe adopted these new rules in the fourth guarter.

In late 2006, we de-designated certain futures contracts that
were designated as cash flow hedges of future sales of our
natural gas in storage. These contracts were de-designated
since it became uncertain that the future sales would cccur
within the designated time frame. As it was reasonably possible

that the future sales could have taken place as designated at
the inception of the hedging relationship, gains of $65 million
on the futures contracts were deferred in accounts payable at
December 31, 2006. These gains were recognized in marketing
and other income during the first quarter of 2007.

Results from our marketing group vary between periods
and historical results are not necessarily indicative of future
results. Marketing results depend aon a variety of factors such
as market volatility, changes in time and location spreads,
the manner in which we use our storage and transpcrtation
assets and the change in value of the financial instruments
we use to hedge these assets.

2006 vs 2005—Net marketing revenue increased net
income by $336 million

Marketing had record results in 2008, with all areas achieving
records. The largest contribution came from our North American
natural gas marketing group where we capitalized on our
asset-based trading strategy. Time and location spread trading
generated most of our gas gains but we were also successful in
generating revenues through the optimization of our transporta-
tion and storage capacity. Volatility within the North American
gas markets created market apportunities for us to capitalize on.
North American gas prices started 2006 at US$10.63/mcf and
closed the year at US$6.30/mcf. Storage overhang and specula-
tion around weather and possible hurricanes caused significant
changes in prices during the year. We also took advantage of
opportunities late in the year to add to our storage capacity.

Qur crude oil marketing group also generated record resulis
by successfully taking advantage of crude quality, location
ang time spreads. The group generated physical and finan-
cial trading gains by taking advantage of the contango {rising
forward month prices) in the crude il forward curve. In addi-
tion, we captured profits around quality spreads by diverting
crude oil, or by blending to enhance the crude quality, and
atiract higher prices. While our strategies were consistent
with prior years, we executed more transactions and added
more capacity, particularly storage, during the year.

Cur power marketing group became the largest supplier of
power to the commercial and industrial sector in Alberta and
net revenue contributions exceeded expectations.

We continued our expansion into new markets during 2006
with acquisitions in the North American NGL trading busi-
ness and a UK acquisition which positioned us in the UK and
European gas and power markets.
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Composition of Net Marketing Revenue

{Cdn$ millions} 2007 2006 2005
Trading Activities {Physical and Financial) 147 520 195
Non-Trading Activities 20 20 9
Total Net Marketing Revenue 167 540 204

Trading Activities

In our energy marketing group, we enter into contracts to purchase and sell crude oil and natural gas. We also use financiat
and derivative contracts, including futures, forwards, swaps and ontions for hedging and trading purposes. We account for all

derivative contracts not designated as hedges for accounting purpeses using mark-te-market accounting and record the net
gain or loss from their revaluation in marketing and other income. The fair value of these instruments is included with accounts

receivable or payable. They are classified as long-term or short-term hased on their anticipated settlement date.

We value derivative trading contracts daily using:

= actively quoted markets such as the New York Mercantile Exchange and the International Petroleum Exchange; and

= other external sources such as the Natural Gas Exchange, independent price publications and over-the-counter broker

quotes. We do not value any derivative contracts using internal models.

Fair Value of Derivative Contracts

At December 31, 2007, the fair value of our derivative contracts totalled $6 million {2006—$360 million). Below is a breakdown

of this fair value by valuation method and contract maturity.

Maturity
{Cdn3 millions) < 1vyear 1-3 years 4-5 years > 5 years Total
Prices
Actively Quoted Markets (204) 96 21} (8} (137)
From Other External Sources 125 9 7 2 143
Based on Models and Other Valuation Methods - - - - - -
Total (79} 105 {(14) (6) 6

Changes in Fair Value of Derivative Contracts

{Cdn$ millions) Total
Fair Value at December 31, 2006 360
Change in Fair Value of Contracts {10)
Net Losses (Gains) on Contracts Closed (344}
Changes in Valuation Techniques and Assumptions’ -
Fair Value at December 31, 2007 6

Note:
1 Qur valuation methodology has been applied consistently vear-overyaar.

The fair values of our derivative contracts will be realized over
time as the contracts settle. Until then, the value of certain
contracts will vary with forward commodity prices and price
differentials. The average term of our derivative contracts is
approximately 1.4 years. Those maturing beyond one year
primarily relate to North American natural gas positions.

Fair Value of Trading Inventories and Capacity Contracts
As part of our gas marketing strategy, we held physical
transportation and storage capacity contracts that allow

us to take advantage of pricing differences between loca-
tions {i.e. west vs. east} and time periods {i.e. summer vs.
winter), These capacity contracts have market value, simitar
to financial commodity contracts, as future margins realized
depend on future prices and, more importantly, pricing differ-
ences. The market value ¢f these capacity contracts varies
depending on the change in future prices and pricing relation-
ships. We routinely hedge the economic value of our capacity
contracts using various types of derivative centracts, thereby
reducing volatility in our econcmic results. Accounting rules



can increase volatility in our reported results since they
require us to recognize the change in fair value of derivative
contracts hedging our capacity contracts, but do not aliow us
to recognize the change in fair value of the capacity contracts
themselves until the contracts are used. As a result, when
prices or pricing relationships change, we may be required
to include gains or losses in our reported results in different
periods even though our underlying economic results may
be largely unchanged.

Similar to capacity contracts, we hold commodity inventories
for trading purposes that allow us to take advantage of pricing
differences between time periods (i.e. summer vs winter).
We carry these inventories at fair value as measured by the

one-month forward price, less any costs to sell. We economi-
cally hedge the future value of our trading inventories based
on our expected holding period, which is generaily more
than one month. The derivative contracts used to hedge our
trading inventories are carried at fair value, which considers
the future seitiement of the contract, whereas the commodity
inventories are valued only one-month forward. The timing
difference can create volatility in our reported results.

At the end of 2007, the unrecognized future value of the
commoaodity inventory and capacity contracts was a gain of $51
million {2006—381 million loss). The future commitment for
these capacity contracts has been included in our contractual
obligations, commitments and guarantees in the MD&A.

CHEMICALS

{Cdn& millions) 2007 2006 2005
Net Sales 414 407 398
Sales Volumes {thousand shont tons)

Sodium Chlorate 478 487 493

Chlor-alkali 465 451 450
QOperating Profiy -3 151 124 136
Operating Margin *? 36% 30% 34%
Chemicals Contribution to Income from Continuing

Qperations Before Income Taxes 64 a4 k¥’
Capacity Utilization 94% 95% 96%

Notes:

1 Total revenues less operating costs, transportation and other,
2 QOperating profit divided by net sales,

3 Includes foreign exchange gains or losses on debt.

2007 vs 2006—Higher chemicals operating profit
increased net income by $27 million

Our investment in the chemicals business is held through
our 61.4% interest in the Canexus Limited Parinership. The
remaining interest is publicly traded through the Canexus
Income Fund. Realized North America chlorate prices were
up 5% in 2007 and sales volumes remained strong, despite
unplanned maintenance of our facilities and pulp mill shut
downs, The full effect of the price increase was partially
eroded by the strengthening Canadian dollar which reduced
US-dollar denominated sales by $9 million. Brazilian sales
remained strong with continued demand from our main pulp
mill customer Aracruz Cellulose.

The expansion at our plant in Branden, Manitoba is well
underway. Completion is expected in 2008 with capacity
expected to increase 12%. The Brandon plant benefits from
low electricity rates in Manitoba where the electricity market

is based on hydroelectric power and is regulated. We also
benefit from the economies of scale we achieve as this is
the world's largest sodium chlorate facility.

Operating profit includes foreign exchange gains of $30 million,
primarily from unrealized gains on revaluation of long-term debt.

2006 vs 2005—Lower chemicals operating profit
decreased net income by $12 miilion

While North American prices for sodium chlorate remained
strong throughout 2006, sales volumaes fell slightly from 2005
as a result of pulp mill clasures. Chlor-alkali volumes and prices
in North America remained sieady. US-dollar denominated
North American sales were reduced $12 million from the
stronger Canadian dollar during 2006. Sales and operations
from the Brazil plant remained solid as a result of strong
demand from Aracruz Cellulose, our primary custcmer, and
from the merchant market.
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CORPORATE EXPENSES
General and Administrative (G&A)

[Cdn$ millions) 2007 2006 2005
General and Administrative Expense before Stock-Based Compensation 336 345 302
Stock-Based Compensation * 38 210 507
Total General and Administrative Expense 374 585 809

Note:

1 Includes cash and non-cash expenses related to our tandem option plan and stock appreciation rights plan.

2007 vs 2006—Lower costs increased net income

by $181 million

G&A expense dropped 33% from 2006 with lower stack-based
compensation expense. Changes in our share price create volatility
in our net income as we account for stock-based compensation
using the intrinsic-value method. This method uses our share
price at the end of the reporting period to determine our stock-
based compensation expense and related obligations. At the
end of 2007, our stock price ¢losed unchanged from the end of
2006. As a result, most of gur 2007 stock-based compensation
expense is related 1o vesting of stock-based compensation plans.
Cash payments to employees for stock-based compensation
programs increased 24 9% from 2006 to $147 million.

During the year, we incurred additional employee costs as
we continue to expand oil and gas operations internationally
and marketing operations in Europe and North America. This
was offset by lower variable compensation on il and gas and
marketing operations.

2006 vs 2005—Lower costs increased net income

by $254 million

Our 2006 G&A expense before stock-based compensation
increased 14% primarily from additional costs 1o expand our
marketing operations into new markets. Acquisitions during
2006 allowed us to increase our North American NGL busi-
ness and to expand our European trading operations. Our G&A
expense also included higher variable compensation stemming
from ouwr marketing group’s strong performance in 2006.

In 20086, our share price increased 16%, creating over $2.3
billion of shareholder value. The stock based compensation
expense represented approximately 9% of the increase in
shareholder value. Cash payments to employees for our
stock-based compensation programs were $119 million in
20086, up 61% from 2005.

Interest
{Cdn3$ millions} 2007 2006 2005
Interest 34 254 275
Less: Capitalized {173) (241} (178)
Net Interest Expense 168 53 97
Effective Rate 6.2% 6.3% 6.4%

2007 vs 2006—Higher net interest expense decreased
net income by $115 million

Financing costs increased $47 million from 2006. Additional
borrowings to finance cur 2007 capital program increased
interest costs by approximately $69 million. This was partially
offset by the stronger Canadian dollar which reduced our
US-dollar denominated interest by $22 million.

Interest capitalized on our major development projects was
tower by $68 million from 2006. We stopped capiializing
interest on the Syncrude Stage 3 expansion and Buzzard in
2007 as these projects were brought on stream. We expect
to continue capitalizing interest on Long Lake and Ettrick until
their planned completion in 2008. After that, we expect net
interest expense to increase.

2006 vs 2005—Lower net interest expense increased

net income by $44 million

Our 2006 financing costs increased $19 million frorm 2005.
Additional borrowings to finance our 2006 capital program
increased financing cosis by approximately $28 million. This
was partially offset by the stronger Canadian dollar which
decreased cur US-dollar denominated interest by $16 million.
The Canexus debt, consolidated with cur results, increased our
interest expense by $7 million.

The amount of interest we capitalized on our major develop-
ment projects grew by $63 million, primarily from increased
investment in Buzzard, Long Lake and Syncrude’s Stage 3
expansion prior to its start-up.




Income Taxes

{Cdn$% millions) 2007 2006 2005
Current 434 368 339
Future 358 315 (234)
Total Provision for Income Taxes 792 683 108
Disclosed as:

Provision for Income Taxes—Continuing Operations 792 683 234
Provision for Income Taxes—Discontinued Operations’ - - {129}
Total Provision for Income Taxes 792 683 105
Effective Rate 42% 53% 8%

Note:
1 See Note 14 to our Consoligated Financial Statements.

2007 vs 2006—Effective tax rate decreases from

53% to 42%

Our 2007 effective tax rate was lower than 2006, as we
recorded additional tax expense in 2006 due to a UK tax
rate increase. Exciuding the impact of this rate increass, our
effective tax rate in 2006 would have been 33%. The 2007
increase is due to a higher proportion of earnings from the UK
where the corporate incomne tax rate on oil and gas activities
is 50%. Current income taxes include cash taxes in Yemen,
the UK, Colombia and the US,

2006 vs 2005—Effective tax rate increases from

8% to 53%

Effective January 1, 20086, the UK government increased the
supplementary tax rate on our North Sea cil and gas activities
from 10% to 20%, increasing the combined rate to 50%. This
increased our future income tax liabilities, resulting in a charge of
$277 million during the first quarter of 2006. Federal and certain
provincial governments in Canada also reduced corporate income
tax rates in 2006, which lowered our future income tax liabilities by
$32 million. Our effective tax rate excluding the impact of these
tax rate changes was 33%. Our current tncomne tax provision
included cash taxes in Yemen, the US, Colombia and Canada.

Other
{Cdn$ millicns) 2007 2006 2005
Decrease in Fair Value of Crude Oil Put Options {43) i {196)
Block 51 Setttement - {151) -
Business Interruption Insurance Proceeds - 154 2
Gain on Dilution of Interest in Chemicals Business - - 193
Gain on Disposition of Qil and Gas Assets included as Discontinued Operations - - 225

During 2007, we purchased put options on 36 million barrels
of our 2008 crude oil production. These optiens establish
a Dated Brent floor price of US$50/bbl on these volumes,
are settled annually and provide downside price protection
without limiting our upside to higher prices. Accounting rules
require that these options be recorded at fair value throughout
their term. As a result, changes in forward crude oil prices
create gains or losses on these options at each period end.
The put options were purchased for $24 million; however,
strong crude oil prices reduced the fair value of these options
to nil, and we recorded a loss of $24 million during the year.

During 2006, we purchased put aptions on approximately
105,000 bbls/d of our 2007 crude oil production for $26 million.
These options established a WTI floor price of US$50/bbl on

these volumes, During 20086, an increase in the forward WTI
prices lowered the fair value of the options and we recognized
a loss of $7 million for the year ended December 31, 2008.
Strengthening WTI in 2007 reduced the market value of the
options to nil, creating a loss of $19 million in 2007.

Following our North Sea acquisition in late 2004, we
purchased put options on 60,000 bbls/d of cil productien for
2005 and 2006. These options created an average flocr price
for this production of US$43.17/bbl in 2005 and US$38.17/
bbl in 2006. During 2005, a significant increase in forward
crude prices reduced the value of these options by $196
million. Strong WTI prices in 2006 reduced the market value
of these remaining options to nil, causing us to expense §4
miltion in 2006.
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In 2008, a court of arbitration concluded that we breached an Area of Mutual Interest agreement with Occidental Petroleum
Corporation {Occidental}. As a result, Occidental was entitled to monetary damages. In late 2008, we settled the arbitration by agreeing
to pay Occidental US$135 miltion ($151 million} as monetary damages. This amount was paid in the first quarter of 2007.

In 2008, we received $154 million of business interruption insurance proceeds related to 2005 production losses caused by
Gulf of Mexico hurricanes and by generator failures in our UK operations.

As a result of the sale of our chemicals business to the Canexus Limited Partnership in 2005, we recorded a gain on the dilution
of our interest from 100% to 61.4% of $193 million, Qur gain on the 2005 sale of Canadian oil and gas properties in Alberta,

British Columbia and Saskatchewan was $225 million.

OUTLOOK FOR 2008

In 2008, we plan to invest $2.4 billion in capital activities as follows:

= 29% in development projects to bring Long Lake Phase 1 and Ettrick in the North Sea on stream in 2008, and progress
Longhorn in the Gulf of Mexico and CBM at Fort Assiniboine in Alberta;

= 17% on early-stage development projects expected to contribute production and cash flow growth beyond 2008. These
inctude additional phases of oil sands in the Athabasca region, Usan offshore Nigeria, and our Knotty Head and Golden
Eagle discoveries in the Gulf of Mexico and North Sea, respectively;

= 25% on exploration primarily in our North Sea and Gulf of Mexico growth areas; and

» 29% to exploit potential in our existing producing assets and in other corporate assets.

Details of our 2008 capital program are included in the Capital Investment section of the MD&A.

Daily Production

In 2008 we expect additional production growth over 2007 and expect production to range between 220,000 and 240,000
boe/d (260,000 and 280,000 boe/d before royalties). In 2008, we expect to see the impact of a full year of Buzzard production
and first oil from Ettrick in mid 2008. We are steaming the reservoir at Long Lake and expect bitumen production 1o ramp up

in the spring, prior to upgrader start up mid 2008.

2008 Estimated Production

2008 Estimated Production 2007 Production

Before Atter Before Atter
{mboe/d} Raoyalties Royalties Royalties Rovalties
United States 25-30 20-25 33 29
‘United Kingdom 95-115 95 - 115 84 84
Yemen 50 - 55 27-32 72 40
Canada 45 - 50 40 - 45 37 ki)
Syncrude 20-25 17 -22 22 19
Other International 6-7 5-6 6 5
Total 260 - 280 220 - 230 254 207

Cash Flow and Sensitivities

We expect to generate approximately $2.9 billion in cash
flow from operating activities in 2008, after cash taxes of
approximately $1 billien, assuming the following:

Changes in commodity prices and exchange rates impact our
annual cash flow from operating activities, after cash iaxes,

as follows:

ICdn% millions)

WT1 (US$/bbl} 70.00
NYMEX Natural Gas {US$/mmbtu) 6.75
Oil & Gas and Syncrude Operéting Costs {Cdn$fooe) 10.00
US to Canadian Dollar Exchange Rate 0.97

WTI—US$1/bbl change above USS$50
WTI-=US$1/bbl change below US$50

NYMEX Natural Gas—US $0.50/mcf change

Exchange Rate—$0.01 US/Cdn change
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Capital Structure

{Cdn3% millions) 2007 2006
Net Debt!'
Bank Debt 413 1,410
Public Senior Notes 3,758 2,885
Total Senior Debt 4,171 4,295
Subordinated Debt 439 536
Total Debt 4,610 4,831
Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents {206) (101)
Total Net Debt 4,404 4,730
Sharehoiders’ Equity? 5,610 4,636

Notes:
1 Includes all of our debt and is calculated as fong-term debt and short-term borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.

2 At January 31, 2008, there were 528 502.991 common shares and US3460 rmatlion of unsecured subordinated securities outstanding. After November 8. 2008,
we have the aption fo redeem thase subordinaied securities by issuing common sharas. The number of shares issuable depends on the common share price

on the redemption date.

Net Debt

We use net debt as a key indicator of our leverage and to monitor the strength of our balance sheet. Net debt is directly related
to our operating cash flows and capital investment. We ended the year with net debt of $4.4 billion, $326 million lower than 2006.

The decrease was primarily caused by the strengthening Canadian dollar refative to the US-dollar which reduced our US-dollar
denominated debt by over $700 million. The impact of foreign exchange was partially offset as our capital investmeant exceeded
cash flow from operating activities by over $500 millicn. This shortfall was financed with long-term debt.

In May 2007, we issued US$250 million of 10-year senior notes and US$1,250 milfion of 30-year senior notes and used the
proceeds to repay amounts cutstanding under term credit facilities. Issuing this debt extended the average term-to-maturity

of our debt to 21 years, Approximately 7% of our long-term debt is repayable within the next three years.

The year-over-year change in our net debt results from:

2007
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{Cdn$ milligns) 2006
Capital Investment 3,40 3,408
Cash Flow from Operating Activities 12,830) {2,374)
Excess of Capital Investment over Cash Flow 571 1.034
Dividends on Common Shares 53 52
Issue of Commaon Shares {56) (48}
Foreign Exchange Translation of US-dollar Debt and Cash {745) N
Net Proceeds on Disposition of Assets {4) (27
Other {145) 49
Increase {Decrease) in Net Dabt {326) 1,091
The change in our net debt has improved our 2007 leverage as reflected in the following ratios:
({times) 2007 2006 2005
Net Debt to Cash Flow from Qperating Activities 1.6 2.0 1.7
Interest Coverage' 121 9.6 5.7
Note:

1 Earnings before interest, taxes, DD&A and exploration expensa divided by interest expense fbefore capitalized interest).
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With our expected cash flow streams, commodity orice and hedging strategies, current liquidity levels, and access to debt and
equity markets, we expect to be able to fund all planned capital, dividends and debt repayments, and meet other obligations
that may arise from our oil and gas, Syncrude, chemicals and energy marketing cperations.

in the last four years, we declared common share dividends of $0.10 per share each year.

Contractual Obligations, Commitments and Guarantees

We assume various contractual obligations and commitments in the normal course of our operations and financing activities.
We have considered these obligations and commitments in assessing our cash requirements, as noted in the above discus-
sion of future liquidity. They include:

Payments
{Cdn$ millions) Total <1 year 1-3 years 4.5 years »5 years
Short-Term and Long-Term Debt 4,688 125 202 21 4,150
Interest on Long-Term Debt ' 6,395 268 527 527 5,073
Operating Leases ? 610 76 201 176 157
Capital Leases 117 5 10 10 92
Energy Commodity Coniract Liabilities 576 413 135 25 3
Transportation and Storage Commitments ? 922 368 271 151 132
Woark Commitments and Purchase Obligations ? 2,137 966 575 522 74
Asset Retirement Obliga‘tions 2,165 ap 58 39 2,028
Total 17,610 2,261 1,979 1,661 11,709

Nores:

! ELxcludes interest on variable rate debt.

2 Payments for operating leases and transportation and storage commitments are deducted from our cash flow from operating activities.
3 Some of these payments relate (o work cornmitrnents that we can cencel without penalties or additional fees.

Nexen Inc. 2007 Annual Report

Contractual abligations can be financial or non-financial. Financial For certain contracts, we may net settle. These contracts

obligations are known future cash payments that we must make are included in our Consolidated Balance Sheet at fair value.

under existing contracts, such as debt and lease arrangements. = Work commitments include non-discretionary capital

Non-financial ebligations are contractual obligations to perform spending for drilling, seismic, facilities construction and

specified activities such as work commitments. Commercial other development commitments in our international

commitments are contingent obligations that become payable operations, and includes Long Lake {$192 million} and

only if certain pre-defined events occur. Ettrick in the Nerth Sea ($139 million). Since the timing of

» Shori-term and long-term debt amounts are included on certain payments is difficult to determine with ceriainty,
our December 31, 2007 Consolidated Balance Sheet. the table was prepared using our best estimates. The

» Operating leases include the minimum lease paymant remainder of our 2008 capital investment is discretionary.
obligations associated with leases for office space, rail = We have included $821 million in work commitments for
cars, vehicles and processing agreements that allows our drilling rigs we have ¢ontragted in the North Sea and Gulf
production to flow through third-party processing facilities. of Mexico, over the next five years,

= Capital leases include pipeline commitments primarily = We have $2,165 million of undiscounted asset retirernent
related to future production at Long Lake. obligations after inflation. As of December 31, 2007, the

= Energy commedity contract liabilities include the discounted value ($832 million) of these estimated obli-
purchase and sale of physicat quantities of oil and natural gations was provided for in our Consolidated Financial
gas, and financial derivatives used to manage our expo- Statements (including $40 million of current liabilities).
sure 10 commaodity prices. For contracts where the price Since timing of any payments is difficult to determine with
is based on an index, the amount is based on forward certainty, the table was prepared using our hest estimates.

market prices at December 31, 2007.

66




= We have unfunded cbligations under our defined benefit
pension plans of $130 million (Nexen—3$72 million;
Canexus-—37 million; Syncrude—3$51 million). Qur
obligations for Nexen and Canexus include $83 million
that is unfunded as a result of statutory limitations.
These obligations are backed by irrevocable letiers
of credit.

= We have excluded obligations on our tandem cption and
stock appreciation rights programs as the amount and
timing of cash payments are not determinable.

= We have excluded our normal purchase arrangements as
they are discretionary and are reflected in our expected
cash flow from operating activities and capital expendi-
tures for 2008,

= We have excluded our future income tax liabilities as the
amount and timing of any cash payment for income taxes is
based on taxable income for each fiscal year in the various
jurisdictions where we cperate. We have also excluded
future incame tax liabilities as they relate to uncertain tax
positions, as we cannot provide a reasonable estimate as
to if, or when future payments would be required.

From time to time, we enter into contracts that require us to
indemnify parties against possible claims, particularly when
these contracts relate to the sale of assets. On occasion,
we provide indemnifications to the purchaser. Generally,
a maximum obligation is not stated; therefore, the overall
maxirnum amount cannot be reasonably estimated. We have
not made any significant payments related to these indemnifi-
cations. We believe existing indemnifications would not have
a material adverse effect on our liquidity, financial condition
or results of operaticns.

Credit Ratings

Currently, our senior debt is rated Baa2 by Moody's Investor
Service, Inc. (Moody's), BBB by Dominion Bond Rating
Service {DBRS) and BBB- by Standard & Poor's (S&P). In
addition, Moody's and DBRS currently rate our ouilook as
stable while S&P has a positive outlook. Qur strong financial
results, ample liguidity and financial flexibility continue to
support our credit ratings.

Financial Assurance Provisions in

Commercial Contracts

The commerciat agreements our energy marketing group
enters inte often include financial assurance provisions that
allow Nexen and our counterparties to effectively manage credit
risk. The agreements normally require collateral to be posted if
an adverse credit-related event, such as a drop in credit ratings,
occurs. Based on contracts in place and commodity prices at
December 31, 2007, we could be required 1o post collateral of
up to $1.2 billion if we were downgraded to non-nvestment
grade. These obligations are reflected on our halance sheet,
The posting of collateral merely accelerates the bayment of
such amounts, Just as we may be required to post collateral
if we were downgraded below investment grade, we have
similar provisions in many of our contracts that aliow us to
demand certain counterparties post collateral for amounts they
owe us if they are downgraded to non-investment grade.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no off-balance sheet arrangements that would have
a material adverse effect on our liquidity, consolidated finan-
cial position or results of operations. We use operating leases
in the normal course of business as disclosed in Contractual
Obligations, Commitments and Guarantees on page 66 and
in Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, which
is incorporated herein by reference.

At December 31, 2007, we had outstanding letters of credit
supported by $283 million of unsecured term credit facilities
and $196 million of uncommitted unsecured credit facilities.

Contingencies

We have no contingencies that would have a material adverse
effect on our liquidity, consolidated financial position or results
of operations. See Noie 15 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, which is incorporated here by reference for a
discussion of our contingencies.
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value, based on the fair value of the assets and liabilities of
the underlying reporting unit. The process of assessing good-
will for impairment necessarily requires us to determine the
fair values of our assets and liabilities, and invalves making
various assumptions and judgments.

Asset Retirement Obligations

We are reguired to remove or remedy the effect of our activities
on the environment at our present and former operating sites by
dismantling and removing production facilities and remediating
any damage caused. In estimating our future asset retirement
obligations, we must make estimates and judgments on activi-
ties that will occur many years inte the future. Also, the ultimate
financial impact of environmental laws and regulations is not
always clearly known and cannot be reasonably estimated as
standards evolve in the countries where we operate.

We record asset retirement obligations in our Consolidated
Financial Statements by discounting the future value of the esti-
mated retirement obiigations associated with our oil and gas wells
and facilities, Syncrude assets and chemical plants. In arriving at
amounts recorded, numerous assumptions and judgments are
made on ultimate settlement amounts, inflation factors, credit-
adjusted discount rates, timing of settlement and expecied
changes in legal, regulatory, environmental and political environ-
ments. The asset retirement obligations we record increase the
carrying cost of our property, plant and equipment and accretes
with the passage of time. A change in any one of our assumptions
could impact our asset retirement obligations, the carrying value
of cur property, plant and equipment and our net income.

It is difficult to determine what impact a change in any of our
assumptions would have on our financial results. As a result,
we are unable to provide a reasonable sensitivity analysis on
changes in our assumptions.

Business Combination—Purchase Price Allocation

We account for business acquisitions using the purchase
method of accounting. Under this method, we are required
to record on our Consolidated Balance Sheet the estimated
fair values of the acquired company's assets and liabilities at
the acquisition date. The excess of the purchase price over the
fair values of the tangible and intangible net assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill.

We make various assumptions and judgments in determining
the fair values of the acquired company's assets and liabilities,

the most significant of which are in estimating the fair value
of the oil and gas properties. To determine the fair value of
these properties, we estimate {a) oil and gas reserves using
our reserve standards, {b) additional reserves potential and
(c) future prices of oil and gas.

Our reserve estimates are based on work performed by our
engineers and outside consultants. Judgements associated
with these estimated reserves are described earlier in our
critical accounting estimates discussion entitled " Oil and Gas
Accounting—Reserves Determination”. Qur estimates of future
prices are based on prices derived from a consensus of future
price forecasts among industry analysts and our own assump-
tions. The judgments associated with these estimates are
described earlier in our critical accounting estimates discussion
entitled “Impairments—Property, Plant and Equipment”.

We apply our estimated future prices to the estimated
reserves quantities acquired, and we estimate future oper-
ating and development costs to arrive at estimated future net
revenues for the properties acquired. For proved properties,
we discount the future net revenues using after-tax discount
rates. The same principles are applied in arriving at the fair
value of unproved properties acquired. These unproved proper-
ties generally represent the vaiue of the probable and possible
reserves. Because of their very nature, probable and possible
reserve estimates are more imprecise than those of proved
reserves. To compensate for the inherent risk of estimating
and valuing unproved reserves, an appropriate risk-weighting
factor is applied to the discounted future net revenues of the
probable and possible reserves in each particular instance.

Future income Taxes

We follow the liability method of accounting for income taxes
whereby future income tax assets and liabilities are recog-
nized based on temporary differences in reported amounts
for financial statement and tax purposes. We carry on busi-
ness in several countries and as a result, we are subject to
income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. The determination
of our income tax provision is inherently complex and we
are required to interpret continually changing regulations and
make certain judgments. While income tax filings are subject
to audits and reassessments, we believe we have adequately
provided for all income tax obligations. However, changes in
facts and circumstances as a result of income tax audits, reas-
sessments, jurisprudence and any new legislation may result
in an increase or decrease in our provision for income taxes.




NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
Canadian Pronouncements

In December 20086, the Canadian Accounting Standards Board
(AcSB) issued two new Sections relating to financial instru-
ments: Section 3862, Financial Instruments—0Disclosures,
and Section 3863, Financial Instruments—FPrasentation. Both
sections are effective for annual and interim periods beginning
on or after October 1, 2007 and require increased disclosure
of financial instruments,

In December 2006, the AcSB issued Section 1535, Capital
Disclosures, reguiring disclosure of information about an entity's
capital and the chjectives, policies, and processes for managing
capital. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after October 1, 2007 and will require additional disclosure.

In February 2008, the AcSB issued Section 3064, Goodwill
and Intangitle Assets and amended Section 1000, Financial
Statermnent Concepts clarifying the criteria for the recogniticn
of assets, intangible assets and internally developed intan-
gible assets. [tems that no longer meet the definition of an
asset are no longer recognized as assets. The standard is
effective for fiscal years beginning on or after October 1, 2008
and early adoption is permitted. We are currently evaluating
the impact these sections will have on our results of opera-
tions or financial position.

In January 2006, the AcSB adopted a strategic plan for the
direction of accounting standards in Canada. Accounting
standards for public companies in Canada are expected to
converge with the International Financial Reporting Standards
by 2011. The timing for convergence has not been confirmed
by the AcSB. We continue to monitor and assess the impact
of these convergence efforts.

US Pronouncements

In September 2008, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
{FASB) issued Statement 157, Fair Value Measurements,
Statement 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value under US generally accepted accounting
principles and expands disclosures about fair value measure-
ments. For fiscal years beginning after Novemnber 15, 2007,
cempanies must implement the standard for financial
assets and liabilities, as well as for any other assets and
liabilities carried at fair value on a recurring basis in financial

statements. However, a one year deferral for the implemen-
tation of Statement 157 is provided for other non financial
assets and liahilities. We do not expect the adoption of this
statement to materially impact our results of operations or
financial position.

Effective December 31, 2006, we adopted the recogni-
tion and disclosure provisions of FASB Statement 158,
Emplovers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension And
Other Postretirement Plans. This statement also requires
we measure the funded status of a plan as of the balance
sheet date. The measurement provisions of the statement are
effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2008, We
do not expect the adoption of the change in measurement
date in 2008 to materially impact our results of operations or
financial position,

In February 2007, FASB issued Statement 159, The Fair Value
Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities. The state-
ment allows for the elective measurement of eligible financial
instruments and certain other items at fair value in order to
mitigate volatility in reported earnings without having to apply
complex and detailed hedge accounting rules. This statement
is effective for fiscal years beginning after Novernber 15, 2007.
We do not expect the adoption of this siatement to materially
impact our results of operations or financial position.

In December 2007, FASB issued Statemeni 141({revised),
Business Combinations, Statement 141{revised) establishes
principles and requirements of the acquisition method for
business combinations and related disclosures. This state-
ment is effective for fiscal years beginning on cr after
December 15, 2008. We do not expect the adoption of this
statement to materially impact our results of operations or
financial position,

In December 2007, FASB issued Statement 160, Noncontrolfing
Interests in Consolidated Financial Staternents, an amendment
of ARB. No 51. This statement clarifies that a noncentrol-
ling interest in a subsidiary is an ownership interest in the
consalidated entity that should be reported as equity in the
consolidated financial statements. This statement is effective
for fiscal years beginning on or after December 15, 2008. We
do not expect the adoption of this statement to materially
impact our results of operations or financial position.
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item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

We are exposed to normal market risks inherent in the oil and
gas, Syncrude, erergy marketing and chemicals businesses,
including commodity price risk, foreign-currency rate risk,
interest rate risk and credit risk. We recognize these risks
and manage our gperations o minimize our exposures to
the extent practical.

NON-TRADING

Commeodity Price Risk

Commedity price risk related to conventional and synthetic
crude oif prices is our most significant market risk exposure.
Crude cil and natural gas are sensitive to numerous world-
wide factors, many of which are beyond our control, and
are generally sold at contract or posted prices. Changes in
world crude oil and natural gas prices may significantly affect
our results of operations and cash generated from operating
activities. Consequently, such prices also may affect the value
of our oil and gas properties and our level of spending for
exploration and development.

Our crude oil prices are based on varicus reference prices,
primarily WTI and Brent crude oil reference prices and other
prices which generally track the movement in WTI and Brent.
Adjustments are made to the reference prices to reflect quality
differentials and transportation. WTI, Brent and other interna-
tional reference prices are affected by numerous and complex
worldwide factors such as supply and demand fundamentals,
economic outlooks, production quotas set by the Organization
of Petroleum Exporting Countries and political events. Quality
ditferentials are affected by local supply and demand factors.

To a lesser extent we are also exposed to natural gas price
movements, Natural gas prices are generally influenced by oil
prices and supply and demand fundamentals, and to a lesser
extent local market conditions.

In 2007, WTI averaged US$72.31/bb!, reaching a high of
US$99.29/bbl and a low of US$49.90/bbl. Dated Brent, on
which approximately 80% of our production is priced, aver-
aged $72.52/bbl, reaching a high of US$96.02/bhl and a low of
US$50.68/bbl. NYMEX natural gas prices averaged US$7.12/
mmbtu in 2007, reaching a high of US$8.71/mmbtu and a low
of US$5.19/mmbtu. Our sensitivities to commodity prices and
the expected impact on our 2008 cash flow from operating
activities and net income are as follows:

Cash Net
(Cdn§ millions) Flow Income
WTI—US$1/bbl change above US$50 39 36
WTI—US$1/bbl change below US$50 22 20
NYMEX Natural Gas—US$0.50/mcf change 24 20

These sensitivities are based on our estimated 2008 oil and
gas preduction and assume a Canadian/US dollar exchange
rate of $0.97. Our estimated oil and gas production range for
2008 is between 260,000 and 280,000 hoe/d before royalties,
of which approximately 16% is gas.

The majority of our oil and gas production is sold under short-term
contracts, exposing us to shoit-term price movements. Other
energy contracts we enter into also expose us to commaodity
price risk between the time we purchase and sell contracted
volumes. From time to time, we actively manage these risks by
using commeodity futures, forwards, swaps and eptions.

In 2007, we purchased Dated Brent put options to manage
the commeoedity price risk exposure on a portion of our oil
production in 2008, by establishing an annual average Dated
Brent floor price of US$50/bbl on 36 million barrels or about
100,000 bbls/d of production.

Foreign Currency Risk

A substantial portion of our activities are transacted in or

referenced to US dollars including:

» sales of crude oil, natural gas and certain chemicals products;

» capital spending and expenses for our oil and gas,
Syncrude and chemicals operations; and

= short-term and long-term borrowings,

The Canadian/US dollar exchange rate averaged $0.93 in 2007,
ranging from a low of $0.84 to a high of $1.09.

Cur sensitivities to the US dollar and the expected impact
of a one cent change on our 2008 cash flow from operating
activities, net income, capital expenditures and long-term
debt is as follows:

Cash Net Capital Long-term
{Cdn$ millions) Flow Income Expenditures Debt
$0.01 Change
in US to Cdn 28 17 15 a4




Our sensitivities to changes in the Canadian/US dollar
exchange rate are calculated based on projected revenues,
expenses, capital expenditures and US-dollar denominated
long-term debt for 2008. These estimates are based on a WTI
price for crude oil of US$70/bbl, a NYMEX natural gas price of
US$6.75/mmbtu, operating costs of $10/boe and a Canadian/
US dollar exchange rate of $0.97.

We manage our exposure 1o fluctuations between the US
and Canadian dollar by matching our expected net cash flows
and borrowings in the same currency. Net revenue frem our
foreign operations and our US-doltar borrowings are gener-
ally used to fund US-dollar capital expenditures and debt
repayments, We maintain revolving Canadian and US-dollar
borrowing facilities that can be used or repaid depending
on expected net cash flows. We designate our US-dollar
borrowings as a hedge against our US-dollar net investment
in self-sustaining foreign operations.

Our chemicals operations are exposed to changes in the
US-dollar exchange rate as part of their sales are denominated
in US-dollars. Canexus periodically purchases US-dollar call
options to reduce this exposure. Under outstanding option
contracts at December 31, 2007, Canexus had the right to
sell US$5 million monthly and purchase Canadian dollars at
an exchange rate of US$0.95 to February 29, 2008.

We do not have any material exposure 1o highly inflationary
foreign currencies.

Interest Rate Risk

We are exposed to fluctuations in interest rates on our floating-
rate debt. To minimize our exposure to interest rate fluctuations,
we occasionally use derivative instruments.

Our sensitivity to interest rates and the expected impact of
a 1% change in interest rates on our 2008 cash {low from
operating activities and net income is as follows:

(Cdn$ rmillions) Cash Flow Net Income

Interest Rates—1% change in rates 5 3

Our sensitivity to changes in interest rates is based on 2008
estimated average floating rate debt of $475 million and a
Canadian/US dollar exchange rate of $0.97.

Qur floating rate debt exposes us to changes in interest
payments as interest rates fluctuate. To manage this expo-
sure, we maintain a combination of fixed and floating rate
borrowings and facilities. At December 31, 2007, fixed-rate
borrowings comprised 91% (2006—73%) of our long-term
debt at an effective average rate of 6.3% (2006—6.3%).
During the year, we periodically borrow under our committed,
unsecured, term credit facilities and at December 31, 2007,
floating-rate debt comprised 9% {2006—27 %) of our long-
term debt at an effective average rate of 5.8% (2006—5.7%)
ranging from a low of 4.2% 10 3 high of 8.75% during 2007.

We had no interest rate swaps outstanding in 2007 or 2008.

TRADING

Commodity Price Risk

Cur marketing group markets and trades crude oil, natural gas,
NGLs, ethana! and power through physical purchase and sales
contracts, as well as financial commodity contracts. These
activities expose us to commaodity price risk, as well as foreign
currency risk and volatility within these markets. Qur energy
marketing group actively manages this risk by utilizing energy-
related futures, forwards, swaps and options, as well as currency
swaps or forwards. We typically take advantage of location, time
and quality spreads using physical and financial contracts. The
marketing group also tries to take advantage of volatility within
commodity markets and can establish net open commodity
positions 1o take advantage of existing market conditions.

Volatitity within our various markets can vary and change
over time. While this volatility gives us opportunities, it can
also cause our results to vary significantly between periods.
We attempt to manage associated risk and take on positions
based on solid market intelligence; however, it is possible that
we could incur financial loss.

Open positions exist when not all contracted purchases and
sales terms have been matched. These net open positions
allow us to generate income, but also expose us torisk of loss
due to fluctuating market prices (market risk sensitivities in our
porifolio). Open positions and derivative instruments expose
us tc other risks, including credit risk and liquidity risk.
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We control the lavel of market risk through daily monitoring
of our energy-trading portfolio relative to:

= prescribed limits for Value-at-Risk (VaR);

» nominal size of commeodity positions;

= stop loss limits; and

= stress testing.

VaR is a statistical estimate that is reliable when normal

market conditions prevail, Our VaR calculation estimates

the maximum probable loss, given a 85% confidence level,

that we would incur if we were 10 unwind cur cutstanding

positions over a two-day period. YWe estimate VaR primarily

by using the Variance-Covariance method based on historical

commodity price volatility, correlation inputs where available

and by historical simulation in other situations. Cur estimate

is based upon the following key assumptions;

» changes in commaodity prices are either normally or “T"
(for natural gas since May 2006) distributed;

= price volatility remains stable; and

= price correlation relationships remain stable,

If a severe market shock occurred, the key assumptions
underlying our VaR estimate could be exceeded and the poten-
tial loss could be greater than our estimate, Stress testing
complements our VaR estimate. Itis used to guantify potential
unexpected losses from low probability market movements,
Credit VaR is reported separately from cermmodity VaR, and
ranged between $3.6 and $6.1 million in 2007,

Our year end, annua' high, annval low and annual average VaR
amounts are as follows:

{Cdn$ millions) 2007 2006 2005
Value at Risk
Year End 26 26 24
High 38 33 28
Low 24 17 11
Average 30 23 21

Our board of directors has approved formal risk management
policies for our energy trading activities. Market and credit
risks are monitored daily by a risk group that operates inde-
pendently and ensures compliance with our risk management
policies. The Finance Committee of the board of directors and
our Risk Management Committee monitor our exposure 1o
the above risks and review the results of our energy trading
activities regularly.

CREDIT RISK
Credit risk affects both our trading and non-trading activities
and is the risk of loss if counterparties do not fulfill their
contractual obligations. Most of our credit exposures are
with counterparties in the energy industry and are subject to
normal industry credit risk. We take the following measures
to reduce this risk:

* we assess the financial strength of cur counterparties
through a rigorous credit process;

= we limit the total exposure exiended to individual
counterparties, and may require collateral from some
counterparties;

» we routinely monitor credit risk exposures, including
sector, geographic and corporate concentrations of
credit, and report these to our Risk Management
Committee and the Finance Committee of the board;

» we set credit limits based on rating agency credit ratings
and internal assessments based on company and
industry analysis;

= we review counterparty credit limits regularly; and

= we use standard agreements that allow for the netting
of exposures associated with a single counterparty.

We believe these measures minimize our overall credit risk.

However, there can be no assurance that these processes

will protect us against all losses from non-performance. At

December 31, 2007:

» over 96% of our credit exposures were investment
grade; and

= only three counterparties individually made up more than
5% of our credit exposure, one of which made up more
than 10%. All three were investment grade.



SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements in this report, including those
appearing in ftems 1 and 2—Business and Properties and
Item 7—Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations, constitute “forward-
locking statements” {within the meaning of the United States
Private Securities Litigation Beforrm Act of 1935, Section 21E
of the United States Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, and Section 274 of the United States Securities Act
of 1933, as amended) or "forward-locking information” {within
the meaning of applicable Canadian securities legislation).
Such statements or information (together "forward-looking
statements”} are generally identifiable by the terminology
used suchas “anticipate”, “believe”, “intend”, “plan”, "expect”,
“estimate”, "budget”, “outlook” or other similar words and
include statements relating to or associated with individual
wells, regions or projects, Any statements regarding the
following are forward-looking statements:

= future crude oil, natural gas or chemicals prices;

= future production levels;

= future cost recovery oil revenues from our Yemen
operations;

= future capital expenditures and their allocation to
exploration and development activities;

= future earnings;

» future asset dispositions;

= future sources of {unding for our capital program;

= future debt levels;

» possible commerciality,

= development plans or capacity expansions;

= future ability to execute dispositions of assets
or businesses;

s future cash flows and their uses;

= future drilling of new wells;

= yltimate recoverability of reserves or resources;

= expected finding and development costs;

= expected operating Costs;

= future demand for chemicals products;

= gstimates on a per share basis;

= sales;

= future expenditures and future allowances relating
10 environmental matiers;

» dates by which certain areas will be developed or
will come on stream; and

» changes in any of the faregoing.

Statements relating to “reserves” or "resources” are forward-
looking staiements, as they involve the implied assessment,
based on estimates and assumptions that the reserves and
resources described exist in the quantities predicted or esti-
mated, and can be profitably produced in the future.

The forward-looking siatements are subject 10 known and

unknown risks and uncertainties and other factors which may

cause actual results, levels of activity and achievements to

differ materially from those expressed or implied by such

statements. Such factors include, among others:

= market prices for oil and gas and chemicals products;

= our ability to explore, develop, produce and transport
crude oil and natural gas to markets;

= the results of exploration and development drilling and
related activities;

= volatility in energy trading markets;

= fopreign-currency exchange rates;

= gconomic conditions in the countries and regions in
which we carry on business;

= governmental actions including changes to taxes or royalties,
changes in environmental and cther laws and regulations;

= renegotiations of contracts;

« resulis of linigations, arbitration or regulatory proceed-
ings; and

= political uncertainty, including actions by terrorists, insur-
gent or other groups, or armed conflict, including conflict
between states.

These items and their possible impact are discussed more
fully in the section, titled Risk Factors in Item 1A and
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
in Item 7A. The impact of any one risk, uncertainty or factor
on a particular forward-looking statement is not determin-
able with certainty as these factors are interdependent, and
management’s future course of action would depend on our
assessment of all information at that time.

Although we believe that the expectations conveyed by
the forward-lcoking statements are reasonable based on
information available to us on the date such forward-looking
statements were made, No assurances ¢an be given as to
future results, levels of activity and achievements. Undue
reliance should not be placed on the statements contained
herein, which are made as of the date hereof and, except as
required by law, Nexen undertakes no obligation to update
publicty or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as
a result of new information, future events or otherwise, The
forward-looking statements contained herein are expressly
qualified by this cautionary statement.
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SPECIAL NOTE TO CANADIAN INVESTORS

Nexen is an SEC registrant and a Form 10-K and related

forms filer. Therefore, our reserves estimates and securities

regulatory disclosures follow SEC reguirements. In Canada,

National Instrument 51-101—S58tandards of Disclosure for

Oil and Gas Activities (N1 51-101) prescribes that Canadian

companies foliow certain standards for the preparation

and disclosure of reserves and related information. Our

disclosures may differ from other Canadian companies as we

have received exemptions under NI 51-101 permitting us to:

= substitute our SEC disclosures for much of the annual
disclosure required by NI 51-101;

= prepare our reserves estimates and related disclosures
in accordance with SEC requirements, generally
accepted industry practices in the US and the standards
of the Canadian Qif and Gas Evaluation Handbook (COGE
Handbook} modified to reflect SEC requirements;

» dispense with the requirement to have our reserves
estimates and the Standardized Measure of Discounted
Future Net Cash Flows and Changes Therein, included in
the Supplementary Financial Infermation, evaluated or
audited by independent qualified reserves evaluators; and

= not disclose certain prescribed information pertaining to
prospects if such disclosures would result in the contra-
vention of a legal chligation, would likely be detrimental to
our competitive interests or the information does not exist.

As a result of these exemptions, Canadian investors should note
the following fundamental differences in reserves estimates
and related disclosures contained in the Form 10-K:

= SEC registrants apply SEC reserves definitions and prepare
their reserves estimates in accordance with SEC require-
ments and generally accepted industry practices in the US
whereas NI 51-101 requires adherence to the definitions
and standards promutgated by the COGE Handbook;

» the SEC mandates disclosure of proved reserves and the
Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Cash
Flows and Changes Therein calculated using year-end
constant prices and costs only whergas NI 51-101 also
requires disclosure of reserves and related future net
revenues using forecast prices;

= the SEC mandates disclosure of proved and proved
developed reserves by geographic region only whereas
NI 51-101 requires disclosure of more reserve categories
and product types;

= the SEC does not prescribe the nature of the informa-
tion required in connection with proved undeveloped
reserves and future development costs whereas NI
51-101 requires certain detailed information regarding
proved undeveloped reserves, related development
plans and future development costs;

» the SEC does not require disclosure of finding and
development (F&D) costs per boe of proved reserves
additions whereas NI 51-101 requires that various F&D

costs per boe be disclosed. N 51-101 requires that F&D
costs be calculated by dividing the aggregate of explora-
tion and development costs incurred in the current year
and the change in estimated future development costs
relating to proved reserves by the additions 1o proved
reserves in the current year. However, this will gener-
ally not reflect full cycle finding and development costs
related to reserve additions for the year;

= the SEC leaves the engagement of independent quali-
fied reserves evaluators to the discretion of a company’s
board of directors whereas NI 51-101 reqguires issuers to
engage such evaluators and to file their reports;

» the SEC does not consider the upgrading component of
our integrated cil sands project at Long Lake as an oil and
gas activity, and therefore permits recegnition of bitumen
reserves only. NI 51-101 specifically includes such activity
as an oil and gas activity and recognizes synthetic oil
as a product type, and therefore permits recognition of
synthetic reserves. At year end, we have recognized
268 million barrels before royalties of proved hitumen
reserves {234 million barrels after royalties) under SEC
requirements, whereas under NI 51-101 we would have
recognized 218 million barrels before royalties of proved
synthetic reserves (210 million barrels after royalties); and

= the SEC considers our Syncrude operation as a mining
activity rather than an oil and gas activity, and therefore
does not permit related reserves to be included with oil
and gas reserves. NI 51-101 specifically includes such
activity as an oil and gas activity and recognizes synthetic
oil as a product type, and therefore permits them to be
included with oil and gas reserves. We have provided a
separate table showing our share of the Syncrude proved
reserves as well as the additional disclosures retating to
mining activities required by SEC requirements.

The foregoing is a general description of the principal differ-
ences only.

Please note that the differences between SEC requirements
and NI 51-101 may be material.

NI 51-101 requires that we make the following disclosures:

= we use oll equivalents (boe} to express quantities of
natural gas and crude oil in a common unit. A conversion
ratio of 6 mcf of natural gas to 1 barrel of oil is used. Boe
may be misleading, particularly if used in isolation. The
conversion ratio is based on an energy equivalency conver-
sion method primarily applicable at the burner tip and does
not reprasent a value eguivalency at the wellhead.

» hecause reserves data are based on judgments regarding
future events actual results will vary and the variations
may be material. Variations as a result of future events are
expected to be consistent with the fact that reserves are
categorized accerding to the probability of their recovery.
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REPORT OF MANAGEMENT
February 13, 2008

To the Shareholders of Nexen Inc.:

We are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation
of the consolidated financial staterments, as well as the finan-
cial reporting process that gives rise to such consolidated
financial statements. This respensibility requires us to make
significant accounting judgments and estimates. For example,
we are required to choose accounting principles and methods
that are appropriate to the company’s circumstances, and
we are required to make estimates and assumpticns that
affect amounts reported. Fulfilling this responsihility requires
the preparation and presentaticn of cur consolidated financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles in Canada with a reconciliation 1o generally accepted
accounting principtes in the US.

We also have responsibility for the preparation and fair presenta-
tion of other financial information in this report and to ensure the
consistency of this information with the financial statements.

We are responsible for the development and implementa-
tion of internal controls over the financial reperting process.
These conirols are designed to provide reasonable assur-
ance that relevant and reliable financial information is
produced. To gather and contral financial data, we have
established accounting and reporting systems supported by
internal controls over financial reporting and an internal audit
program. We believe that our internal contrcls over financial
reporting provide reasonable assurance that our assets are
safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or dispo-
sition, that receipts and expenditures of the company are
made only in accordance with authorization of management
and directors of the company, and that cur records are reli-
able for preparing our consolidated financial staterments and
other financial information in accordance with applicable
generally accepted accounting principles and in accerdance
with appiicable securities rules and regulations. All internal
control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent
limitations. Therefore, even those systems determined to be
effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect
to financial statement preparaticn and presentation.

We have established disclosure controls and procedures,
internal controls over financial reporting and corporate-wide
policies to ensure that Nexen's consolidated financial position,
results of operations and cash flows are presented fairty, Our
disclosure controls and procedures are designed to ensure
timely disclosure and communication of all material informa-
tion required by regulators. We oversee, with assistance from
our Disclosure Review Committee, these controls and proce-
dures and all required regulatory disclosures.

To ensure the integrity of our financial statements, we care-
fully select and train qualified personnel. We also ensure our
organizational structure provides apprepriate delegation of
authority and division of responsibilities. Qur policies and
procedures are communicated throughout the organization
and include a written ethics and integrity policy that applies
to all employees, including the chief executive officer, chief
financial officer and chief accounting officer or controller.

Our board of directors is responsible for reviewing and
approving the consclidated financial stetements and for over-
seeing management’s performance of its financial reporting
responsibilities. Their financial staterment related responsibili-
ties are fulfilled mainly through the Audit and Conduct Review
Committee (the Audit Commitiee) with assistance from the
Reserves Review Committee regarding the annual review
of cur crude cil and natural gas reserves and the Finance
Committee regarding the assessment and mitigation of risk.
The Audit Committee is composed entirely of independent
directors and includes three directors with financial expertise.
The Audit Committee meets regularly with management, the
internal auditors and the independent registered Chartered
Accountants to review accounting policies, financial reporting
and interna! control issues and to ensure each party is properly
discharging its responsibilities. The Audit Committee is respon-
sible for the appointment and compensation of the independent
registered Chartered Accountants and also considers their
independence, reviews their fees and (subject to applicable
securities laws), pre-approves their retention for any permitted
non-audit services and their fee for such services. The internal
auditors and independent registered Chartered Accountants
have full and unlimited access to the Audit Committee, with
and without the presence of management.

(signed) "Charles W. Fischer”
President and Chief Executive Officer

{signed) "Marvin F. Romanow”
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Nexen Inc.:
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets of Nexen Inc. and subsidiaries {the "Company”) as
of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the refated consclidated
statements of income, cash flows, sharehclders’ equity and
comprehensive income for each of the years in the three
vear period ended December 31, 2007, These financial state-
ments are the responsibility of the Company's management.
Qur respensibility is to express an opinicn on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian gener-
ally accepted auditing standards and the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States).
These standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the finan-
cial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
alsc includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evalu-
ating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audits provide a reasongble basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements
nresent fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Nexen Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and
20086 and the results of their operations and their cash flows
for each of the years in the three year period ended December
31, 2007 in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles.

Woe have also audited, in accordance with the standards of
the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the Company’s internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2007, based on the criteria established
in Internal Control—Integrated Framewcrk issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commissicn and our report dated February 13, 2008
expressed an ungualified opinion_on the Company’s internal
contrel over financial reporting.

{signed) “Deloitte & Touche LLP”

Independent Registered Chartered Accountants
Calgary, Canada

February 13, 2008

COMMENTS BY INDEPENDENT
REGISTERED CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
ON CANADA-UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

REPORTING DIFFERENCE

The standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States) require the addition of an explanatory
paragraph when there are changes in accounting principles that
have a material effect on the comparability of the Company’s
financial statements, such as the changes described in Note
1{u} to the consolidated financial statements. Our report to
the board of directors and shareholders on the censclidated
financial statements of the Company dated February 13,
2008, is expressead in accordance with Canadian reporting
standards which do not require a reference tc such changes in
accounting principles in the auditors’ report when the changes
are properly accounted for and adequately disclosed in the
financial statements.

(signed) "Deloitte & Touche LLP”

Independent Registered Chartered Accountants
Calgary, Canada

February 13, 2008




NEXEN INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME
FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

Cdn$ millions, except per sharg amounts 2007 2006 2005
Revenues and Other Income
Net Sales 5,583 3,936 3,932
Marketing and Other (Note 17} 1.021 1,450 702
Gain on Dilution of Interast in Chernicals Business (Note 2) - - 193
6,604 5,386 4,827
Expenses
Operating 1,165 955 893
Depreciation, Depletion, Amortizaticn and Impairment {Note 6} 1,767 1,524 1,052
Transportation and Other [08 1,041 796
General and Administrative 374 555 809
Exploration 326 362 250
Interest {Note 8) 168 53 97
4,708 4,090 3,897
Income from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes 1,896 1,296 2930
Provision for Income Taxes (Note 18)
Current 434 368 339
Future 358 7 315 (105)
792 683 234
Net income from Continuing Operations before Non-Controlling Interests 1,104 613 696
MNet Income Attributable to Non-Controlling Interests (Note 2) 18 12 8
Net Income from Continuing Operations 1,086 601 688
Net Income from Discontinued QOperations {Note 14) - - a52
Net Income 1,086 601 1,140
Earnings Per Common Share from Continuing Operations ($/share)
Basic (Note 13} 2.06 1.1 1.32
Diluted (Note 13} ‘ 2.02 ‘ 1.12 1.29
Earnings Per Common Share ($/share}
Basic (Note 13) 2.06 1.15 219
Diluted [Note 13) ‘ 202 112 2.14

See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financial Statemants.
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NEXEN INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006

Cdn$ millions, except share amounts 2007 2006
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 206 1
Restricted Cash ana Margin Deposits {Note 7(d)} 203 197
Accounts Receivable {Note 4) 3,502 2,951 .
Inventories and Supplies (Note 5) 659 786 .
Future Income Tax Assets (Note 18) 18 479
Other 71 67
Total Current Assets 4,659 4,581
Property, Plant and Equipment (Note 6) 12,498 11,739
Goodwill 326 377
Future Income Tax As.sets [Note 18) 268 4 .
Deferred Charges and Other Assets (Note 10) 324 318
TOTAL ASSETS 18.075 17,156
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Short-Term Borrowings (Note 8) - 158
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 4,180 3,879
Accrued Interest Payable 54 65
Dividends Payable 13 13
Total Current Liabilities 4,247 4,105
Long-Term Debt {Note B) 4,610 4,673
Future Income Tax Liabilities {Note 18) 2,290 2,468
Asset Retirement Obfigations {Note 9) 792 683
Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities (Note 11} 459 516 .
Non-Controlling Interests {Note 2) 67 75 .
Shareholders’ Equity (Note 12)
Common Shares, no par value
Authorized: Unlimited
Outstanding:  2007—628,304,813 shares
2006—525,026,412 shares 917 821
Contributed Surplus 3 4 .
Retained Earnings 4,983 3,972
Accumulated Othe-r Comprehensive Loss 293) (161) .
Total Shareholders’ Equity 5,610 4,636
Commitments, Contingencies and Guarantees (Notes 15 and 18)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 18,075 17,156

See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Approved on behalf of the Board:

{signed) "Charles W. Fischer” (signed} “Thomas C. O"Neill”
Director Director




NEXEN INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

Cdn$ millions 2007 2006 2005

Operating Activities

Net Income from Continuing Operations 1,086 601 688
Net Income from Discontinued Qperations - - 452
Charges and Credits to Income not Involving Cash {Note 19) 2,073 1,629 1,081
Exploration Expense 326 362 250
Changes in Non-Cash Working Capital {Note 19} {348) {177 {195}
Other {307} {41) {133}

2,830 2,374 2,143

Financing Activities

Proceeds from Long-Term Notes and Debentures (Note 8) 1.660 - 1,253
Repayment of Long-Term Notes and Debentures (Note B} {150} (93) 1,818}
Proceeds from (Repayment of) Terrn Credit Facilities, Net (697) 1,044 (66}
Proceeds from {Repayment of} Short-Term Borrowings, Net {150} 160 {99)
Dividends on Common Shares (53 (52) (62}
Issue of Common Shares and Exercise of Tandem Options for Shares 56 48 58
Net Proceeds from Canexus Initial Public Offering {Note 2) - - 301
Proceeds from Term Credit Facitities of Canexus, Net {Notes 2 and 8} 60 2 176
Other {49) {28) {2n

877 1,081 {274}

Investing Activities
Capital Expenditures

uoday [enuuy £OOZ U] UsXaN

Exploration and Development 13,132) {3,188) (2,564)
Proved Property Acquisitions (151 {13) (20
Chemicals, Corporate and Other {118} {119) {54)
Business Acquisitions, Net of Cash Acquired (Note 3) - {78) -
Proceeds on Disposition of Assets 4 27 9n
Changes in Non-Cash Working Capital (Note 19} 130 134 (54)
Changes in Restricted Cash and Margin Deposits {16) {127) {70)
Other 2 {14) {13}
13,281) {3,388) (1,864)

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents 1121 {14) (30}
Increase {Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 105 53 {25}
Cash and Cash Equivalents—Beginning of Year 10 48 73
Cash and Cash Equivalants—End of Year 206 101 48

See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NEXEN INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

Cdn$ millions 2007 2006 2005
Common Shares (Note 12}

Balance at Beginning of Year 821 732 637
Issua of Common Shares 32 7 32 29
Proceeds from Tandem Qptions Exercised for Shares 24 A 16 29
Accrued Liability Relating to Tandem Options Exercised for Shares 40 41 37 .

Balance at End of Year 917 821 732

Contributed Surplus

Balance at Beginning of Year a4 2 -
Stock-Based Compensation Expensa (Note 12) 1 2 2
Exercise of Tandem Options {2) - -

Balance at End of Year 3 ) 2

Retained Earnings

Balance at Beginning of Year 3,972 3,423 2,335
Net Income 1,086 . 601 1,140
Dividends on Common Shares {53} (52} {52)
Transition Adjustment Resulting from Adoption of New Inventory Standard (Nota 1u} (22} - -

Balance at End of Year 4,983 3,972 3,423

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

Balance at Baginning of Year {161} {161} -
Opening Cumulative Foreign Currengy Translation Adjustment (Note Tu} - - {105)
Opening Derivative;s Designated as Cash Flow Hedges (Note 1u} 61 - -
Other Comprehensive Loss {193} - (56)

Balancs at End of Year' (293} (181} (161)

Noie:
1 Includes unrealized foreign currency translation adjustment.
NEXEN INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007
Cdn$ millions 2007 2006 2005
Net Income 1,086 801 1,140
Other Comprehensive Income {Loss), net of incon"ne taxes:
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment:
Net Gains (Losses) on Investment in Self-Sustaining Foreign Operations (867) 16 {179}
Net Gains (Losses) on Hedges of Self-Sustaining Foreign Operations ' 738 ) {20} 99
Realized Translation Adjustments Recognized in Net Income? {3} 4 24
Cash Flow Hedges:; ‘
Realized Mark-to-Market Gains Recognized in Net Income (61) - -
Other Comprehensiva Loss, net of income taxes (193) - (56)
Comprehensive Income 893 601 1,084

Notes:

1 Net of income tax expense for the year ended Decaember 31, 2007 of $87 miiiion (20606—3812 million recovery; Z005—$§18 mifiion axpense).
Z Net of income tax recovery for the year ended December 31, 2007 of $1 million (2006—81 million expense; 2005517 million axpense).

See accompanying notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.




NEXEN INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Cdn$ millions, except as noted

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Qur Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared in
accordance with Canadian Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP). The impact of significant differences
between Canadian and United States (US) GAAP on the
Consolidated Financial Statements is disclosed in Note 21,

{a) Use of estimates

We make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the Consolidated Financial
Statements, and revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Our management reviews these estimates, including
those related to accruals, litigation, environmental and asset
retirement obligations, impairments, income taxes, deriva-
tive contract assets and liabilities and the determination of
proved reserves on an ongoing basis. Changes in facts and
circumstances may result in revised estimates, and actual
results may differ from these estimates.

{b) Principles of consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of
Nexen Inc. and our subsidiary companies (Nexen, we or our}.
All subsidiary companies, with the exception of Canexus LP
(see Note 2) and its subsidiaries, are wholly owned and inter-
company accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

In August 2005, we sold our chemicals operations to Canexus
LP, but retained control of these operations through our 61.4%
interest in Canexus LP. All of the assets, liabilities and results
of operations of Canexus LP and its subsidiaries have been
included in our Consolidated Financial Statements. The non-
Nexen ownership interests in Canexus LP and its subsidiaries
are shown as non-controlling interests.

We proportionately consolidate our undivided interests in our
oil and gas exploration, development and production activi-
ties conducted under joint venture arrangerments. We also
proportionately consolidate our 7.23% undivided interest in
the Syncrude joint venture, which is considered a mining
activity under US regulations. While the joint ventures under
which these activities are carried out do not comprise distinct
legal entities, they are operating entities. The significant oper-
ating policies of which are, by contraciual arrangement, jointly
controlled by all working interest parties.

{c} Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded based on our revenue
recognition policy (see Note 1(j)). Our allowance for doubtful
accounis provides for specific doubtful receivables.

(d) Inventories and supplies

Inventories and supplies for our oil and gas and chemicals
operations are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out method.
Inventory costs include expenditures and other costs,
including depletion, directly or indirectly incurred in bringing
the inventory 1o its existing condition.

Commencing Cctober 1, 2007 (see Note 1{u)}, commadity
inventories for our energy marketing operations are held for
trading purposes and are stated at fair value, as measured
by the one-month forward price, less any costs to sell.
Any changes in fair value are included as gains or losses in
marketing and other during the period of change.

{e} Property, plant and equipment {PP&E)

Property, plant and equipment is recorded at cost and includes
only recoverable costs that directly result in an identifiable
future benefit. Unrecoverable costs, maintenance and turn-
around costs are expensed as incurred. Improvements that
increase capacity or extend the useful lives of the related
assets are capitalized to PP&E. Major spare parts and standby
equipment whose useful life is expected to last longer than
one year are included with PP&E.

We follow successful efforts accounting for our oil and gas
operations. All property acquisition costs are initially capitalized
to PP&E as unproved property costs. Once proved reserves
are discovered, the acquisition costs are reclassified to proved
property acquisition costs. Exploration drilling costs are capital-
ized pending evaluation as 10 whether sufficient quantities of
reserves have been found te justify commercial production. [f
commercial quaniities of reserves are not found, exploration
drilling costs are expensed. All exploratory wells are evaluated
for commercial viability on a regular basis following completion
of drilling. Exploration drilling costs remain capitalized when a
well has found a sufficient quantity of reserves io justify its
completion as a producing well and sufficient progress is being
made to assess the raserves and the economic and operating
viability of the well. All other exploration costs, including geolog-
ical and geophysical and annual lease rentals, are expensed to
earmings as incurred, All development costs are capitalized as
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proved property costs. General and administrative costs that
directly relate to acquisition, exploration and development
activities are capitalized to PP&E.

PP&E for our Syncrude operation is recorded at cost and
includes only recaverable costs that directly result in an iden-
tifiable future benefit. Unrecoverable costs, maintenance and
turnaround costs are expensed as incurred. Improvements
that increase capacity or extend the useful lives of the related
assets are capitalized to PP&E.

We engage in research and development activities to develop
or improve processes and techniques to extract oil and gas.
Research involves investigating new knowledge. Development
involves translating that knowledge into a new technology
or process. Research costs are expensed as incurred.
Development costs are deferred once technical feasibility is
established, and we intend to proceed with development.
We defer these costs in PP&E until the commencement of
commerciel operations or production. Otherwise, develop-
ment costs are expensed as incurred. Development costs
include pre-operating revenuss and costs.

(f} Depreciation, depletion, amortization and
impairment {DD&A)

Under successful efforts accounting, we deplete oil and
gas capitalized costs using the unit-of-production method.
Development and exploration drilling and equipping costs
are depleted over remaining proved developed reserves and
praved property acguisition costs over remaining proved
reserves. Depletion is considered a cost of inventory when
the cil and gas is produced. When this inventory is sold, the
depletion is charged to DD&A expense.

Our Syncrude PP&E is depleted using the‘unit-of-production
method. Capitalized costs are depleted over proved and prob-
able reserves within developed areas of interest,

We depreciate other plant and equipment costs, including our
chemicals facilities, using the straight-line methed based on the
estimated useful lives of the assets, which range from 3 years
to 30 years. Unproved property costs and major projects that
are under construction or development are not depreciated,
depleted or amortized.,

We evaluate the carrying value of our PP&E whenaver events
or conditions occur that indicate that the carrying value of
properties on our balance sheet may not be recoverable from
future cash flows. These events or conditions occur peri-
odically. If carrying value exceeds the sum of undiscounted
future cash flows, the preperty’s value is impaired, The prop-
erty is then assigned a fair value equal to its estimated total
future cash flows, discounted for the time value of money,

and we expense the excess carrying valua to DD&A. Our cash
flow estimates reguire assumptions about future commaodity
prices, operating costs and other factors. Actual resuits can
differ from these estimates.

In assessing the carrying values of our unproved properties,
we take into account our future plans for these properties,
the remaining terms of the leases and any other factors that
may be indicators of potential impairment.

(gl Carried interest

We conduct certain international operations jointly with foreign
governments in accordance with production sharing agree-
ments pursuant to which proved reserves are recognized using
the economic interest method. Under these agreements, we
pay both our share and the government's share of operating
and capital costs. We recover the government's share of these
costs from future revenues or production over several years.
The government's share of operating costs are recorded in oper-
ating expense when incurred and capital costs are recorded in
PP&E and expensed 0 DD&A in the year recovered. All recov-
eries are recorded as revenue in the year of recovery.

{h} Asset retirement ohligations

We provide for future asset retirement obligations on our
rescurce properties, facilities, production platforms, pipelines and
chemicals facilities based on estimates established by current
legislation and industry practices. The asset retirement obligation
is initially measured at fair value and capitalized to PP&E as an
asset retirement cost. The asset retirement obligation accretes
until the time the retirement obligation is expected 1o settle,
while the asset retirement cost is amortized over the useful life
of the underlying PP&E. We periodically review our estimates
for changes in expected amounts or timing of cash flows.

The amortization of the asset retirement cost and the accre-
tion of the asset retirement obligation are included in DD&A.
Actual retirement costs are recorded against the obligation
when incurred. Any difference between the recorded assst
retirement obligation and the actual retirement costs incurred
is recorded as a gain or loss in the settlement period.

(i} Goodwill

Goodwill is recorded at cost and is not amortized. We test
goodwill for impairment annually based on estimated future
cash flows of the reporting unit to which the goodwill is
attributable. In addition, we test goodwill for impairment
whenever an event or circumstance occurs that may reduce
the fair value of a reporting unit below its carrying ameunt. If
our goedwill is impaired, we write it down to its implied fair
value, based on the fair value of the assets and ligkilities of
the underlying reporting unit. Qur goodwill is attributable to
our Energy Marketing and UK reporting units.



(j) Revenue recognition

Crude Qil and Natural Gas

Revenue from the production of crude oil and natural gas is
recognized when title passes to the customer. In Canada and
the US, our customers primarily take title when the crude ol
and natural gas reaches the end of the pipeline. For our other
international operations, including the UX, our customers take
title when crude cil is loaded onto tankers. When we produce
or sell more or less oil or natural gas than our share, produc-
tion overlifts and underfifts occur. We record overlifts as
liabilities and underlifts as assets. We settle these over time

as liftings are equalized or in cash when production ends.

Revenue represents Nexen's share and is recorded net of
royalty payments to governments and cther mineral interest
owners. For our international operations, all government
interests, except for income taxes, are considered royalty
payments. Our revenue also includes the recovery of costs
paid on behalf of foreign governments in international loca-
tions. See Note 1(g).

Chemicals

Revenue from cur chemicals operations is only recognized
when our products are delivered to our customers. Delivery
takes place when we have a sales contract in place specifying
delivery volumes and sales prices. YWe assess customer ¢redit
worthiness before entering into sales contracts to minimize
collection risk.

Energy Marketing

Substantially all of the physical purchase and sales contracts
entered into by our energy marketing operations are consid-
ered to be derivative instruments. Accordingly, financial and
physical commodity contracts (collectively derivative instru-
ments) held by our marketing operations are stated at fair
value on the balance sheet (see Note 1(n)). We record any
change in fair value as a gain or loss in marketing and other
unless requirements for hedge accounting are met.

Any margin eamed by our marketing operation on the sale of
our proprietary oil and gas producticn is included in markgting
and other. Sales of our preprietary production are recerded at
monthly average market-based prices and reported in our oil
and gas segments. Intercompany profits and losses between
segments are eliminated. We assess customer credit worthi-
ness before entering into contracts and provide for netting
terms to minimize collection risk. Amounts are recorded on
a net basis where we have the legal right of offset,

{k} Income taxes

We follow the liability method of accounting for income taxes.
This method recognizes income tax assets and liabilities at
current rates, based on temporary differences in reported

amounts for financial statement and tax purposes. The effect
of a change in income tax rates on future income tax assets
and future income tax liabilities is recognized in income when
substantively enacted.

We do net provide for foreign withholding taxes on the undis-
tributed earnings of our foreign subsidiaries, as we intend ta
invest such earnings indefinitely in foreign operations.

{l) Foreign currency translation

Cur foreign oparations, which are considered financially and

operationally independent, are translated from their functional

currency into Canadian dollars as follows:

» assets and liabilities using exchange rates at the balance
sheet dates; and

» revenues and expenses using average exchange rates
threughout the year.

Gains and losses resulting from this translation are included
in other comprehensive income. Monetary balances denomi-
nated in a currency other than a functional currency are
translated into the functional currency using exchange rates
at the balance sheet dates. Gains and losses arising from
this translation, except on cur designated US-dollar debt, are
included in income. We have designated our US-dollar debt
as a hedge against our net investment in US-dollar based
self-sustaining foreign cperations, Gains and losses resulting
from the translation of the designated US-dollar debt are
included in other comprehensive income. If our US-dollar
debt, net of income taxes, exceeds our US-dollar investment
in foreign operations, then the gains or losses attributable
to such excess are included in marketing and other in the
Consclidated Statement of Income.

{m) Capitalized interest

We capitalize interest on major development projects until
the project is substantially complete using the weighted-
average interest rate on all of our borrowings. Capitalized
interest cannot exceed the actual interest incurred.

{n} Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized on the
balance sheet when we become a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Our derivative financial instru-
ments are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently
remeasured to fair vaiue on each reporting pericd with
changes in fair value recognized in net income. Transaction
costs relating to derivative instruments are included in net
income when incurred. Our other financial instruments are
initially recognized at fair value. After initial recognition, these
instruments are measured at cost or amortized cost using the
effective interest method and gains and losses are recognized
in net income when the assets and liabilities settle.
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Non-Trading Activities

We use derivative instruments such as physical purchase and
sales contracts, forwards, futures, swaps and opticns for non-
trading purposes to manage fluctuations in commedity prices,
foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates {see Note
7). Wa record these instruments at fair value at the balance
sheet date and record any change in fair value as a net gain
or loss in marketing and other during the period of change
unless the requirements for hedge accounting are met. Hedge
accounting is used when there is a high degree of correlation
between price movements in the derivative instruments and
the items designated as being hedged. Nexen formally docu-
ments all hedges and the risk management objectives at the
inception of the hedge. Derivative instruments that have been
designated and qualify for hedge accounting are classified as
either cash flow or fair value hedges.

For cash flow hedges, changes in the fair value of a financial
instrument designated as a cash flow hedge are reccgnized
in net income in the same period as the hedged item. Any
fair value change in the financial instrument before that period
is recognized on the balance sheet. The effective portion of
this fair value change is recognized in other comprehensive
income with any ineffectiveness recognized in net inceme
during the peried of change,

For fair value hedges, both the financial instrument desig-
nated as a fair value hedge and the underlying commitment
are recognized on the balance sheet at fair value. Changes in
the fair value of both are reflected in net income.

Trading Activities

Our energy marketing operation uses derivative instruments
for marketing and trading natural gas, crude oil, naturai gas
liguids, ethanol and power including:

» commedity contracts settled with physical delivery;

= exchange-traded futures and options; and

» non-exchange traded forwards, swaps and options.

We record these instruments at fair value at the balance sheet
date and record changes in fair value as net gains or losses in
marketing and other during the period of change. The fair value
of these instruments is recorded as accounts receivable or
payable if we anticipate settling the instruments within a year of
the balance sheet date. If we anticipate settling the instruments
beyond twelve months, we record them as deferred charges
and other assets or deferred credits and other lighilities.

{o) Employee future benefits
The employee future benefit programs consist of both
defined benefit and defined contribution pension plans, as

well as other post-retirement benefits as described in Note
18. The cost of pension bengfits earned by employees in our
defined benefit pension plans is actuarially determined using
the projected-benefit method prorated on service and our
best estimate of the pfans’ investment performance, salary
escalations and retirement ages of employees. To calculate
the plans’ expected returns, assets are measured at fair value,
Past service costs arising from plan amendments, and net
actuarial gains and losses that exceed 10% of the greater
of the accrued benefit obligation and the fair value of plan
assets, are expensed in egual amounis over the expected
average remaining service life of the employee group. We
measure the plan assets and the accrued benefit cbligation on
October 31 each year. Company contributicns to the defined
contribution plan are expensed as incurred.

{p) Stock-based compensation

We maintain tandem option and stock appreciaticn right
(StARs) plans as described in Note 12. The tandem options
give the holders a right to either purchase common shares at
the exercise price or tc receive cash payments equal to the
excess of the market value of the common shares over the
exercise price. We record obiigations for the tandem opticns
using the intrinsic-value method of accounting and reccgnize
compensation expense in the Consolidated Statement of Net
Income. Qbligations are accrued on a graded vesting basis
and represent the difference between the market value of
our common shares and the exercise price of the options.
The obligations are revalued each reporting period based on
the change in the market value of cur common shares and
the number of graded vested options outstanding. We reduce
the liability when the options are surrendered for cash. When
the options are exercised for stock, the accrued liability is
transferred to share capital. We account for stock appreciation
rights to employees on the sarme basis as cur tandem options.
Chligations are accrued as compensation expense over the
graded vesting pericd of the stock appreciation rights.

For employees efigible to retire during the vesting pericd, the
compensation expense is recognized over the period from
the grant date 1o the retirement eligibility date on a graded
vesting basis. In instances where an employee s eligible to
retire on the grant date of the stock-based award, compensa-
tion expense is recognized in full at that date.

{q) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include short-term, highly liquid
investments that mature within three months of their
purchase. They are recorded at cost, which approximates
market value.



{r) Restricted cash and margin deposits
Restricted cash includes margin depasits relating ic our
exchange-traded derivative contracts.

{s) Leases

We classify leases entered inte as either capital or operating
leases. Leases that transfer substantially all of the benefits and
risks of ownership 10 us are accounted for as capital leases
and the related assets are included with PP&E. These assets
are depreciated on the same basis as other PP&E. Rental
payments under operating leases are expensed as incurred,

(t} Transportation

We pay to transport the crude oil, natural gas and chemi-
cals products that we market, and then bill cur custemers
for the transportation. This transportation is presented in
aur Caonsolidated Financial Statements as a cost to us and is
recorded as transportation and other. Qur energy marketing
operation has received cash payments in exchange forassurning
certain transportation obligations from third parties. These cash
paymenis have been recorded as deferred liabilities and are
recognized in net income as the transportation is used.

{u} Changes in accounting principles

Financial Instruments

On January 1, 2007, we adopted the following new
accounting standards issued by the Canadian Accounting
Standards Board (AcSB): Financial Instruments—~Recognition
and Measurement (Section 3855}, Hedges (Section 3865) and
Comprehensive Income (Section 1530}

Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement
Section 3855 requires all financial assets and liabilities to be
carried at fair value in the Consolidated Balance Sheet with
the exception of loans and receivables, investments that are
intended to be held to maturity, and non-trading financial
liabilities which are to be carried at cost or amortized cost.

Realized and unrealized gains and losses an financial assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are recognized in net income in the
periods such gains and losses arise, Transaction costs related to
these financial assets and liabilities are included in netincome
when incurred. Unrealized gains and losses on financial assets
and liabilities carried at cost or amortized cost are recognized in
net income when these assets or liabilities settle.

We hold financial instruments that were carried at fair value
pricr to the adoption of Section 3855 as described in Note 7.
The valuation methods we use to determine the fair value

of these financial instruments remain unchanged. Financial
instruments we carry at cost or amortized cost include our
accounts receivable, accounts payabte, short-term and long-
term debt. The carrying value of short-term receivables and
payables approximates their fair value. On adoption of Section
3855, we carry our long-term debt at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method. Accordingly, we have reclassi-
fied deferred financing costs previously included in deferred
charges and other assets as unamortized debt issue costs,
reducing the carrying value of our long-term debt.

Hedges

Section 3865 prescribes new standards for hedge accounting.
For cash flow hedges, changes in the fair value of a financial
instrument designated as a cash flow hedge are recognized
in net income in the same period as the hedged item. Any
fair value change in the financial instrument before that period
is recognized on the balance sheet. The effactive portion of
this fair value change is recognized in other comprehensive
income with any ineffectiveness recognized in net income
during the period of change.

For fair value hedges, both the financial instrument desig-
nated as a fair value hedge and the underlying commitment
are recognized on the balance sheet at fair value. Changes in
the fair value of both are reflected in net income.

Adoption of these new standards for hedge accounting
required us to record unrealized mark-to-market gains on
cash flow hedges that were previously not included on our
Consoclidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2006, as an
adjustment to the opening balance of accumulated other
comprehensive income {see Note 7).

Comprehensive Income

Section 1530 provides for a new statement of comprehensive
income and sstablishes accumulated other comprehensive
income {AQCI) as a separate component of shareholders’
equity. The statement of comprehensive income reflects
changes in AQCI and includes the effective portion of changes
in the fair value of financial instruments designated as cash
flow hedges, as well as changes in foreign currency translation
amounts arising from our self-sustaining foreign operations,
together with the impact of any related hedges. Amounts
included in AQCI are reclassified 1o income when realized.
On adoption of Section 1530, cumulative foreign currency
translation adjustments relating 1o our self-sustaining foreign
aperations were reclassified to AOC| and comparative amounts
have been restated.
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Impact of Adoption

We adopted these standards prospectively. Comparative amounts for prior periods have not been restated with the exception
of amounts related to cumulative foreign currency translation adjustments. Adoption of these standards as at January 1, 2007
had the following impact on our Consolidated Balance Sheet:

As at January 1, 2007
IncreasefiDecrease)

To Include Unrealized Mark-to-Market Gains on Cash Flow Hedges at December 31, 2006:

Accounts Receivable 25
Accounts Payable {65}
Future Income Tax Liabilities 29
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income 61

To Include Cumulative Foretgn Currency Translation in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income:
Cumulative Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment 161

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income {181)

To Include Unamortized Debt Issue Costs with Long-Term Debt:

Deferred Charges and Other Assets (59}
Long-Term Debt (59)
Inventories

The AcSR issued Section 3031, Inventories, which is effective January 1, 2008. We adopted this standard prospectively in
the fourth quarter of 2007 in accordance with the transitional provisions. Effective October 1, 2007, we began carrying the
commodity inventories held for trading by our energy marketing group at fair value, less any costs to sell. Section 3031 also
clarifies that major spare parts and standby equipment not in use should be included in PP&E. On adoption of Section 3031,
we reclassified $51 million from inventories and supplies to PP&E related to major spare parts.

Prior periods presented have not been restated and adoption of the standard had the following impact:

Three Months Ended

As at October 1, 2007 December 31, 2007

Increasef(Decrease) Increasef(Decreasel

Inventories and Supplies (86} 79
Property, Plant and Equipment 51 -
Future Income Tax Liabilities (13} 27
Retained Earnings (22) -
Marketing and Qther 79
Provision for Future Income Taxes 27
Net Income 52
Basic/Diluted Earnings per Share {$/share) $0.10




New Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2006, the AcSB issued two new sections in
relation to financial instruments: Section 3862, Financial
instruments—Disclosures, and Section 3863, Financial
instruments—~Presentation. Both sections are effective for
annual and interim periods for fiscal years beginning on or
after October 1, 2007 and will require additional disclosures
for our financial instruments.

In December 20086, the AcSB issued Section 1535, Capital
Disclosures, requiring disclosure of information about an
entity's capital and the objectives, policies, and processes for
managing capital. The standard is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after October 1, 2007 and wilk require addi-
tional disclosure.

In February 2008, the AcSB issued Section 3064, Goodwill
and Intangible Assets and amended Section 1000, Financial
Staterment Concepts clarifying the criteria for the recogniticn
of assets, intangible assets and internally developed intangible
assets. ltems that no longer meet the definition of an asset are no
longer recognized with assets. The standard is effective for fiscal
years beginning on or after October 1, 2008 and early adoption is
permitted. We are currently evaluating the impact these sections
will have on our resulis of operation and financial position.

In January 2006, the AcSB adopted a strategic plan for the
direction of accounting standards in Canada. Accounting stan-
dards for public companies in Canada are expected te converge
with the International Financial Reporting Standards by 2011.
The timing for convergence has not been confirmed by the
AcSB. We continue to monitor and assess the impact of these
convergence efforts.

2. CANEXUS INCOME FUND

In June 2005, our board of directors approved a plan to
maonetize our chemicals operations through the creation
of an income trust and the issuance of trust units in an
initial public offering. This initial public offering closed on
August 18, 2005, with Canexus Income Fund (Canexus}
issuing 30 million units at a price of $10 per unit for
gross proceeds of $300 million ($284 million, net of
underwriters’ commissions).

Concurrent with the closing of the offering, Canexus
acquired a 36.5% interest in Canexus Limited
Partnership (Canexus LP) using the net proceeds
from the initial public offering. Canexus LP acquired
Nexen's chemicals business for approximately $1 bitlion,
comprised of the net proceeds from Canexus’ initial public

offering and $200 million (US$167 million) of bank debt, plus
the issuance of 52.3 million exchangeable limited partnership
units (Exchangeable LP Units} of Canexus LP. At that time, the
Exchangeable LP Units held by Nexen represented a 63.5%
interest in Canexus LP.

The Exchangeable LP Units held by Nexen are exchangeable
on a one-for-one basis for trust units of Canexus. As a resu't,
the Exchangeable LP Units owned by Nexen were exchange-
able into 52.3 million trust units which representaed 63.5% of
the outstanding trust units of Canexus assuming exchange
of the Exchangeable LP Units.

On September 16, 2005, the underwriters of the initial public
offering exercised a portion of their over-allotment option
to purchase 1.75 million trust units at $10 per unit far gross
proceeds of $18 million ($17 million, net of underwriters’
commissions). As a result, Nexen exchanged 1.75 million of
its Exchangeable LP Units for $17 million in net proceeds.
After this exchange, Nexen has a 61.4% interest in Canexus LP
represented by 50.5 million £xchangeable LP Units. The initial
public offering, together with the exercise of the over-allotment,
resulted in totat net proceeds to Nexen of $301 million.

These transactions dituted our interest in our chemicals opera-
tions. As a result of this dilution, we recorded a gain of $193
million during the third quarter of 2005,

We have the right to nominate a majority of the members of
the board of Canexus Limited, the corporation, with responsi-
bility for the strategic management and operational decisions
of Canexus and Canexus LP. Nexen currently has nominated
two representatives 10 the ten-member board of Canexus
Limited. Since we have retained effective contrel of our
chemicals business, the results, assets and liabilities of this
business have been included in these financial statements.
The non-Nexen ownership interesis in our chemicals business
are shown as nen-controlling interests.

During the year, $28 million (2006—%28 million; 2005—$10
millien) of distributions were paid to non-Nexen ownership
interests.

3. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS

In 2008, we completed minor business acquisitions related
to our marketing group for $78 million, net of cash acquired.
These acquisitions were accounted for using the purchase
method of accounting. The assets and liabilities purchased
were primarily working capitat and we recorded goodwill of
$12 million as a result of the acquisitions.
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4. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

2007 2006
Trade
Marketing 2,501 2,226
Oil and Gas 819 600
Chemicals and Other 60 58
3,380 2,884
Non-Trade 132 80
3,612 2,954
Allowance for Doubtful Receivables {10} {13}
Total Accounts Receivable 3,502 2,951
5. INVENTORIES AND SUPPLIES

2007 2006

Finished Products
Marketing* 577 609
Oil and Gas 14 21
Chemicals and Other 13 14
604 644
Work in Process 3 5
Field Supplies (Note 1{u}) 52 137
Total Inventories and Supplies 859 786

Note:

1 Markating consists of commodity invantories held for trading purposes. At Dacamber 31, 2006, these inventories were carriad at the lower ¢of cost and net
realizable value. On October 1, 2007, we adopted Section 3031 and at December 31, 2007, marketing inventories ere carriad at fair value lass any ¢osts 1o sell,

(see Note 1(u)).

6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2007 2006

Accumulated MNet Book Accumulated Net Book
Cost DD&A Value Cost DD&A Vatue

Qil and Gas
Yamen 701 590 M 779 599 180
Yemen—Carried Interest 1,477 1,360 117 1,625 1,529 96
| Canada' 7 6,736 1,597 5,139 5,216 1,448 3,768
United States 3,069 1,765 1,304 2,889 1,445 1,444
United Kingdgm 4,723 808 3,815 4,10 432 4,278
Other Countries 263 77 186 248 78 m
16,969 6,297 10,672 15,468 5,531 9,937
Marketing 246 62 184 226 47 179
Syncrude 1,332 205 1,127 1,304 179 1,125
Chemicals 831 463 368 854 494 360
Corporate and Other 315 168 147 206 148 138
Total PP&E 19,6893 7,195 12,498 18,138 8,399 11,739

Note:

1 Includes capitalized costs related to our Long Laka (Phaso 1 and future phases) of $3,695 million (2006—82,556 million).

The above table includes capitalized costs of $5,828 million (2006—8%6,708 million) relating to unproved properties and projects
under construction or development. These ¢costs are not being depreciated, deplaeted or amortized. Our Long Lake capitalized
costs include $1,711 million related to the Phase 1 upgrader (2006—%$1,120 miltion}, $1,026 million for Phase 1 SAGD and cogen-
eration facilities (2006—3%804 million} and $958 million related to capitalized interest and future phases (2006—%$632 million}.




Depreciation, Depletion, Amortization

and Impairment {(DD&A)

In 2007, our DD&A expense includes $366 million of impair-
ment expense primarily related to cur Aspen, Vermillion
320/340 and West Cameron 170 properties in the Gulf of
Mexico as we had poor results from capital investments and
lower reserve estimates. At Aspen, disappointing results
from our recent invesiment in development drilling resulted
in negative reserve revisions. At Vermillion 320/340 and
West Cameron 170, negative reserve revisions primarily
relate to gas properties, where unsatisfactory investment
results, production performance, revised mapping and higher
projected operating costs resulted in a downward revision to
reserves estimates. These properties were written down to
their fair value equal to their estimated total future cash flows,
discounted for the time value of money.

Our 2006 DD&A expense includes $93 million of impairment
expense, primarily related to two natural gas producing prop-
erties in the Gulf of Mexico in the US caused by unsuccessful
development programs and negative year-end reserve revi-
sions. In addition there was $15 million in 2006 relating to
the write off of a portion of our purchase price allocation to
unproved properties purchased in the North Sea as a result
of unsuccessful exploration activities.

Research and Development

We incurred $40 million {2006—$53 million) in connection with
research and development activities related 10 developing new
technologies for increasing oil recoveries. Research costs of
$38 million {2006—3$50 million) were included in other expense
on the Consolidated Statement of Income. The development
costs have been deferred and are included in PP&E.

2007 2006

Development Costs Deferred, Beginning of Year 28 25
Deferred in the Year 2 3
Amortized in the Year - -
Development Costs Deferred, End of Year 30 28

Suspended Well Costs

The following table shows the changes in capitalized exploratary well costs during the years ended December 31, 2007 and
20086, and does not include amounts that were initially capitalized and subsequently expensed in the same period.

2007 2006

Balance at Beginning of Year 226 252
Additions to Capitalized Exploratory Well Costs Pending the Datermination of Proved Reserves 215 12_9
Capitalized Exploratary Well Costs Charged to Expense {10} (70)
Transfers to Walls, Facilitiss and Equipment Based on Determination of Proved Reserves (74) 7 (84)
Effects of Foreign Exchange {31 ‘ {n
Balance at End of Year 326 226

The following table provides an aging of capitalized exploratory well costs based on the date drilling was completed and
shows the number of projects for which exploratory well costs have been capitalized for a pericd greater than one year after

the completion of drilling.

2007 2006

Capitalized for a Period of One Year or Less 202 179
Capitalized for a Period of Greater than One Year 124 47
Balance at End of Year 326 2286
Number of Projects that have Exploratory Well Costs Capitalized for a Period Greater than One Year 5 4

As at December 31, 2007, we have exploratory costs that have been capitalized for more than one year relating to our interest
in an exploratory block in the Gulf of Mexico {351 million), our coalbed methane exploratory activities in Canada {$31 millien),
exploratory activities on Block 51 in Yemen {318 million), our interest in an exploratory block oifshore Nigeria (518 million} and
an exploratory block in the North Sea ($6 million). These costs relate to projects with successful exploration wells for which
we have not been able to record proved reserves. We are assessing all of these wells and projects, and are working with our
partners to prepare development plans, drill additional appraisal welts or 10 assess commercial viability.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

We use derivativas in our marketing group for trading purposes and we also use derivatives to manage commaodity price risk
and foreign currency exchange rate risk for non-trading purposes. Qur derivative instruments are carried at fair value on the
balance sheet. Our other financial instruments are carried at cost or amortized cost. The carrying value of short-term receivables
and payables approximates their fair value because the instruments are near maturity.

{a} Carrying value and estimated fair value of derivative and financial instruments
The carrying values, fair values and unrecognized gains or losses on our outstanding derivatives and long-term financial assets
and liabilities at December 31 are:

2007 2006
Carrying Unrecognized Carrying Unrecognized
Value Fair Value Gain (Loss) Value Fair Value Gain {Loss}
Commuodity Price Risk
MNon-Trading Activities
Crude Qil Put Options - - - 19 19 -
Fixed-Price Natural Gas Contracts {70) (70 - (96) {96) -
Natural Gas Swaps 9) (9} - (8 8 -
Trading Activities
Crude Qil and Natural Gas 15 15 - 372 372 -
Future Sale of Gas Inventory - - - - 25 25
Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk
Non-Trading Activities 1 1 - - - -
Trading Activities 9) {9 - (12} (12) -
Total Derivatives (72) 72} - 275 300 25
Other Financial Liabilities
Long-Term Debt 4,610) (4,6892) {82) {4,673) {4,728) (55}

The estimated fair value of all derivative instruments is based
on qucted market prices and, if not available, on estimates
from third-party brokers or dealers. Other financial assets
used in the normat course of business include cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash and margin deposits and accounts
receivable. Other financial liabilities include accounts payable,
accrued interest payable, short-term berrowings and long-
term debt. Fair value of long-term debt is estimated based
on third-party brokers and quotad market prices.

{b) Commaodity price risk management

Non-Trading Activities

The majority of our oil and gas preduction is sold under short-term
contracts, exposing us to short-term price movements. Other
energy contracts we enter in{o alse expose us to commodity
price risk between the time we purchase and sell contracted
volumes. From time to time, we actively manage these risks by
using commodity futures, forwards, swaps and options.

Crude oil put options

In 2007, we purchased put options on 36 million barrels or
approximately 100,000 bbis/d of our 2008 crude oil produc-
ticn. These options established an annual average Dated
Brent fleor price of US$50/bbl on these volumes. The put
cptions were purchased for $24 million and the fair value
at December 31, 2007 was $nil. We recorded a loss of $24
million in marketing and other on the Consolidated Statement
¢f Income in 2007.

in 2008, we purchased WTI crude oil put options on 105,000
bbls/d of our 2007 crude oil production at a cost of $26 million.
These opticns established an annual average WTI floor price
of US$50/bbl on these volumes. The 2007 WTI crude oil put
options were not used and have expired. The fair value at
the end of December 31, 2006 was $19 million, which we
included as a loss of $19 million in marketing and other on
the Consolidated Statement of Income in 2007.



Fixed price natural gas contracts and natural gas swaps

in Juty and August 2005, we sold certain Canadian oil and gas properties, and we retained fixed-price natural gas sales contracts

that were previously associated with those properties (see Note 14). Since these contracts are no longer used in the normal

course of our oil and gas operaticns, they have been included in our Consclidated Balance Sheet at fair value, Amounts settling
within 12 menths are included in accounts payable and amounts settling beyond that are included in deferred credits and other
liabilities. Any change in fair value is included in marketing and other in the Consolidated Statement of Income.

Notional Volumes Average Price Fair Value

(Gifd) Term ($/Gj} {Cdng millions}

Fixed-Price Natural Gas Contracts 15,514 2008 2.46 {22)
15,514 2009-2010 256-2.77 (48)

70}

Following the sale of the Canadian cil and gas properties, we entered into natural gas swaps to economically hedge our exposlre
to the fixed-price natural gas contracts. The natural gas swaps are included in our Consolidated Balance Sheet with amounts
settling within 12 months included in accounts payable and amounts settling beyond that are included in deferred credits and
other liabilities. Any change in fair vatue is included in marketing and other in the Consolidated Statement of Income,

Notional Volumes Average Price Fair Value

{Gj/d Term $/Gj) (Cdn$ millions)

Natural Gas Swaps 15,514 2008 7.60 6)
15,514 2009-2010 7.60 (3}

9)

Trading Activities

Crude oil and natural gas

We enter into physical purchase and sales contracts as well
as financial commedity contracts to enhance our price real-
izations and lock-in our margins. The physical and financial
commodity contracts {derivative contracts) are stated at fair
value. The $15 million fair value of the commaodity contracts
at December 31, 2007 {December 31, 2006—%$372 million)
is included in the Consclidated Balance Sheet and any
change in fair value is included in marketing and other in the
Consolidated Staterment of Income.

Future sale of gas inventory

In an attempt to mitigate the exposure to fluctuations in cash
flow from changes in the price of natural gas we have certain
NYMEX futures contracts and swaps in place, which effec-
tively lock in our margins on the future szle of our natural gas
inventory in storage. From time to time, we have designated
in writing some of these derivative coniracts as cash flow
hedges of the future sale of our storage inventory.

At December 31, 2008, we held NYMEX natural gas futures
contracts and swaps that were designated as cash flow
hedges on the future sale of natural gas inventory. On adop-
tion of Section 3865 on January 1, 2007 {see Note 1{u)}, the

fair value of $25 million related to these cash flow hedges
was included in accounts receivable and gains of $16 miliion,
net of income taxes, were included in accumulated other
cemprehensive income (AQCI). During the first quarter of
2007, the inventory was sold and these gains were recog-
nized in marketing and cther in the Censolidated Statement
of Income.

In tate 2006, we de-designated certain futures contracts that
ware designated as cash flow hedges of future sales of our
natural gas in storage. These contracts were de-designated
since it became uncertain at that time that the future sales
of natural gas would occur within the designated time frame.
As it was reasonably possible that the future sales could have
taken piace as designated at the inception of the hedging rela-
tionship, gains of $65 million on the futures contracts were
deferred in accounts payable at December 31, 2006. The
adoption of Section 3865 on January 1, 2007 {see Note 1 {u)}
required that the deferred gains ($45 million, net of income
taxes) be reclassified to AOCI. The gains were recognized in
marketing and other in the Consclidated Statement of Income
during the first quarter of 2007,

At December 31, 2007, there were nc; designated cash flow
hedges in place.
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(¢) Foreign currency exchange rate risk management

Non-Trading Activities

US dollar call options—Canexus

The operations of Canexus are exposed to changes in the US-dollar exchange rate as a portion of its sales are denominated
in US dollars while most of its costs are in Canadian dollars. Canexus periodically purchases US-dollar call options te reduce
this exposure to fluctuaticns in the Canadian-US dollar exchange rate. Under outstanding option contracts at December 31,
2007, Canexus LP has the right to sell US$5 million monthly and purchase Canadian dollars at an exchange rate of US$0.95 for
the period September 1, 2007 to February 29, 2008. The fair value of these contracts at December 31, 2007 was $1 million.
Changes in fair value are included in marketing and other in the Consolidated Statement of Income.

Other

The foreign exchange gains or losses related to cur designated debt are included in accumulated other comprehensive
income in shareholders’ equity. Cur net investment in self-sustaining foreign operations and our designated US-dollar debt at
December 31 are as follows:

{USS millions) 2007 2006
Net Investment in Self-Sustaining Foreign Operations 4,667 4,534
Designated US-Dollar Debt 4,414 3,761

We alsc have small exposures to currencies other than the US dollar. A portion of our United Kingdom operating expenses,
capital spending and future asset retirement obligations are denominated in British pounds and Eures. We do not have any
material exposure to highly inflationary foreign currencies.

Trading Activities

Qur sales and purchases of crude cil and natural gas are generelly transacted in or referenced to the US dollar, as are most
of the financial commodity contracts used by our marketing group. However, we pay for many of our purchases in Canadian
dollars. We enter into US-dollar forward contracts and swaps to manage this exposure. Losses of $9 million on our US-dollar
forward contracts and swaps at December 31, 2007 {December 31, 2006—312 million loss) are included in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet. Any change in fair vaiue is included in marketing and other in the Consoclidated Statement of Income.

{d} Total carrying value of derivative contracts related to trading activities
Amounts related to derivative instruments held by our marketing cperation are equal to fair value as we use mark-to-market
accounting, and are as follows at December 31:

2007 2008
Accounts Receivable 334 731
Deferred Charges and Other Assets ' (Note 10) 248 153
Total Derivative Contract Assets 582 884
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 413 325
Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities '{Note 11} 163 199
Total Derivative Contract Liabilities 576 524
Total Derivative Contract Net Assets 6 360

Notes:

i These derivative instruments settle beyond twelve months and are considered non-current.

2 Comprised of $15 million {2006—$372 miflion) related to commodity contracts and losses of $9 million {2006—3$12 million loss) related to US-dolfar forward
contracts and swaps.

Our exchange-traded derivative contracts are subject to margin reguirements. We have margin deposits of $203 million (December
31, 2006—3%197 million), which have been included in restricted cash and margin deposits on our Consolidated Balance Sheet
at December 31, 2007.



{e} Interest rate risk management

We use fixed and floating rate debt to finance our opera-
tions. The floating rate debt exposes us to changes in interest
payments as interest rates fluctuate. We manage this expo-
sure by maintaining a combination of fixed and floating rate
borrowings and facilities. At December 31, 2007, fixed-rate
barrowings comprised 91% {2006—73%) of our long-term
debt at an effective average rate of 6.3% (2006—8.3%).
During the year, we pericdically drew on our floating-rate
term credit facilities. The average interest rate for our floating
rate borrowings was 5.8% for the year (2006—5.7%;.

(fi  Credit risk management

A substantial portion of our accounts receivable are with
counterparties in the energy industry and are subject to
normal industry credit risk. This concentration of risk within

the energy industry is reduced because of our broad base
of domestic and international counterpariies. We assess
the financial strength of our counterparties, including those
involved in marketing and other commodiiy arrangements,
and we limit the total exposure to individual counterparties.
As well, a number of our contracts contain provisions that
allow us to demand the posting of collateral in the event of
a downgrade to a non-investment grade credit rating occurs.
Credit risk, including credit concentrations, is routinely
reported 10 our Risk Management Committee. We also use
standard agreements that allow for the netting of exposuies
associated with a single counterparty. We believe this mini-
mizes our overall credit risk. At December 31, 2007, over
96% of our credii exposures were investment grade quality
and only three counterpariies individually made up more than
5% of our credit exposure.

8. LONG-TERM DEBT AND SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

2007 2006

Canexus LP Term Credit Facilities (LUS5204 million) {a) 202 174
Term Credit Facilities (US$214 million) (b) 21 1,078
Medium-Term Notes, due 2007 (c} - 150
Medium-Term Notes, due 2008 (d) 125 - 125
Notes, due 2013 {US$500 million} (e 494 583
Notes, due 2015 {US5250 million} (f} 247 291
MNotes, due 2017 {US$250 million} (g) 247 -
Notes, due 2028 {US$200 million} (h) 198 233
Notes, due 2032 (US$500 million} (i) 434 583
Notes, due 2035 (US$790 million) (j} 781 8920
Notes, due 2037 (US$1,250 million) (k) 1,235 -
Subordinated Debentures, due 2043 (US$460 million) (1) 454 536
4,688 4,673

Unamortized Debt Issue Costs (Nota 1(u}) (78) -
Total 4,610 4,673

{a) Canexus LP term credit facilities

Canexus LP has $350 million of committed, secured term
credit facilities, which are availabie untif 2010, At December
31, 2007, $202 million {US$204 million) was drawn on these
facilities (2006—%$174 million). Borrowings are available as
Canadian bankers’ acceptances, LIBOR-based loans, Canadian
prime rate loans or US-dollar base rate loans. Interest is payable
maonthly at floating rates. The term credit facilities are secured
by a floating charge debenture over all of Canexus LP's assets
and by certain guarantees, security interests and subordina-
tion agreements provided by certain affiliates of Canexus LP
(which do not include Nexen). The credit facility also contains
covenants with respect to certain financial ratios. During 2007,
the weighted-average interest rate on the Canexus LP term
credit facilities was 6.1% {2006—5.9%].

{b} Term credit facilities

We have unsecured term credit facilities of US$3 billicn,
which are available until 2012. At December 31, 2007,
$211 million (US$214 million) was drawn on these facilities
{2006—%1,078 million). Borrowings are available as Canadian
bankers’ acceptances, LIBOR-based loans, Canadian prime
rate loans, US-dollar base rate loans or British pound call-rate
loans. Interest is payahle at floating rates. During 2007, the
weighted-average interest rate was 5.8% (2006—5.7%). At
December 31, 2007, $283 million of these {acilities were
utilized to support outstanding letters of credit {December
31, 2006—%294 million).
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{c) Medium-term notes, due 2007

During July 1997, we issued $150 millicn of notes with
interest payable semi-annually at a rate of 6.45%. The prin-
cipal of $150 million was repaid in full in July 2007,

{d} Medium-term notes, due 2008

During October 1997, we issued $125 million of notes.
Interest is payable semi-annually at a rate of 6.3%, and the
principal is to be repaid in June 2008. Amounts due June 2008
have not been included in current liabilities as we expect to
repay this amount using our term credit facilities.

{e} Notes, due 2013

During November 2003, we issued US$500 million of notes.
Interest is payable semi-annually at a rate of 5.05%, and the
principal is 1o be repaid in November 2013. We may redeem
part or all of the notes at any time. The redemption price will
be the greater of par and an amount that provides the same
yield as a US Treasury security having a term to maturity equal
to the remaining term of the notes plus 0.2%.

{f} Notes, due 2015

During March 2005, we issued US$250 million of notes.
Interest is payable semi-annually at a rate of 5.2%, and the
principal is to be repaid in March 2015. We may redeem part
or all of the notes at any time. The redemption price will be
the greater of par and an amount that provides the same yield
as a US Treasury security having a term to maturity equal to
the remaining term of the notes plus 0.156%.

(g} Notes, due 2017

During May 2007, we issued US$250 million of notes.
Interest is payvable semi-annually at a raie of 5.65%, and the
principal is to be repaid in May 2017. We may redeem part or
all of the notes at any time. The redemption price will be the
greater of par and an amount that provides the same yield as
a US Treasury security having a term to maturity equal to the
remaining term of the notes plus 0.2%. The proceeds were
used io repay outstanding term credit facilities.

{h} Notes, due 2028

During April 1998, we issued US$200 million of notes.
Interest is payable semi-annually at a rate of 7.4%, and the
principal is to be repaid in May 2028, We may redeem part
or all of the notes at any time. The redemption price will be
the greater of par and an amount that provides the same yield
as a US Treasury security having a term to maturity equal to
the remaining term of the noies plus 0.25%.

{i) Notes, due 2032

During March 2002, we issued US$500 million of notes.
Interest is payable semi-annually at a rate of 7.875%, and
the principal is to be repaid in March 2032. We may redeem
part or all of the notes at any time. The redemption price will
be the greater of par and an amount that provides the same
yield as a US Treasury security having a term to maturity equal
to the remaining term of the notes plus 0.375%.

{i) Notes, due 2035

During March 2005, we issued US$790 million of notes.
Interest is payable semt-annually at a rate of 5.875%, and
the principal is to be repaid in March 2035. We may redeem
part or all of the notes at any time. The redemption price will
be the greater of par and an amount that provides the same
yield as a US Treasury security having a term to maturity equal
to the remaining term of the notes plus 0.2%.

(k) Notes, due 2037

During May 2007, we issued US$1,250 million of notes.
Interest is payable semi-annually at a rate of 6.4%, and the
principal is to be repaid in May 2037, We may redeem part or
all of the notes at any time. The redemption price will be the
greater of par and an amount that provide_s the same yield as
a US Treasury security having a term te maturity equal to the
remaining term of the notes plus 0.35%. The proceeds were
used to repay outstanding term credit facilities.

{ll Subordinated debentures, due 2043

During November 2003, we issued US$460 miltion of unse-
cured subordinated debentures. Interest is payable guarterly at
arate of 7.35%, and the principal is to be repaid in November
2043. We may redeem part or all of the debentures at any
time on or after November 8, 2008, The redemption price
is equal to the par value of the principal amount plus any
accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date. We may
choose to redeem the principal amount with either cash or
common shares.

{m) Long-term debt repayments

2008 125
2008 -
2010 202
201 -
2012 211
Thereafter 4,150
Total 4,688




{n} Debt covenants

Some of our debt instruments contain covenants with respect to certain financial ratios and our ability to grant security. At

December 31, 2007, we were in compliance with all covenants.

(o) Short-term borrowings

Nexen has uncommitted, unsecured credit facilities of approximately $665 million, none of which were drawn at Decernber
31, 2007 {2006—%158 million}. We have also utilized $196 million of these facilities to support outstanding letters of credit
at December 31, 2007 {2006—$252 million). Interest is payable at floating rates. During 2007, the weighted-average interest

rate on our short-term borrowings was 5.8% (2006—5.5%).

(p) Interest expense

2007 2006 2005

Long-Term Debt 323 275 260
Other 18 18 15
Total 3N 294 275
Less: Capitalized {173} {241) (178)
Total interast Expense 168 53 97

Capitalized interest relaies to and is included as part of the cost of oil and gas and Syncrude properties. The capitalization rates

are based on our weighted-average cost of borrowings.

9. ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

Changes in carrying amounts of the asset retirement obligations associated with cur PP&E are as follows:

2007 2006

Balance at Beginning of Year 704 611
Dbligations Incurred with Development Activities 106 75
Obligations Discharged with Disposed Properties - n
Expenditures Made on Asset Retirements (23} (44)
Accretion 44 37
Revisions to Estimates 79 (10}
Effects of Foreign Exchange {mn 36
Balance at End of Year ? 832 704

Notes:

1 Obligations due within twelve months of $40 miilion {2006—821 miflion) have been inciuded in accounts payable and acerued labilitias.
2 Obligations relating to our oil and gas activities amount to $786 million 12006—$658 million} and obligations relating to our chemicals busingss amournit to

846 million (2006—§48 mitlion).

Our total estimated undiscounted inflated asset retirement
obligations amount to $2,165 million. We have discounted the
total estimated asset retirement obligations using a weighted-
average, credit-adjusted risk-free rate of 5.9%. Approximately
$137 million included in our asset retirement obligations will
be settled over the next five years. The remaining obligations
settle beyond five years and will be funded by future cash
flows from our operations.

We own interests in assets for which the fair value of the
asset retirement obligations cannot be reasonably determined

because the assets currently have an indeterminate life and
wae cannot determine when remediation activities would
take place. These assets include ‘our interest in Syncrude’s
upgrader and sulphur pile. The estimated future recoverable
reserves at Syncrude are significant and given the long life of
this asset, we are unable to determine when asset retirement
activities would take place. Furthermore, the Syncrude plant
can continue 1o run indefinitely with ongoing maintenance
activities. The retirement obligations for these assets will
be recorded in the first year in which the lives of the assets
are determinable.
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10. DEFERRED CHARGES AND OTHER ASSETS

2007 2006
Long-Term Marketing Derivative Contracts (Note 7d} 248 153
Deferred Financing Costs (Note 1{u}) - 59
Asset Retirement Remediation Fund 13 13
Crude Gil Put Options {Nate 7h) - 19
Other 63 74
Total 324 318
|
' 11. DEFERRED CREDITS AND OTHER LIABILITIES
2007 2006
Long-Term Marketing Derivative Contracts {(Nate 7d) 163 199
Deferred Transportation Revenue 82 89
Fixed-Price Natural Gas Contracts {Nota 7b) 43 74
Defined Benefit Pension Obligations {Note 16} 57 a5
Capital Lease Obligations 52 48
Other 57 58
Total 459 516

12. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
{a] Authorized capital

% Authorized share capital consists of an unlimited number of common shares of no par value, and an unlimited number of Class
c,f‘, A preferred shares of no par value, issuable in series.
5 Our shareholders approved a split of our issued and outstanding common shares on a two-for-one basis at our annual and special
& meeting on April 26, 2007. All common shares, per common share amounts, tandem opticns and stock appreciation rights
‘—E together with their related weighted-average exercise prices, have been restated to retroactively reflect the share split.
(b) Issued common shares and dividends
ithousands of shares) 2007 2006 2005
Beginning of Year 525,026 522,281 516,798
Issue of Common Shares; faor Cash 7
Exercise of Tandem Options 2,257 1,693 3.647
Dividend Reinvestment Plan 523 552 1,210
Employee Flow-through Shares 499 500 626
End of Year 528,305 525,026 522,281
Dividends Declared per Common Share (3/share) 0.10 0.70 0.10

Cash Consideration (Cdn$ millions)

Exercise of Tandem Options 24 16 29
Dividend Reinvestment Plan 16 16 20
Employee Flow-through Shares 18 16 9

56 48 58

During the year we increased the number of common shares reserved under the Dividend Reinvestment Plan by 4 million
shares. At December 31, 2007, there were 4,475,095 comman shares {2006—997,662; 2005—1,549,830) reserved for issu-
ance under the Dividend Reinvestment Plan. Dividends paid to holders of common shares have been designated as “eligible
dividends” for Canadian tax purposes.
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{c) Tandem options

We have granted tandem options to purchase common shares to directors, officers and employees. Each tandem option permits
the holder to purchase one Nexen common share at the exercise price or to receive cash payments equal to the excess of
the market value of the common shares over the exercise price. Options granied prior 10 February 2001 vest over four years
and are exercisable on a cumulative basis over 10 years. Options granted after February 2001 vest over three years and are
exercisable on a cumulative basis over five years. At the time of grant, the exercise price equals the market price.

Following the introduction of the American Job Creation Act of 2004 in the US, stock options awarded to our US employees
between December 1, 2004 and December 1, 2005 did not include a tandem option cash feature, We use the fair-value methed
to recognize compensation expense associated with these options. The expense is recognized over the vesting period of the
options with a corresponding increase to contributed surplus. This resulted in compensation expense in 2007 of $1 million
{2006—5%2 million; 2005—%2 million), which was included in general and administrative expense. In 2005, US tax regulations
were modified and as a result, tandem options have been issued to our US employees aiter December 1, 2005. These options
are expensed using the intrinsic-method.

The following options have been granted;

2007 2006 2005
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Options Price Options Price Options Price
(thousands] $/option) {thousands) $/cption) (thousands} ($/option)
Balance at Beginning of Year 30,485 17 30,629 14 32,553 10

Granted 4,007 28 4,802 32 6,783 27

Exercised for Stock (2,257) 10 (1,693) 9 (3,647} 8

Surrendered for Cash (4,414} 11 {3,043) 9 14,178}

Forfeited (418} 22 {210} 19 (882} 11
Balance at End of Year 27,403 20 30,485 17 30,629 14
Options Exercisabte at End of Year 18,216 16 18,691 12 16,262 9
Common Shares Reserved for Issuance

Under the Tandem Option Plan 29,430 32,470 34,580

The range of exercise prices of options outstanding and exercisable at Decernber 31, 2007 is as follows:

Outstanding Options Exercisable Options

Weighted Weighted Waeighted

Average Average Average

Number of Exercise Years Number of Exercise

Options Price to Expiry Qptions Price

{thousands) $/option} {years) {thousands) [$/aption)

To $4.99 348 4 1 348 4

$5.00 to $9.99 3,807 8 3 3,807 ]

$10.00 to $14.99 8,529 12 2 8,508 12

$15.00 to $19.99 15 19 3 9 19

$20.00 to $24.99 1,054 23 3 664 23

$25.00 to0 $29.99 9,649 28 4 3.510 27

$30.00 to $34.99 4,081 32 4 1,370 32

$35.00 to $39.99 20 36 4 - -
Total Options 27,403 18,216
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{d) Stock appreciation rights

Under our stock appreciation rights (StARs) plan established in 2001, employees are entitled to cash payments equal tc the
excess of the market price of the common shares over the exercise price of the right. The vesting period and other terms
of the plan are similar to the tandem option ptan. The total rights granted and outstanding at any time cannot exceed 10%
of Nexen's total outstanding common shares. At the time of grant, the exercise price equals the market price. The following
stock appreciation rights have been granted:;

2007 2006 2005
Waeighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
StARs Price StARs Price StARs Price
{thousands) ($/S1AR} {thousands) $/S1AR) (thousands) (B/StAR)
Balance at Beginning of Year 13,890 21 11,928 15 12,871 1
Granted 4,195 29 4,509 32 2,886 27
Exercised for Cash (2,349} 12 {2,165) 10 2,9089) 9
Forfeited (301} 26 {382) 19 (920) 12
Balance at End of Year 15.435 24 13,890 21 11,928 15
StARs Exercisable at End of Year 7,525 19 6,151 13 4,852 10

The range of exercise prices of StARs outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2007 is as follows:

Outstanding StARs Exercisable StARs

Weightad Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Number of Exercise Years to Number of Exercise

StARs Price Expiry StARs Price

(thousands) ($/5tAR) tyears) (thousands) ($/S1AR}

$5.00 to $9.98 160 8 1 160 8

$10.00 t0 $14.99 4,305 12 2 © 4,30 12

$15.00 to $19.99 45 17 2 25 17

$20.00 t0 $24.99 81 23 3 50 23

$25.00 10 $29.99 6914 28 4 1.718 27

$30.00 to $34.99 3,883 32 a4 1,271 32

$35.00 to $39.99 47 36 4 - -
Total StARs 15,435 . 7,525

13. EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE

We calculate basic earnings per common share from continuing operations using net income from continuing operations
divided by the weighted-average number of cormmon shares outstanding. We calculate basic earnings per commeon share using
net income and the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding. We calculate diluted earnings per common
share from centinuing operations and diluted earnings per commaon share in the same manner as basic, except we use the
weighted-average number of diluted common shares outstanding in the denominater,

{millions of shares) 2007 2006 2005
Weighted-Average Number of Common Shares Qutstanding 527.1 524.2 520.7
Shares Issuable Pursuant to Tandem Options 26.6 27.7 26.8
Shares tc be Purchased fr-om Proceeds of Tandem Options 7 {15.7) (14.0) {14.8)
Weighted-Average Number of Diluted Common Shares Outstanding 538.0 537.9 532.7

In calculating the weighted-average number of diluted common shares outstanding for the year ended December 31, 2007, we excluded
49,333 options 12006—422,566; 2005—561,416), because their exercise price was greater than the annual average common share
market price in those periods. During the last three years, outstanding tandem options were the only potential difutive instruments.




14. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In the third quarter of 2005, we sold certain Canadian conven-
tional oil and gas properties in southeast Saskatchewan,
northwest Saskatchewan, northeast British Columbia and
the Alberta foothills. The results of operaticns of these prop-
erties have been presented as discontinued operations. The
sales closed in the third quarter of 2005 with net proceeds
of $900 million after closing adjustments, and we realized
gains of $225 million. These gains are net of losses attribut-
able to pipeline contracts and fixed-price gas sales contracts
associated with these properties that we have retained, but
no longer use in connection with our oil and gas business.

The results of operations from these properties in Canada are
detailed below and shown as discontinued operations in our
Consolidated Statement of Income.

2005
Revenues and Other Income
Net Sales 154
Gain on Disposition of Assets 225
a9
Expenses .
Operating 27
Depreciation, Depletion, Amortization and Impairment 28
Exploration Expense 1
lncome before Income Taxes 323
Recovery of Future Income Taxes (129)
Net Income from Discontinued Operations 452
Earnings per Common Share ($/share}
Basic {(Note 13} 0.87
Diluted (Note 13) 0.85

There were no assets and liabilities related to discontinued
operations as at December 31, 2007 and 2006.

15. COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES AND GUARANTEES

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Thereatter-
Operating Leases 76 102 99 92 84 157
Transportation and Storage Commitments 368 153 118 89 62 132
Drilling Rig Commitments 107 98 187 276 153 -
551 353 404 457 299 289

We have a number of lawsuits and claims pending including
income tax reassessments (see Note 18), for which we
currently cannot determine the ultimate result. We record
costs as they are incurred cr become determinable, We believe
the resolution of these matters would not have a material
adverse effect on our liquidity, consalidated financial position
or results of operations.

During 2007, total rental expense was $53 miltion (2006—%49
million; 2005—%47 million).

From time to time, we enter into certain types of contracts that
require us to indernify parties against possible thirdparty claims,
particularly when these contracts relate to divestiture transac-
tions. On occasion, we may provide routing indemnifications. The
terms of such obligaticns vary, and generally, a maximum is not
explicitly stated. Because the abligations in these agreements
are often not explicitly stated, the overall maximum amount of
the obligations cannot be reasonably estimated. Historically, we
have not been obligated to make significant payments for these
ohligations. We believe that payments, if any, related to existing
indemnities, would not have a material adverse effect on our
liquidity, financial condition or results of operations.
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16. PENSION AND OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Nexen and Canexus have contributory and non-contributory defined benefit and defined contribution pension plans, which
together cover substantially all empioyees. Syncrude has a defined benefit plan for its employees, and we disclose only our
proportionate share of this plan. Under the defined benefit plans, we provide benefits to retirees based on their lengih of
sevvice and final average earnings. Benefits paid out of Nexen's defined benefit plan are indexed to 75% of the annual rate of
inflation less 1%, to a maximum increase of 5%.

{a} Defined henefit pension plans

The cost of pension benefits earned by employees is determined using the projected-benefit method prorated on employment
services and is expensed as services are rendered. We fund these plans according to federal and provincial government regulations
by contributing to trust funds administered by an independent trustee. These funds are invested primarily in equities and bonds.

2007 2006
Nexen Canexus Syncrude Nexen Canexus  Syncrude
Change in Projected Benefit Obligation (PBO)
Beginning of Year 252 58 116 223 49 109
Service Cost 18 3 5 16 3 5
Interest Cost 13 3 [:] 12 3 5
Pian Participants’ Contributions 4 1 1 3 1 1
Actuarial Loss/{Gain} (2) (3 1 9 2 -
Benefits Paid (13} - 4) {11) - (4}
_ End of Year’ 272 62 125 252 58 116
§ Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets
3 Beginning of Year 185 50 69 146 40 58
§ Actual Return on Plan Assets 18 1 2 23 6 8
:J: Employar's Contributicn 6 3 G 24 3
§ Plan Participants’ C_ontributions 4 1 1 3 1 1
¢ Benefits Paid (13} - (4) {11 - (3}
a;} End of Year 200 85 74 185 50 69
Q
F4

Reconciliation of Funded Status
Funded Status? (Er4] (7 (51) _ (67) (8} {47}

Unamortized Transitional Obligation - - - - - -

:

| Unamortized Prior Sarvice Caosts 2 - - 3 - -

| Unamortized Net Actuarial Loss 31 6 36 39 7 32

: Pension Liability (39) 1] (15) 125) (1) {15}
| Pension Liability Recognized

Deferred Charges and Other Assets 4 - - 10 - -

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities (2) - - 4] - (2

Other Deferred Credits and Liabilities {Note 11} 41} (n {15) (34) (1} {13

Pension Liability 39) {1) {15) {25) n {15)

Assumptions (%)
Accrued Benefit Obligation at December 31

Discount Rate 5.25 5.25 5.25 5.00 5.00 5.00

Long-Term Raze ?f Employee Compensation Increase 4.00 4.00 5.00 4.00 4.00 4.00
Benefit Cost for Year Ended December 317

Discount Rate 5.00 5.00 5.25 5.25 525 5,00

Long-Term Rate of Employee Compensation Increase 4.00 4.00 5.00 4.00 4.00 4.00
Long-Term Annual Rate of Return on Plan Assets* 7.00 6.50 8.50 7.00 6.50 8.50

Notes:

1 The accurnulated benefit obligations (the projected benefit obligation axcluding future salary increases) of the Nexen and Canexus plans were $182 million and
347 million at Dacambar 31, 2007, respectively (2006—3180 million and $44 rufiion, respectively), Nexen's supplemental pension plan's accumuiated benafit
obligation was $48 miflion at December 31, 2007 (2006—3$35 milfion). Nexen's share of Syncrude’s employee pension plan’s accumulated benefit obligation
was $92 rmifion at December 31, 2007 (2006—$89 million).

2 Includes unfundad obligations for supplemental benefits to the extent that the benefit is fimited by statutory guidalines. At December 31, 2007, the PBO for
Nexen's supplemental benefits was $62 mitlion (2006—8$53 miilion} and $1 million for Canexus (2006—$1 million).

3 The assumptions have been used to calculate the recognized expense for Nexen and Canexus. There were no changes to the assurmptions between the
measurement date of October 31, 2007 and December 31, 2007. Syncrude’s measurement date was December 31, 2007.

4 The long-term annual rate of return on plan assels assumption is based on a mix of historical market returns for debt and equity securities,
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Net Pension Expense Recognized Under Our Defined Benefit Pension Plans

2007 2006 2005
Nexen
Cost of Benefits Earned by Employees 18 16 15
interest Cost on Benefits Earned 13 12 12
Actual Return on Plan Assets {18) (231 {18)
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses () 9 33
Pension Expense Before Adjustments for the Long-Term Nature
of Employee Future Benefit Costs 1 14 42
Difference Between Actual and Expected Return on Plan Assets 5 12 8
Difference Between Actual and Recognized Actuarial Losses 3 {7} (32)
Difference Between Actual and Recognized Past Service Costs 1 1 -
Net Pension Expenas 20 20 18
Canexus
Cost of Benefits Earned by Employees 3 3 1
Interest Cost on Benefits Earned 3 3 1
Actual Return on Plan Assets {2} {6) -
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses (3} 2 {2)
Pension Expense Before Adjustments for the Long-Term Nature
of Employee Future Benefit Costs 1 2 -
Difference Between Actual and Expected Return on Plan Assets {1} 3 {1
Difference Between Actual and Recognized Actuarial Gains 3 2) 2
Difference Between Actual and Recognized Past Service Costs - - -
Net Pension Expense 3 3 1
Syncrude
Cost of Benefits Earned by Employees 5 5 4
Interest Cost on Benefits Earned 6 5 5
Actual Return on Plan Assets {2) (8) (6)
Actuarial Losses 1 - 1
Pension Expense Before Adjustments for the Long-Term Nature
of Employee Future Benefit Costs 10 2 14
Difference Between Actual and Expected Return on Plan Assets 4) 3 2
Difference Between Actual and Recognized Actuarial Losses 1 2 {8}
Difference Between Actual and Recognized Past Service Costs - - -
Net Pension Expense 7 7 8
Total Net Pension Expense 30 30 27

{b} Plan asset allocation at December 31

Our investment goal for the assets in our defined benefit pension plans is to preserve capital and earn a long-term rate of return
on assets, net of all management expenses, in excess of the inflation rate. Investment funds are managed by external fund
managers based on policies approved by the Board of Directors and Pension Committees of Nexen and Canexus. Nexen's and
Canexus’ investment strategy is to diversify plan assets between debt and equity securities of Canadian and non-Canadian
corporations that are traded on recognized stock exchanges. Allowable and prohibited investment types are also prescribed

in Nexen's investment policies.
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Syncrude’s pension plan is governed and administered separately from ours. Syncrude’s investment assets are subject to
similar investment goals, policies and strategies.

{%) Expected 2008 2007 2006
Nexen

Equity Securities 64 64 60

Debt Securities 36 36 40
Total 100 100 100
Canexus

Equity Securities 50 50 60

Debt Securities 50 50 40
Total 100 100 100
Syncrude

Equity Securities 68 68 70

Debt Securities 32 32 30
Total 100 100 100

{c} Defined contribution pension plans

Under these plans, pension benefits are based on plan contributions. During 2007, Canadian pension expense for these
plans was $6 million (2006—%4 million; 2005—%4 mitlion). During 2007, US pension expense for these plans was $4 million
{2006—3%4 million; 2005—%4 million). During 2007, UK pension expense for these plans was $5 million (2006—%4 million;
2005—%2 million).

{d} Post-retirement benefits

Nexen provides certain post-retirement benefits, including group life and supplemental health insurance, to eligible employees
and their dependents. These costs are fully accrued as compensation in the pericd employees work; however, these future
abligations are not funded. The present value of Nexen employees’ future post retirement benefits at December 31, 2007
was $10 million {2006—36 million} and $1 milion for Canexus {2006—%2 miliion).

(e} Employer funding contributions and benefit payments

Canadian regulatcrs have prescribed funding requirements for our defined benefit plans. Our funding gontributicns over the
last three years have met these requirements and also included additicnal discretionary contributions permitted by law. For
our defined contribution plans, we make contributions on hehalf of our employees and no further obligation exists. Our funding
contributions for the defined benefit plans are;

Defined Benefit Contributions Expected 2008 2007 2006
Nexen 11 6 24
Canexus 1 3 3
Syncrude 7 6 5

Total Funding Contributions 19 15 3z




Qur most recent funding valuation was prepared as of June 30, 2007. Our next funding valuation is reguired by June 30, 2010.

Canexus’ most recent funding valuation was prepared as of December 31, 2007, and their next funding valuation is required
by December 31, 2010, Syncrude’s most recent funding valuation was prepared as of December 31, 2007, and their next
funding valuation is December 31, 2009,
Our total benefit payments in 2007 were $13 million for Nexen (2006—$11 million). Qur share oi Syncrude’s total benefit
payments in 2007 was $4 million (2006—$4 million). Our estimated future payments are as follows:
Defined Benefit Other
Nexen Canexus Syncrude Nexen Canexus Syncrude
2008 9 1 4 2 - -
2009 10 1 4 2 - -
2010 1 1 4 2 - -
2011 12 2 5 3 - -
2012 13 2 5 3 - 1
2013-2017 80 17 34 22 - 1
17. MARKETING AND OTHER INCOME
2007 2008 2005
Marketing Revenue, Net 959 1.309 847
Business Interruption Insurance Proceeds’ - 154 2
Change in Fair Value of Crude Oil Put Options (Note 7b) (43) 1) (196)
Interest 39 36 29
Foreign Exchange Losses {22) (72} {19)
Gains on Disposition of Assets ? 2 4 4
Other 8BS 30 35
Total Marketing and Other 1,021 1,450 702

Notes:

I In 2006, we receivad businass interruption insurance proceeds relatad to production losses caused by Gulf of Mexico hurricanes in 2005 and by generator

failures in our UK operations in 20085,

2 Gains on disposition of assets resuited from the sale of mincr oil and gas assets in our Canadian operations in 2007 and 2006, and from the sale of our Ejulabe

assets, offshore Nigeria in 2005,

18. INCOME TAXES

{a) Temporary differences 2007 2006
Future Future Future Future
Income Tax Income Tax Income Tax tncome Tax
Assets’ Liabilities Assets' Liabilities
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net 25 2,229 26 2,420
Tax Losses Carried Farward 256 - 594 -
Deferred Income - 61 - 48
Recoverable Taxes 5 - - -
Total 286 2,290 620 2,468

Note:

1 Future income tax assets of $18 million {2006—8479 miffion) that we expect to realize in the following twelve months have been included in current assets.
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(b} Canadian and foreign income taxes

2007 2006 2005
Income (Loss) from Continuing Opsrations before Income Taxes
Canadian (33} {352} (396)
Foreign 1,929 1,648 1,326
1,886 1,296 930
Provision for Income Taxes
Current
Canadian 1 14 1
Foreign 433 354 338
434 368 339
Future
Canadian 12 {96) {206}
Foreign 346 411 101
358 315 (105)
Total Provision for Income Taxes 792 683 234

The Canadian and foreign components of the provision for income taxes are based on the jurisdiction in which income is taxed.
Foreign taxes relate mainly to Yemen, Colombia, the United Kingdom and the United States.

{c) Reconciliation of effective tax rate to the Canadian statutory tax rate

2007 2006 2005
Income from Caontinuing Qperations before Income Taxes 1,896 1,296 930
Provision for Income Taxes Computed at the Canadian Statutory Rate 537 401 318
Add {Deduct} the Tax Effect of:
Royalties, Rentals and Simitar Payments to Provincial Governments - 15 24
Resource Allowance and Provincial Tax Rebates - {15} {24)
Fareign Tax Rate Differential 233 {9 {40) .
Additional Canadian fax on Canadian Resource Income - 10 6
Lower Tax Rates on Capital Gains {5 (3} {54}
Federal and Provincial Capital Tax 1 13 5
Effect of Changes in Tax Rates (15} 245 -
Non-Deductible Expen.ses and Other 41 26 8}
Provision for Income Taxes 792 683 234
Eftective Tax Rate a2% 53% 25%

During the first quarter of 2008, we recorded a {uture income
tax expense of $277 million related 10 an increase in the supple-
mental tax rate on oil and gas activities in the United Kingdom.
The United Kingdorn parfiarment increased the supplemental
tax rate from 10% to 20%, effective January 1, 2006.

in 2007 and 2006, the federal and some provincial govern-
ments in Canada reduced statutory corporate income tax
rates. This reduced our liability and provision for future income
taxes by $15 million in 2007 (2006—3$32 million).

(d) Available unused tax losses and tax contingencies
At December 31, 2007, we had unused tax losses totalling
$820 million {2006—%$1,258 million; 2005—%965 million}. The
majority of these losses arg from Canada and the US and will
expire between 2015 and 2027.

Nexen’s income tax filings are subject to audit by taxation
authorities. There are audits in progress and items under
review, some of which may increase our tax liability. In addi-
tion, we have filed notices of objection with respect to certain
issues. While the results of these items cannot be ascer-
tained at this time, we believe we have an adequate provision
for income taxes based on available information.



19. CASH FLOWS
{a) Charges and credits to income not involving cash

2007 2006 2005
Depreciation, Depletion, Amortization and Impairment 1,767 1,124 1,062
Stock-Based Compensation (109) 101 428
Gains on Disposition of Assets 2) (4) ()
Provision for Future Income Taxes 358 315 {105)
Change in Fair Value of Crude Qil Put Options 43 1 196
Non-Cash liems included in Discontinued Qperations - - (325)
Gain on Dilution of Interest in Chemicals Business - - {193)
MNet Income Attributable to Nen-Controiling Interests 18 12 8
Other (2} 70 24
Total 2,073 1,629 1,081
(bl Changes in non-cash working capital
2007 2006 2005
Accounts Receivable (797 345 (1,078}
Inventories and Supplies (97) (302) {163)
Other Current Assets {15} {14) {10}
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 691 (72) 982
Other - - 20
Total (218) {43) (249}
Relating to:
QOperating Activities {348) {177} {195)
Investing Activities 130 134 (54}
Total (218} {43} {249)
{¢) Other cash flow information
2007 2006 2005
Interest Paid 328 278 237
Income Taxes Paid 408 398 328

Cash flow from ather aperating activities includes cash outilows related to geological and geophysical expenditures of $123

million {2006—%128 million; 2005—3%53 million).

20. OPERATING SEGMENTS AND

RELATED INFORMATION
Nexen has the following operating segments in various indus-
trigs and geographic locations:

Qil and Gas: We explore for, develop and produce crude
oil, natural gas and related products around the world. We
manage our operations to reflect differences in the regula-
tory environments and risk factors for each country. Our core
operations are onshore in Yemen and Canada, and offshere in
the US Gulf of Mexico and the UK North Sea. Our other opera-
tions are primarily in Colombia, West Africa and Norway.

Energy Marketing: Qur marketing group sells our crude
oil and natural gas, markets third-party crude oil, natural gas,
NGL's, ethanol and power and engages in energy trading,
including electricity generation.

Syncrude: We own 7.23% of the Syncrude Joint Venture,
which develops and produces synthetic crude oil from mining
bitumen in the oil sands in northern Alberta.

Chemicals: Through our investment in Canexus LP, we
manufacture, market and distribute industrial chemicals, prin-
cipally sodium chlarate, chloring, muriatic acid and caustic
soda. We produce sodium chlorate at four facilities in Canada
and cne in Brazil. We produce chlarine, caustic soda and
muriatic acid at chlor-alkali facilities in Canada and Brazil.

The accounting policies of our operating segments are the
same as those described in Note 1. Net income of our oper-
ating segments excludes interest income, interest expense,
unallocated corporate expenses and foreign exchange gains
and losses with the exception of Chemicals. |dentifiable
assets are those used in the operations of the segments.
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2007 Operating and Geographic Segments

Energy Corporate
Gil and Gas Marketing Syncrude Chemicals and Other Total
Other
(Cand millions) Yemen Canada us UK  Countries®
Net Sales? 1,086 441 616 2,285 148 48 545 414 - 5,583
Marketing and Other 10 6 - 39 - 959 - 33 (26)* 1,021
1,098 447 616 2,324 148 1,007 545 447 {26) 5,604
Less: Expenses
Operating 171 173 102 212 8 34 208 257 - 1,165
Depreciation, Depletion,
Amortization and
Impairment 213 166 6415 599 8 13 53 45 29 1,767
Transportation and Other 8 22 - - - 806 7 39 16 9508
General and Administrative® (6} 50 38 3 40 87 1 31 130 i7a
Exploration 5 27 134 69 917 - - - - 326
Interest - - - - - - - n 157 168
Income {Loss} from
Continuing Operations
before Income Taxes 705 9 {299) 1.441 1 67 266 64 {358) 1,896
Less: Provision for {Recovery
of} Income Taxes ® 248 3 {103) 712 - 21 75 18 (182) 792
Net Income (Loss) from
Continuing Operations 457 6 (196} 729 1 46 191 46 {176} 1,104
Less: Non-Controlling Interests - - - - - - - 18 - 18
Net Income (Loss) 457 ] (196) 729 1 46 191 28 {176} 1,086
Idantifiable Assets 359 5,379* 1,640 4,642 317 3,663" 1,212 487 376 | 18,075
Capital Expenditures
Developrment and Qther 124 1,381 414 551 53 4 36 62 52 2,677
Exploration 12 123 275 119 44 - - - - 573
Proved Property Acquisitions - 1 104" 467 - - - - - 151
Total Capital Expenditures 136 1,505 793 716 97 a 36 62 52 3.401
Property, Plant and Equipment
Cost 2,178 6,736 3,069 4,723 263 246 1,332 a3 315 19,693
Less: Accumulated DD&A 1,950 1,597 1,765 908 77 62 205 463 168 7,195
Net Book Value! 228 5,139¢ 1,304 3,815 186 184 1,127 368 147 | 12,498
Goodwill - - - 276 - 50 - - - 328
Notes:

1 Includes results of operations from producing activities in Colombia.

2 Net sales made from all segments originating in Canada: 1,188
PP&E located in Canada: 6,893
3 Net safes for our chemnicals operations includa;
Canada 154
United States ieg
Brazil gt
Total 414

W~ ;i

activities, the pravision is based on the tax jurisdiction of the entity performing the activity.
9 Includes costs of $3.695 million refated to our Long Lake Project (Phase 1 and future phasas).
10 Approximately 84 % of Marketing’s identifiable assets are accounts receivable and inventories.
11 Includes acquisition of producing propartias in the Guif of Mexico.
12 Inciudes acquisition of additional interasts in the Scott and Telford fields.

Includes interast income of 832 milfion, foreign exchange losses of $22 million and decrease in the fair vaiue of cruda oil put options of $43 million.
Inctudes an impairment charge of $366 million refated to oil and gas properties in the Guif of Mexico.
includlas stock-based compensation expense of $38 rmulfion.

Includes exploration activities primarily in Nigeria, Norway and Colombia.
The provision for (recavery of} income taxes for foreign locations is based on incountry taxes on foreign income. For oil and gas locations with no operating




2006 Operating and Geographic Segments

Energy Corporate
Oil and Gas Marketing Syncrude Chemicals and Other Total
Other
{Cdn$ millions} Yemen Canada us UK  Countries'
Net Sales? 1,328 459 629 477 139 51 445 407° - 3,936
Marketing and Other 8 7 g1+ 85° 11,309 - 6 (47)% 1,450
1,336 466 710 562 140 1,360 446 413 {47 . 5,386
Less: Expenses
Operating 151 143 108 80 8 31 187 249 - 955
Depreciation, Depletion,
Amortization and
Impairment? 327 162 296 216 10 12 33 a0 28 1,124
Transportation and Other 6 323 - - 1 789 18 40 1548 1,041
General and Administrative ? 17 80 58 14 44 112 1 29 200 555
Exploration 4 26 214 a6 720 - - - - 362
Interest - - - - - - - 11 42 53
Income {Loss) from
Continuing Operations
hefore Income Taxes 831 22 36 206 5 416 207 44 471) 1,296
Less: Provision for {Recovery
of) Income Taxes " 289 7 13 378% 1 151 66 15 {237} 683
Net Income {Loss) from
Caontinuing Operations 542 15 23 (7 4 265 141 29 (234) 613
Less: Non-Controlling Interests - - - - - - - 12 - 12
Net Income {Loss) 542 15 23 {(172) q 265 141 17 (234) 601
Identifiable Assets 464 3,923% 1,620 5,490 245 3,528 1,186 459 241 | 17,156
Capital Expenditures
Development and Gther 145 1,434 418 596 ‘ 28 47 86 27 45 2,826
Exploration 37 163 177 62 52 - - - - 491
Praved Property Acquisitions - 12 - 1 - - - - - 13
Total Capital Expenditures 182 1,609 595 659 80 47 86 27 45 3,330
Property, Plant and Equipment
Cost 2,404 5,216 2,889 4,710 249 226 1,304 854 286 18,138
Less: Accumulated DD&A 2,128 1,448 1,445 432 78 47 179 494 148 6,399
MNet Book Value? 276 3,768 1,444 4,278 171 179 1,125 360 138 | 11,739
Goodwill - - - 325 - 52 - - - 377
Notes:

! Includes results of operations from producing activitias in Colombia.

2 Net safes made from all segments onginating in Canada: 1,085
PP&E Jocated in Canada: 5,483

3 Net safes for our chemicals operations include.
Canada 139
United States 185
Brazil 83
Total 407

@~ mo &

9 Includes stock-based compensation expense of $210 million.

10 includes exploration activities primarily in Nigeria, Norway and Colombia.

Includes $80 million of business interruption insurance proceeds related to production losses caused by Gulf of Mexico hurricanes in 2005.
Includes §74 rmilhan of business interruption insurance proceeds for generator faiures in 2005
Includes interest incorne of $36 miilion, foreign exchange losses of $72 million and decrease in the fair value of crude oil put options of $11 miflion.
Includes an impairmant charge of $93 million, primaniy relating to two natural gas properties in the Gulf of Mexico.

includes $151 million {LJS$135 million) accrual with respect to the Block 51 arbitration settlement.

11 The provision for (recovery of) income taxes for foreign locations is based on in-country taxes on foreign income. For oil and gas locations with no operating
activities, the provision is based on the tax jurisdiction of the entity performing the actiity.

12 Includes future income tax expense of $277 milfion refated to an increase in the supplemental tax rate on oif and gas activities in the United Kingdom (see Note 18).

13 Includes costs of $2,444 milfion related to our Long Lake Project (Phase 1 and future phases).
14 Approximately 80% of Marketing's identifiable assets are accounts receivabla and inventories.
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2005 Operating and Geographic Segments

Energy Corporate
0il and Gas Marketing Syncrude Chemicals and Other Total
Other
{Cdn$ millions) Yamen Canada' us UK Countries?
Net Sales ? 1,377 455 792 366 119 28 397 3938 - 3,932
Marketing and Other 8 3 2 16 4 ga7 - 15 (e3e| 702
Gain on Dilution of Interest
in Chemicals Business - - - - - - - 193 - 193
1,385 458 794 382 123 875 397 606 (193) 4,827
Less: Expenses '
Operating 150 121 96 95 12 30 152 237 - 893
Depreciation, Depletion,
Amartization and
Impairment 354 140 234 210 13 11 17 51§ 22 1,052
Transportation and Other 6 23 1 - 2 641 21 40 62 796
General and Administrative’ 42 107 B8 8 101 89 1 45 328 809
Exploration 12 23 100 51 B4t - - - - 250
Interest - - - - - - - 3 94 97
Income {Loss} from
Continuing Operations
before Income Taxes 821 44 275 18 (69) 104 206 230 {699) 930
Less: Provision for {Recovery
of) Income Taxes?® 285 13 98 7 {13) a1 60 15 {272) 234
Net Income (Loss) from
Continuing Operations 536 31 177 11 {56) 63 146 215 {427) 696
Less: Non-Controlling Interests ] - - - - - - - 8 - 8 )
Add: Net Income from
Discontinued Operations - 452 - - - - - - - 452
Net Income {Loss) 536 483 177 1 (56} 63 146 207 427} 1,140
ldentifiable Assets 635 2,449 1,433 4,775 183 3,165" 1,135 482 333 | 14,590
_Capital Expenditures . 7 i
Development and Qther 236 947 148 566 14 16 197 14 24 2,162
Exploration ) a1 90 21 59 55 - - - - 456
Proved Property Acquisitions - 17 3 - - - - - - 20
Total Capital Expenditures 277 1,054 362 625 69 16 197 14 24 2,638
Property, Plant and Equipment
Cost 2,243 3,631 2,437 4,013 249 177 1,240 827 245 15,082
Less: Accumulated DD&A 1,841 1,311 1,159 216 119 72 171 456 123 5,468
Net Book Value * 402 2,320 1,278 3,797 130 105 1,069 kxal 122 9,594
Goodwill - - - 325 - 39 - - - 364
Notes:

1 During the third guarter of 2005, we concluded the sale of Canadian conventional oil and gas properties. The results of these properties are shown as

discontinued operations (see Note 14).

2 Includes results of operations from producing activities in Nigaria and Cofombia.

3 Net sales made from alf segments originating in Canada: 1.014
PP&E focated in Canada: 3,893

4 Net sales for our chermicals operations include.
Canada 132
United States 198
Brazil 68
Total 398

5 Includss intsrest income of $29 million, foreign exchange losses of $18 milion, decrease in the fair value of crude off put options of $196 million and decrease

in the fair value of foreign currency call options of $7 miflion.
6 Includes impairment charge of $12 miflion related to the closure of our sodium chlorate plant in Amherstburg, Ontario
7 includes stock-based compensation expense of $507 mitlian.

8 includes expioration activities primarify in Nigeria, Colombia and Equatorial Guinea.
9 The provision for {recovery of) income taxes for foreign {ocations is based on in-country taxes on foreign income. For cil and gas locations with no operating
activities, the provision is based on the tax jurisdiction of the entity performing the activity.

10 Includes costs of $1,321 million related to our Long Lake Project (Phase 1 and {uture phases).
17 Approximately B6% of Marketing's identifiable assets are accounis receivable and inventories.




21. DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CANADIAN AND US GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
The Consclidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian GAAP. US GAAP Consolidated
Financial Statements and summaries of differences from Caradian GAAP are as follows:

Consolidated Statement of Income—US GAAP
For the Three Years ended December 31, 2007 1
{Cdn$ millions, except per share amounts) . 2007 2006 2005

Revenues and Other Income
Net Sales 5,583 3,936 3,932
Marketing and Other (ii}; (vii); (viii} 938 ' 1,459 687
Gain on Dilution of Interest in Chemicals Business 7 - - 193
6,621 5,395 4,812

Expenses

Operating (iii) 1,167 953 903
Depreciation, Depletion, Amortization and Impairment (i) - - 1,767 1,124 1,081
Transportation and Other {vii) 506 . 1,037 792
i General and Administrative (vi) 7 7 401 . 597 792
Exploration 326 . 362 250
Interest - 168 53 97
4,735 4,131 3,915
Income from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes 1,786 1,264 897

Provision for Income Taxes

uoday |BenuuY £00Z U] uaxan

Current 434 368 339
Deferred (i} — {viil) 322 305 {108)
756 673 231

Net Income from Continuing Operations before Non-Controlling Interests 1,030 591 666
Net Income Attributable to Non-Controlling Interests 18 12 B
Net Income from Continuing Operations 1,012 679 658
Net Income fram Discontinued Operations ' - - 452
Net Income—US GAAP ' 1,012 579 1,110

Earnings Per Common Share ($/share)
Basic (Note 13)

Net lncome from Continuing Operations 1.92 1.10 1.26
Net Income from Discontinued Operations - - 0.87
1.92 1.10 2.13

Diluted (Note 13}

Net Income from Continuing Operations 1.88 1.08 1.23
Net income from Discontinued Operations - - 0.85
1.88 1.08 2.08
Note:
1 Reconciliation of Canadian and US GAAP Net Income
{Cdn$ millions} 2007 2006 2005
l Net income—Canadian GAAP A 1,086 ) 601 1,140
Impact of US Principles, Net of income Taxes: i ‘
Ineffective Fortion of Cash Fiow Hedges (i 2} ) L f7)
Depreciation, Depletion, Amortization and Impairment (i} ] - - 129}
Pre-operating Costs (i) i f1} 2 {6/
Stock-baged Compensation fvi (19} 29 12
Inventory Valuation (vifi} A 52} -~ -
Net iIncome—US GAAP 1,012 579 1110
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Consolidated Balance Sheet—US GAAP
December 31, 2007 and 2006

{Cdn% millions, except share amounts}) 2007 2006
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 206 101
Restricted Cash and Margin Deposits 203 197
Accounts Receivable {ii) 3,502 2,976
Inventories and Supplies {viii) 615 ‘ 786
Deferred Income Tax Assets 18 479
Other bal 67 .
Tota! Current Assets 4,615 4,606
Property, Plant and Equipment
Net of Accumulated Depreciation, Depleticn, Amortization and
Impairment of $7,588 (December 31, 2006—$6,792) {iiil; (v) 12,449 11,692
Goodwill 326 377
Deferred Income Tax Assets 268 141
Deferred Charges and Other Assets 324 263
TOTAL ASSETS 17,882 17,079
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Short-Term Borrowings - 158
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities (ii); (vi) 4,233 3,839
Accrued Interest Payable 54 55
Dividends Payabla 13 13
Total Current Liahilities 4,300 4,065
Long-Term Debt 4,610 4,618
Deferred income Tax Liabilities {i) - (viii} 2,230 2,427
Asset Retirement Obligations 792 683
Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities {iv) 534 597
Non-Controlling Interests 67 75
Shareholders’ Equity
Commeon Shares, no par value
Autharized: Unlimited
Qutstanding:  2007—528,304,813 shares
2006—525,026,412 shares 917 821
Contributed Surplus 3 4
Retained Earnings (i) — {viii} 4,876 3,945
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss {ii); (iv} {347} (156)
Total Shareholders’ Equity 5,449 4,614
Commitments, Contingencies and Guarantees
17,982 17.079‘

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY




Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income—US GAAP
For the Three Years ended December 31, 2007
{Cdn$ millions) 2007 2006 2005
Net Income—US GAAP 1,012 579 1,110
Other Comgprehensive Income {Loss}, Net of Income Taxes:
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment {132} - (56)
Change in Mark to Market on Cash Flow Hedges {ii} 61} 77 (20)
Minimum Unfunded Pension Liability {iv) - 5 {10)
Unamortized Defined Benefit Pension Plan Costs (iv) 2 - -
Comprehensive Income 821 661 1,024
Consolidated Statement of Accumutated Other Comprehensive Loss—US GAAP
December 31, 2007 and 2006
(Cdn$ millions) 2007 2006
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment {293) {161}
Mark to Market on Cash Flow Hedges (ii) - 61
Unamortized Defined Benefit Pension Plan Costs {iv) {64} (56}
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss {AOCI) (347) (156)

Notes to the Consolidated US GAAP
Financial Statements:

Under US GAAP, the liability method of accounting for
income taxes was adopted in 1993, In Canada, the liability
method was adopted in 2000. In 1997, we acquired
certain oil and gas assets and the amount paid for these
assets differed from the tax basis acquired. Under US
principles, this difference was recorded as a deferred tax
liability with an increase to PP&E rather than a charge to
retained earnings. As a result, additional depreciation,
depletion, amortization and impairment of $29 million
was included in net income during 2005. The difference
was fully amortized during 2005.

Under US GAAR, all derivative instruments are recognized on
the balance sheet as either an asset or a fiability measured at
fair value. Changes in the fair value of denvatives are recognized
in earnings unless specific hedge criteria are met. On January
1, 2007, we adopted the equivalent Canadian standard for
derivative instruments and hedging (see note 1{ul).

Future sale of gas inventory:

We use futures and swaps as cash flow hedges against
the commodity price risk on the future sale of cur
gas inventory. Prior to January 1, 2007, we included
the hedging derivative contracts on our US GAAP
Consolidated Balance Sheet wiih the effective portion
of gains or losses recognized in AOCI. The ineffective
gain or loss is included in marketing and other on the
US GAAP net income immediately.

In 2005, we recognized $11 million {$7 million, net of
income taxes) of ineffective losses related to these
hedges in our US GAAP net income. Under Canadian
GAAP, these losses were recegnized in 2008.

At December 31, 2006, we included $25 million of gains
on these cash flow hedges in accounts receivable. AOCI
includes the effective portion of $23 million {$16 mitlion,
net of income taxes) and $2 million ($2 million, net of
income taxes) of the ineffective portion in our US GAAP
net incorne. Under Canadian GAAP, these gains were

recagnized in 2007.

Under US GAAFP, AOCI included gains of $65 million

($45 million, net of income taxes) at December 31, 2006

related to de-designated cash flow hedges as described

in Note 7{b). These gains were recognized in marketing
and other in the first quarter of 2007. Under Canadian

GAAP, these deferred gains were included in accounts

payable and accrued liabilities at December 31, 2006

and were recognized in marketing and other in the first

quarter of 2007.

Under Canadian GAAP, we defer certain development

costs and all pre-operating revenues and costs to PP&E.

Under US GAAP, these costs have been included in

operating expenses. As a result:

» operating expenses include pre-operating costs of $2
million ($1 million, net of income taxes) (2006—33
million ($2 million, net of income taxes); 2005—$10
million ($6 million, net of income taxes)); and

s PP&E is lower under US GAAP by $30 million
{December 31, 2006—%$28 million).

On December 31, 2006, we adopted FASB Statement

No. 158 Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit

Fension and Other Postretirernent Plans for US GAAP.

This requires, among other things, the recognition of

the over-funded and under-funded status of a defined

benefit plan on the balance sheet as an asset or liahility.
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vi.

wii,

viii.

At year end, the unfunded amount of our defined benefit
pension plans was $75 million (2006—$81 million). This
amount has been included in deferred credits and other
liabilities and $54 million, net of income taxes, (2006—$56
million, net of income taxes), has been included in AQCI.
Prior to the adoption of FAS 158 on December 31, 2008,
wae included our minimum unfunded pension liability in
our US GAAP Consolidated Balance Sheet. This liability
decreased by $5 million in 2006 and increased $10 million
in 2005,
On January 1, 2003, we adopted FASE Statement No. 143,
Accounting for Asset Retiremnent Obligations (FAS 143) for
US GAAP reporting purposes. We adopted the equivalent
Canadian standard for asset retirement obligations on
January 1, 2004. These standards are consistent, except
for the adoption date, which resulted in our PP&E under
US GAAP being lower by $19 million.
Under Canadian principles, we record obligations for
liability-based stack compensation plans using the
intrinsic-value method of accounting. Under US principles,
obligations for liability-based stock compensation plans
are recorded using the fair-value methed of accounting.
In addition, under Canadian principles, we retroactively
adopied EIC-162 which requires the accelerated
recognition of stock-based compensation expense {or all
stock-based awards made to our retired and retirement-
eligible employees. However, US GAAP reguires the
accelerated recognition of stock-based compensation
expense for such employees for awards granted on or
after January 1, 2006. As a resuit:
= general and administrative expense is higher by $27
miltion {$19 millicn, net of income taxes) for the year
ended December 31, 2007 (2006—higher by $42
million ($29 milkon, net of incormne taxes); 2005—Ilower
by $17 million {$12 million, net of income taxes)); and
= accounts payahle and accrued liabilities are higher by
$53 million at December 31, 2007 (2006—higher by
$25 million).
Under S GAAR asset disposition gains and losses are included
with transporiation and other expense. Gains of $2 million
were reclassified from marketing and other to transportation
and other (2006—%4 million; 2006—84 rmillion).
Under Canadian GAAFP, we began carrying our commaodity
inventory held for trading purposes at fair value, less any
costs to sell effective October 1, 2007 (see Note 1(u)}.
Under US GAAP, we are required to carry this inventory
at the lower of cost or net reslizable value. As a result:
« marketing and ather is lower by $79 million ($52
millien, net of income taxes) for the year ended
December 31, 2007; and
v inventories are lower by $44 million at Decermber 31, 2007.

Stock-Based Compensation

On January 1, 2006, we adopted FASB Statement 123
lravised), Share-Based Payment (Statement 123(R}} using the
maodified prospective approach and graded vesting amortiza-
tion. Under Statement 123{R), our tandem options and stock
appreciation rights (StARS) are considered liability-based
stock compensation plans. Under the modified prospective
approach, no amounts are restated in prior periods. Upon adop-
tion of Statement 123(R), we recorded a cumulative effect of
a change in accounting principle of $2 million. This amount
was recorded in general and administrative expenses in our
US GAAP Consolidated Statement of Income in 2006.

Prior to the adoption of Statement 123(R), we accounted
for our liability-based stock compensation plans in accor-
dance with FASB Interpretation 28, Accounting for Stock
Appreciation Rights and Other Variable Stock Option or Award
Plans (the intrinsic-value method). Accordingly, obligations
were accrued on a graded vesting basis and represented
the difference between the market value of our common
shares and the exercise price of underlying options and rights.
Under Statement 123(R), obligations for liability-based stock
compensation plans are measured at their fair value and
remeasured in each subsequent reporting period.

Censistent with Statement 123(R), we account for any stock
options that do not include a cash feature (equity-based stock
compensation plans) using the fair-value method.

Assumptions

We use the Generalized Black-Scholes option pricing mode!
to estimate the fair value of our stock-based compensatian,
with the following assumptions:

Expected Annual Dividends per Common Share

($/share] 0.10
Expected Volatility 31%
Risk-Free Interest Rate 4.2% - 4.5%

Weighted-Average Expected Life of
Compensation Instruments (in years) 2.8-30

These assumptions are based on multiple factors, including
historical exercise patterns of employees in relatively homog-
enous groups with respect to exercise and post-vesting
employment termination behaviors, expected future exer-
cising patterns for those same homogencus groups, the
implied volatility of our stock price, our expected future divi-
dend levels and the interest rate for Government of Canada
bonds. Qur valuation methodology and assumptions are
consistent with those previously used under FAS 123.



Stock Options Waeighted

Weighted Average Weighted

Average Remaining Aggregate Average

Number Exercise Price Term to Expiry Intrinsic Value Fair Value

{thousands) {$/opticn) {years) {Cdng millions} ($/option)

Outstanding at December 31, 2007 27,403 20 29 325 13
Outstanding at December 31, 2007

and Expected to Vest 27,263 20 2.9 320 14

Exercisable at December 31, 2007 18,216 16 23 285 16

The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised during the year ended December 31, 2007 was $148 million {2006—$109
millien; 2005—$83 millicn). As at December 31, 2007, we had $51 million of unrecognized compensation expense related to
stock options which we expect io recognize over a weighted-average pericd of 1.5 years.

Stock Appreciation Rights Weighted

Weighted Average Weighted

Average Remaining Aggregate Average

Number Exercise Price Term to Expiry Intrinsic Value Fair Value

(thousands) {$/right} lyears) {Cdn$ milliens} {$/right)

QOutstanding at December 31, 2007 16,435 24 33 122 1
Cutstanding at December 31, 2007

and Expected to Vest 15,062 24 3.3 120 1

Exercisable at December 31, 2007 7.525 19 23 100 14

The total intrinsic value of stock appreciation rights exercised
during the year ended December 31, 2007 was $50 miltion
(2006—3%46 million; 2005—%$34 million). As at December
31, 2007, we had $45 million of unrecognized compensation
expense related to stock appreciation nghts which we expect
to recognize over a weighted-average pericd of 1.6 years.

Stock-Based Compensation Expense and Payments

For the year ended December 31, 2007, siock-based compen-
sation expense of $65 million {2006—$252 million; 2005—$490
million) was included in general and administrative expense in
the Consolidated Statement of Income—US GAAP.

For the year ended December 31, 2007, cash proceeds of
$£24 million were received related to the exercise of stock
options (2006—%16 million; 2005—%29 million). For the year
ended December 31, 2007, $149 million was paid related to
the exercise of siock options and stock appreciation rights
{2006—8%119 million; 2005—%74 million). The income tax
benefit recorded from the exercise of stock options and
stock appreciation rights was $42 million {2006—$37 million;
2005—%24 millien) for the period.

Stock Based Compensation Expense for Retired and
Retirement Eligible Employees

We recognize stock-based compensation expense for our
retired and retirement-eligibte employees over an acceler-
ated graded vesting period in accordance with the provisions
of Statement 123(R) for stock-based awards granted to

employees on or after January 1, 2006. For stock-based
awards granied prior to the adoption of Statement 123(R),
stock-based compensation expense for our retired and retire-
ment-eligible employees is recognized over a graded vesting
period. If we applied the accelerated graded vesting provi-
sions of Statement 123(R) to stock-based awards granted
1o our retired and retirement-eligible employees prior 10 the
adoption of Statement 123(R), our stock-based compen-
sation expense would decrease by $9 million for the year
ended December 31, 2007 (2006—decrease by $10 million;
2005—increase by $19 million).

Changes in Accounting Policies—US GAAP

Income Taxes

Cn January 1, 2007, we adopted FASB Interpretation 48
Accounting for Uncertainty in income Taxes (FIN 48) regarding
accounting and disclosure for uncertain tax positions. FIN
48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income iaxes
recognized in the financial statements and prescribes how a
company sheuld recognize, measure, present and disclose
uncertain tax positions that it has taken or expecis to take on
a tax return, The evaluation of tax pesitions under FIN 48 is
a two-step process, whereby: (1) the company determines
whether it is more-likely-than-not that the tax positions wiil be
sustained based on the technical merits of the position; and
{2} for those tax positions that meet the more-likely-than-not
recognition threshold, the company recognizes the largest
amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely
of being realized upon ultimate settlement with the taxing

noday |Enuuy LOOZ DU| USXBN

117



Nexen Inc 2007 Annual Report

118

authority. On the adoption of FIN 48, we recorded a cumula-
tive effect of a change in accounting principle of $28 million.
This amount increased our deferred income tax liabilities and
decreased our retained earnings as at January 1, 2007 in our
US GAAP—Consolidated Balance Sheet.

As at December 31, 2007, the total amount of our unrec-
ognized tax benefits was approximately $221 million, all of
which, if recognized, would affect our effective tax rate. To
the extent interest and penalties may be assessed by taxing
authorities on any underpayment of income tax, such amounts
have been accrued and are ¢lassified as a component of
income taxes in the Consolidated Statement of Income. As
at December 31, 2007, the total amount of interest and penal-
ties related to uncertain tax positions recognized in deferred
income tax hiabilities in the US GAAP—Consolidated Balance
Sheet was approximately $9 million. We had no interest or
penalties included in the US GAAP—Consclidated Statement
of Income for the year ended December 31, 2007.

Our income tax filings are subject to audit by taxation authori-
ties and as at December 31, 2007 the following tax years
reémained subject to examination; (i} Canada—1985 to date, {ii}
United Kingdom-—2002 to date and {ii)) United States—2004
to date. We do not anticipate any material changes to the
unrecognized tax benefits previously disclosed within the
next twelve months.

Reconciliation of Unrecognized Tax Benefits (Cdn$ millicns)

Balance at January 1, 2007 210
Additions for tax positions related to the current year 10
Additions for tax positi.ons related to prior years 33
Reductions for tax positions related to prior years (32)

Balance at December 31, 2007 21

New Accounting Pronouncements—US GAAP

In September 20086, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) issued Statement 157, Fair Value Measurements.
Statement 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value under US generally accepted accounting
principles and expands disclosures about fair value measure-
ments. For fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007,
companies will be required to implement the standard for
financial assets and liabilities, as well as for any other assets
and liabilities that are carried at fair value on a recurring basis

in financial statements. However, a one year deferral for the
impiementation of Statement 157 is provided for other nonfi-
nancial assets and liabilities. We do not expect the adoption
of this statement to have a material impact on our resulis of
operations or financial position.

Effective December 31, 2006, we adopted the recogni-
tion and disclosure provisions of FASB Statement 158,
Employers® Accounting For Defined Benefit Pension And
Other Postretirement Plans. This statement also requires
measurement of the funded status of a plan as of the balance
sheet date. The measurement provisions of the statement are
effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2008. We
do not expect the adoption of the change in measurement
date in 2008 to have a material impact on our results of opera-
tions or financial position.

In February 2007, FASB issued Statement 169, The Fair Value
Option For Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, The state-
ment allows for the elective measurement of eligible financial
instruments and certain other items at fair value in order to
mitigate volatility in reported earnings without having to apply
complex and detailed hedge accounting rules. This staterment is
effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. We
do not expect the adoption of this statement to have a material
impact on our results of operations or financial position.

In December 2007, FASB issued Statement 141({revised),
Business Combinations. Statement 14 1({revised) establishes
principles and requirements of the acquisition method for
business combinations and related disclosures. This state-
ment is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after
Dacember 15, 2008. We do not expect the adoption of this
statement to have a material impact on our results of opera-
tions or financial position.

In December 2007, FASB issued Statement 160, Noncontrolling
Interests In Consolidated Financial Statements, an amendment
of ARB. No 51. This statement clarifies that a noncontral-
ling interest in a subsidiary is an ownership interest in the
consclidated entity that should be reported as equity in the
consolidated financial statements. This statement is effective
for fiscal years beginning on or after December 15, 2008. We
do not expect the adoption of this statement to have a mate-
rial impact on our results of cperations or financial position.



SUPPLEMENTARY DATA (UNAUDITED)
Quarterly Financial Data in Accordance with Canadian and US GAAP

Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
{Cdn$ millions) 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Net Sales 1,140 980 1,399 1.039 1,446 997 1,598 920
Income {Loss) before Income Taxes
is Comprised of:
Qil and Gas ' 303 196 604 476 642 3rz 308 56
Energy Marketing (4} 166 70 69 (4) 42 5 139
Syncrude 54 20 a8 59 88 77 76 51
Chemicals 1 12 21 22 25 10 7 -
Corporate and Other {145) {66) (93) (92) {63) (171) (57} {142}
219 328 650 534 688 330 339 104
Net Income (Lossi—Canadian GAAP 121 (83) 368 408 403 199 194 77
US GAAP Adjustments (3) 282 (14) {11 {15) {283} (42 (10}
Net Income [Loss}—US GAAP 118 199 354 397 388 {84) 152 67
Earnings {Loss) per Common
Share ($/share)
Canadian GAAP—Basic 0.23 {0.16} 0.70 0.78 0.77 0.38 0.37 0.15
Canadian GAAP—Diluted 0.22 {0.16} 0.68 0.76 0.75 0.37 0.36 0.14
US GAAP—Basic 0.22 0.38 0.67 0.76 0.74 {0.16) 0.29 0.13
US GAAP—Diluted 0.22 0.37 0.66 0.74 0.72 10.16) 0.28 0.12
Dividonds Declared * 0.025 0.025 0.025 0.025 0.025 0.025 0.025 0.025
Common Share Prices {3/share)
Toronto Stock Exchange—High 37.80 34.05 36.51 34.75 36.32 35.61 32.63 32.90
Toronto Stock Exchange—Low 29.66 27.47 31.28 25.41 27.21 26.07 27.88 26.46
New York Stock Exchange—High {US$) 31.88 29.97 zn ‘ 30.84 34.79 31.82 34.37 29.19
New York Stock Exchange—Low (U5%) 25.18 23.49 29.08 22.82 25.25 23.35 27.68 23.45

Notes;

1 Tha fourth quarter of 2007 includes an impairment charge of $366 million relating to oil and gas properties in the Guif of Mexico, The fourth quarter of 2006
includes an impairment charge of $93 mittion, primarily relating to twe natural gas properties in the Guif of Mexico.
2 in February 2008, the Board of Directors declared a quartarly dividend of $0.025 per common share, peyable Aprii 1, 2008, to shareholders of record on

March 10, 2008.

3 At December 31, 2007, there were 1,569 registered holders of common shares and 528.304,813 common shares outstanding.
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OIL AND GAS PRODUCING ACTIVITIES AND
SYNCRUDE OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)

The following oil and gas information is provided in accordance
with the FASB Statement No. 69 Disclosures about Oil and
Gas Producing Activities. It also includes information relating
to owr interest in Syncrude as it produces a crude oil product
similar to our oil and gas activities even though these opera-
tions are considered mining activities under SEC regulations.

A. Reserve Quantity Information

Our net proved reserves and changes in those reserves for our
conventional operations {excluding Syncrude) are disclosed
below. The net proved reserves represent management’s

best estimate of proved oil and natural gas reserves after
royalties. Reserve estimates for each property are prepared
internally each year, and at least 80% of the reserves
(including Syncrude) have been assessed by independent
qualified reserves consultants.

Estimates of crude oil and natural gas proved reserves are
determined through analysis of geological and engineering
data, and demaonstrate reasonable certainty that they are
recoverable from known reservoirs under economic and
operating conditions that existed at year end. See Critical
Accounting Estimates in ltem 7 for a description of our oil
and gas and mining reserves estimation process.

Total Yemen' Canada United States United Kingdom Cng:t‘rei::'

Conventional oil and bitumen are in

mmbbls and natural gas is in bet Qil Gas Gil Gas Bitumen? Qil Gas 0il Gas Qil

Proved Developed and
Undeveloped Reserves *

December 31, 2004 351 600 80 372 - 52 215 128 13 12
Extensions and Discoveries 15 11 5 47 - 1 57 5 7 -
Purchases of Reserves in Place 2 - - - - - - - - -
Sales of Reserves in Place (28} {80) - (28) (80} - - - - - -
Revisions of Previous Fstimates ] {18) {3) 3 - {5} 2% 15 - -
Production (45} {81) 23) (9) (37 - {7 (36} {8) {8 {1

December 31, 2005 304 532 59 305 - a1 215 143 12 11
Extensions and Discoveries 52 89 1 54 - 2 26 23 9 25
Purchases of Reserves in Place - 1 - 1 - - - - - -
Sales of Reserves in Place ‘ - - - - - - - - - -
Revisions of Previous éslimales 231 {16) {3) (13} 219 {8) (12} . 19 ] 1
Production (38} (74) (19) {6) (33} - {5) (34} (B) N (2

December 31, 2006 549 532 38 314 219 30 195 179 23 35
Extensions and Discoveries 13 51 1 31 - 1 18 10 2 -
Purchases of Reserves in Place 3 a2 - 1 . 4 41 1 - -
Sales of Reserves in Place - (10 - - - - (10} - - -
Revisions of Previous Estimates 53 (11} (2) 7 15 (6) {24) 43 6 -
Production (57 172} {14) (5 135} - (6) (31) (30} (6 2)

December 31, 2007 561 532 23 47 e 234 21 189 203 25 33

Proved Developed Reserves®
December 31, 2005 ‘ ‘ 154 438 46 44 275 - 37 161 17 2 10
Decemnber 31, 2006 286 460 33 44 287 40 28 181 N 12 1y

December 31, 2007 281 a23 22 a4 293 40 17 114 151 16 7

Nores:

1 Under the terms of the Masila and the Block 51 production sharing contracts, production is divided into cost recovery oil and profit oil. Cost recovery

oif provides for the recovery of all cur costs and those of owr partners. Remaining production s profit off, which is shared between the pariners and the
Gavernment of Yemen based on production rates, with the partners’ share ranging from 20% to 33%. The Government’s share of profit oil represents its
royalty interest and an amount for income taxes payable in Yernen. Yemen's net proved reserves have been determined using the economic interest method
and include our share of future cost recovaery and profit oif aftar the Government's royalty intarest, but before reserves relating to income taxes pavable. Under
this method, reported raserves will increase as oil prices decrease (and vice versa) as the barrels necessary to achieve cost recovery changa with prevailing ol

prices. Production includes volumes used for fuel,

2 Represents bituman reserves from the insitu recovery of Canadian ol sands, rather than upgraded synthetic crude oif reserves to be sold.

L%}

Represents reserves in Nigeria and Colombia,

4 Proved oil and gas reserves are the estimated quantities of natural gas, crude oil, condensate and natural gas liquids that geoiogical and engineering data
demonsirate with reasonable certainty can be recovered in future years from known reservoirs under existing economic and operating conditions. Reserves

are considerad “proved " if they can be produced econormically, as dermonstrated by either actual production or conclusive formation test.
5 Proved developed oil and gas reserves are axpecled o be recovered through existing wells with existing equipment and operating methods.



Our net proved reserves and changes in those reserves for
our Syncrude operations are disclosed below. Additional
disclosures required by SEC Industry Guide 7 are on pages
22 and 23. The net proved reserves represent management’s
best estimate of proved synthetic reserves after royalties,

Estimates of Syncrude's synthetic crude oil reserves are
based on detailed geological and engineering assessments
of the bitumen volume in-place, the mining plan, historical
extraction recovery and upgrading yield factors, installed plant
operating capacity and cperating apf)roval limits. The in-place

volume, depth and grade are established through extensive
and closely spaced core drilling density of less than 500
metres. In accordance with the approved mining plan, there
are an estimated 1,780 million tons of economically extract-
able oil sands in the Base and North Mines, with an average
bitumen grade of 10.6 weight percent. The Aurora North Mine
contains an estimated 4,810 million tons of economically
extractable oil sands at an average bitumen grade of 11.2
weight percent. Aurora South Lease 31 contains measured
economically extractable oil sands of 4,309 million tons at an
average bitumen grade of 10.8 weight percent.

Synthetic Crude Oil
Base Mine and
{millions of barrels) Naorth Mine' Aurora? Total
Dacember 31, 2004 50 205 255
Revision of Previous Estimates - {4) (4)
Extensions and Discoveries - 19 19
Production (3) {3 (6)
December 31, 2005 a7 217 264
Revision of Previous Estimates 1 4 5
Extensions and Discoveries - 1 11
Production (3) i3 {6}
December 31, 2006 a5 229 274
Revision of Previous Estimates - {7) (7}
Extensions and Discoveries - 7 7
Production (3) {4) 7
Decembar 31, 2007 42 225 267

Nares:
1 Leases 17 and 22
2 Lleases 10, 12, 31 and 34.
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B. Capitalized Costs {excluding Syncrude operations)

Nexen Inc 2007 Annuat Report

Proved Unproved Accumulated Capitalized
{Cdn& millions) Propertios Properties DD&A Costs
Tecember 31, 2007
Yemen 2,178 - {1,950} 228
Canada 4,364 734 {1,990} 3,108
LInited States ’ 2,931 138 {1,765) 1,304
United Kingdom 4,318 405 {908} 3815
Other Countries 105 158 (77} 186
Total Capitalized Costs 13,896 1,435 {6,690) 8,641
December 31, 2006
Yemen 2,404 - 12,128) 276
Canada 3,787 227 {1,467} 2,547
United States 2,768 121 {1,445} 1,444
United Kingdom 4,325 385 1432) 4,278
Other Countries 99 150 (78) 171
Total Capitalized Costs 13,383 883 (5,650} 8,716
December 31, 2005
Yemen 2,243 - (1,841} 402
Canada 3,463 143 {1,330} 2,276
United States 2,323 114 {1,159} 1,278
United Kingdom 3,603 410 (216} 3797
Other Countries 88 161 (19) | 130
Total Capitalized Costs 11,720 828 {4,665} 7.8a83
C. Costs Incurred {excluding Sync¢rude operations)
Qil and Gas
Total United United
(Cdn$ millions) Oil and Gas Yemen Canada States Kingdom Other
Year Ended December 31, 2007
Froperty Acquisition Costs
Proved 181 - 1 104 46 -
Unproved 59 - 34 29 1 -
Exploration Costs 637 15 93 3an 128 90
Development Costs 1,817 124 675 414 551 53
Asset Retirement Costs 169 B 48 30 85 -
Total Costs Incurred 2,833 145 851 883 811 143
Year Ended Dacember 31, 2006
Property Acquisition Costs
Proved 13 - 12 - 1 -
Unproved 125 - 105 19 1 -
Exploration Costs 514 37 74 242 7 90
Development Costs 2,051 145 884 399 595 28
Asset I?\;etirement Costs B9 4 5 4 56 -
Total Costs Incurred 2,772 186 1,080 664 724 118
Year Ended December 31, 2005
Property Acquisition Costs
Proved 20 - 17 3 - -
Unproved 15 - - 9 6 -
Exploration Caosts 509 44 97 235 61 72
Development Costs 1,896 236 947 139 560 14
Asset Retirement Costs 196 13 58 45 80 -
Total Costs Incurred 2,636 293 1,119 431 707 86
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D. Results of Operations for Producing Activities (excluding Syncrude operations)

Oil and Gas
Total United United Other
{Cdn$ mithons) Oil and Gas Yemen Canada’ States Kingdom Countries
Year Ended Docember 31, 2007
Net Sales 4,576 1,086 441 616 2,285 148
Production Costs 668 171 175 102 212 B
Exploration Expense 326 5 27 134 69 9N
Depreciation, Depletion,
Amortization and Impairment 1,627 213 166 641 5899 a
Other Expenses (Income) 100 (8) 66 38 {36) 40
1,855 705 7 {299) 1,441 1
Income Tax Provision (Recovery) 859 248 {103) 712 -
Results of Operations 996 457 5 {196) 729 1
Year Ended December 31, 2006
Net Sales 3,032 1,328 459 629 477 139
Production Costs 49 151 146 106 80 8
Exploration Expense 362 4 26 214 a6 72
Depreciation, Depletion,
Amaortization and Impairment 1,011 327 162 296 216 10
Other Expenses {income) 7 15 106 {23) 71} 44
1,097 831 19 36 206 5
Income Tax Provision 687 289 6 13 378 1
Results of Operations 410 542 13 23 {(172) 4
Year Ended Decembaer 31, 2005
Net Sales 3,263 1,377 609 792 366 119
Production Costs 511 150 158 96 95 12
Exploration Expense 251 12 24 100 51 64
Depreciation, Depletion, |
Amortization and Impairment 1,008 354 197 234 210 13
Other Expenses 335 40 125 83 {8) 95
1,158 821 105 - 279 18 (65}
income Tax Provision (Recovery) a11 285 32 59 7 12}
Results of Operations 747 536 73 180 11 {53}

Note:

T 2005 includes results of discontinued operations {see Note 14).
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E. Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net
Cash Flows and Changes Therein (excluding
Syncrude operations)

The following disclosure is based on estimates of net proved
reserves (excluding Syncrude) and the period during which
they are expacted 1o be produced. Future cash inflows are
computed by applying year-end prices to our after royalty
share of estimated annual future production from proved oil
and gas reserves {exciuding Syncrude operations). Future
development and production costs to be incurred in producing
and further developing the proved reserves are based on
year-end cost indicators. Future income taxes are computed
by applying year-end statutory tax rates. These rates reflect
allowable deductions and tax credits, and are applied 10 the
estimated pre-tax future net cash flows,

Discounted future net cash flows are calculated using 10%
mid-period discount factors. The calculations assume the
continuation of existing economic, operating and contractual
conditions. However, such arbitrary assumptions have not
proved to be the case in the past. Other assumptions could
give fise to substantially different results.

We believe this information does not in any way reflect the

current economic value of our oil and gas producing properties

ar the present value of their estimated future cash flows as:

* no economic value is attributed to probable and possible
reserves;

= yse of a 10% discount rate is arbitrary; and

= prices change constantly from year-end levels.

United United Other
{Cdn$ millions} Total Yemen Canada States Kingdom Countries
Decembhar 31, 2007
Future Cash Inflows 43,888 1,952 17,365 3,207 17,877 3,387
Future Production Costs 11,988 468 7,229 539 3.347 405
- Future Development Costs 3.229 22 957 328 778 1,144
% Future Disrnantlement and Site
% Restoration Costs, Net 1,143 16 273 197 595 62
E Future Income Tax 8,793 452 1,135 437 6,589 180
=d
s Future Net Cash Flows 18,735 994 777 1,706 6,668 1,596
&.’ 10% Discount Factor 7,606 111 4,236 a41 1,561 1,257
E Standardized Measure 11,129 833 3,535 1,265 5,107 339
o
3
Z December 31, 2006
Future Cash Inflows 32,247 2,330 12,678 3,151 11,437 2,651
Future Production Costs 9,623 606 5,615 791 2,235 275
Future Development Costs 3,180 115 1,186 332 891 696
Future Dismantlement and Site
Restoration Costs, Met 1,006 1 289 197 471 38
Future income Tax 5,204 489 753 450 3.308 204
Future Net Cash Flows 13,324 1,109 4,865 1,381 4,531 1,438
10% Discount Factor 4,951 106 2,484 321 970 1.070
Standardized Measure 8,373 1,003 2,381 1,060 3,561 368
December 31, 2005
Future Cash Inflows 23,040 3,675 4,558 5,002 9,190 615
Future Production Costs 5,477 807 1,886 811 1,892 81
Future Development Costs 1,093 153 124 268 534 14
Future Dismantlement and Site
Restoration Costs, Net 778 20 180 193 381 4
Future Income Tax 4,496 7485 244 1,107 2,172 178
Future Net Cash Flows 11,196 1,900 2,124 2,623 4,211 338
10% Discount Factor 3,154 328 811 697 1,209 99
Standardized Maasure 8,042 1,562 1.313 1.926 3,002 239
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Changes in the $tandardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Cash Flows
The following are the principal sources of change in the standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows:

{Cdn$ millions) 2007 2006 2005
Beginning of Year 8,373 8,042 6,290
Sales and Transfers of Oil and Gas Produced, Net of Production Costs (3.010) {2,297) {2,028)
Met Changes in Prices and Preduction Costs Related to Future Production 3,385 {1,085) 3,302
Extensions, Discoveries and Improved Recovery, Less Related Costs 758 695 977
Changes in Estimated Future Development and Dismantlement Costs (443) (692) [135)
Previpus Estimated Future Development and Dismantlement Costs Incurred During the Period 1,102 1,048 638
Revisions of Previous Quantity Estimates 2,189 1,936 478
Accretion of Discount 1,19 1,117 799
Purchases of Reserves in Place 272 2 15
Sales of Reserves in Place (49) (2) (882)
Net Change in Income Taxes {2,639} {417} 1,412}
End of Year 11,129 8,373 8,042

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS
WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

There were no disagreements with accountants on accounting
and financial disclosure.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
EVALUATION OF DISCLOSURE CONTROLS
AND PROCEDURES

Cur Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have
evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(g) and
15-d-15(e)) as of the end of the period covered by this report.
They concluded that, as of the end of the period covered by this
report, our disclosure controls and procedures were adequaie
and effective in ensuring that material information relating to
the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries would be made
known to them by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report was being prepared, Management
recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how
well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assur-
ance of achieving the desired control objectives, and in reaching
a reasonable level of assurance, management necessarily is
required 1o apply its judgement in evaluating the cost-benefit
relationship of possibte controts and procedures.

MANAGEMENT’'S REPORT ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
Our management is responsible for establishing and main-
taining adequate internal control over financial reperting (as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)). Under the supervi-
sion and with the participation of our management, including
our principal executive officer {CEQ} and principal financial
officer {CFQ), we conducted an evaluation of the effective-
ness of our internal control over financial reporting based
on the Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission. Based on our evaluation, we concluded that
our internal control over financial reporting is efiective as of
December 31, 2007. We have docurmenied this assessment
and made this assessment available to our independent regis-
tered Chartered Accountants. We recognize that all internal
control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent
limitations. Therefore, even those sysiems determined to be
effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect
to financial statement preparation and presentation.

Deloitte & Touche LLP audited our Consolidated Financial
Statements as stated in their report which is on page 126 of
this Form 10-K and has issued an attestation report on our
internal control over financial reporting.

CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROLS

We have continually had in place systems relative to internal
controls over financial reporting. There have not been any
changes in the Company’s internal conirol over financial
reporting during the last quarter that have materially affected,
or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control
over financial reporting. As well, no material weaknesses
requiring corrective action were identified in the conduct of
our evaluation of internal control over financial reporting. As
a result, no such corrective actions were taken.

1009y [2NUUY £00Z U] UaxaN

125



Nexen Inc. 2007 Annual Report

126

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Nexen Inc.:
We have audited the internal control over financial reporting
of Nexen Inc. and subsidiaries {the "Company”} as of
December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.
The Company's management is responsible for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over finan-
cial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Qur
respensibility is to express an opinion on the Company's
internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the
Public Cornpany Accounting Oversight Beard (United States).
Thaose standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal
control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects, Qur audit included obtaining an understanding of
internal cantrol over financial reporting, assessing the risk that
a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other precedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is
a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the
company'’s principal executive and principal financial offi-
cers, or persons performing stmilar functions, and effected
by the company's beard of directars, management, and other
personnel to provide reasonabile assurance regarding the reli-
ability of financial reperting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reason-
able detail, accurately and {airly refleci the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; {2} provide reason-

able assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and direc-
tors of the company; and {3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over finan-
cial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due
to arrer o fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely
basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness
of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compli-
ance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material
respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2007, based on the criteria established in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with Canadian gener-
ally accepted auditing standards and the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States),
the consolidated financial statementis of the Company as of
and for the year ended December 31, 2007, and our report
dated February 13, 2008, expressed an unqualified opinion
on those financial statements and includes a separate report
titled Comments by Independent Registered Chartered
Accountants on Canada—United States of America Reporting
Difference referring to changes in accounting principles that
have a material effect on the comparability of the Company's
financial statements.

(signed) "Deloitte & Touche LLP”

Independent Registered Chartered Accountants
Calgary, Canada

February 13, 2008
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PART Il

items 10 and 11. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate
Governance, and Executive Compensation

DIRECTORS

According to our Articles, Nexen must have between three and 15 directors, On July 5, 2008, the board determined that, untit

changed, there will be 12 directors.

Our By-Laws provide that directors will be elected at the annuat general meeting of shareowners [AGM) each year and will

hold office until their successors are elected. All of our current directors were elected at the last AGM.

This shows our directors’ principal cccupations or employment during the past five years and any other directorships they held

in public companies as at February 14, 2008. The following directors are management nominees for election to the board.

Nexen
Name (Age) Principal Occupation Other Directorships Director Since
Charles W. Fischar (57) President and Chief Executive Officer 2000
(CEQ) of Nexen.
Dennis G. Flanagan 2 (68} Retired oil executive. Canexus Income Fund (Chair} 2000
NAL Otl & Gas Trust
David A. Hentschel* {74) Retired oil executive. Cimarex Energy Co. 1985
Formerly: Qil and gas consultant.
S. Barry Jackson* {55} Retired oil executive. Cordero Energy Inc. 2001
Formerly: Chair of Resolute Energy Inc. TransCanada Corporation (Chair)
and Chair of Deer Creek Energy Limited. TransCanada PipeLines Limited
{Chair)
Kevin J. Jenking -7 (51} Managing Director of Triwest Capital Partners 1996
Formerly: President and CEQ of The Westaim
Corpaoration.
A. Anne McLellan, P.C." (57} Counsel with Bennett Jones LLP, Barristers Agrium In¢. 2006
and Solicitors and Distinguished Scholar in Cameco Corporation
Residence at the University of Alberta in the
Institute for United States Policy Studies,
Formerly: Member of Parliament for Edmonton
Centre, Deputy Prime Minister, Minister of Public
Safety and Emargency Preparedness
and Minister of Health.
Eric P Newell, O.C. 163] Ratired Chair and CEO of Syncrude Canada Ltd. 2004
Thomas C. O'Neill 2 (62) Retired Chair of PwC Consulting. Adecco S.A. 2002
Formerly: CEQ of PwC Consulting. Prior to that, BCE inc.
COQ of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Global. Loblaw Companies Limited
Francis M, Saville, Q.C." (69} Chair of Nexen, 1994
Counsel with Fraser Milner Casgrain LLP,
Barristers and Solicitors.
Formerly: Senior Partner and Vice Chair of Fraser
Milner Casgrain LLP, Barristers and Solicitors,
Richard M. Thomson, 0.C."2 (74} | Retired banking executive. The Thomson Corporation 1997
John M. Willson 1(68) Retired mining executive. Finning Internationat Inc. 1996
Harry Winston Diamond
Carporation
Pan American Silver Corporation
Victor J. Zaleschuk ® (64} Retired oil executive. Agrium Inc. 1997

Cameco Corporation (Chair)

Notes:
All members of the Audit and Conduct Review (Audit), Corporate Governance and Nominating (Governance) and Compensation and Hurnan Resources

1

2
3
4
5

{Compensation) Committees are independent. Alt mambars of the Audit Commitiee are indapendeant under additional reguiations for audit committea members.

Financial Experts on Nexen's Audit Cornmittee.

Mr. Flanagan was a director of Elek-Tek inc., a US public computer retailing company, that was subject to bankruptey proceedings in 1998,

Mr. Hemschel was Chair and CEO of Occidental Oif and Gas Corporation from 1997 to 1999 and President and CEQ of Nexen from 1995 to 1997.
Mr. Zaleschuk was President and CEQ of Nexen from 1997 to 2001.
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Independence and Board Committees

The beard affirmed director independence under our cate-
gorical standards for director independence (categorical
standards), which are available at www.nexeninc.com.
The categorical standards have been in place since 2003
and most recently amended on February 14, 2008. Our
categorical standards meet or exceed the requirements set
out in SEC rules and regulations, the Sarbanes-Oxfey Act
of 2002 (Sarbanes-Oxley), the NYSE rules, Naticnal Policy
58-201—Corporate Governance Guidelines, Multiiateral
instrument 52-110—Audit Committees, and applicable provi-
sions of National Instrument 51-101—Standards of Disclosure
for Oif and Gas Activities.

Mr. Fischer is not independent as he is President and CEQ.

Mr. Flanagan is not independent as his son is Senior Vice
President, Engineering, of TriAxon Resources Ltd. (TriAxon). In
2006, TnAxon acquired a company that was party to contracis
with a subsidiary of Nexen. Under one of the contracts, Nexen
paid approximately $4.5 million to TriAxen between July and
December 2006 for products purchased at market price.
Accordingly, Mr. Flanagan is not technically independent as
of July 1, 2007. Mr. Flanagan was not aware that the company

acquired by TriAxon held contracts with Nexen. The board has
determined that Mr. Flanagan's independence of mind has
not been compromised by this transaction and accordingly,
the board continues 1o include him in their meetings without
management,

Ms. McLeltan has been counsel with Bennett Jones LLP (BJ),
Barristers and Solicitors, Edmonton, Alberta, since June 27,
2006. BJ provided legal services to us in each of the last five
years. Ms. McLellan does not sclicit or participate in those
services and does not receive any portion of the fees we pay
to BJ. She is independent under cur categorical standards.

Mr. Saville was a senior partner of Fraser Milner Casgrain LLP
(FMC), Barristers and Solicitors, Calgary, Alberta, until the
end of January 2004. Since February 1, 2004, he has been
counsel with the firm. FMC provided legal services to us
in each of the last five years. Mr. Saville does not solicit or
participate in those services and does not receive any portion
of the fees we pay toc FMC. He i1s independent under our
categorical standards.

We have not had an executive committee of the board since
July 11, 2000.

Committees (Number of Members}

Audit? Compensation' Governance’ Finance Reserves® HSE & SR
() (7 n ) 7} 8}
Management Director—Not Independent
Charles @.-Fi;cher o o o o
E;side Dir;a;:;or—Not lnde—pendent o B S o o o
" Dennis G. Flanagan T 7 o T v ) Yy - +
Independent Outside Directors - o ) o
| David A. Hentschel o - B v v
. S. Barry Jackson - o A . J - N . ‘HC;;I:
" Kevin J. Jenkins* v Chair ) a n ¥
A. Anne McLellan, P.C. { - ) J ¥
Eri¢ P Newell, O.C. Y ¥ 7 v
N Tt:lomas C. O'Neill ** S ) Chair o 7-\‘ o T ) 7
o -Francis M. Saville, Q.C. N h ) _\J'_ N o B w.'—-
Richard M. Thomson, 0.C.* 7 _*J' - Chair 1
John M. Willsgn J I 7 B Chair
Victor J. Zaleschuk - T chair - RN

Notes:

1 All members are independent. All Audit Committaa members are independent under additiona! regulatory requirements epplicalie to them.
2 Experience of the members of the Audit Committee that indicates an understanding of the accounting principies we use to prepare our financial statements is

shown in their biographias on page 131.

3 A majority of the Reserves Review (Reserves} Comwnitiee are independent.

4 Audit cormmittee financial expert under S regulatory reguirements.

5 The board has determined that Mr. O"Neill’s service on the audit committees of three cther public companies and one not-for-profit organization does not
impair his ability to serve as Chair of Nexen’s Audit Committee. The board considered that Mr. O'Neill had a 30+ year career as a Chartered Accountant and,
since retiring as Chair of PWC Consuiting in 2002, his only businass commitments are to the boards and committees on which he serves.



Audit Committee Financial Expert Experience
Name Experience

Jenkins Kevin Jenkins, 51, is Managing Director of TriWest Capital Partners, an independent private equity firm. He was
President, CEQC and a director of The Westaim Corporation from 1996 to 2003, with businesses including technology
investments, production of coin blanks, aesrospace coatings and surface engineered products. From 1985 to 1996 he held
senior executive pasitions with Canadian Airlines International Ltd. {Canadian). He was elected to serve on Canadian’s
board of directors in 1987, appointed President in 1991 and appointed President and CEO in 1984,

Mr. Jenkins has a Bachelors Degree in Law froem the University of Alberta and a Masters of Business Administration
from Harvard Business Schoel. He has werked in management positions with increasing level of responsibility including
assistant treasurer, vice president finance, executive vice president and chief financial officer, and president and CEQ.

Kevin is Chair of Young Life of Canada and Vice Chair of World Vision Canada.

and a director of St. Michael’s Hospital.

O'Neill Tom O’Neill, 62, is the retired Chair of PwC Consulting. He was formerly CEQ of PwC Censulting, COO of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Global, CEO of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Canada and Chair and CEQ of Price
Waterhouse Canada. He worked in Brussels in 1975 to broaden his international experience and from 1975 to 1985 was
client service partner for numerous multi nationals, specializing in dual Canadian and US listed companies,

Mr. O'Neill has a Bachelor of Commerce Degree from Queen's University. He received his Chartered Accountant
designation in 1970 and was made a Feltow [FCA} of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario in 1988. He also
has an Honourary Doctorate of Law from Queen’s University.

Tom is a director of BCE Inc., Loblaw Companies Limited and Adecco S.A. He is a member of the External Audit
Committee of the tnternational Monetary Fund. He is also Vice Chair of the Board of Governors of Queen’s University

Thomson

Research Foundation,

Dick Thamson, 74, is a retired banking executive. He was with the Toronto-Dominion Bank, one of Canada’s largest banks,
since 1957, as President from 1972 to 1978 and as Chair from 1978 until his retiremant in 1998,

Mr. Thomson holds a Masters of Business Administration from Harvard Business School and a Bachelor of Arts and
Science in Engineering from the University of Toronto. He is an Officer of the Qrder of Canada.

Dick is a director of The Thomson Corporation. He is also a member of the board of the Multiple Sclerosis Scientific

Directors’ and QOfficers’ Liability Insurance

We maintain a directors’ and officers’ liability insurance policy.
The policy provides coverage for costs incurred to defend and
settle claims against directors and officers of Nexen to an
annual limit of US$150 miflion with a US$12.5 million deduct-
ible for an indemnifiable cccurrence and no deductible for a
non-indemnifiable occurrence, The cost of coverage for 2007
was approximately US$1 million. Directors and officers do
not pay any portion of the premiums and ne indemnity claims
were made or paid in 2007.

Directors’ and Officers’ Fiduciary Insurance

Nexen maintains a fiduciary liability insurance policy. It provides
coverage for costs incurred to defend and settle claims against
iNexen, our directors, officers and employees for breach of fidu-
ciary duty in connection with company spensored plans, such
as pension and savings pians. The policy has an annual limit of
US$25 miillion with a US$2.5 million deductible for an indem-
nifiable accurrence and no deductible for a non-indemnifiable
occurrence. The cost of coverage for 2007 was approximately
US$30,000. Directors and officers do not pay any portion of the
premiums and no claims were made or paid in 2007.

Loans to Directors

As set out in the corporate governance policy, we do not
make loans to our directors. There are no leans outstanding
from Nexen to any of our directors.

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Nexen provides its directors with a comprehensive compen-
sation package consisting of annual cash retainers, meeting
fees and equity-based incentives in the form of deferred
share units {DSUs). The total compensation package provides
a competitive level of remuneration for the increasing
responsibilities, time commitments and accountability of
board members. All elemenis of director compensation are
reviewed annually for competitiveness against a peer group
of oil and gas companies by management, the Compensation
Cormmittee and the beard. Qur compensation philosophy
targets and currently provides total compensation between
the 50th and 75th percentile. This is intended to attract and
retain qualified talent to serve on our board.

Directors may choose to receive select benefits coverage
at Nexen's expense, including basic life insurance, extended
health care, dental, business travel accident insurance, and
the reimbursement of provincial health care premiums (in
certain jurisdictions). Mr, Zaleschuk, a former CEQ of Nexen
is a retiree in the Nexen pension plan. The pension benefit
provided to him is for previous service as an employee.

See page 132 for the changes to director compensation

made January 1, 2008 and page 133 for more infermation
on DSUs.
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Director Summary Compensation Table

Total DSU All Other Total
Nama Fees Earned’ Awards? Compensation® Compensation
Fischer* - - - -
Flanagan o - T T T o8 meso e7a7es 347,061
Hentschel - o . 104300 141950 2787 249,037
Jackson 124,700 141,950 3,242 269,892
Jenkins B 126,500 141950 4,007 272,457
‘McLellan ) - 121,200 141850 1,128 264,278
Newell o 110967 141,950 4,254 257,171
O'Neill h T a3so0 141950 3692 289,242
‘Saville o B 271,200 227120 3218 501,539
Themson o 131,000 141950 5,665 278,615
Willson 127,400 141,950 3,920 273,270
Zaleschuk - 106,600 141,950 2823 251,373
Totat 1,475,400 1,646,620 131,915 3,253,935
Notas:

1 Includas all retainers and meetings fees, including thosa paid in DSUs.

2 The value of DSUs granted on December 3, 2007, based on the closing market price of Nexen commen shares on the TSX on November 30, 2007 of $28.39.
3 Tha total value of perquisites provided to each director is less than both $50,000 or 10% of total fees, and is not included in this column. Amounts reflect
life insurance premiums paid by Nexen, reinvested dividends earned in 2007 valued at the closing market price of Nexen common shares on the TSX on the
payment dates, travel allowance paid by Nexen, and Canexus fees as set out in note 5.

4 As an executive of Nexen, Mr. Fischer is not paid any director compensation.

5 M, Flanagan is tha Board Chair of Canexus and was paid fees of 857,500, raceived deferred trust units of Canexus valued at $29. 320 and distributions on his

trust units of $7,665 in 2007. The total is included in this cofumn,

Director Retainers and Fees

Annual board and committee retainers are paid quarterly
and pro-rated for partial service. The same fees are paid for
attending meetings in persan or by conference call, A travel
allowance of $1,500 was introduced on February 15, 2007. It
is paid whenever a director travels outside of his or her home
province or siate, or travels more than a total of three hours,
round trip, to attend a Nexen meeting or site visit. Nexgn also
reimburses directors for out-of-pocket travel expenses, New
retainers were approved as of January 1, 2008.

2007 Retainers and Fees

2007 2008
Board Chair Retainer . B 178,100‘F 250,000
Board Member Retainer S 28,100 L 35,000 |
Audit Committee Chair Retainer 19,700 . 19,700
Other Committee Chair Retainer 5,300 5,300
Committee Member Retainer 9,100 9,100

_Bc;rc-l-and Committee Meeting T

Fees {per meeting attended} 1,800 1,800

Notes:

1 Total of the Board Chair Retainer of $150.000. plus the Board Member Retainar

of $28,100.

2 As of January 1, 2008, the Board Chair is paid only this retainer and the
travel allowance. He does not receive any cther retainers or meetings fees.

Annual

Annual Annual Committee Board Committee Total Fees  Total Fees

Board Committee Chair Meeting Meeting Travel Total Fees Credited in Earned in
Name Retainer Retainer Retainer Fees Fees Allowance Earned DSUs? Cash
Fischer? - - - - - - - - -
Flanagan 28,100 30,333 z 16,200 28,800 4,500 107,933 _ 107,923
Hentschel 28,100 27,300 - 16,200 25,200 7,500 104,300 - 104,300
“Jackson 28,100 36,400 5,300 16,200 34,200 4,500 124,700 120,200 4,500
Jenking 28,100 36,400 5,300 16,200 36,000 4,500 126,500 _ 126,500
“McLellan 28,100 36,400 - 16,200 36,000 4,500 121,200 116,700 4,500
“Newell 28100 33367 - 16,200 28800 4,500 110,967 106,467 4,500
“O'Neill 28,100 36.400 19,700° 16,200 34200 9,000 143,600 _ 143,600
Saville 178,100 36400 - 16,200 36,000 4,500 271,200 271,200
Thomson 28,100 36,400 5,300 16,200 36,000 9,000 131,000 122,000 9,000
Willson 28,100 36,400 5,300 14,400 34,200 9,000 127,400 - 127,400
Zateschuk 28,100 27,300 5,300 16,200 25,200 4,500 106,600 28,100 78,500
Total 459,100 373,100 46,200 176,400 354,600 66,000 1,475,400 493,467 981,933
Notas:

1 Details of DSU holdings are set out in the table on page 133.
2 As an executive officer of Naxan, Mr. Fischer is not paid any director compensation,
3 Mr. O'Naill is the Audit Committee chair.




Share Ownership Guideline

Directors demonstrate their commitment to Nexen’s success
through share ownership. On February 14, 2008, the board
approved guidelines that set out that directors are expected
to own or control at least 16,800 shares or DSUs. This amount
represents at least three times both the base annual board
retainer of $35,000 and the value of the base annual DSU
grant. They must be accumulated as follows:

» 58600 by end of year 1

= 11,200 by end of year 2

= 16,800 by end of year 3

New directors will be required io take their base annual
retainer in DSUs until the current threshold is met. If there is
a change in share value or size of the annual grant of DSUs
that causes a director to no longer meet the requirement, he
or she will have nine months to meet the threshold again.

All directors surpass these guidelines.

Deferred Share Units

MNexen has two DSU plans, Under the first plan, eligible direc-
tors may elect annually to receive all or part of their fees
in DSUs, rather than cash. Under the second plan, DSUs
replaced stock options in 2003 as the long-term incentive
used to align the interests of directors with shareowners.

DSUs provide directors with a stake in Nexen during their term
of service. DSUs don’t grant the right to vote as there are no
shares underlying the plans. A DSU is a bookkeeping entry
that tracks the value of one Nexen common share. When cash
dividends are paid on Nexen common shares, eligible directors

are credited with additional DSUs, equal to the value of the divi-
dend paid. DSUs accumulate over a director’s term of service
and are only paid out when the director leaves the board. At
that time, payments may be made in cash or in Nexen common
shares purchased on the open market, at Nexen's option.

Name DSUs Held as of December 31, 20077
Fischer -
I;Iar;g_al: - S 30,536—
HE:EEJ T o T 30,531
Jackson—" N - S __BG'_EE
Je—;lﬁ - o 43,611
‘MecLeltan 17,052
‘Newell 47,988
O'Neill 40,453
Saville 37,962
Thomson 62,322
Willson 43,025
Zaleschuk 32,298
Note:

T Number of DSUs has been adjusted to account for Nexen’s share splits
that occurred in May 2005 and May 20G7.

DSUs Granted in 2007
. Base Value of

DSUs Price’ ~ DSUs?
Position Grant Date #) [£3] &3]
Board Chair Dec 3, 2007 8,000 28.39 227120
Other
non-executive
directors Dec 3, 2067 5,000 28.39 141,950
Notes:

1 The closing rmarket price of Nexan common shares on the TSX on
November 30, 2007.
2 The number of DSUs times the base price.

TOPs Exercised or Exchanged and Awards Vested During 2007

wHoday |enuuy LOOT DU| USXSN

All exercises or exchanges of tandem options (TOPs) in 2007 occurred within nine months of their expiry. There are no vesting
provisions and no value realized on vesting under the DSU plan,

TOPs Awards DSU Awards

Exercised or Exchanged Value Realized ' | Shares Acquired on Vesting Value Realized
Name # i3) #) $)
Flanagan 7,260 157,742 - -
Hentschel 22,000 445,885 - -
Jackson 22,000 517,165 - -
Jenkins - 22,000 484,285 - -
O'Neill - 22,000 - i 505,_1;65 N - -
Saville T 7260 157,669 - -
Thomson - - 33.200 776,133 ) - -
Willson 7.332 197,066 - -
Total 143,052 3,239,350 - -

Note:

1 Market price at the time of the exarcisa or exchange, minus the exercise price, as defined in the Tandem Option {TOPs! plan.
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COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The Compensation Committee assists the board in overseeing
key compensation and human resources policies, CEO and
executive compensation, and executive management succes-
sion and development. The Committee reports to the board,
as set out in its mandate, and the board or independent direc-
tors give final approval to compensation matters.

All members of the Committee are independent and knowl-
edgeable about our compensation programs and policies. Five
members of the Committee are skilled or expert in compensa-
tion, the area of expertise most relevant to carrying out the
Committee’s mandate.

Changes to Committee Membership in 2007
There were no changes to the Committee membership in
2007.

Key Activities in 2007

= Recommended compensation programs for base salary,
annual cash and long-term incentives (Tandem Option
{TOPs) Plan and Stock Appreciation Rights (STARs} Plan);

» Recommended salaries, bonuses and granis of TOPs to
the executives;

» Assessed CEO performance on short-term and long-term
corporate goals and objectives and recommended CEQ
compensation, which was approved by the independent
directors of the board;

Fees Billed by Outside Consultant (Mercer)

» Reviewed the CEQO’s annual objectives and our executive
management successicn and development plans;

» Evaluated and recommended organizational changes and
cificer appointments;

= Recommended special recognition awards for key busi-
ness initiatives;

= Recommended director compensation, including DSU
grants; and

= Reviewed existing change of contro! agreements for
executives in light of current compensation.

Outside Consultant

The Committee engaged Mercer Human Resources
Consulting {Mercer) to provide a confidential report and tech-
nical analysis of market data on the CEC’s compensation, in
light of our operations and compensation programs. Mercer
also provided a compensation report on a select group of
our executives. The reports included competitive information
from a list of peer companies recommended by Mercer. The
decisions of the Cammittee are their responsibility and may
reflect factors other than the information and recommenda-
tions provided by Mercer and management.

Mercer did not provide any compensation consulting services to
management in 2007. We participaied in compensation surveys
in Canada and international locations and purchased select
published results. Management must obtain Cormmittee approval
before retaining Mercer for any compensation consulting work.

Percentage of Total

Type of Fee Billed in 2006 Bilted in 2007 Fees billed in 2007
Committee work—Assessment of CEQ and executive compensation 37,780 49,610 100%
Management work—Adr;iﬁislrative services o 3?47_0 B - L
Total Annual Fees 41,250 49,610 100%

External Recognition and Verification

Nexen was recognized for its human resource practices

during 2007, including being named cne of:

= Canada's 50 Best Employers in Canada by Hewitt
Associates Inc.;

= Alberta’s Top Employers by Mediacorp Canada Inc.; and

= Canada's 30 Best Pension and Benefits Plans by Benefits
Canada magazine.

Committee Approval

The Commitiee has reviewed and discussed with manage-
ment the compensation disclosure in this document, including
the information in the Board of Directors section on pages
131 through 132, in the Compensation Overview section on
pages 136 through 140 and in the Executive Compensaticn

section on pages 142 through 150, and has recommended
to the board that it be included in the Management Proxy
Circular for the 2008 Annual General and Special Meeting of
Shareholders and, as appropriaie, Form 10-K.

Submitted on behalf of the
Compensation Committee:
Kevin Jenkins, Chair

Barry Jackson

Anne McLellan

Tom O'Neill

Francis Saville

Dick Thomson

John Willson




COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS

AND INSIDER PARTICIPATION

The members of the Compensaticn Committee are set out on
page 130. Mr. Saville had a relationship requiring disclosure, the
detaits of which are set out under “Certain Relationships and
Related Transactions, and Director Independence” on page 155.
There are no Compensation Committee interlocks during 2007.

COMPENSATION OVERVIEW

Compensation Disclosure

Our compensation disclosure complies with the requirements
of the Canadian Securities Administrators. As a foreign private
issuer in the US, we are not required to disclose compensation
according 10 the SEC rules issued in 2006. We have, however,
complied with the spirit of those rules where possible, without
campromising required Canadian disclosure.

Compensation Philosophy

Our policies and practices for executive compensation are linked

10 strategic business objectives, including increasing shareowner

returns. Qur philosophy is to compensate executives:

» hased on performance;

= at a level competitive with our peers; and

= ina manner designed to attract and retain talented
leadership focused on managing Nexen's operations,
finances and assets,

All of our compensation programs are designed to meet
pay-for-performance and competitiveness objectives. Actual
rewards are directly linked to the results of Nexen and our
divisions. The objective and subjective performance measures
are aligned with shareowner interests, including financial
and non-financial goals. Measures set each year represent
improvements to our operations.

Our programs are responsive to market changes. We aim for
simplicity in our compensation programs to help employees
understand the value of the various components. Executive
programs are generally consistent with employee programs
in the same location. Where certain programs, such as perqui-
sites, are anly provided to executives or senior management,
they reflect competitive practice and particular business
needs and objectives.

Key Elements of Compensation

Benchmark Review

We use third-party compensation surveys to compare our
pay levels and practices, including base pay, annual cash
incentives and long-term incentives, to our peers. We look
mainly at Canadian-based oil and gas and integrated pipeline
companies with whom we compete for talent. Given similar
positions across the industry, the surveys effectively repre-
sent competitive pay levels. 1t should be noted, however,
we do not know the extent to which our peers particpate in
the surveys and benchmark each position. The peer group
is modified in some cases to reflect (i) geographical location,
(i) a particular business ling, {iii} a more comparable position,
or {iv) industry mergers and acquisitions.

The composition of our peer group is reviewed annually by
third-party consultants and the Compensation Committee
for continued relevance. In 2007, our executive peer groups
comprised up to 168 companies, including the following
publicly-traded companigs:

Canadian Natural Resources Limited

Enbridge Inc,

EnCana Corporation

Husky Energy Inc.

Petro-Canada

Suncor Energy Inc.

Talisman Energy Inc.

TransCanada Corporation

The Compensation Committee reviews all programs to
ensure we continue to attract and retain the high-performing
employees needed to achieve our business cbjectives, while
demonstrating long-term fiscal responsibility to shareowners.

Compensation Objectives

Qur compensation programs include three components: base
salary, annual cash incentive and long-term incentive. At least
once a year we assess the competitiveness of these individual
components and the overall compensation. Our goal is to provide
total compensation for top performing employees between the
50th and 75th percentile as compared to our peers,

Element Component Form Performance Period
Base salary Fixed Cash 1 year
‘ An;u;i:ash incent;e o T ”Variable o - o C;sh ) 1 year
.‘Long—term -inc—en_tive B - i -\Tariable ?OPS and STAiRs Greater than 1 year
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Target Weightings

Since our compensation programs are designed to meet both performance and competitiveness objectives, actual pay will vary
from year to year against the target weightings. In general, the targets are designed to provide most executive compensation
in the form of at-risk pay to ensure alignment with shareowners. Base salary provides a competitive foundation considering
both internal comparability and external market data. Annual cash incentives reward the delivery of results against objective
and subjective measures within a one-year period. Long-term incentives reward Nexen's sustained performance as seen in
share price appreciation. The actual mix between the compensaticn elements varies, depending on the executive’s ability to
influence short and long-term business results, their level, and competitive local market practices.

At-Risk Compensation’

Position Base Salary Annual Cash Incentive Long-Term Incentive
CEO 20% 15% 65%
CFO/Executive VPs 25% 20% 55%
Senior VPs 30% 20% 50%
Note:
1 Represents the percentage of total compensation, excluding benefits, pension and parquisites.
Compensation Approval Process
Management Analysis I ‘ Recommendations | | Decision
Compensation
Surveys
— tndependent
Directors’
Managen'.\ent ‘ : Recommend Approval
Analysis = S —_— CEO's —_—
—_— —_— Compensation
[Componzaticn
Management's o,
: L Recommend
Consultant T ; s
Wi e —_— Executives —_—
- — Compensation
Board
CEQ's Approval
Recormmendations
on Executives’
Compensation Mercer
{Outside
Consultant)

In determining our executives’ base salary, annual cash and
tong-term incentives, the Compensation Committee considers
a comprehensive analysis, including a tally sheet prepared
by management with help frem an executive compensation
cansultant. The analysis includes market data for similar posi-
tions within the peer group and CEQ recommendations for
his direct reports, including al! of the other named executive
officers {executives) and information on prior year annual cash
and long-term incentives. Management also provides a sensi-
tivity analysis that considers the pension cost implications for
each 1% of incremental pensionable earnings.

The Committee reviews the various compensation elements
both indvidually and in total io ensure they align with the
program objectives. In addition, the Committee retains the
services of its own executive compensation consultant,
Mercer, to provide external market data and commentary
on the relative positioning of executives, particularly the
CEO. The Committee then makes recommendations on all
executive payments and grants to the board or independent
directors for approval, Typically, this process begins in the fall
and conciudes with total compensation being approved the
following February.



Base Salaries

A framework of job fevels based on internal comparakility and external market data is used to determine base salaries, considering

the individual's current and sustained performance, skills and potential.

Annual Cash Incentives

The program provides competitive bonus compensation that reflects Nexen's overall performance and that of the individual.

2007 Annual Incentive Measures

The board, at the recommendation of the Compensation Committee, approves the factor that determines the cash pool available
for annual cash incentives after reviewing Nexen's objective and subjective performance measures. The factor may range from
0 w0 200%. The factors used were 200% in 2005, 120% in 2006 and 88% in 2007.

2007 Objective Performance Measures {50%)

Measure Target Results Results versus Target
Cash flow {25%) $3,290 million $3,458 million 105%
Net income {25%} $981 million $1,086 million 1%

2007 Subjective Performance Measures (50%)

The Compensation Committee subjectively considers 19
business measures commonly used in our industry. They
inctude, among other things, stock performance, annual stock
performance against peers, production volumes, safety and
environmental incidents, and reserve-related metrics. The
Committee also assesses costs, including finding and devel-
opment, aperating and administrative. The business measures
are assessed against objectives in light of our external envi-
ronment and current business circumstances, including key
projects and initiatives critical to Nexen's success. Both
absolute performance and performance relative to peers are
reviewed. The Commitiee also considers management’s
assessment of Nexen's performance and progress against
the strategic plan. The Committee exercises its discretion in
assessing Nexen's overall performance and may increase or
decrease the total cash available for these awards. For 2007,
the Committee considered that, while our financial results
were strong, we were not as successful in achieving certain
other business targets.

The cash pool available for annual incentives is then allocated
to employees and executives based on individual target levels
and performance. The targets for individual awards increase as
job responsibilities grow so that the ratio of at-risk versus fixed
compensation is greater for higher levels of responsibility.
Individual performance is assessed by the direct supervisor
and reflects performance against pre-determined chjectives.
The actual incentive award received by the executive may be
more or less than the target level. Typically, executive awards
range from O to 200% of the target for that position.

2007 Annual Incentive Targets’

Pasition Minimum Target Maximum

CEQ? 0% 80% 160%

CFO/Executive VPs 0% 60% 120%
-SeniorVPs - 0% i -45% ‘50%
Notes:

i Reflects parcantage of base salary on December 31, 2007,

2 To ensure competitive compensation, the indepandent directors of the
board increasad tha targe! from 75% to BO% and the maximun from
150% ro 160% effective January 1, 2007,

Reimbursement

If, as a result of misconduct, Nexen's performance results
were restated in a way that decreased the incentive awards,
the CEC and CFO would reimburse Nexen proportionately
as required by law.

Share Ownership Guidelines

All executive officers demonstrate their commitment to
Nexen by holding more shares than required under our board
approved guidelines. Shares must be accumulated within
five years from date the executive was appointed. Share
ownership includes the net value of exercisable options or
TQPs, flow-through shares, shares purchased and held within
the Nexen employee savings plan and any other personal
holdings. The guidelines are reviewed periodically by the
Compensation Committee and the board. See page 144 for
the current share ownership of each executive.

Position Requirad Share Ownership
CEQ Three times annual salary
CFO Two times annual salary

Other executive officers One times annual salary
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Long-term Incentives

The TOPs and STARs plans provide employees with a long-
term incentive to continue high performance, demonstrate
commitment to Nexen and, most importantly, align their inter-
ests with those of our shareowners. As Nexen's share price
rises, grants increase in value, Nexen's long-term incentive
program (the TOPs and STARs plans) are granted to officers
and employees whose actions can most directly impact our
business results.

In determining the number of TOPs and STARs to grant each
year, Nexen considers the program’s dilutive impact on share-
owners and market information on options and other forms
of long-term incentives. Market information also determines
the extent to which employees at different levels participate in
the program. Management and the Compensation Committee
have considered alternative long-term incentive programs
used by our peers, including full-value plans such as DSUs,
restricted share units and performance-based stock options.
At this time, TOPs and STARs continue to best meet Nexan's
objectives, considering competitive position, retenticn value,
tax effectiveness for both our employees and Nexen, shar-
eowner interests, and dilution levels.

TOPs Plan

Our TOPs plan has been in place since 2004. It allows

employees to either:

= exchange their vested TOPs for a cash payment equal to
the difference between the grant price and the closing
market price of our commaon shares on the date the
TOPs were exchanged; or

= exercise their TOPs for shares.

When employees exchange their TOPs for cash: (i} no shares are
issued, which prevents further shareowner dilution over time;

and (i} Nexen receives a Canadian income tax deduction.

2007 TOPs Plan Exercises and Exchanges

Total exercised or exchanged 6,670,714

2,256,954 (34%)
4,413,760 166%)

Exercised for shares (percent)

Exchanged for cash {percent)

TOPs do not provide employees with the right to vote the
underlying shares. The TOPs plan is Nexen's only equity-basec
compensation arrangement for the purposes of disclosure
requirements.

The board, on the recemmendation of the Compensation
Committee, may grant TOPs 1o Nexen officers and employees.
TOPs granted before February 2001 have a term of ten years;
20% of the grant vested after six months and 20% vested
each year for four years on the grant’s anniversary. TOPs
granted after February 2001 have a term of five years and
vest one-third each year for three years.

Generally, if a change of control event occurs {as defined in the
TOPs plan), all issued but unvested options will vest. The board
approved mincr amendments to the TOPs plan in 2007.

STARs Plan

The STARs plan, introduced in 2001, provides a cash payment
to participants equal to the appreciation in Nexen's share
price between the date the STARs are granted and the date
they are exercised. STARs are typically granted to employees
below mid-level department manager. They have a five-year
term and vest one-third each year for three years.

Grant Date and Exercise Price

TOPs and STARs are granted during the annual grant process
and at the time of hiring key positions. Since 1998, the annual
grants have been approved at the December board meeting.
According to our plans, the CEQ can approve grants to key
new hires and typically they occur shortly after the hire date.
Under the plans, the exercise price is the closing market price
of Nexen's common shares on the relevant stock exchange
(TSX for Canadian-based employees or NYSE for US-based
employees) an the day before the grant is approved.
Accordingly, backdating is not allowed. Nexen's grants are not
intentionally timed to occur immediately prior to the release
of material information (spring-loaded). The exercise price
of existing TOPs or STARs may not be reduced except for
autcmatic adjustments under the plans {for example, on share
splits} or according to TSX rules.



Grants in the Last Three Years

QOur 2007 long-term incentives recognized high performance, future potential within Nexen and retention risk.

Granted to Granted Percentage of Employees Total Number
Yaar Executive Officers to Employees Receiving Grants Granted
TOPs
2007 1,735,000 2,272,100 7% 4,007,100
20061 1,480,000 3,321,000 7% 4,801,000
2005° 1,184,000 5,599,000 20% 6,783,000
STARs
2007 4,194,600 54% 4,194,600
2006 4,508,600 51% 4,508,600
2005 2,886,100 39% 2,886,100
Wote:

1 Numbers of TOPs and STARs granted have been adjusted to accoun for Nexen's two-for-one shara split in May 2005 and May 2007

Benefit and Pension Plans

Our benefit and pension plans support the health and well-
being of our employees, and encourage retirement savings.
The plans are reviewed periodically 1o ensure they remain
competitive and continug to meet our cbjectives. Market
survey data is reviewed to ensure the plans provide benefits
between the 50th and 75th percentile of plans within our peer
group of companies. Executives participate in the same plans
provided 1o all employees at the same location,

Disclosure in this document is specific to the Canadian and
US plans in which the executives participate. Nexen provides
a variety of other benefit and pension plans ouiside of Canada
and the US that reflect local market practices.

Health and Welfare Benefits

Cur penefit plans are designed to protect employees’ health
and that of their dependents, and cover them in the event
of disability or death. Under the flexible benefits plans,
employees choose the level of coverage that best fits their
needs. Those who select enhanced coverage levels are
required to contribute to the cost of that coverage.

Employee Savings Plan

In the employee savings plan, all eligible Canadian employees
may contribute, through payroll deduction, any percentage
of their base salary to purchase Nexen common shares,
mutual fund units or a combination of both. Nexen matches
employee contributions up to 6% of base salary, depending
on the investment option and how long the employee has
participated in the plan. Nexen contiibutions are invested in
our common shares purchased on the open market and vest
immediately. All contributions may be allocated to registered
or non-registered accounts. Employees may vote the Nexen

common shares they hold in their employee savings plan.

The employee savings plan in the US is intended to qualify
under Section 401(a) and 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code.
Nexen's matching contribution, of up to 6% of eligible compen-
sation, is provided in cash, which vests immediatety.

Defined Benefit Pension Plan {Canada)

Canadian employees of Nexen elect, upon hire, to participate

in either the defined contribution pension plan or the defined

benefit pension plan, both of which are registered. Al

executives participated in the defined benefit pension plan

in 2007. Itis funded by a pension trust and features:

= participant contributions at 3% of their reqular gross
earnings {up to an annual plan maximum);

= retirement bepefits at 1.8% {1.7% for years prior to 2005)
of their average earnings for the 36 highest-paid consec-
utive months during the ten years before retirement,
muitiplied by the years of credited service;

= integration with Canada Pension Plan ({CPP) to provide a
maximum offset of one-half of the current CPP benefit;

= benefits on retirement that are generally paid monthly for
the life of the retiree, subject to payment elections; and

« ahility for participants to periodically switch between the
defined benefit pensien plan and defined contribution
pension plan at different stages in their career.

Pension benefits earned prior to January 1, 1993, may

be indexed at the discretion of management’s pension

committee, considering increases in the consumer price

index. Pension benefits earned after December 31, 1992,

are indexed annually between 0 and 5% based on the

greater of:

« 75% of the increase in the consumer price index, less
1%, and

s 25% of the increase in the consumer price index.
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Plan participants may increase their defined benefit accrual
formula on a go-forward basis, from 1.8% to 2%. Employees
who choose this option must contribute an additional 2% of
pensicnable earnings up to an allowable maximum under the
Canadian Income Tax Act. The maximum empioyee contribu-
tion allowed under the defined benefit pension plan in 2007
was $10,700.

Executive Benefit Plan {Canada)

The executive benefit plan is available to all Canadian
employees. It provides supplemental retirement benefits for
participants who have earned a retirement benefit in excess
of the statutory limits, which varies by employees’ pension
elections. This allows employees to accrue a pension that is
aligned with their final earnings level and is competitive within
our market. Under this plan, benefits accrue and are paid
monthly in a similar manner 10 the underlying defined benefit
pension plan set out above on page 139. Far executives,
annual cash incentive paymentis during the last three years
they participated in this plan are included for benefit accrual
purposes. For annual cash incentives, the pension benefit is
accrued on the lesser of target bonus or actual bonus paid,
averaged over the final three years of participation.

Pension Benefit Security

The pension expense for this supplemental plan is accounted
for annually. Benefits are paid from Nexen's cash flows and
reduce the related pension liability. As liabilities under this
plan are not funded outside of Nexen, a leve! of protection is
provided to participants through a letter of credit. The letter
of credit is intended to make participants secured creditors
for the total value of Nexen's unfunded pension obligation.
The cost of servicing the letter of credit in 2007 for all plan
participants was $509,135.

Pension Benefit Obligation

At December 31, 2007, as indicated in the notes to our

financial statements, the:

= supplemental pensicn plan's accumulated benefit obliga-
tion {the projected benefit obligation, excluding future
salary increases) for the executive benefit plan was
$48 million; and

= projected benefit obligation was $62 million.

The projecied benefit obligation is an estimate based on
contractual entitlements that may change over time. The
method used to determine this estimate will not be identical o
those used by others and, as a result, the estimate may not be
directly comparable across companies. The key assumptions
used for the projected benefit obligation were:
v 3 discount rate of 5.25% per year;
« along-term compensation rate increase of 4% per

year; and
= an expected average remaining service life of ten years.

As of January 1, 2005, the executive benefit plan was
amended to provide a supplemental pension allocation
for defined contribution pension plan participants who are
impacted by annual statutory contribution limits. In 2007, the
supplemental allocation for eligible participants was $35,341
and is estimated to be $37,000 in 2008.

Defined Contribution Pension Plan {US}

All US employees participaie in this qualified retirement plan.
Nexen coniributes 6% of eligible compensation up to the
social security wage base, and, 11.5% of eligible compen-
sation that exceeds the social security taxable wage base.
For 2007, Nexen's maximum contribution per participant was
US$20,513. Employees are not permitted to contribute to the
plan, Investment dacisions are made by the employee from a
variety of mutual funds. The contributions vest after twa years
of service. This ptan is intended to be an Employee Retirement
Income Security Act (ERISA) 404(c) plan. Only one executive
participated in the defined contribution pension plan for US
employees in 2007.

Non-Qualified Restoration Plan {US)

This supplemental plan is available to all US employees. It is
an unfunded arrangement that provides deferred compensa-
tton henefits to participants who have earned a retirement
benefit in excess of the statutory limits. The returns in this
plan reflect the returns on the investments selected by the
employee. The plan complies with Section 4094 of the Internal
Revenue Code.

Loans to Officers

As set out in the corporate governance policy, Nexen does
not make loans to its officers. There are no loans cutstanding
from Nexen to any of its officers.



EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
The board determines the term of office for each executive officer. Below are Nexen's officers, including prior offices and

non-executive positions for officers who have held thair current executive positions with Nexen for less than five years. Start
dates are indicated for officer positions with Nexen,
Effective Date of Executive
Officer (Age) Current and Past Position(s} with Nexen Current Position Ofticer Since
Charles W, Fischer (57) President and CEQ and a director June 1, 2001 1984
Marvin F. Romanow (52) Executive VP and CFO June 1, 2001 1997
Laurence Murphy (56} Executive VP, International Qil and Gas November 1, 2007 1938
Formerly: Senior VP, Interpational Qil and Gas since
January 1, 1399
Roger D. Thomas {55) Executive VF. North America Novemnber 1, 2007 1998
Formerly: Senior VP, Canadian Qil and Gas since
February 19,1999
Gary H. Nieuwenburg {49} Senior VP, Synthetic Crude November 1, 2007 2001
Formerty: VP, Synthetic Crude since July 11, 2002
Kevin J. Reinhart {49) Senior VP, Corporate Planning and Business Development Naovember 1, 2007 1994
Formerly: VP, Corporate Planning and Business Development
since July 11, 2002
Brian C. Reinsborough (46) Senior VP, United States Qil and Gas November 1, 2007 2007
Formerly: Division VP, Exploration, Operations and
Production since May 12, 20086; Division VP, Exploration
since July 8, 2002
Timothy J. Thomas (50) Senior VP, Canadian Qil and Gas November 1, 2007 2007
Formerly: Division VP, Exploration and Production,
Canadian Oil and Gas since April 1, 2004; Division VP, Yemen
QOperations and International Business Development since
January 1, 2003
Randy J. Jahrig (52} VP, Human Resources and Corporats Services April 26, 2007 2007
Formerly: Division VP, Human Resources Canada and
Internationat since April 1, 2002
Kim D. McKenzie (53] VP and Chief Information Officer November 1, 2007 2007
Formerly: Division VP, Information Technology since
January 1, 1992
Eric B. Miller {45 ' VP, General Counsel and Secretary July 11, 2007 2007
Formerly: Division VP and Chief Legal Counsel since
July 1, 2006; Division VP, Legal Canadian Oil and Gas
since March 1, 2002
Una M. Power (43) Treasurer July 11, 2002 1998
Brendon T. Muller (39} Controller April 9, 2007 2007
Formerly: Manager, Corporate External Reponting since
MNovember 1, 2003; Team Lead, Corporate Accounting since
April 1, 2002
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SHARE SPLITS
All grant prices and numbers granted have been adjusted to account for the May 2005 and May 2007 share splits.

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE
The compensation for the CEQ, CFO and the next three highest paid officers (named execuiive oificers or execuiives), plus
Mr. Douglas Otten who retired Novemnber 1, 2007, is provided. To determine the next three highest paid officers we total their

salary, special bonus and nen-gquity cash incentive compensation as show below.
Annual Long-Term Other
MNon-Equity Changes in
Special Cash Incentive TOPs TOPs Pension All Other Total
Name and Salary Bonus' Compensation?] Awards Awards?| Obligations* Compensation®*| Compensation®
Principal Position Year (% % (%) (# 3 {3 (s {3
Charles W. Fischer, 2007 | 1,275,000 - 916,000 | 600,000 5,110,200 949,300 119,640 8,370,140
President 2006 | 1,150,000 500,000 1,300,000 | 550,000 5,010,664 1,673,800 111,621 9,746,075
and CEQ 2005 975,000 300,000 1,500,000 | 400,000 3,110,480 879,300 101,364 6,866,154
Marvin F. Romanow,” 2007 566,250 - 330,000 | 180,000 1,533,060 323,300 117,129 2,869,739
Executive VP 2006 528,000 - 402,000 | 160,000 1,457,645 534,800 118,073 3,040,518
and CFO 2005 486,000 175,000 580,000 [ 124,000 964,252 176,300 89,557 2,481,109
Laurence Murphy,
Executive VP, 2007 495,833 - 303,000 [ 165,000 1,405,305 583,300 57,214 2,844,652
International 2006 455,000 300,000 342,000 | 130,000 1,184,336 580,800 53,711 2,915,847
Qil and Gas 2005 405,000 - 410,000 | 100,000 777.623 141,300 44,439 1,778,362
Roger D. Thomas, 2007 487,500 - 275,000 | 165,000 1,405,305 792,300 56,690 3,016,795
Executive VP, 2006 445,000 - 336,000 | 130,000 1,184,336 735,800 53,086 2,754,222
Narth America 2005 394,250 200,000 400,000 | 100,000 777,623 167,300 50,773 1,989,946
Gary H. Nieuwenburg, 2007 360,667 - 191,000 | 100,000 851,700 267,300 48,775 1,719,442
Senior VP, 2006 328,850 - 210,000 | 100,000 911,028 284,800 51,944 1,786,622
Synthetic Crude 2005 303,050 7,500 275,000 80,000 622,098 61,300 50,459 1,319,407
Douglas B. Otten,* 2007 387,763 - 201,245 - - - 93,518 682,526
Senior VP, 2006 439,716 - 326,938 | 110,000 990,017 - 107,228 1,863,899
US Qil and Gas 2005 423,489 - 430,154 | 100,000 815,163 - 102,853 1,771,659

Notes.

!
2

3

E-8

Special discretionary award(s) are earned in tha year shown and include cash awards approved by the board for successful delivary of kay business objectives.
Reflects the value of awards earned in each year under Nexen's annual cash incentive program. The swards are paid to the exscutives in the following
calendar year based on their salary on December 31 of the previous year.

Reflects the estimatad fair value undar the Black-Scholas pricing modef of TOPs granted in the year.

Represents the employer service cost, plus changes in compensation in excess of actuarial assumptions, less required member contributions to the plan.

The total value of the perquisites portion of Alf Other Compensation provided to each executive fs less than $50.000 and fess than 10% of their total annual
salary plus bonus. See the table on page 148 for details of these amounts.

Certain prior year numbers have been restated 10 include the toral value of parquisites as described in note 5.

Mr. Remanow is a director of Canexus and was paid fees of $32,500, received deferred trust units of Canexus valued at $19 560 and distributions on his trust
units of $4,259 in 2007. In 2006, he was paid fees of $34,000, received deferred trust units of Canexus valued at $24,000 and distnbutions on his trust units
of $2,571. In 2005, he was paid fees of $13,875, raceived doferred trust units of Canexus valued at $20,000 and distributions on his trust units of 3659, These
amounts are included in the All Other Compensation table on page 148.

2007 TOPs grants occurred after Mr. Otten retired. Nexen contributed to a qualified defined contribution pension plan and a restoration plan with Nexen
Petrotaum U.5.A. Inc, for Mr. Otten, which are reported in All Other Cormpensation on page 148.

Changes in Compensation Arrangemaents in 2007
The compensation paid to executives in 2007 is consistent with our philosophy and objectives of targeting total compensaticn

b
a
C

etwaen b0th and 75th percentile as detailed on pages 135 through 137. Variable compensation links to Nexen's business results
nd the executive's performance, consistent with our pay-for-performance philosophy. The decrease in the executives’ annual
ash incentives in 2007 reflects the board's assessment of our relative level of success on certain of our business objectives.

We did not introduce any new compensation or benefit programs in 2007 for Nexen's executives.



Changes in Pension Obligations of objectives in 2007 and their pasitive assessment of his
The summary compensation table shows the year-over-year contribution to continued shareowner value growth and
change in pension obligations. The value reflects the employer strategic plan executicn, he was awarded an annual cash

service cost, plus any changes in obligations resulting from incentive of $916,000 which was his target bonus times 88%.
compensation increases over actuarial assumpticns. Actual Specifically, Mr. Fischer's goals in 2007 were to:
compensation changes may vary from the assumed rate of * develop and implement a corporate strategy, balancing
compensation increase and will vary among each executive short-term growth while positioning Nexen for sustain-
from year to vear. These values differ from pension benefit able growth;
reported on page 147, which discloses estimated values of » achieve capital, operating, and general and administrative
annual pension benefits earned to date, as well as at age 80 cost performance targets set out in the annual operating
(the earliest unreduced retirement age). They also differ from plan (AOP);
the termination values reported under the change of controt = achieve targets for operating cash flow, earnings,
agreements on page 150, which disclose additional lump sum production levels and reserve replacement set out
pension benefits provided if a change of control occurs. in the AOP;

= maintain financial flexibility and liquidity to support our
CEO COMPENSATION AND 2007 GOALS business strategies;
Mr. Fischer's responsibility is to provide leadership in setting = achieve top-quartile performange in health, safety and
and achieving goals that create value for our shareowners in environmental performance and social responsibility;
the short term and long term. His 2007 annual cash incentive = provide for corporate management successicn and
award was hased on the corporate results described on page development;
137, which determined the total cash available for the awards. = ensure Nexen adheres to the highest standards of
Cash incentive awards are determined from the available pool integrity; and
and distributed to individuals based on specific annua! goals. = demonstrate his personal commitment to community
Based on the board's assessment of Mr. Fischer's achievement and industry leadership.

CEO THREE-YEAR LOOK-BACK
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Total 2007 2006 2005
Cash
Base Salary 3,400,000 1,275,000 1,150,000 975,000
An’rEa'l Ca;hﬁc-er_\l:i\;eT_ T R ML;,5_1 6-,060 ) 916,000 T ‘I,SE),ODO- o 1;8;60—,000
Equity
Value of TOPs? 13,231,344 5,110,200 5.010,654 3,110,490
‘:I'o;aTbirrect C:mpensation - a T “2-1,147,344 ’ 7,301,200 B 7,%).6;4- ——é,ESS,dQO
All-t)ther Cor;pensatio;; T o T B _3-35,6?5” 119,640 ) 111,5217 T '710_1364
;;«n;u]al Change in Pen;;)r; Obdlihg;aAtion‘ . T B N _3;502,;60- ’ 949,300 ’ 1.6_?3,800 o B"I_S;,éﬂo
Total Cost 24,982,369 8,370,140 9,746,075 6,866,154
Annual Average 8,327,456
Total Market Capitalization Growth {$ millions) 10,640 90 2,370 8,180
Total Cost as a % of Market Capitalization Growth T ozwm ST T T

Notes:

1 Includes special bonuses of $500,000 in 20086 for the success of Buzzard and $300,000 in 2005 for successful divestitures.

2 Reflects the estimated fair vaiue of TOPs using the Black-Scholes pricing model valued on the grant date.

3 See page 148 for detais of All Other Compensation,

4 Bepresents the employer service cost, plus changas in compensation in axcess of actuarial assumptions, less requirad member contributions to tha plan.

In 2007, the Compensation Committee reviewed the information above and analyzed Mr. Fischer's total pay and shargowner
value created from the date he became CEO. In the analysis, dollar values were assigned and tallied for each compensation
component including salary, annual cash incentives, TOPs awards, benefits, pension (including annual increases to liabilities)
and potential payments on change of control. The Cormnmittee reviewed his total compensation relative 10 Nexen's growth in
shareowner value (market capitalization} and the growth of industry peers.
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EQUITY OWNERSHIP AND CHANGES IN 2007
According to our share ownership guidelines, Mr. Fischer is required to hold three times his annual salary, Mr. Romanow, two

times his annual salary and the other executives, one times their annual salary.

Dec 31, 2006 Dec 31, 2007 Net Change Equity at Risk
Value? Multiple of

Name Shares TOPs' Shares TOPs' Shares TOPs? %) Satary*
Fischer 166,516 2,458,000 183,416 2,215,000 16,900 {243,000} 46,460,074 36
Romanow 51,874 814,920 80,938 785,480 29,064 (29,440} 16,729,050 30
Murphy 111,656 236,240 125,226 164,000 13,570 (72,240} 5,387,856 1
Thomas B.,580% 269,200 16,227 395,200 7,647 130,000 6,683,692 14
Nieuwenburg 59,040 238,800 65,795 265,600 6,755 26,800 5,944,054 6
Otten 70,072 460,288 34,458 254,952 135,614) (205,336) 5,483,913 14
Total 467,738 4,477,448 506,060 4,084,232 38,322 (393,216) | 86,688,539

Notes:

1 Aepresents total TOPs granted, vested and unexercised.

2 Beflacts the numbar of TOPs that vested, minus the number excreised or axchanged during 2007.

3 Equity at risk is the markst value of cormon shares and vested TOPs using the closing price of Nexen shares on the T5X on December 31, 2007 of $32.10.

4 Reflects the equity at risk, divided by the executive’s 2007 safary amount shown on page 142,

5§ Amount inciudas aight commeon shares not previously reported

TOPS TABLES

To value TOPs grants, Nexen uses the Black-Scholes pricing model, which is a generally accepted method for measuring this
type of long-term incentive. The actual value realized on exercises may be higher or lower depending on the Nexen share

price at the time of exercise.

TOPs Granted in 2007

Potential Realizable Value at
Assumed Annual Rates of Share
Price Appreciation for TOPs Term

TOPs % of Total Exercise TOPs

Granted TOPs Granted Price’ Expiry Value? 5% 10%
Name Grant Date (#)  to Employees [£3) Date %} 3 15}
Fischer Dec 3, 2007 600,000 15.0 28.39 Dec 2, 2012 5,110,200 4,706,180 10,399,427
Romanow Dec 3, 2007 180,000 45 28.39 Dec 2, 2012 1,533,060 1,411,854 3,119,828
Murphy Dec 3, 2007 165,000 4.1 28.39 Dec 2, 2012 1,405,305 1,294,200 2,859,843
Thomas Dec 3, 2007 165,000 4.1 28.39 Dec 2, 2012 1,406,305 1,294,200 2,859,843
Nieuwenhurg  Dec 3, 2007 100,000 2.5 28.39 Dec 2, 2012 851,700 784,363 1,733,238

Notes:

1 Reflects the closing market price of Nexen common shares on the TSX on November 30, 2007
2 Reflects the estimated far value of the TOPs as at Dacember 3, 2007 using the Black-Scholes pricing model.

TOPs Exercised or Exchanged and Awards Vested in 2007

TOPs Awards Stock Awards'
Exercised or Shares Acquired

Exchanged Value Realized? on Vesting Vaiue Realized
Name # i (# [t]
Fischer 760,000 18,182,000 - -
Romanow _ ) 200,000 4,381,500 - -
Murphy 202,240 4,802,413 - ]
Thomas - - B ] '—
Niewenhurg 7 73,200 {,ESBTLTZB - - -
Otten 300,608 7,566,047 - -
Total 1,536,048 36,792,088 - -

Nates:

1 Nexen does not provide stock awards 10 executives.
2 Reflects the market price at the tima of the exercise or exchange, minus the exercise price, as dafined in the TOPs plan.




TOPs Holdings and Value of In-the-Money TOPs

Vested and Unvastad Vested TOPs
TOPs at Dec 31, 20072 at Dec 31, 20072

Date Grant Price Granted Number Value* Number Value?®

Name Granted  Expiry Date % [t e (%} (#l {3}
Fischer Dec 15, 1998 Dec 14, 2008 4.,4625 200,000 200,000 5,627,500 200,000 . 5,627,500
6&(: 14, 1995}_ - Dec 13, 20@ i . 6T81_25 '236,600 ' 280,000 o 7,080,500 1 230,060— 7,080,500

B Dec 12, 2000 _Dec 1, 2015 é.a?go 7 772;,000 77280,000 N 5,451,000“ ) 280,005- ) 6,461,000
T -_ljec 9, 2003_ - Dec 8, 2508_ 1-0.8750 N 400,030 1 406,7000 o 8:496,06(;- o 7460,000 8,490,000
o __Der: 7. 2004 Dec 6, 200_9 12.'1-’1_7-5 o _6(-10_,000 . 600,000 711,629,500 I GOO,UE— 11,629,500
o —Dec 6,-2005_ Dec 5, 2010 27.%56 4—06,600 ‘ 7_:100.000 7 1,925,0004 - ZGBJJE" 1,250,420
- Dec 4,-2065_ Dt-?C 3 2'07 31_.-6_050 “5;0,006- _—550006 o 275,000 1 187,0?‘ 93,500
o _—Déc 3, 2007 ) Dec 2, 201; - 23390-0 A E,D-OO 7 7600,000 _‘;.2-26,00-0_ B o j ) -
Total 3,310,000 3,310,000 43,615,500 2,215,000 40,572,420
Romanow Dec 12, 2000 Dec 11, 2010 9.0250 200,000 200,000 4,615,000 200,000 4,615,000
- - Bec 9, 2-00_3 o Dec 8, 200-87 10.5{50 226,000 7 _L220.000 - 4,669,500 220,-60_0_4 4,669,500

) Dec 7, 2004 - Dec 6, 2009“ 12.7—17;5 Z_Zé,UOO 228,000 o 4.419,21(.'!_ B 228,00_0- ) 4,419,210

i i D;rc 6, 2005 D_ec 5,_2613__ -A-2?550- ) _aovdo o ;éd,UOU T 5&&,0453_._ -83.&—- 400,030
o ) _D-ec 4, 2006-_ Dec 3, 2011 31_.6(-)00 TGE._UOO ’ --1_60,060 7 80,000 EE 54,45 i 27,200
o —Dec 3, .2607—- Dec 2, 20i2 23.5900 -1_80_,000 _'léU,UOO - 667,800 N _—- -
Total 1,112,000 1,112,000 15,048,570 785,480 14,130,940
Murphy Dec 7, 2004 Dec 6, 2009 12,7175 160,000 52,800 1,023,396 52,800 1,023,396
T De;: _6-,-2‘065- B Dec 5, ;O;E 277.273750 170707,000 B 150,000- o 431.50-0 | 67,&]0—‘ 322,805
B Dec;,-ZOUS be;é, 2011 5i.500 : a,;oo 7 _LE;U,E]OI)_ - _65,600_ - 44,200 22,100

o ) v_D_B; 3: 2667'-"[56(; 2,720-{27 25.500 %,00{) _1.65,000 o 6:|2,1 50 1 - T. -
Total 555,000 447,800 2,182,046 164,000 1,368,101
Thomas Dec 9, 2003 Dec 8, 2008 10,8750 128,000 128,000 2,716,800 128,000 ) 2,716,800
S Be; 7, 2004_—— Dec 6,50@ ) 1‘2717_57 E;OOO B 160,000 _é:iOTTZ—O?)_ o 16-0,0-03_ 3.101,200
T —D—ec 6, 206—5- B -Dec 5, 2-0-1-0 27—.2—8-50 h GU:BUU- I _;06:060 o ;131,5007‘ i 67,W 322,605
S ——D_e:: 4, ZOOé B 'Dec 3 2_01—1 31_.8000 'E(-J,DUU _136.000 o 65,0067 7 44,200_‘ 22,100
o ) _I-D-ec 3,_200;— Dec 2, 201-2_- 28-.5900 -1E5,-000 - }65,000 o B1 2,i50 1 : _:— -
Total 683,000 683,000 6,976,650 399,200 6,162,705
Nieuwenburg Dec 9, 2003 Dec 8, 2008 10.8750 108,000 58,000 1,231,050 58,000 1,231,050
- - Dec 7, 2004 - Dec 6, 2005 V 1723};5 ';2_0:000 —_'I-Z0,000 2325900 | -120,0?-‘ 2,325,900
© Dec6,2008 Dec5 2010 27.2850 ‘soo00 | 80000 385200 53,600 256,084
© Dec4,2006 Dec3, 201 31.6000 100,000 00000 50000 | 34000 17,000
“Be; 3, 2‘00':;_4 Dec 2, 2011-2k A -28.3‘§E)0 - ) E]B,UOO ) _100,000 371,000— - B F-jﬁ -

Total 508,000 458,000 4,363,150 265,600 3,832,034
Otten Dec 7, 2004 Dec 6, 2009 US5$10.5800 160,000 150,552 3,552,214 150,552 3,552,214
© Dec6.2005 Dec52010  US$23.6060 100,000 | 100000 942687 67000 631534
T Dec 4, 2006 5&(_: :'3,—201 1 L-IS-$27.5000 N 1 10,0007 o ;10.000 o 7570,7':;74_ o “37_',2{;‘ 194,063
Total 270,000 360,562 5,065,575 254,852 4,377.811

Notes:

I Excludes grants that have been fully exercised.

2 The number and vaiue of unvested TOPs can be determined by subtracting the vested TOPs from the vested and unvested TOPs, The valug of unvested TOPs

can be confirmed on page 150 in the Change of Control table.
3 The difference between the marker value of Nexen common shares at year end (TSX—$32.10; NYSE—US $32.27) and the grant price of TOPs, times the
number of TOPs.
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PENSION PLAN TABLES

All executives, except Mr. Otten, are members of Nexen's
registered defined benefit pension plan and executive benefit
plan. Mr. Otten was employed in the US and is a member of a
qualified defined contribution pension plan and a non-qualified
restoration plan, described on page 148.

Estimated Pension Benefit (Canada)

The normal form of benefit paid from these plans is a joint life and
survivor benefit with a five-year guarantee. It is payable for the
participant’s lifetime and provides the spouse with a surviver benefit
of 66 25% of the manthly payment. If the panticipant dies before
receiving 60 monthly payments the five-year guarantee allows the
sLVIVINg spouse to receive the balance of the 60 monthly paymenis
first and then the reduced sunvivor pension of 66 %3%.

In determining the estimated value of future pension bene-
fits for Canadian executives, you must reference both tables
below due to an amendment effective on January 1, 2005.
The amendments increased the accrual formula on the defined

benefit pension plan from 1.7% to a maximum of 2%, The
tirst table is for actual credited service up to and including
December 31, 2004, and the second table is for gredited
service on and after January 1, 2005. Also, please use the
final average earnings outlined in the Pension Value Earned in
2007 (Canada) table on page 147 when referencing tables. The
final average earnings will differ from the three-year average
of base salary and cash incentive payments reported in the
summary compensation table on page 142 due to the timing
of base salary increases and because final average earnings
include the lesser of the target bonus or actual bonus paid.

The table below shows the estimated annual pension a
retiring executive would receive for credited service to and
including December 31, 2004. The annual benafit is based on
a pension accrual formula of 1.7% of final average earnings,
less a plan CPP offset. It includes benefits from both the
registered defined benefit pension plan and the executive
henefit plan and assumes a retirement age of 60, the earliest
age an individual may receive full retirement benefits,

Years of Credited Service through Dec 31, 2004

Final Average Earnings ($) 5 10 15 20 25
400,000 33,260 66,519 99,779 133,039 166,298
_600,000 50,260 100,519 150,779 201,039 251,298
800,000 67,260 134,519 201,779 269,039 336,298
1,000,000 84,260 168,519 252,779 337,039 421,298
1,200,000 101,260 202,519 303,779 405,039 506,298
1,400,000 118,260 236,519 354,779 473,039 591,298
1,600,000 135,260 270,519 405,779 541,039 676,298
1,800,000 152,260 304,519 456,779 609,039 761,298
2,000,000 169,260 338,519 507,779 677,039 846,298
2,200,000 186,260 372,519 558,779 745,039 931,25
2,400,000 203,260 406,519 609,779 813,039 1,016,298

The table below shows the estimated annual pension benefit a retiring executive would receive for credited service earned on
and after January 1, 2005, based on a pension benefit accrual formula of 2% of final average earnings, less a plan CPP offset.
It includes benefits from both the registered defined benefit pension ptan and executive benefit plan and assumes a retirement
age of 60, the earliest age an individual may receive full ratirement benefits.

Years of Credited Service from Jan 1, 2005

Final Average Earnings ($) 3 5 10 15 20 25
400,000 23,556 39,260 78,519 117,779 157,039 196,298
600,000 35,556 59,260 118,519 177,779 237,039 296,298
800,000 47,556 79,260 158,519 237,779 317,039 396,298

1,000,000 53,556 99,260 198,518 297,779 397,033 496,298

1,200,000 71,556 119,260 238,519 357,779 477,039 596,298

1,400,000 83,556 139,260 278,518 417,779 557,03% 696,298

1,600,000 95,556 158,260 318,519 477,779 637,039 796,298

1,800,000 107,566 179,260 358,519 837,779 717,039 896,298

2,000,000 119,556 199,260 398,519 597,779 797,039 996,298_

2,200,000 131,556 218,260 438,519 657,779 877,039 1,096,298

2,400,000 143,556 239,260 478,519 717,779 957,039 1,196,298




Pension Value Earned in 2007 (Canada)

The board must approve additional past service credits or accelerated service credits. No acceleratad service credits were

authorized in 2007, The table below shows additional past service credits authorized by the board for the executives who

participate in the Canadian defined benefit pension plan and the executive benefit plan. The final average earnings reporied

for each executive include his:

= average base salary for the 36 highest paid consecutive months during the ten years before his retirement; plus

= annual cash incentive payments at the lesser of the target bonus or actual bonus paid, averaged over his final three years
of participation. '

No benefit payments were made to executives in the last fiscal year.

Estimated Annual Pension

Years of Credited Service Accrued Annual Pension Benefit' Benefit at Age 60

Up to From Finatl Under the Under the Under the Under the

Dec 31, Jan 1, Average | Defined Benefit Executive | Defined Benefit Executive
2004 2005 Total Earnings* Pension Plan Benefit Plan? Pension Ptan Benefit Plan?

Name (#} # (#} % % (3 8 3]
Fischer 20.58* 3.00 23.58 1,908,333 30,185 748,579 38,704 992,228
Romanow 17.50%% 3.00 20.50 818,950 23,333 302,420 44,407 463,685
Murphy 18.67 3.00 21.67 666,278 48,148 200,053 61,315 305,566
Thomas 24,504 3.00 27.50 651,183 38,889 267,328 55,000 419,576
Nieuwenburg -5 3.00 3.00 461,199 6,667 72,818 34,426 198,807

Notes:

1 Al information as of December 31, 2007.

2 Age 60 s the earfiest age an individual can raceive full retirement benefits,

3 Reprasents the portion of the accrued annual pension benefit estimated under the exacutive benefit plan,

4 Ten years of additional past service credits were granted to each of Messrs. Fischer, Romanow and Thomas by the board in 2001.

5 Mr. Romanow joined the defined benefit pension plan after 7.25 years in the defined contribution pension plan. The pensionable bonus provision 1ecegnizes
a pension benefit for Mr. Romanow based on his combined 27,75 years of service, while the base salary provision recognizes a pension benefit for his 20.5
years of defined benefit pension pian service only. The vaiue of tha pensicn benefit resulting from the additional 7.25 yeers 1s reflected in the pension benefit
valuas above.

& Mr. Nieuwenburg joined the definad benefit pension plan after 23.58 years in tha defined contribution pension plam.
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Pension Benefit Obligation Increase in 2007 (Canada)

Our reported values use actuariat assumptions and methods consistent with those used to calculate pension liabilities and the
related annual expense disclosed in our financial statements. As the assumptions reflect our best estimate of future events,
our reported values may net be directly comparable to similar pension liability values disclosed by other companies.

Changes Related to Changes Related to

Current Service Financing Costs and
Obligation at Cost and Earnings Non-Compensation Change in Obligation Obligation at
Name Dec 31, 2006 Increases’ Assumption Changes? since Dec 31, 2006 Dac 31, 2007
Fischer 11,157,800 949,300 552,900 1,602,200 12,660,000
Romanow 4,296,800 323,300 101,900 425,200 4,722,000
Murphy 3,287,800 583,300 169,900 753,200 4,041,000
Thomas 4,195,800 792,300 121,900 914,200 5,110,000
Nieuwenburg 933,800 267,300 24,900 292,200 1,226,000
Total 23,872,000 2,915,500 971,500 3,887,000 27,759,000

Notes:

1 Includes the 2007 employer service cost, plus changes in compensation in excess of actuarial assumptions, less required member contributions to the plan.

2 Reflects the impact of interest on prior year’s obligations, changes in discount rates used to measure the obligations and the impact of assumption and
employee demographic changes,
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Pension Value Earned in 2007 {US}
Mr. Otten is the only executive who is a member of this US pension plan. He did not make any withdrawals in 2007.

Contributions under the Defined Contributions under the
Name Contribution Penston Plan Non-Qualified Restoration Plan Total Pension Compensation
Otten 22,314 34,970 57,284

ALL OTHER COMPENSATION

The total value of perquisites provided to any executive was less than $50,000 and less than 10% of the executive's total
annual salary plus bonus in 2007. Certain perquisites shown below are at the maximum reimbursable amount available to
executives. This maximum is often higher than what the executive actually ctaimed in the year. These perquisites are not
available to the broader employee population.

Perquisites Other Compensation
Life Amounts

Car Other Insurance  Savings Plan Paid by US Pension Total All Other
Name Allowance Perquisites’ Total | Premiums Contributions Canexus? Contributions Total | Compensation
Fischer 31,200 10,500 41,700 1,440 76,500 - - 77,840 119,640
‘Romanow | 19,200 7,00 26300 | 535 33975 56,319 - 90829 | 17,129
Mquhv T 19,26}3._ _'I,‘I-DD __2-6,300 I 1,164—_- 29,750 - o - 30,914 7 57,214
Tl;r;m_as . 19._2‘0_0" _;.TOO ) —2_6,3-00 - 1,140"_ 29,.2-50 . - _ - 30,3;0 _-56,6-96“
Nieuwenburg |  19.200 7,00 26300 | 838 21640 - - 22475 | 48775
O}tén N 13,0L547 777‘,;'23 26,777 B 2,132A o 123,:;25 ) - o 57,28; 72,74-1 I 93,518
Notes:

1 Represants a maxirnum reimbursament amount for financial counseling, funcheon club membarships, medical exam and security monitoring. For the CEQ, this
also includes & maximum reimbursement amount for a goff cfub membership.
2 Includes fees of $32,500, deferred trust units of Canexus valued at $19,560 and distributions on his trust units of $4,259,

TERMINATION ARRANGEMENTS
Nexen doesn’t enter into employment service contracts. Depending on the conditions of termination, we treat executives
and employees fairly as follows:

Ewvents Action

Resignation = All salary and henefit programs cease

* Annual incentive bonus is not paid

» TOPs must be exercised within 90 days

= Pension paid as 8 commuted value or deferred benefit

Retirement * Salary and benefit coverages cease except for a $5,000 life insurance policy

« Monthly benefit to cover the cost of provincial health care premiums continues
« Apnnual incentive bonus paid on a pro rata basis

& TOPs must be exercised within 18 months

= Pension paid as a monthly benefit

Death « Ali salary and benefit programs cease except for a 1-year benefit

» coverage for surviving dependents and payout of any applicable insurance benefits
* Annual incentive bonus paid on a pro rata basis

* TOPs must be exercised within 18 months

= Pension paid as a commuted value or deferred benefit

Termination without cause s All salary and benefit programs cease

= TOPs must be exercised within 90 days

» Pension paid as a commuted value or deferred benefit .

» Sevarance provided on an individual basis reflecting service, age and salary level

Terminatien for cause = All salary and benefit programs cease

= Annual incentive bonus is not paid

= TOPs must be exercised on termination

» Pension paid as a commuted value or deferred benefit




Payments on Resignation

The following table discloses the lump sum value of pension benefits accrued under the defined benefit pension plan and
executive benefit plan for our top five executives had they resigned effective December 31, 2007. If they are over the age of
55 and have at least 10 years of Nexen service, they are deemed to have retired and a lump sum benefit option is not avail-
able. Also included in this table is the value of vested TOPs at December 31, 2007.

Name Termination Scenario Pension ($) Value of Vested TOPs -2 Total ($)
Fischer Deemed Retirement 12,122,000 40,572,420 52,694,420
l R;m-anow - B 7 Flesignation - -_;03.000 T ;Id.135.9:10 o v1';8£,9—40_
I\lrliurphy o i Deemed Retirement 3:660.000 i 1.368,161 o 5,6@1
Thomas ) ‘Deemed Retirement 4297000 6,162,705 10,459,705
Nieuwenburg- Hes-ignation 752,000 ‘ 3,832,034 7 4,58;;;]34

Notes:

I Does not include unvested TOPs which will vast according to the TOPs plan over 18 months for deemed retirernent or over 90 days for resignation,
2 The differance barween the market value of Nexen common shares at year and of $32.10 and the grant price of TOPs, times the number of vested TOPs.

Change of Control Agreements

Nexen has entered into change of control agreements with
Messrs. Fischer, Romanow, Murphy, Thomas, Nieuwenburg
and other key executives. The agreements were effec-
tive October 1999, amended in December 2000 and then
amended and restated in December 2001. We recognize that
these executives are critical to Nexen’s angoing business.
Therefore, it is vital we work to retain the executives, protect
them frorm employment interruption caused by a change
of control and treat them in a fair and eguitable manner,
Consistent with industry standards for executives in similar
circumstances, there are no restrictions on future employ-
ment, or non-compete clauses in the agreements. Each
year, the Compensation Committee reviews the estimated
payments upon a change of control including the termina-
tion value of pension benefits due under the defined henefit
pension plan and executive benefit plan.

Under these agreements, a change of control includes any
acquisition of common shares or other securities that carries
the right to cast more than 35% of the common share votes.
Generally, it is any event that results in a person or group
exercising effective control of Nexen.

If the executives terminate following a change of control, they
are entitled to salary, target bonus and other compensatory
benefits for the severance pericd specified below.

Severance Period in Months on Change of Control

Namae If Terminated Upon Resignation’
Fischer 36 36

l_‘!omanow- e B 36 T —30

Murphy o o 30 N T ___-

Tfhomas ] o 30 T

‘Nieuwenburg | 24—
Note:

1 Within 12 manths of change of control.

The next table outlines the estimated incremental payments
executives would be entitled to, had a change of control
occurred on December 31, 2007. Under the agreement,
bonuses would be paid at target for the full severance
period. A benefits uplift, equal to 13% of base salary, would
be provided in lieu of medical, dental and life insurance
coverage. In addition, the agreement provides a payment for
other employee benefits, including car allowance and savings
plan contributions during the severance period, and an allow-
ance for financial counseling, security monitoring and career
transition services.

Executives would also be entitled to incremental pension
relating to their salary and annual incentive targets over the
severance period. The pension vatue reported below reflects
this, as well as a tax gross-up on the resulting lump sum payout,
These additional pension benefits do not include any termina-
tion benefits that would be payable under the defined benefit
pension plan and executive benefit plan if a termination or retire-
ment occurred that was not triggered by a change of control.
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Estimated Incremental Payment an Change of Control

Additicnal
Other Lump Sum Total
Severance Bonus Benefits Employee Value of  Accelerated Incremental
Pericd  Base Salary Target Value Uplift Benefits Pension' TOPs Value? Obligation
Name (# of months) (8 (3 (8} £:3] (5} 3] (3}
Fischer 36 3,900,000 3,120,000 507,000 365,500 9,157,000 3,043,080 20,092,580
Romanow 36 1,725,000 1,035,000 224,260 199,000 3,879,000 917,630 7,979,880
Murphy 30 1,300,000 780,000 169,000 163,900 3,237,000 813,945 6,463,845
Thomas 30 1,300,000 780,000 169,000 163,900 3,905,000 813,945 7,131,845
Niguwenburg 24 800,000 360,000 104,000 124,300 1,316,000 531,116 3,235,416
TOTAL 9,025,000 6,075,000 1,173,250 1,016,600 21,494,000 6,119,716 44,903,566

Notes:

1 Does not include reguler termination pension values which are reported in Payments on Resignation on page 149. Benefits payable under the defined benefit
pension plan are funded from the pension trust and payable monthly if the executive is 55 or older,

2 Reflects the value of TOPs that sutomatically vest on a change of control, based on the number of TOPs with accelaratad vesting, times the closing price of
Nexen common shares on the TSX on December 31, 2007 of $32.10, less the exercise price.

SHARE PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following graph shows the change in a $100 investment in Nexen common shares over the past five years, compared to
the S&P/TSX Composite Index, the S&P/TSX Energy Sector Index and the S&P/TSX Qil & Gas Exploration & Production Index
as at December 31, 2007. Our commmon shares are included in each of these indices.

Total Return Index Values®
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2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
2002/12 2003/12 2004/12 200512 2006/12 2007/12
B Nexen Inc. 100.00 138.21 144.57 330.52 384.10 385.26
B S&P/TSX Oil & Gas Exploration
& Production Index 100.00 120.15 169.02 293.50 297.38 327.52
M S&P/TSX Energy Sector Index 100.00 124.97 162.82 266.10 282.22 305.45
. B S&P/TSX Composite Index 100.00 126.72 145.07 180.08 211.16 231.92
Note:

1 Assuming an investment of $100 and the reinvestment of dividends.



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Nexen's board takes its duties and responsibilities for
good corporate governance seriously. Nexen supports and
conducts business according to the rules of the Toronto Stock
Exchange {TSX), NYSE, National Policy 58-201—Corporate
Governance Guidelines and Multilateral Instrument
52-110—Audit Committees. Except as noted below, Nexen's
corporate governance practices comply with those followed
by domestic companies under NYSE listing standards.

Nexen has a DSU plan for nen-executive directors as
described on page 133. For this plan, Nexen follows the TSX
rules which, unlike the NYSE rules, exempt plans from shar-
eowner approval where the common shares issued under the
plan are purchased on the open market rather than issuing
new shares.

On February 21, 2008, our CEQ certified to the NYSE that he
was unaware of any violation by Nexen of the NYSE's corporate
governance listing standards. Nexen also provided the required
Annual Written Affirmation to the NYSE on February 21, 2008.
Nexen also filed an Interim Written Affirmation on April 26,
2007, reporting changes to audit committee membership. As
well, our CEQ and CFO have certified the quality of Nexen’s
public disclosure 10 the SEC.

All Committee mandates, including those for the Audit,
Compensation and Governance Committees, and our corpo-
rate governance policy and categorical standards are available
at www.nexeninc.com, and we intend to provide disclosure in
this manner. Shareowners wishing 1o receive a copy of these
documents may contact the Governance Office by telephone
at 403.699.4926, or by email at governance@nexeninc.com.

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE REPORT

The Governance Committee assists the board to oversee
implementation of our corporate governance programs,
recommending nominees for director appointments and eval-
uating the board, its committees and all individual directors
and chairs, to ensure we implement best-in-class corporate
governance practices appropriate to Nexen.

All members of the Committee are independent and knowi-
edgeable about our corporate governance programs. Six
members of the Committee are skilled or expert in governance
and board experience or diversity, the two areas of expertise
most relevant to carrying out the Committee's mandate.

Changes to Committee Membership in 2007
Mr. Flanagan left the Committee and Mr, Naewell joined in
April 2007.

Key Activities in 2007

= Recommended revisions to the corporate governance
policy, including a minimum attendance standard for
directors, and the external communications policy;

= Reviewed our position on current governance issues,
inctuding say on pay (the concept of advisory voles on
management compensation);

= Recommended the adoption of a modified majority vote
by-taw for the election of directars to the shargowners
for approval,

» Recommended changes to commiitee memberships
in light of Mr. Flanagan becoming non-independent as
of July 1, 2007;

= Recommended updated mandates for the board,
individual directors and all board committees,;

= Recommended new and updated questions in the
board performance evaluation based on rankings and
comments received the previous year; and

= Consulted with Dr. Richard Leblanc, Assistant Professor
of Corporate Governance, York University, on the board’s
performance evaluations.

The Board and Committees

The Committee reviews board and committee memberships
annually, cansidering director independence and the skills
and preferences of the directors. The board is comprised
of 12 directors, which is large enough to perrmit a diversity
of views and run the committees, without being so large
as to detract from effectiveness. A skills matrix that sets
out the various areas of expertise determined to be essen-
tial 1o ensure appropriate strategic direction and oversight
is completed by all directors annually and reviewed by the
Committee. The Committee’s review of board experience
indicates that the current skills mix is appropriate. The skills
matrix is also used to assist with board recruitment.

Nominating a New Director for Election

The Committee identifies and assesses candidates {or
appointment or nomination to the board. Qur forward-looking
skills matrix has identified the skills with the greatest oppor-
tunity to strengthen the board upan retirement of two current
directors in 2009.

Before recommending a new candidate to the board, the
Committee considers his or her performance, independence,
competencias, skills and financial acumen. Character and
behavioural qualities, including credibility, integrity and commu-
nication skills are also taken into accouni. The Committee
Chair andfor Board Chair meets with the candidate to discuss
his or her interest and ability to devote sufficient time and
resources to the position, Prior to nomination, potential direc-
tors must disclose possible conilicts of interest with Nexen
and background checks, as appropriate, are completed.
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The Committee maintains an evergreen list of potential directors
whose skills complement the board and who the Committee
recommends be asked to join the board if they are available
when an opening arises.

The Committee will also consider any nominee for election
as a director recommended by a sharecwner. See page 153
for information on communicating with the board.

Performance Evaluations

The board and management work together to foster contin-
uous, open and honest communication, where concerns are
brought forward and dealt with as they occur. [n this spirit,
the annual board evaluation is seen as an opportunity to
review the past year and consider contributions, successes
and opportunities for improvement. The special report on
our director evaluation process provided in our 2007 proxy
circular, is available at www.nexeninc.com,

Qur six-part performance evaluation review is our primary tool
for determining who should be on the board. In light of the
evaluation process, the board does nct have a tenure pelicy
and has flexible term limits. Nexen’s average hoard tenure is
9.8 years. We do have a set retirement age of 75.

The Committee considered comments from the last avalua-
tion when it updated the 2007 guestionnaire to further explore
CEO succession, ¢risis management, director recruitment,
risk, compensation and the evaluation process itself.

The board rates its overall effectiveness on a ten-point scale,
where 10 is the best. The average rating for 2007 was 9.23.

External Recognition and Verification

Nexen was recognized for its governance practices during

2007, including the following:

= Conference Board of Canada/Spencer Stuart 2007
National Award in Governance for the private sector;

= Named first, together with SNC-Lavalin Group Inc.,
on the Top 25 Boards in Canada by Canadian
Business Magazine;

* Received an Honourable Mention for the 2007
Governance Gavel Award for Excellence in Director
Disclosure from the Canadian Coalition for Good
Governance;

= Received the Honourable Mention for Excellence
in Corporate Governance Disclosure in the 2007
Corporate Reporting Awards from the Chartered
Accountants of Canada;

= Named as having the Best Corporate Governance
Practices in North America by IR Global Rankings; and

» Had an average 2007 global rating of 9.9 out of 10 and
have a current rating of 9.5 from Governance Metrics
International for governance practices and disclosure.

Committee Approval

The Committee has reviewed and discussed the governance
disclosure in this document, including the information in the
Board of Directors section on pages 129 through 133 and has
recommended to the board that it be included in the proxy
circular and, as appropriate, Form 10-K.

Submitted on behalf of the
Governance Committee:
Dick Thomson, Chair

Kevin Jenkins

Anne McLellan

Eric Newell

Tom O'Neill

Francis Saville

John Willson



Ethics Policy

Under our ethics policy, all directors, officers and employees
must demonstrate a commitment to ethical business prac-
tices and behaviour in all business relationships, both within
and outside of Nexen. Employees are not permitted to
commit an unethical, dishonest or illegal act or to instruct
other employess to do so. Qur ethics policy has been adopted
as a code of ethics for our principal executive officer, principal
financial officer and principal accounting officer or controller.

Any waivers of, or changes to the ethics policy must be board
approved and disciosed. There has never been a waiver. The
ethics policy was amended on December 3, 2007. We made
minor revisions to update the name of an integrity-related
policy. Our ethics policy provides for an external integrity
helpling, in place since February 1, 2005.

Nexen's eihics policy is available at www.nexeninc.com and
we intend to disclose any waivers of or changes 1o this policy
onling, Our ethics policy and any future amendments to it
are filed on SEDAR at www.sedar.com. To request a copy of
the policy, cantact the Integrity Resource Centre by emailing
integrity@nexening.com or by calling 403.699.4727.

Reporting Concerns

Please direct any concerns about Nexen'’s financial statements,

accounting practices or internal controls to either:

= managemeni or the Chair of the Audit Committee as set
out in the ethics policy; or

= EthicsPoint, as set out helow.

Employees, cusiomers, suppliers, partners, shareowners and
other external stakeholders who have a concern are encour-
aged to raise it with our Integrity Resource Centre:

By mail: Nexen Inc.
801 - 7th Avenue SW
Calgary, Alberta, Canada
T2P 3P7
Atiention: Integrity Resource Centre

By email; integrity@nexeninc.com

By telephone: 403.699.4727

You may also report concerns through our integrity helpline—
a secure reporting system, which is owned and managed
by EthicsPeint, an independent third-party service provider.
To find out more about our integrity helpline and for tol! free

numbers for other countries, access our web site at www.
nexeninc.com and click on the "Integrity Helpline” link at the
top of the page or access the helpline directly:

QOnline: www.gthicspoint.com
By telephone: 1.866.384.4277 (toll-free in North America}

Communicating with the Board
Shareowners may write to the board or any member or
members of the board in care of the following address:

8y mail: Nexen Inc.
801 - 7th Avenue SW
Calgary, Alberta, Canada
T2P 3P7
Attention: Governance Office

By email: board@nexeninc.com

We receive a number of inquiries on a large range of subjects
every day. The board has consulted with management to
develop a process to assist in managing inquiries directed 1o
the board or its members.

Letters and emails addressed to the board, any of its members
or the independent directors, as a group, are reviewed to
determine if a response frem the board is appropriate. While
the board oversees management, it does not participate in
our day-to-day functions and operations and is not narmally
in the best position to respond to inquiries on those matters.
Those inquiries will be directed to the appropriate personnel
for response. The board has instructed the Governance
Office to review all correspondence and, in its discretion,
not forward items that are:

= not relevant to Nexen's operations, policies or

philosophies;
= commercial in nature; or
= not appropriate for consideration by the board.

All inquiries will receive a response from the board or
management. The Governance Cffice maintains a log of
all correspondence sent to board members. Directors may
review the log at any time and request copies of any corre-
spondence received.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
See page 155 for a full report on the Audii Committee.
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Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management
and Related Stockholder Matters

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS

Nexen's common shares are the only class of voting securities. Based on information known to Nexen, the following table
shows each person or group whao beneficially owns (pursuant to SEC Regulations) more than 5% of Nexen's voting securities
as at the date noted below.

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner # of Shares Benaficially Owned % of Shares Effective Date

Jarislowsky, Fraser Limited® 53,090,139 10.05 January 31, 2008
Suite 2005, 1010 Sherbrooke Street West
Montreal, Quebec, Canada, H34 2R7

Ontario Teachers’ Pension Plan Board? 52,677,672 9,97 January 8, 2008

5650 Yonge Street
Toronto, Ontario, Canada, M2M 4HS

Notes:

1 The beneficial owner has sole voting power over 44,870,646 shares, shared voting power over 8,213,493 shargs and sole power te dispose of 53,090,139
sharas and shared power to dispose of 268,680 shares.

2 The beneficial owner has sofe voting power and power tc dispose of all shares.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF MANAGEMENT
At February 14, 2008, the following directors, certain executive officers, and all directors and executive officers as a group
beneficially owned the following Nexen common shares:

Nexen Inc. 2007 Annusl Report

Name of Beneficial Owner Number of Shares ' Exercisable TOPs ?
Charles W. Fischer 184,161 2,215,000
Dennis G. Flanagan 31,264 20,000
David A, Hentschel 70,814 100,000
S. Barry Jackson 72,000 -
Kevin J. Jenkins 12,362 60,000
A. Anne McLellan, P.C. T 100 T -
Eric P. Newell, O.C. B 12,000 -
Thomas C. O'Neill 16000 -
Francis M. Saville, O.C. 48,860 71,004
Richard M. Thomson, O.C. B ' 92,004 150,000
John M. Willson 22,004 -
Victor J. Zaleschuk ' 62,982 240,000
Laurence Murphy 125,504 164,000
Marvin F. Romanow 81,237 785,480
Roger D. Thomas 16,563 399,200
Gary H. Nieuwenburg 66,006 265,600
Douglas B. Otten 46,892 254,952
All directors and executive officers ;;_a _group {25 persons} o 1,112,455 6,035,954
Notes:

1 The number of shares held and TOPs exercisabie by each benaficial ewner reprasents fess than 1% of the shares outstanding.
2 Includes all TOPs axercisable within 80 days of February 14, 2008. All TOFs held by non-gxecutive directors are vested.

Under the terms of our TOPs plan, the board may grant options to officers and employees and, when previously allowed for,
to directors. Nexen does nct receive any consideration when options are granted.

Number of

Securities Remaining

Number of Securities to Woeighted-Average Available for Future

be Issued on Exercise of Exercise Price of Issuance under Equity

Plan Category Outstanding TOP's Outstanding TOP's Compensation Plans
Equity compensation plans approved by shareowners 27,402,722 $20/option 29,430,190
Equity compensation plans not approved by shareowners - - -
Total 27,402,722 $20/option 29,430,190
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions,
and Director Independence

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

As a Canadian foreign private issuer, Nexen provides the
disclosure required under [tem 7.B. of Form 20-F dealing with
“related party transactions.” Nexen did not have any related
pariy transactions in 2007 as defined under that standard.
Certain other transactions described below which are not
related party transactions, involving Nexen and certain of our
directors, were entered into in 2007,

DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Mr. Saville, was a senior partner of Fraser Milner Casgrain LLP
(FMC), Barristers and Solicitors, Calgary, Alberta, until the end
of January 2004, Since February 1, 2004, he has been counsel
with the firm. FMC provided legal services to us in each of the
fast five years. Mr. Saville does not solicit or participate in these
services and does nct receive any portion of the fees we pay
to FMC. He is independent under our categorical standards.

Ms. MclLellan, has been counsel with Bennett Jones (BJ),
Barristers and Solicitors, Edmonton, Alberta since June 27,

2008. BJ provided legal services to us in each of the last five
years. Ms. McLellan does not solicit or participate in those
services and does not receive any portion of the fees we pay to
BJ. She is independent under to our categorical standards.

Mr. Fischer is not independent as he is President and CEQ.

Mr. Flanagan is not independent as his son is Senior Vice
President, Engineering, of TriAxon Resources Ltd. (TriAxon).
In 2008, TriAxon acquired a company that was party to
contracts with a subsidiary of Nexan. Under one of the
contracts Nexen paid approximately $4.5 million to TriAxon
hetween July and December 2006 for products purchased
at market price. Accordingly, Mr. Flanagan ts not techni-
cally independent as of July 1, 2007, Mr. Flanagan was not
aware that the company acquired by TriAxon held contracts
with Nexen. The board has determined that Mr. Flanagan's
independence of mind has not been compromised by this
transaction and, accordingly, the board continues 1o include
him in their meetings without management.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Audit Commitiee is responsible for appointing {subject ta shar-
eowner approvall, compensating and overseeing the Independent
Registered Chartered Accountants (IRCAs}. The IRCAs are
accountable to and report directly to the Committee, and under-
stand that they must maintain an open and transparent relationship
with the Committee, as representatives of the shareowners.

All members of the Committee are independent and knowl-
edgeable about our financial reporting controls, and internal
and external audit processes, Five members are skilled or
expert in financial acumen, particularly financial accounting,
reporting and internal conirols, the area of expertise most
relevant to carrying out the Committee’s mandate.

The Commiitee assists the board in overseeing internal
accounting and financial reporting controls, internal and external
audit processes, and implementation of the ethics policy.

Management is responsible for our internal controls and
financial reporting process. The IRCAs are responsible for
performing and reporting on an independent audit of our:
{i} consolidated financial statements according to generally
accepted auditing standards; and, {ii} internal control over
financial reporting according to the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board. The Committee's
responsibility is to monitor and oversee these processes.

Changes to Committee Membership in 2007
Mr. Flanagan left the Committee and Mr. Newell joined April 2007,

Key Activities for 2007

= Moet separately with management and the IRCAs to review
the December 31, 2007 consolidated financial statements;

= Discussed with the IRCAs matters required by Canadian
regulators under Section 5751 of the General Assurance
and Auditing Standards of the Canadian Institute of
Chartered Accountants “Communications with Those
having Oversight Responsibility for the Financial Reporting
Process” and by US regulators under the Statement on
Auditing Standards No. 81 “Communication with Audit
Committees” issued by the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants;

= Received written disclosures from the IRCAs required by the
SEC according to the Independence Standards BoardStandard
No. 1 “Independence Discussions with Audit Committees™;

s Discussed with the IRCAs that firm's independence;

» Based on the reviews and discussions referred to above,
recommended to the board that the audited consolidated
financiat statements be included in Nexen's annual report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007;

= Qversaw Section 404 Sarbanes-Oxley compliance
activities undertaken by management to report on the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting
as at December 31, 2007;
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= reviewed and approved the guarterly consolidated
financial statements; and
= Recommended changes to the ethics policy.

Audit Partner Rotation
In compliance with applicable law, the lead audit partner of
our IRCAs is replaced every five years.

Section 404 of Sarbanes-Oxley

Nexen is a voluntary filer of Form 10-K in the US and has
complied with the requirements of Section 404 of Sarbanes-
Oxley since December 31, 2004, During 2007, management
evaluated the effectiveness of our internal control over
financial reporting and concluded that it was effective as of

December 31, 2007. This assessment was audited by the
IRCAs in 2006 as part of the integrated audit of the consoli-
dated financial statements. This particular audit is no longer
required as part of the IRCA's integrated audit due to US regu-
latory changes. The Committee’s mandate, available at www.
nexeninc.com, has been updated accordingly. Their integrated
audit report for 2007 is included in our Form 10-K.

IRCA Engagement and Fees Billed

Before Deloitte & Touche LLF, the IRCA is engaged by Nexen or
its subsidiaries 0 render additional audit or non-audit services, the
engagement is approved by the Committee. All audit, audit-related,
tax and other services provided by Deloitte & Touche LLP since
May 8, 2003 have been approved by the Committee.

Percentage of Total

Type of Fee Bifled in 2006 Billed in 2007 Fees Billed in 2007
Audit Fees
For the integrated audit of Nexen's consolidated financiat
stateme(\ts_ingludﬁd_ilogi annual report on Form 10-K 2,332,500 2,966,0002
For the integrated audit of ihe congslidz;ted financial T ’ N ’
statements of Canexus? 302,900 145,000 _
For the first, second and third quarter reviews of Nexen's - T )
consolidated financial statements included in Form 10-Qs 72,000 $0,000
For the first, second and third quarter reviews of the h )
consolidated financial statements of Canexus® 45,000 _ 45000 ]
For comfort letters and submissions to commissions 2,500 153,500
Total Audit Fees 2,754,900 3,399,500 76%
Audit-Related Fees-Nexen and Canexus?
B For:he_annual_aJd_it;;d—ciuarterly re\;fewskc;f;ubsidiarry' finanicial o T o
statements and employee benefit plans 719,500 828,100
Total Audit-Reiated Fees 719,500 828,100 19%
Tax Fees-Nexen and Canexus’ o . i
' Fdr_tax_return prépara—tiu;r asﬁtance an-d—tax-;e!at}zd con;ultatfon i -8_4,30_0- 116,400
Total Tax Fees 84,300 116,400 3%
All Other Fees 86,000°% 110,600°% 2%
Total Annual Fees 3,644,700 4,454,600 100%

Notes:

1 Consisting of $1,032.500 to complete the 2005 audit and $1,300.000 to commaeance the 2006 audit.
2 Consisting of $1,366.000 to complete the 2006 audit end §1,600,000 to commence the 2007 audit,
3 Includes fees for Canexus lncome Fund, Canexus Limited Partnership and its subsidiarigs.

4 Consisting of $35,000 to complete the 2006 audit and $50,000 to commence the 2007 audit,

5 Annual ranawal fees for an upstream information database used in our UK office.

Committee Approval

The Cormmittee is of the view that the provision of services by
Deleitte & Touche LLP described in " All Other Fees” abave is
compatible with maintaining that firm’s independence.

Based on the Committee’s discussions with management and
the IRCAs, and its review of the representations of manage-
ment and the IRCAs, the Committee recommended to the
board that the audited consolidated financial statements be
included in Nexen's annual report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2007.

Submitted on behalf of
the Audit Committee:
Tom O’'Neill, Chair

Eric Newell

Barry Jackson

Dick Thomson

Kevin Jenkins

John Willson



PART IV
item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES

We refer you to the index to Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data in ltem 8 of this repart where these
documents are listed.

Schedules and separate financial statements of subsidiaries
are omitted because they are not required or applicable, or the
required information is shown in the Consolidated Financial
Statements or notes.

EXHIBITS

Exhibits filed as part of this report are listed below. Certain
exhibits have been previously filed with the Commission and
are incorporated in this Form 10-K by reference. Instruments
defining the rights of holders of debt securities that do not
exceed 10% of Nexen’'s consolidated assets have not been
included. A copy of such instruments will be furnished to the
Commission upon request.

2.2 Agreement for the Sale and Purchase of EnCana
(U.K.} Limited, between EnCana (U K.} Holdings
Limited and Nexen Energy Holdings International
Limited dated October 28, 2004 {filed as Exhibit 2.1
to Form 8K dated Octobrer 29, 2004).

3.14  Restated Certificate and Articles of Incorporation of
the Registrant dated May 20, 2005 (filed as Exhibit
3.12 to Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended
June 30, 2005).

3.15  By-Law No. 3 of the Registrant enacted December
4, 2006, being a by-law relating generally to the
transaction of the business and aifairs of the
Registrant (filed as Exhibit 3.15 to Form 8-K dated
December 5, 2006}

316  Certificate and Articles of Amendrment of the
Registrant dated April 26, 2007 (filed as Exhibit
3.16 to Form 8-K dated April 27, 2007).

4,42 Trust Indenture dated April 28, 1998 between
the Registrant and CIBEC Mellon Trust Company
providing for the issue of debt securities from time
to time (filed as Exhibit 4.42 to Form 10-K for the
yvear ended December 31, 2003),

4.43  First Supplemental Indenture dated April 28, 1998
10 the Trust Indenture dated April 28, 1998 between
the Registrant and CIBC Mellon Trust Company
pertaining to the issuance of US$200 million, 7.40%
notes due 2028 (filed as Exhibit 4.43 to Farm 10-K
for the year ended December 37, 2003).

4.46

4.47

4,48

4.51

4.53

4.54

455

Third Supplemental Indenture dated March 11,
2002 to the Trust Indenture dated April 28, 1998
between the Registrant and CIBC Mellon Trust
Company pertaining to the issuance of $500 million,
7.85% notes due 2032 (filed as Exhibit 4.46 to
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003).
Subordinated Debt Indenture dated November 4,
2003 between the Registrant and Deutsche Bank
Trust Company Americas, pertaining to the issug
of subordinated notes from time to time (fited

as Exhibit 4.47 to Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2003).

Officer's Certificate dated November 2, 2003
pursuant to the Subordinated Debt Indenture

dated Novemnber 4, 2003 between the Registrant
and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas,
pertaining to the issuance of US$460 million, 7.35%
subordinated notes due 2043 (filed as Exhibit 4.48 to
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003).
Fourth Supplemental Indenture dated November
20, 2003 to the Trust Indenture dated April 28,
1998, between the Regisirant and CiBC Mellon
Trust Company pertaining to the issuance of
US$E500 million, 5.05% notes due 2013 (filed

as Exhibit 4.51 to Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2003),

Fifth Supplemental Indenture dated March 10,
2005 to the Trust Indenture dated April 28, 15998,
hetween the Registrant and CIBC Mellon Trust
Company pertaining to the issuance of US$250
million, 5.20% notes due 2015 and the issuance of
US$790 million, 5.875% notes due 2035 (filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8K dated March 11, 2005).
Amended and Restated Shareholder Rights Plan
Agreement dated April 27, 2005 between the
Registrant and CIBC Mellon Trust Company, as
Rights Agent, which includes the Form of Rights
Certificate as Exhibit A (filed as Exhibit 4.54 o
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005).
Senior Debt Indenture dated May 4, 2007 between
the Registrant and Deutsche Bank Trusi Company
Amaricas, pertaining to the issue of senior notes
irom time 1o time {filed as Exhibit 2.1 to Form 8-K
dated May 7, 2007).
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10.40

10.41

10.42

10.43

10.44

10.46

10.47

10.48

First Supplemental Indenture dated May 4, 2007
to the Trust Indenture dated May 4, 2007 between
the Registrant and Deutsche Bank Trust Company
Americas pertaining to the issuvance of U$$250
miflion, 5.65% notes due 2017 and the issuance
of US$1.25 biltion, 6.40% notes due 2037 {filed

as Exhibit 4.2 to Form 8-K dated May 7, 2007).
Amended and Restated Change of Control
Agreements with Executive Qfficers dated during
December, 2001 (filed as Exhibit 10.41 to Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001).
Indemnification Agreements made hetween the
Registrant and its directors and officers during
2002 (filed as Exhibit 10.41 to Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2002},

Indemnification Agreement made between the
Registrant and one of its directors, Eric P. Newell,
as of January 5, 2004 {filed as Exhibit 10.42 to
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003).
Credit Agreement dated as of July 22, 2005
between the Registrant and the Toronto Dominion
Bank, as Agent, and the Lenders (filed as Exhibit
10.1 to Form 8-K dated July 28, 2005).

Guarantee dated as of July 22, 2005 as Schedule
K to the Credit Agreement (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to
Form 8-K dated July 28, 2005).

Indemnification Agreement made between the
Registrant and one of its directors, A. Anne
Meclellan P.C., as of July 5, 2006 (filed as Exhibit
10.2 to Form 8-K dated July 20, 2006).

Second Amending Agreement dated July 14, 2006
to the Credit Agreement, dated as of July 22, 2005,
between the Registrant and the Toronte-Dominion
Bank, as Agent, and the Lenders {filed as Exhibit
10.1 to Form 8-K dated July 20, 2008).
Indemnification Agreement made between

the Registrant and Brendon Muller dated April 9,
2007 {filed as Exhibit 10.48 to Form 8-K dated
April 12, 2007).

10.49

10.50

10.51*

1A

211"

231"

23.2*

233"

23.4*

23.6*

311

31.2*

321*

32.2*

99.1*

Amended and Restated Change of Control
Agreement with Roger Thomas dated during
Decermnber 2001 {filed as Exhibit 10.48 to Form 10-Q
for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2007).
Pricing Agreement dated May 1, 2007 among the
Registrant and Banc of America Securities LLC,
Citigroup Global Markets Inc. and Deutsche Bank
Securities Inc., as Underwriters (filed as Exhibit
10.1 to Form 8-K dated May 7, 2007).

Change of Control Agreement with Gary
Nieuwenburg dated during January 2002,
Statement regarding the Computation of Per
Share Earnings for the three years ended
Decembar 31, 2007.

Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

Consent of Independeni Registered Chartered
Accountants.

Consent of William M. Cobb & Associates, Inc.
Consent of Ryder Scott Company, L.P

Consent of McDaniel & Assaciates Consultants Ltd,
Consent of DeGolyer and MacNaughton,
Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certification of periodic report by Chief Executive
Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C., Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant {0 Section 306 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002,

Certification of periodic report by Chief Financial
Oificer pursuant to 18 U.S.C., Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.

Opinion of Internal Qualified Reserves Evaluator on
National Instrument 51-107 Form F2 as required by
certain Canadian securities regulatory authorities.

* Filed with this Form 10-K.



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15{d} of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Company has duly caused

this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on February 21, 2008,

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this repart has been signed below by the following

NEXEN INC.

By: /s{ Charles W, Fischer

Charles W. Fischer

President, Chief Executive Officer

and Director {Principal Executive Officer)

persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated on February 21, 2008,

[s/ Dennis G. Flanagan

Dennis G. Flanagan, Director

s{ David A. Hentschel
David A. Hentschel, Director

/s/ S. Barry Jackson
S. Barry Jackson, Director

fsf Kevin J, Jenking
Kevin J. Jenkins, Director

[s{ A. Anne Mclellan, Director
A, Anne MclLellan, Director

sl Eric P Newell
Eric P. Newell, Director

sf Thom ‘Neill
Thomas C. O'Neill, Director

sf Francis M. Savill
Francis M. Saville, Director

{s{ Richard M, Thomson
Richard M. Thomson, Director

[sf John M. Willson
John M. Willson, Director

{sf Vietor [. Zaleschuk
Victor J. Zaleschuk, Director

s/ Charles W, Fischer

Charles W. Fischer

President, Chief Executive Officer

and Director (Principal Executive Officer}

{5/ Marvin F. Romanow

Marvin F. Romanow

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
{Principal Financial Officer)

{s{ Brendon T. Muller
Brendon T. Muller

Controller
(Principal Accounting Cfficer}

Eric B. Miller
Vice President, General Counsel
and Secretary

s/ Kevin J. Reinhart

Kevin J. Reinhart

Senior Vice President, Corporate Planning
and Business Development
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EXHIBIT 31.1
Certifications
|, Charles W. Fischer, certify that:

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Nexen Inc.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrug statement of a material fact or omit to state a

material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements

were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present

in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the

periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and

procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e}} and internal control over financial reporting {as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f} and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and we have:

lal designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiarigs, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the refiability of financial reporting and the
preparation ot financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

{c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered
by this repert based on such evaluation; and

{d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reperting that occurred during
the registrant’'s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likely 1o materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting; and;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control

over financiaf reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or

persons performing the equivalent function):

(a} all significant deficiencies and material weakngsses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability 1o record, process, summarize and
report financial information; and

(b} any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date:  February 21, 2008 {sf Charles W. Fischer

Charles W. Fischer
President and Chief Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 31.2
Certifications
i, Marvin F. Romanow, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Nexen Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit 1o state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial infarmation included in this report, fairly present
in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officer{s) and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15{e) and 15d-15{g)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f} and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and we have:

{a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internai control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, 10 provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles:

{c} evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered
by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d} disclesed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal contrcl over financial reporting that accurred during
the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting; and;

5. The regisirant’s other certifying officer{s) and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, 1o the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or
persens performing the equivalent function):

{a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial information; and

(b} any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the registrant’s internal control over financiaf reporting.
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Date: February 21, 2008 {s/ Marvin F. Romanow
Marvin F. Romanow

Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer
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EXHIBIT 32.1

Certification Of Periodic Report

I, Charles W. Fischer, President and Chief Executive Officer of Nexen Inc., a Canadian Corporation (the “Company”},
certify, pursuant to 18 U.5.C. Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

{1} the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2007 as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”} fully compiies with the requirements of Section 13(a)
or 15{d} of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m or 78¢(d)); and

[2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results
of operations of the Company.

Date: February 21, 2008 [s{ Charles W. Fischer
Charles W. Fischer
Prasident
and Chief Executive Officer

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Nexen Inc. and shall be retained
by Nexen Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff on request.

EXHIBIT 32.2

Certification Of Periodic Report

1, Marvin F. Romanow, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Nexen inc., a Canadian Corporation ithe
“Company”), certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002, that:

{1} the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2007 as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”) fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a}
or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 {15 U.5.C. 78m aor 78o(d}); and

{2) the information contained in the Report {airly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and resulis
of operatians of the Company.

Date:  February 21, 2008 [s{ Marvin F. Romanow
Marvin F. Romanow
Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Nexen Inc. and shall be retained
by Nexen Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Cornmission or its staff on request.
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Our consistent historical
performance, strong leadership |

and high-quality reserves

provide a solid foundation

for delivering what's next.
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Didl you know 98% of our proved reserves were assessed by rese rve s
indapendent qualified consultants in 20077 Learn more about
our reserve estimates al www.nexeninc.com/reports/A8.asp

Reserve bookings capture only a glimpse of what's next. In 2007, we added 102 million boe of proved reserves, replacing
about 110% of our annual production. Our year-end proved and prebable reserves totaled 2.0 billion boe. Yet there's more—
just look at our oil sands. So far we've booked 791 million barrels of proved and probable reserves for Phases 1 and 2 of
Long Lake—but we have enough land to peteniially develop up to 10 phases. Our booked reserves also reflect little for our
undeveloped discoverigs in the Gulf of Mexice and UK, and the unconventicnal CBM and shale gas in our leases in western
Canada. As these projects take shape, we expect to book significantly more reserves, proving what's next.

Before Royalties, Year-end Pricing

Qil and Gas Activities Mining
International United States Canada
. . Tatal Oil,
Yemen United Kingdom  Other Intl Total Oif Gas and
{mmboe} 0il il Gas oil il Gas ail Gas Bitumen and Gas Syncrude’, Mining
Proved Reserves’
December 31, 2006 66 179 3 40 34 39 57 61 246 725 324 1,049
Extensions and
Discoveries 2 10 - - 1 3 1 6 - 23 ] n
Acquisitions - 1 - - 3 8 - - - 12 - 12
Dispositions - - - - - 2) - - - [¥4] - (2)
Revisions 1 43 1 - (7) (5) 4 2 22 61 - 61
Production (28)* (300 - (2} (6] (6) 16} {7 - (85) (8) (93}
December 31, 2007 a1 203 4 38 25 37 56 62 268 734 324 1,068
Probable Reserves '
December 31, 2006 22 152 8 59 B9 30 22 40 154 556 46 602
Extensions, Discoveries
and Conversions {4) (29} {2) - 0 2 1 {2} 378 344 - 343
Acquisitions - 2 - - 1 6 - - - 9 - 9
Dispositions - - - - {15} 9 - - - {24) - (24}
Revisions (3 14 1 1 116} (8} 1 14} (8) {25} - (24}
December 31, 2007 15 139 5 60 a9 21 24 34 523 860 46 906
Proved + Probable
Reserves '?
December 31, 2006 88 N 1 a9 103 69 79 101 400 1,281 370 1,651
Extensions, Discoveries
and Conversions (2) (19} {2} - 1 5 2 4 378 367 8 374
Acquisitions - 3 - - 4 14 - - - 21 - 21
Dispositions - - - - (15) (11} - - - (26) - (26}
Revisions (2) 57 - 1 (23) (13} 5 (2} 13 36 - 37
Production 28)* {30} - (2) {6} {6) [13] (N - 85) 8) (93)
December 31, 2007 56 342 9 98 64 58 a0 96 791 1,594 370 1,964

1 We internally avaluate all of our reservas and have at least 80% of our proved reserves assessed by independent qualified consultants each year; 8% were
assessed this year. Qur reserves are also reviewed and approved by our Reserves Committee and our Board of Diractors. Reserves represent our warking
interest before rovalties at year-end constant pricing using Securities and Exchange Commission rules. Gas is converted 1o equivalent oil at a 6:1 ratio.
Probable reserves are determined according to SPEAVPC definitions. US investors should read the Cautionary Nota to US investars a8t the end of this report.
/S investers should read the Cautionary Note to US Invastors at the end of this report.

Production includes volumes used for fuel in Yemen.

oW oM
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performance review

{Cdn$ millions, except share and production data) 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Highlights
Net Sales’ 5,583 3.936 3,932 2,944 2,632
Cash Flow from Operations? 3,458 2,669 2,403 1,942 1,795
Per Common Share ($/share) 6.56 5.09 4,62 378 3.63
Net Income 1,086 601 1,140 793 578
Per Common Share ($/share) 2,06 1.15 2.19 1.54 1.17
Capital Expenditures 3,401 3,330 2,638 1,681 1,494
Business Acquisitions - 78 - 2,583 -
Dispositions 4 27 911 34 293
Production 34
Production Befere Rovyalties {mboe/d} 254 212 242 250 269
Production After Royalties {mboe/d} 207 156 173 174 185
Financial Position
Working Capital 412 476 29 40 1,399
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net 12,498 11,739 9,594 B,643 4,550
Total Assets 18,075 17,156 14,580 12,383 1,717
Net Debt* 4,404 4,730 3,639 4,285 1,430
Long-Term Debt 4,610 4,673 3.687 4,259 3,089
Shareholders’ Equity 5,610 4,636 3,996 2,867 2,075
Shares and Dividends
Common Shares Qutstanding (millions) 528.3 525.0 5222 516.8 502.4
Number of Registered Common Sharehclders 1,569 1,454 1,294 1,329 1,420
Closing Common Share Price (TSX) {Cdn$/share) 32.10 32.10 27.71 12.18 11.73
Dividends Declared per Common Share {Cdn%/share) 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.08
Cash Flow from Operations?
Qil and Gas
United Kingdom 2,1 477 284 30 -
Yemen 664 877 9529 581 530
Canada 179 229 397 426 430
United States 480 573 667 700 623
Other Countries 87 94 48 57 64
Marketing 73 432 138 100 126
Syncrude , 319 240 223 183 105
3,903 2,922 2,686 2,077 1,938
Chemicals 90 a3 95 82 74
3,993 3,005 2,731 2,159 2,012
Interest and Cther Corporate ltems (350} (2b4) (335) (196) (208)
Income Taxes 1185) 182) (43} (21 {9}
Total Cash Flow from Operations 3,458 2,669 2,403 1,942 1,795

¢ oA Wk~

Raprasents net sales from continuing cperations.

Cash flow from operations is defined as cash generated from operating activities before changes in non-cash working capital and ather.

Production is Nexen'’s working interest share and includes our share of production from Syncrude.
Natural gas is converted at 8 mcf per equivalent barrel of oil.
Net Debt is defined as long-term debt and short-term borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.




Did you know our Statistical Supplfement provides years of historical
financial and operating information? Downlfoad your copy at
www.nexeninc.com/reports/AS.asp

performance review

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Production Before Royalties
Crude Oil and NGLs {(mbbls/d)
United Kingdom 81.2 169 12.6 1.5 -
Yemen 716 92.9 112.7 107.3 116.8
Canada 171 20.0 29.2 36.2 46.3
United States 164 17.0 222 30.0 283
Australia - - - 27 6.1
Other Countries 6.2 6.3 5.6 5.3 5.4
Syncrude 221 18.7 16.5 17.2 15.3
. 2146 171.8 197.8 200.2 218.2
Natural Gas (mmcf/d)
United Kingdom 16 20 23 3 -
Canada 118 108 124 146 158
United States 1 1M1 116 148 145
235 239 263 297 303
Total Production Before Royalties (mboe/d) 254 212 242 250 269
Production After Royalties
Crude 0il and NGLs {mbbls/d)
United Kingdom 81.2 16.9 12.86 1.5 -
Yemen 398 51.8 60.6 53.5 57.5
Canada 13.4 15.8 226 28.2 35.4
United States 14.5 15.0 19.6 26.5 25.0
Australia - - - 2.5 5.8
Other Countries 5.7 5.7 5.1 4.7 4.6
Syncrude 18.8 16.9 15.3 16.6 15.2
173.4 122.1 135.8 1335 143.3
Matural Gas (mmcf/d)
United Kingdom 16 20 23 3 -
Canada a8 91 101 15 125
United States 86 94 a9 126 122
200 205 223 244 247
Total Production After Royalties {(mboe/d} 207 156 173 174 185
Dil and Gas Cash Netback Before Royalties’ ($/boe}
Producing Assets
United Kingdem 67.85 55.63 42.93 39.19 -
Yemen 25,52 26.35 22.56 14,99 12.58
Canada 20.07 22.87 25.46 21.24 19.48
United States 42,28 40.42 45.85 35.35 32.48
Australia - - - 14.28 21.10
Syncrude 41,94 37.86 43.34 31.07 20.92
Other Countries 61.94 57.71 49,18 35.82 25.08
Company-Wide Oil and Gas 43.22 32.7% 30.57 22.66 19.24

1 Defined as average sales price less royalties and other, operating costs and incountry taxes in Yaman, Calculation details can be found in the Statistical

Supplamanz on our website.
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executive management

Charles W. Fischer Marvin F. Romangw
President and Executive Vice President
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer

Laurence Murphy Roger D. Thomas Gary H. Nieuwenburg Kevin J. Reinhart
Executive Vice President, Executive Vice President, Senior Vice President, Senior Vice President,
International Qil and Gas North America Synthetic Crude Corporate Planning and

Business Development

Nexen Inc. 2007 Annual Report

Brian C. Reinsborough Tim J. Thomas Robert J. Black Randy J. Jahrig
Senior Vice President, Senior Vice President, Vice President, Vice President,
United States Oil and Gas Canadian Qil and Gas Energy Marketing Human Resources and

Corporate Services

Kim D. McKenzie Eric B. Miller Una M. Power Brendon T. Muller
Vice President and Vice President, General Counsel  Treasurer Controller
Chief Information Officer and Secretary
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Did you know our board ¢f directors was ranked the top board
in Canada in 20077 Learn mora about our directors by visiting

www.nexeninc.com/reports/A10.asp

board of directors

Francis M. Saville, Q.C. Charlas W. Fischer
Chair of the Board President and CEC
Calgary, Alberta, Calgary, Alberta,
Canada Canada

Dennis G. Flanagan
Calgary, Alberta,
Canada

David A. Hentschel
Tulsa, Oklahoma,

S. Barry Jackson Kevin J. Jenkins
Calgary, Alberta, Calgary, Aiberta,
Canada Canada

The Honourable

A. Anne MclLellan, P.C,
Edmonton, Alberta,
Canada

Eric P. Newell, O.C.
Edmonton, Alberta,

Thomas C. O'Neill Richard M. Thomson, 0.C.
Toronta, Ontario, Toronta, Ontario,
Canada Canada

John M. Willson
Vancouver, British Columbia,
Canada

Victor J. Zaleschuk
Calgary, Alberta,
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corporate information

Head Office

801 - 7th Avenug SW
Calgary, Alberta, Canada
T2P 3P7

T 403.699.4000

F 403.699.5800
WWW.Nexeninc.com

Investor Relations Contact
Michael J. Harris, CA

Vice President, Investor Relations
T 403.699.4688

F 403.699.5730
mike_harris@nexeninc.com

Annual General and
Special Meeting
11:00 a.m. M.T.
Tuesday, April 29, 2008
The Metropolitan Centre
333 - 4th Avenue SW
Calgary, Alberta, Canada

Stock Symbol—NXY
Toronto Stock Exchange (TSX)
New York Stock Exchange (NYSE)

-]
/‘ 3 Mixed Sources
(mmn‘:v—:uwﬂ«m

FSC mpmmimmmege

Craative collaboration and production by ONe
Printed in Canada by Rhine Print Solutions

Preferred Securities
7.35% Subordinated Notes
TSX—NXY.PR.U
NYSE—NXYPRB

Common Share Transfer
Agent and Registrars
CIBC Mellon Trust Company
Calgary, Torante, Monireal and
Vancouver, Canada -

The Bank of New York Mellon
Jersey City, New Jersey, US

Dividend Reinvestment Plan
The offering circular tand for

US residents, a prospectus) and
authorization form may be obtained
by calling CIBC Mellon Trust Company
at 1.800.387.0825 or at
www.cibcmellon.com

Auditors
Deloitte & Touche LLP
Calgary, Alberta, Canada

Conversions
Natura! gas is converted at 6 mcf
per equivalent barrel of oil.

Dollar Amounts
In Canadian dollars unless
otherwise stated.

Operating Entities
Canada
Nexen Qil Sands Partnership

United States
Nexen Petroleum Offshere U.S.A. Inc.
Nexen Petrolaum U.S.A. Inc.

International
Canadian Nexen Petroleum

East Al Hajr Ltd.
Canadian Nexen Petroleum Yemen
Nexen Ettrick U.K. Limited
Nexen Exploration Norge AS
Nexen Exploration U.K. Limited
Nexen Petroleum Colombia Limited
Nexen Petroleum Nigeria Limited
Nexen Petroleum UK, Limited

Marketing

Nexen Energy Marketing Europe Limited
Nexen Energy Marketing London Limited
Nexen Marketing

Nexen Marketing International Ltd.
Nexen Marketing Singapere Pte. Lid.
Nexen Marketing U.S.A. Inc.

Chemicals

Canexus Chemicals Canada
Limited Partnership

Canexus U.S. Inc.

Canexus Quimica Brasil Ltda.



Francis M. Saville, Q.C.
Chair of the Board

Charles W. Fischer
President and Chief
Executive Officer

Marvin F. Romanow
Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer

Laurence Murphy
Executive Vice President,
International Qil and Gas

Roger D. Thomas

Executive Vice President,
North America

Your opinion counts

Gary H. Nieuwenburg
Senior Vice President,
Synthetic Crude

Kevin J. Reinhart
Senior Vice President,
Corporate Planning and
Business Development

Brian C. Reinsborough
Senior Vice President,
United States Qil and Gas

Tim J. Thomas
Senior Vice President,
Canadian Qil and Gas

Randy J. Jahrig

Vice President,
Human Resources and
Corporate Services

officers

Kim D. McKenzie
Vice President and
Chief Information Officer

Eric B. Miller
Vice Prasident,
General Counsel and Secretary

Una M. Power
Treasurer

Brendon T. Muller
Controller

Rick C. Beingessner
Assistant Secretary

Sylvia L. Groves
Assistant Secretary

For mere information on our officers
and directors, please see ftem 10 in
our Form 10-K.

feedback

At Nexen, we strive to provide meaningful, easy-to-read communications so you may understand our results, future
plans and values. Please fill cut a short online survey so we can continue offering you the best disclosure possible.

www.nexeninc.com/survey/ARO7.asp

10day (BNUUY £O0Z U] UaXaN

Please visit our website to learn more.

About Nexen www.nexeninc.com/about_us/
Qur Qperations www.nexeninc.com/operations/
Sustainability www.nexening.com/sustainability/
Governance www.nexeninc.com/governance/
Investors www._nexeninc.com/investors/
Newsroom www.hexeninc.com/newsroom/
Careers www.nexeninc.com/careers/
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forward-looking statements

Certain statements in this report constitute “forward-lcoking statements” (within the meaning of the United States Private Securities Litigation Reform
Act of 1995, Section 21E of the United States Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and Section 27A of the United States Sacurities Act of
1833, as amended) or “forward-looking information” fwithin the meaning of applicable Canadian securities legislation). Such statements or information
("forward-locking statements”) are generally identifiable by the terminology used such as "anticipata”, "believe”, “intend”, "plan”, "expect”, “estimata”,
“budget”, "outlook” or other similar words and include statements relating to or associated with individual wells, regions or projects. Any staternents as
to possible future crude oil, natural gas or chemicals prices, future production levels, future cost recovery oil revenues from our Yemen operations, future
capital expenditures and their allocation to exploration and development activities, future earnings, future asset dispositions, future sources of funding
for our capital program, future debt levels, possible commerciality, development plans or capacity expansions, future ability 10 execute dispositions of
assets or businesses, future cash flows and their uses, future drilling of new wells, ultimate recoverability of reserves or resources, expected finding
and developmen: costs, expecied operating costs, future demand for chemicals products, estirmates on a per share basis, sales, future expenditures and
future allowances relating to envircnmental mattess and dates by which certain areas will be developed or will come on stream, and changes in any of the
foregoing are forward-looking statements. Statemenis relating to “reserves” or “resources” are forward-looking statements, as they involve the implied
assessment, based on estimates and assumptions that the reserves and resources described exist in the guantities predicted or estimated, and can be
profitably produced in the future.

The forward-looking statements are subject to known and unknown risks and uncertainties and other {actors which may cause aciual results, levels
of activity and achievements to differ materially from those expressed or implied by such statements. Such factors include, among others: market
prices for oil and gas and chemicals products; our ability to explore, develop, preduce and transport crude oil and natural gas to markets; the results of
exploration and development drilling and relatad activities; volatility in energy trading markets; foreign-currency exchange rates; economic conditions
in the countries and regions in which we carry on business; governmental actions including changes to taxas or royalties, changes in environmental
and other laws and regulations; renegetiations of contracts; results of litigation, arbitration or regulatory proceedings; and political unceartainty, including
actions by terrorists, insurgent or other groups, or other armed confiict, including conflict between states. The impact of any one risk, uncertainty or
factor on a particular forward-looking statement is not determinable with certainty as these factors are interdependent, and management’s future
course of action would depend on cur assessment of all information at that time.

Although we believe that the expectations conveyed by the forward-locking statements are reasonable based on information available to us on the date
such forward-looking statemenis were made, no assurances can be given as to future results, levels of activity and achievernents. Undue reliance should
not be placed on the statements contained herein, which are made as of the date hereof and, except as required by law, Nexen undertakes no obligation
te update publicly or revise any ferward-lcoking statements, whether as a result of new infermation, future events or otherwise. The forward-looking
staternents contained herein are expressly qualified by this cautionary statement. Readers should also refer to ltems 14 and 7A in our 2007 Annual
Repoert on Form 10-K for further discussion of the risk factors,

Cautionary Note to US Investors—The United States Securities and Exchange Commission {SEC) permits oil and gas companies, in their filings with the SEC,
to discuss only proved reserves that are supported by actual production or conclusive formation tests to be economically and legally producible under existing
economic and operating conditions. In this disclosure, we may refer to “recoverable reserves”, “probable reserves” and “recoverable resources” which
are inherently more uncertain than proved reserves. These terms are not used in our fitings with the SEC. Qur reserves and related performance measures
represent our working interest before royalties, unless otherwise indicated. Please refer to our Annual Report on Form 10-K available from us or the SEC for

further reserve disclosure.

In addition, under SEC regulations, the Syncrude oil sands operations are considered mining activities rather than oil and gas activities. Production,
raserves and related measures in this disclosure include results from the Company's share of Syncrude. Under SEC regulations, we are required 1o
recognize bitumen reserves rather than the upgraded premium synthetic crude oil we will produce and sell from Long Lake.

Cautionary Note to Canadian Investors—Nexen is required 1o disclose oil and gas activities under National Instrurnent 51-101—Standards of Disclosure
for Oil and Gas Activities (NI 51-101). However, the Canadian securities regulatory authorities (CSA) have granted us exemptions from certain provisions
of NI B1-101 to permit US-style disclosure. These exemptions were sought because we are a US Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) registrant
and our securities regulatory disclosures, including Form 10-K and other related forms, must comply with SEC requirements. Qur disclosures may differ
from those of Canadian companies whe have not received similar exemptions under NI 51-101.

Please read the “Special Note to Canadian Investors” in ltem 7A in our 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K, for a summary of the exemption
granted by the CSA and the major differences between SEC requirements and NI 51-101. The summary is not intended to be all-inclusive or
to convey specific advice. Reserve estimation is highly technical and requires professional collaboration and judgment.

Because reserves data are based on judgments regarding future events, actual results will vary and the variations may be material. Variations as a result
of future events are expected to be consistent with the fact that reserves are categorized according o the prebability of their recovery.

Please note that the differences betwean SEC requirerments and NI 51-101 may be material.

QOur probable reserves disclosure applies the Society of Petroleun Engineers/Wonld Petroleum Council (SPEAVPC) definition for probable reserves. The
Canadian Oif and Gas Evaluation Handbook states there should not be a significant difference in estimated prebable reserve quantities using the SPEAMWPC
definition versus NI 51-101.

In this disclosure, wae refer to oil and gas in common units called barrel of oit equivalent (boe). A boe is derived by converting six thousand cubic feet of
gas to one barrel of oit {8mcf:1bbl). This conversion may be misleading, particularly if used in isolation, since the 6mcf:1bbl ratio is based on an energy
equivalency at the burner tip and does not represent the value equivalency at the well head.
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president’s review

Did you know Charlie Fischer providas a quarterly update on
our operations and financial results? Keep up to date by visiting
www.nexeninc.com/reports/Al.asp

2007 2006 2005

Cash Flow from Operations {$ millions) 3,458 2,669 2,403
-Cash Flow per Share ($/share} 6.56 5.09 4.62
Net income (§ millions) 1,086 601 1,140
Net Income per Share {$/share} 2.06 1.15 2.19
WCapitaI Expenditures 1$ millions) ) _' 3,401 3,330 2,638

It was a year of solid accomplishments at Nexen. QOperationally, we brought
Buzzard on stream and increased production after royalties by 33%. Financially, we
achieved net income of $1.1 billion or $2.06 per share and record cash flow of $3.5
billion or $6.56 per share as we benefited from the full impact of high oil prices.
We also received a number of accolades for the way we do business including for

our transparent disclosures and comprehensive sustainability reporting.

Our greatest achievement was the successful ramp up of Buzzard in the
North Sea, which began producing early in 2007. Buzzard is cne of the few mega
projects worldwide in the last severat years to be completed virtually on time and
on budget. In its first year of operations, Buzzard achieved first quartile uptime
performance for a new offshore facility in UK North Sea and was the single largest
contributor to our 30% cash flow growth. Over its life, this world-class asset is
expected to produce well over 600 million barrels of oil (260 million barrels net to

us) and generate significant value for Nexen.

Despite success at Buzzard, we missed our 2007 production targets. In addition
to modest timing delays at Buzzard, the start up at Long Lake was deferred almost
six months, and at Aspen in the Gulf of Mexico, we had disappointing results from
develocpment drilling. Going forward, we've already made a number of changes
to improve project performance. At Buzzard, we're focusing on continuously
improving uptime so the platform consistently operates at full rates. At Long Lake,
we are integrating the lessons from Phase 1 and other projects into our plans
for subsequent phases. To suppori our sirategic initiatives in the US, we have
restructured our operations to focus on improving our capabilities in the deep-
water Gulf of Mexico. With these changes underway, we are well positioned for

a successful 2008,

This year we are excited to bring Phase 1 of Long Lake on stream. We are
currently steaming the reservoir through all well pads and upgrader construction is
more than 97% complete. OQur oil sands strategy integrates steam-assisted-gravity-
drainage (SAGD) and upgrading technology to produce the highest quality synthetic

crude in the region. The patented process minimizes the need for purchased natural



2007 2006 2005

Production before Royalties {mboe/a) T 254 212 242
Production after Royalties (mboe/d} ) 207 156 173
Proved Reserves ' (mmboe} ' 1,058 : 1.049 786
Proved + Probable Reserves® [mr:r;boel 1,964 1,651 1,621

1 Represants our working interest before royalties using vear-end pricing and includes our Syncrude raserves.

gas and provides us with an expected $10/bbl operating cost advantage over existing technclogies. Phase 1 only develops
about 10% of our cil sands leases. Once we gather enough operating history and receive clarity on proposed regulatory
changes associated with climate change and royalty rates, we expect to sanction Phase 2. Future phases should follow an
approximate 3-year cycle. Over the next decade, we plan to grow our oil sands production to approximately 120,000 bbls/d.
With our significant land position and cost advantage, it is easy to see that oil sands will

generate value growth for many years.

Yet there’s more to develop and bring on stream in our global portfolio. n the North
Sea, our Ettrick development is progressing well towards first oil mid 2008. We expect
production to ramp up to approximately 30,000 boe/d (24,000 boe/d net to us) by year end.
We have also identified a number of exploration opportunities in the immediate area that
could be tied back to Ettrick and plan to evaluate at least twe of these in 2008. Throughout
the North Sea, we have hundreds of thousands of undeveloped acres, including nine

licenses offshore Norway where we hope to drill our first well in 2009.

Offshore Nigeria, development of the world-class Usan discovery continues to move
forward, and we expect to award major deep-water facilities contracts soon. As we develop

Usan, we also plan to continue exploring the highly prospective acreage in the area.

We also have a vast inventory of diverse opportunities in North America. In the Gulf of
Mexico, we have significant deep-water acreage and have contracted two new deep-water
rigs scheduled to arrive in mid 2009 and 2010. In addition to our active exploration program
here, we also plan to appraise our exciting discoveries at Knotty Head and Vicksburg to define their potential. In Canada,
we are the first company developing coalbed methane (CBM) in Alberta's Mannville coals where we have extensive land
holdings. And in northeast British Columbia, we have a material land position in an emerging shale gas play and are currently

testing this opportunity in what has the potential to be one of the most significant shale gas plays in Canada.

Looking at the company, | believe we have the talent and discipline to turn these opportunities into value-generating
projects. I'm excited to see a new generation of employees at Nexen. They are young, energetic people who value integrity,
diversity, innovative thinking and our rich portfolio of worldwide assets. Once again our employees named us one of the 50
Best Employers to work for in Canada. This is a great measure of our success in a world where human potential is truly the
world's richest resource. | thank all employees, our participative Board of Directors and committed shareholders wheo all see

value in what's next.

Charlie Fischer

President and CEQ



Roger Thomas

Marvin Romanow

We asked Marvin: In 2007, Nexen's net praduction grew by 33%, but
don‘texpect growth of this magnitude for a few years until projects like Us
Knotty Head and Phase 2 of Long Lake come on stream. Do you beli
growth should be the company’s strategic focus?

We asked Roger: Since the Long Lake pilot performed befow initial expe

tations and there's proprietary upgrading technology involved, what giv
o ) . : .




www.nexenine. com/freports/A2.asp

We asked Larry. Buzzard was one of few global mega projects in the last several years
to be completed virtually on time and on budget, yet it missed its 2007 production goal.
What happened?

Larry Murphy



why invest in Nexen

Whether you are a shareholder or an employee, you
invest in Nexen because we're creating value. Over
the past five years, our share price increased 275%,
outperfarming many of our peers and several major
indices. How do we do it? We look beyond today and
capture early positions in oil sands, CBM and shale
gas lands. We rise to the challenge and turn mega
projects, like Yemen and Buzzard, into legacies, And
we do the right things for the right reasons and never
compromise safety, ethics, or the environment.
See the value and join us in an exciting future as
we bring on what's next.

Did vou know we've been profitable ever vear, except one, in our
37-year history? Learn more sbout Nexen as a great long-term
investment al www.nexeninc.com/reports/A3.asp
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what drives




we commit to
powerful strategies

Studies show that applying new technology
could increase worldwide supply just as much as
successful exploration. Quantum results occur

when that technolegy is applied to a critical mass.

Take Long Lake. Years ago we identified hurdles
in developing oil sands, accumulated significant
inventory and formed a strategy that disrupts
conventional wisdom. The patented process
substantially reduces the need to purchase
natural gas, resulting in an expected $10/bbl
cost advantage. Apply this to additional phases,
and the rewards are massive, With significant
CBM, shale gas and deep-water inventory,
we're planning strategies for what’s next.

Did you know Long Lake is named after a nearby lake, which
is more round than long? Laarn meore about the project at
www.nexerninc.com/raports/Ad.asp

Leyla Rojas, Engineer

L
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Phase 1 of Long Lake will only develop
about 10% of our total oil sands leases.
We will continue to develop this asset in
phases, leveraging our unique technology
to generate tremendous value.
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we explore a world
of opportunities

Our opportunity inventory is simply unbeatable
in both quality and size. Built with foresight, it is
global and diverse, making us more sustainable in
changing market conditions. Here in Canada, we
have billiens of barrels of oil sands inventory plus
significant land positions with CBM and shale
gas potential. Internationally, we have thousands
of unexplored acres in the North Sea and the
Gulf of Mexico. Now our job is to turn these
opportunities into value-generating projects.

In 2008, we'll bring on Long Lake and Ettrick,
and drill up to 11 exploration wells worldwide.
Any one of these wells could be what's next.

Did you kriow we employ about 3,500 people worldwide and
opened an offica in Norway? Learn more about our global

- e, ’ EJ ;"' .
operations 8t www.nexeninc.com/reports/A5.asp Canadian Rockies . S :ﬂggir . dn
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We are constantly investing in our future.
In 2007, we acquired deep-water acreage in
the Gulf of Mexico and now hold about 200
blocks. With several drill-ready prospects,

we're excited to discover what's next.

- ——

Gulf of Mexico




we develop
world-class assets

Gtobally speaking, we are a small company with big
company assets. And in this industry, size matiers.
Qil and gas is largely a fixed cost business—so
larger fields and volumes yield lower unit capital and
operating costs. Worldwide, there are just over 100
fields producing more than 100,000 boe/d. Buzzard
in the North Sea and Masila in Yermen are part of this
ehite group. Next is Usan, offshore Nigeria, expected
to produce around 180,000 boe/d {36,000 boe/d
net to us). Long Lake in Canada and Knotty Head

in the Gulf of Mexico could soon belong here too.
With such exciting mega projects, we can't wait

to develop what's next.

Did you know our marketing group selfs our Buzzard and Masila
crudle, and power too? Learn more about our dynamic marketing
busingss et www.nexeninc.com/reports/A6.asp

Matt Staines, Projfect Engineer
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We transform Possibilities into exciting
Projects. Buzzarg came on stream in 2007

generating significant value for shareholde,
and winning Ene

the Year We're p

gy Engineen'ng Project of
.

oud to be part of this Iegacy




we build
sustainable businesses

We are committed to exemplary corporate
governance, environmental and social responsibility,
and the health and safety of our workforce. We believe,
over the long term, companies that steward to such
business practices will be more sustainable and will
outperform those with narrower pricrities. But don't
just take our word—see for yourself. We are recognized
as a leader in corporate governance and sustainability
reporting, winning awards for both, For the first time
everl, our Scott/Telford offshore UK operations went
two years withcut a fost-time injury. And we've been
included in the Dow Jones Sustainability Index for
the past seven years. Living cur values brings value
today and to what's next.

Did you know Soderglen Wind Farm produces enough green energy
to power about 25,000 homes? Learn more about sustainability at
Nexen by visiting www.nexeninc.com/reports/A7.asp Sodergten Wind Farm
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reserves

Reserve bookings capture only a glimpse of what's
next. In 2007, we added 102 million boe of proved
reserves, replacing about 110% of our annual
production. Our year-end proved and probable
reserves totaled 2.0 billion boe. Yet there's
more—ijust iook at our oi! sands. So far we've
booked 791 million barrels of proved and probable
reserves for Phases 1 and 2 of Long Lake—but we
have enough land to potentially develop up to 10
phases. Our booked reserves also reflect little for
our undeveloped discoveries in the Gulf of Mexico
and UK, and the unconventional CBM and shale gas
in our feases in western Canada. As these projects
take shape, we expect to book significantly more
reserves, proving what's next,

Did you know 98% of our proved reserves were assassed by
independent qualified consultants in 20077 Learn more about our
reserve estimates at www.nexeninc.com/reports/AB asp

Yemen Terminal




Before Royalties, Year-end Pricing

reserves

il and Gas Activities Mining
International United States Canada '
" - Total Oil,
Yemen United Kingdormn  Other Intl ; Total Oil Gas and
{mmboe) Qil ail Gas Qil 0il Gas Qil Gas Bitumen | and Gas ISvncruda’ Mining
Proved Roservas'
December 31, 2006 66 179 3 40 34 39 57 61 246 725 324 1,049
—
Extensions and
Discoveries 2 10 - - 1 3 1 6 - 23 B 31
—
Acquisitions - 1 - - 3 ] - - - 12 - 12
—t —_—
Dispositions - - - - - (2) - - - (2) - {2}
Revisions 1 43 1 - (7} {5) 4 2 22 61 - 61
- - — p—— ——
Production (28)4 {30} - {2) 1] {6} (6) (7 - (85) {8} (93}
December 31, 2007 a1 203 a 38 25 37 58 62 268 734 324 1,058
Probable Reserves '? -
December 31, 2006 22 152 g 59 69 30 22 40 154 656 46 602
———
Extensions, Discoveries
and Conversions {4} {29) 12} - 0 2 1 (2) 378 344 - 343
_
Acquisitions - 2 - - 1 6 - - - 9 - 9
et
Dispositions - - - - (15} (9} - - - (24) - (24)
Revisions {3} 14 1} 1 (16) (8 1 (4 8 (25) - (24)
December 31, 2007 15 139 5 60 39 21 24 aa 623 860 46 906
Proved + Probable
Reserves '?
December 31, 2006 88 331 n 99 103 69 79 101 400 1,281 370 1,651
—_—
Extensions, Discoveries
and Conversions (2) (19) (2) - 1 5 2 4 378 367 -] 374
————
Acquisitions - 3 - - q 14 - - - 21 - 21
— —
Dispositions - - - - (15} {11y - - - (26} - {26)
Revisions (2) 57 - 1 {23) (13) 5 (2) 13 36 - 37
 ——1
Production {28)* (30} - 2) (6) (B) {6} (7} - {85} 8 (93)
December 31, 2007 58 3a2 9 98 64 58 80 96 791 1,594 370 1,964

1 We internally evaluate all of our reserves and have at least 80% of our proved reserves assessed by independent qualified consultants each year; 98% were
assessed this vear. Our reservas are also reviewad and approved by our Reserves Committee and our Board of Directors. Reserves represent our working
interest befora royalties at year-end constant pricing using Securitias end Exchange Commission rules. (Gas is converted to equivalent oif at a 6:1 ratio.

2 Probeble reserves are determined according to SPEMVPC definitions. US investors should read the Cautionary Note to US Investors at the and of this report.

3 US investors should read the Cautionary Note to US Investors at the end of this report.

4 Production includes volumes used for fuel in Yemen.




performance review

(Cdn$ mitlions, except share and production data) 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Highlights
Net Sales’® 5,583 3,936 3,932 2,944 2,632
Cash Flow from Cperations? 3,458 2,669 2,403 1,942 1,795
Per Common Share {3/share) 6.56 ) 5.08 4,62 3.78 3.63
Net Income 1,086 ) 601 1,140 793 578
Per Comman Share {$/share) 2.06 1.15 2.19 1.54 1.47
Capital Expenditures 3,901 3,330 2,638 1,681 1,484
Business Acquisitions - 78 - 2,583 -
Dispositions 4 27 an 34 293
Production **
Production Before Royalties (mboe/d) 254 212 242 250 269
Production After Royalties (mhoe/d) 207 156 173 174 185
| Financial Position &
I Working Capital 412 476 29 40 1,399
' Property, Plant and Equipment, Net 12,498 11,739 9,594 8,643 4,550
Total Assets 18,075 17,156 14,580 12,383 7717
Net Debt* 4,404 4,730 3.639 4,285 1,430
Long-Term Debt 4,610 4,673 3,687 4,259 3,083
Shareholders' Equity 5610 4,636 3,996 2,867 2,075
Shares and Dividends
Commaon Shares Qutstanding (millions} 528.3 525.0 522.2 516.8 502.4
Number of Registered Common Shareholders 1,569 ) 1,454 1,294 1.329 1.420
Closing Commaon Share Price (TSX) (Cdn$/share} 32.10 32.10 27N 12.18 11.73
Dividends Declared per Common Share (Cdn$/share} 0.10 .10 0.10 0.10 0.08
Cash Flow from Operations’ ‘
Qil and Gas
United Kingdom 2,101 a77 284 30 -
Yemen b664 ‘ ¥y 929 581 530
Canada 179 ) 229 397 426 490
United States 480 573 667 700 623
Other Countries 87 l 94 48 57 64
Marketing 73 432 138 100 126
Syncrude 313 240 223 183 105
3,903 2,922 2,686 2,077 1,938
Chemicals %0 83 95 82 74
3,993 - 3,005 2,781 2,159 2,012
Interest and Other Corporate Items {350) (254) (335) (196} {208}
Income Taxes {185) (82} {43) 121) 9)
Total Cash Flow from Operations 3,458 2,669 2,403 1,942 1,795

Raprasents net sales from continuing operations.

h & W N -

Cash flow from operations is defined as cash generated from operating activitias before changes in non-cash working capital and cther,
Production is Nexen’s working interest share and includes our share of production from Syncrude.

Natural gas is converted at & mcf per equivalent barrel of oif.

Net Debt is defined as long-term debt and short-term borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.




Did you know our Statistical Supplement provides years of historical
financial and operating information? Download your copy at
www.nexeninc.com/reports/A9.asp

performance review

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Production Before Royalties
Crude Oil and NGLs (mbbls/d)
United Kingdom 81.2 ) 16.9 12.6 1.5 -
Yemen 71.6 92.9 1127 107.3 116.8
Canada 17.% 20.0 29.2 36.2 46.3
United States 164 17.0 22 300 28.3
Australia - - - 2.7 6.1
Other Countries 6.2 ) 6.3 5.6 53 5.4
Syncrude 221 18.7 15.5 17.2 15.3
2146 171.8 197.8 200.2 218.2
Natural Gas (mmci/d)
United Kingdom 16 20 23 3 -
Canada 118 108 124 146 158
United States 101 111 116 148 145
235 239 263 297 303
Total Production Bafore Royaities {mbee/d) 254 212 242 250 269
Production After Royalties
Crude Oil and NGLs (mbbls/d}
United Kingdom 81.2 16.9 12.6 1.5 ~
Yemen 398 518 60.6 535 575
Canada 134 15.8 226 282 36.4
United States 145 15.0 19.5 265 260
Australia - : - - 25 5.6
Other Countries 5.7 ! 5.7 5.1 4.7 46
Syncrude 188 169 15.3 16.6 15.2
1734 122.1 135.8 133.5 1433
Natural Gas {mmcf/d) ;
United Kingdom ' 16 20 23 3 -
Canada : % | 91 101 115 125
United States | 86 | 94 99 126 122
; 200 | 205 223 244 247
Total Production After Royalties (mboe/d) 207 ‘ 156 173 174 185
0il and Gas Cash Natback Before Royalties' ($/bce) :
Praducing Assets f
United Kingdom ) 67.85 ! 55.63 42.93 39.19 -
Yemen i 25.52 ‘ 26.35 22.56 14.99 12.58
Canada » 20.07 1 22.87 25.46 21.24 19.46
United States 42.28 ‘ 40.42 45,85 35.35 32.48
Australia l - - - 14.28 21.10
Syncrude [ 41.94 \ 37.88 43.34 31.07 20.92
Other Countries ' 61.94 57.71 49.18 35.82 25.06
Company-Wide 0Oil and Gas 43.22 32.75 30.57 22.66 19.24

1 Definad as average sales price lass rovalties and other, operating costs and incountry taxes in Yemen. Calculation details can ba found in the Statistical

Supplamant on cur website.




executive management

Charles W. Fischer Marvin F. Romanow
President and Executive Vice President
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer

Laurence Murphy Roger D. Thomas Gary H. Nieuwenburg Kevin J. Reinhart
Executive Vice President, Executive Vice President, Senior Vice President, Senior Vice President,
International Gil and Gas Nerth America Synthetic Crude Corporate Planning and

Business Development

Brian C. Reinsborough Tim J. Thomas Robert J. Black Randy J. Jahrig
Senicr Vice President, Senior Vice President, Vice President, Vice President,
United States Oil and Gas Canadian Oil and Gas Energy Marketing Human Resources and

Corporate Services

Kim D. McKenzie Eric B. Miller Una M. Power Brendon T. Muller
Vice President and Vice President, General Counsel  Treasurer Controller
Chief Information Officer and Secretary



Did you know our board of directors was ranked the top board b oa rd Of d i recto rs

in Canada ir 20077 Laarn mere about our directors by visiting
www.nexeninc.com/reports/A10.asp

Francis M. Saville, Q.C. Charles W. Fischer Dennis G. Flanagan David A. Hentschel
Chair of the Board President and CEQ Calgary, Alberta, Tulsa, Oklahoma,
Calgary, Alberta, Calgary, Alberta, Canada United States
Canada Canada

S. Barry Jackson Kevin J. Jenkins The Honourable Eric P. Newell, O.C.
Calgary, Alberta, Calgary, Alberta, A, Anne McLellan, P.C. Edmanten, Alberta,
Canada Canada Edmanton, Alberta, Canada

Canada

Thomas C. O'Neill Richard M. Thomson, 0.C. John M. Willson Victor J. Zaleschuk
Toronto, Ontario, Taronto, Ontario, Vancouver, British Colurnbia, Calgary, Alberia,
Canada Canada Canada Canada
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information

Head Office

801 - 7th Avenue SW

Calgary, Alberta, Canada T2P 3P7
T 403.695.4000

F 403.699.5800
www.nexeninc.com

Investor Relations Contact
Michael J. Harris, CA

Vice President, Investor Retations
T 403.699.4688

+ 403.699.5730
mike_harris@nexeninc.com

Annual General and
Special Meeting
11:00 a.m. M.T.
Tuesday, April 29, 2008
The Metropolitan Centre
333 - 4th Avenue SW
Calgary, Alberta, Canada

Stock Symhol—NXY
Toronto Stock Exchange (TSX)
New York Stock Exchange (NYSE)

officers

Francis M. Saville, Q.C.
Chair of the Board

Charles W. Fischer

President and Chief Executive Cfficer

Marvin F. Romanow
Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer

Laurence Murphy
Executive Vice President,
International Qil and Gas

Roger D. Thomas
Executive Vice President,
Narth America

Preferred Securities
7.35% Subordinated Notes
TSX—NXY.PR.U
NYSE—NXYPRB

Common Share Transfer Agent
and Registrars

CIBC Mellen Trust Company

Calgary, Toronto, Montreal and
Vancouver, Canada

The Bank of New York Mallon
Jersey City, New Jersey, US

Dividend Reinvestment Plan
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US residents, a prospectus) and
authorization form may be obtained
by calling CIBC Mellon Trust Company
at 1.800.387.0825 or at
www.cibcmellon.com

Auditors
Deloitte & Touche LLP
Calgary, Alberta, Canada

Conversions
Natural gas is converted at 6 mcf
per equivalent barre! of oil.

Dollar Amounts
In Canadian dollars unless
otherwise stated.

Gary H. Nieuwenburg
Senior Vice President,
Synthetic Crude

Kevin J. Reinhart
Senior Vice President,
Corporate Planning and
Business Development

Brian C. Reinsborough
Senior Vice President,
United States Oil and Gas

Tim J. Thomas
Senior Vice President,
Canadian Qil and Gas

Randy J. Jahrig

Vice President,

Human Resources and
Corporate Services

Operating Entities
Canada
Nexen Qil Sands Partnership

United States
Nexen Petroleum Offshore U.S.A. Inc.
Nexen Petroleum U.S A, Inc.

International
Canadian Nexen Petroleum

East Al Hajr Ltg.
Canadian Nexen Petroleum Yemen
Nexen Ettrick U.K. Limited
Nexen Exploration Norge AS
Nexen Exploration U.X. Limited
Nexen Petroleum Colombia Limited
Nexen Petroleum Nigeria Limited
Nexen Petroleum U K. Limited

Marketing

Nexen Energy Marketing Europe Limited
Nexen Energy Marketing London Limited
Nexen Marketing

Nexen Marketing International Ltd.
Nexen Marketing Singapore Pte. Ltd.
Nexen Marketing U.S.A. Inc.

Chemicals

Canexus Chemicals Canada
Limited Partnership

Canexus U.S. Inc.

Canexus Quimica 8rasil Ltda.

Kim D. McKenzie
Vice President and
Chief Information Officer

Eric B. Miller
Vice President,
General Counsel and Secretary

Una M. Power
Treasurer

Brendon T. Muller
Controller

Rick C. Beingessner
Assistant Secretary

Sylvia L. Groves
Assistant Secretary

For more information on our officers
and directors, please see Iltem 10 in
our Form 10-K.



forward-looking
statements

Certain statements in this report constitute “forward-looking statements” (within the meaning of the United States Private Securities Litigation Reform
Act of 1995, Section 21E of the United States Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and Section 274 of the United States Securities Act of
1933, as amended) or "forward-looking information” (within the meaning of applicable Canadian securities legistation). Such statemerts or information
{“forward-looking statements”} are generally identifiable by the terminology used such as “anticipate”, "believe”, "intend”, “plan”, "expect”,
“estimate”, "budget”, "outlook” or other similar words and include statements relating to or associated with individual wells, regions or projects. Any
statements as 1o possible future crude oil, natural gas or chemicals prices, future production levels, future cost recovery oil revenues from our Yemen
operations, future capital expenditures and their allocation to exploration and development activities, future earnings, future asset dispesitions, future
sources of funding for our capital program, future debt levels, possible commerciality, development plans or capacity expansions, future ability to execute
dispositions of assets or businesses, future cash flows and their uses, future drilling of new wells, ultimate recoverability of reserves or rescurces,
expected finding and development costs, expected operating costs, future demand for chemicals products, estimates on a per share basis, sales, future
expenditures and future allowances relating to environmental matters and dates by which certain areas will be devetoped or will come on stream, and
changes in any of the feregoing are forward-leoking statements. Staterments relating to “reserves” or “resources” are forward-looking statements, as
they involve the implied assessment, based on estimates and assumptions that the reserves and resources described exist in the quantities predicted
or estimated, and can be profitably produced in the future.

The forward-looking statements are subject to known and unknown risks and uncertainties and other factors which may cause actual results, levels of
activity and achievemenits to differ materially from those expressed or implied by such statements. Such factors include, among others: market prices
for oil and gas and chemicals products; our ability to explore, develop, produce and transpert crude oil and natural gas to markets; the results of explora-
ticn and development drilling and related activities; volatility in energy trading markets; foreign-currency exchange rates; econcmic conditions in the
countries and regions in which we carry on business; governmenial actions including changes 1o taxes or royalties, changes in environmental and other
laws and regulations; renegotiations of contracts; results of litigation, arbitration or regulatory proceedings; and political uncertainty, including actions
by terrorists, insurgent or other groups, or other armed conflict, including cenflict between states. The impact of any one risk, uncertainty or factor on a
particular forward-looking statement is not determinable with certainty as these factors are interdependant, and management's future course of action
would depend on our assessment of all information at that time.

Although we believe that the expectations conveyed by the forward-looking statements are reasonable based on information available to us on the date
such forward-looking statements were made, no assurances can be given as to future resutts, levels of activity and achievements. Undue reliance should
not be placed on the statements contained herein, which are made as of the date herecf and, except as required by law, Nexen undertakes no obligaticn
to update publicly or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. The forward-ooking
statements contained herein are expressly qualified by this cautionary statement. Readers should also refer to ltems 1A and 7A in our 2007 Annual
Report on Form 1G-X for further discussion of the risk factors.

Cautionary Note to US Investors—The United States Securities and Exchange Commission {SEC) permits oil and gas companies, in their filings with
the SEC, to discuss only proved reserves that are supported by actual production or conclusive formation 1ests 10 be economically and legally preducible
under existing economic and operating conditions. In this disclosure, we may refer to “recoverable reserves”, "probable reserves” and “recoverable
resources” which are inherently more uncertain than proved reserves. These terms are not used in our filings with the SEC. Qur reserves and related
performance measures represent our working interest before royalties, unless otherwise indicated. Please refer to our Annuat Report on Form 10-X

available from us or the SEC for further reserve disclosure,

In addition, under SEC regulations, the Syncrude oil sands operations are considered mining activities rather than oil and gas activities. Production,
reserves and related measures in this disclosure include results from the Company’s share of Syncruge. Under SEC regulations, we are required 10
recognize bitumen reserves rather than the upgraded premium synthetic crude oil we will produce and sell from Leng Lake.

Cautionary Note to Canadian Investors—Nexen is required to disclose oil and gas activities under National Instrument 51-101—Standards of Disclosure
for Qit and Gas Activities (N! §1-101). However, the Canadian securities regulatory authorities (CSA) have granted us exemptions frem certain provisions
of Nt 51-101 to permit US-style disclosure. These exemptions were socught because we are 3 US Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) registrant
and our securities regulatory disclosures, including Form 10-K and other related forms, must comply with SEC requirements. Qur disclosures may differ
from those of Canadian companies who have not received similar exemptions under NI 51-107,

Please read the “Special Note to Canadian Investors” in Item 7A in our 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K, for a summary of the exemption
granted by the CSA and the major differences between SEC requirements and NI 51-101. The summary is not intended to be all-inclusive or
to convey specific advice. Reserve estimation is highly technical and requires professional collaboration and judgment.

Because reserves data are based on judgments regarding future events, actual results will vary and the variations may be material, Variations as a result
of future events are expected to be consistent with the fact that reserves are categoerized according to the probability of their recovery.

Please note that the differences between SEC requirernenmts and Nt 51-101 may be material.

Our probable reserves disclosure applies the Society of Pewoleum Engineers/World Petroleum Council {SPEAVPC) definition for probable reserves. The
Canadian Oil and Gas Evaluation Handbook states there should not be a significant difference in estimated probable reserve guantities using the SPEAWPC
definition versus NI 51-101,

In this disclosure, we refer 1o oil and gas in common units called barrel of ol equivalent {bee). A boe is derived by converting six thousand cubic feet of
gas 1o one barrel of oil (Bmef:1bbl). This conversion may be misleading, particularly if used in isolation, since the 8mcf:1bbl ratio is based on an energy
equivalency at the burner tip and does not represent the value equivalency at the well head.
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